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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
(Commission File Number) 001-32410

9 Celanese
CELANESE CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Grart

Delaware 98-0420726
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or @amization) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
1601 West LBJ Freeway, Dallas, TX 75234-6034
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(972) 443-4000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area gode
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) die Act

Name of Each Exchange

Title of Each Class on Which Registered
Series A Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ttie Act
None
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yedd No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant &l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter pahatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing nespents for
the past 90 days. Ye& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant idsnitted electronically and posted on its corpok&eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Régul&-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during thegeding 12 months (or for such shorter period that t
registrant was required to submit and post suek)il Yes™ No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it contained herein, and will not be contained hi test of
the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxyinformation statements incorporated by referendeairt Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendment tcsthi
Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelézd filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rul@b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filels Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filerd Smaller reporting companydl
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Adtgs O No M

The aggregate market value of the registrant’'seSekiCommon Stock held by non-affiliates as of B®e2011 (the last business day of the registramst
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The number of outstanding shares of the regisseé8eties A Common Stock, $0.0001 par value, agbfuary 3, 2012 was 156,661,475.
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Special Note Regarding Forwa-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report on ForriKX0Annual Report”) or in other materials we hafiled or will file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and incorporated Imebgireference, are forward-looking in nature e in Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, Section 21E of the Securities Exchafgeof 1934, and the Private Securities LitigatR®eform Act of 1995. You can identify
these statements by the fact that they do noterédatnatters of a strictly factual or historicatura and generally discuss or relate to forecasts,
estimates or other expectations regarding futuemisv Generally, the words “believe,” “expect,”ténd,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,”
"plan,” “may,” “can,” “could,” “might,” “will” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statams, including statements that relate to
such matters as planned and expected capacityaBeseand utilization; anticipated capital spendamyironmental matters; legal proceedings;
exposure to, and effects of hedging of raw matamal energy costs and foreign currencies; inteagstfluctuations; global and regional
economic, political, and business conditions; etqéms, strategies, and plans for individual esaed products, business segments, as well a
for the whole Company; cash requirements and usagailable cash; financing plans; pension expeaseésfunding; anticipated restructuring,
divestiture, and consolidation activities; costuetibn and control efforts and targets and intégnadf acquired businesses.

Forward-looking statements are not historical factguarantees of future performance but instepresent only our beliefs at the time the
statements were made regarding future events, vanekubject to significant risks, uncertaintias] ather factors, many of which are outside
of our control and certain of which are listed aba&ny or all of the forwardeoking statements included in this Annual Repod @& any othe
materials incorporated by reference herein may duitrto be materially inaccurate. This can occua assult of incorrect assumptions, in some
cases based upon internal estimates and analysesrefit market conditions and trends, managemniansgand strategies, economic
conditions, or as a consequence of known or unknisies and uncertainties. Many of the risks andeutainties mentioned in this Annual
Report, such as those discussettém 1A. Risk Factorsltem 3. Legal ProceedingmdItem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operaticwill be important in determining whether these fard-looking statements prove to be accurate.
Consequently, neither our stockholders nor anyrgtkeson should place undue reliance on our ford@okling statements and should
recognize that actual results may differ materifityn those anticipated by us.

All forward-looking statements made in this Ann&edport are made as of the date hereof, and théhdslactual results will differ materially
from expectations expressed in this Annual Repdinerease with the passage of time. We undertakebligation, and disclaim any duty, to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking sta&ats, whether as a result of new information,riuewvents, changes in our expectations or
otherwise. However, we may make further disclostegarding future events, trends and uncertaiimiesir subsequent reports on Forms 10-
K, 10-Q and 8-K to the extent required under thelaxge Act. The above cautionary discussion osrigkcertainties and possible inaccurate
assumptions relevant to our business includesraete believe could cause our actual results ferdihaterially from expected and historical
results. Other factors beyond those listed above ibem 1A. Risk Factorsltem 3. Legal Proceedingsditem 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkerationsbelow, including factors unknown to us and factarswn to us which we have
determined not to be material, could also adveratbct us.




Item 1. Business
Basis of Presentatiol

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Ceda@” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delawangocation, and not its subsidiaries. The
terms “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Celase and its subsidiaries on a consolidated bEststerm “Celanese US” refers to the
Company'’s subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LLC gtaldare limited liability company, and not its sigdisries.

Industry

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes industagadobtained from industry publications and sunesysvell as our own internal company
surveys. Third-party industry publications, survaysl forecasts generally state that the informatamtained therein has been obtained from
sources believed to be reliable. The statementgdatgy Celanese’s industry position in this docutrege based on information derived from,
among others, th2009 Stanford Research Institute International CicalrEconomics Handboak

Overview

Celanese is a global technology and specialty naddezompany that engineers and manufactures aweidety of products essential to
everyday living. As a recognized innovator in prodand process technology in the chemicals industeyhelp to create applications that meet
the needs of our customers worldwide. We are ortbeoivorld's largest producers of acetyl produstsch are intermediate chemicals for
nearly all major industries. We are also a leadjlodpal producer of high performance engineeredrpels that are used in a variety of high-
value applications.

Our highly-diversified product portfolio serves iad range of end-use applications including pants coatings, textiles, automotive
applications, consumer and medical applicationdpp@ance industrial applications, filter mediappaand packaging, chemical additives,
construction, consumer and industrial adhesives faod and beverage applications. Serving a divgiseal customer base, our products hold
leading global positions in the major product irtdies that we serve, supported by our large glpbadiuction capacity, operating efficiencies,
proprietary production technology and competitiestcstructures.

Celanese's history began in 1918, the year thptéidecessor company, The American Cellulose & Gterivianufacturing Company, was
incorporated. The company, which manufactured kedkiacetate, was founded by Swiss brothers Dmilléaand Henri Dreyfus. Since that
time, Celanese has transformed into a leading gtdiEmical company. The current Celanese was imcated in 2005 under the laws of the
State of Delaware and is a US-based public compadgd on the NYSE under the ticker symbol CE.

Based in Dallas, Texas, our operations are prignldated in North America, Europe and Asia andstsirof 27 global production facilities,
and an additional 8 strategic affiliate productiadilities. As of December 31, 2011 , we employpdraximately 7,600 people worldwide.

Business Segment Overvie

We operate principally through four business segmekxdvanced Engineered Materials, Consumer Sgmsalndustrial Specialties and Ace
Intermediates. See Note 25 to the accompanyingotidased financial statements for further detailsonr business segments. The table below
illustrates each business segment’s net salege¢onek customers for the year ended December 311, 28s well as each business segment’s
major products and end-use applications.




2011 Net Sale®

Key Products

Major End-Use
Applications

Advanced
Engineered Materials

Consumer Specialties

Industrial Specialties

Acetyl Intermediates

(In $ millions)

1,298 1,158 1,223 3,083
* Polyoxymethylene < Acetate tow « Conventional emulsions « Acetic acid
(“POM”) * Acetate flake + Vinyl acetate ethylene  + Vinyl acetate monomer
« GUR® ultra-high * Sunett’ sweetener emulsions (“VAE”) (“VAM”)
molecular weight * Sorbates + Ethylene vinyl acetate  + Acetic anhydride
polyethylene (“EVA") resins and » Acetaldehyde

* Polybutylene
terephthalate (“PBT")

« Long-fiber reinforced
thermoplastics
(“LFT")

 Liquid crystal
polymers (“LCP”)

» Polyethylene
terephthalate (“PET")

* Polycyclohexylene-
dimethylene
terephthalate (“PCT")

* Fuel system
components

» Automotive safety

systems

Conveyor belts

Battery separators

Electronics

Appliances

Filtrations

Medical Devices

* Telecommunications

Filter products
Beverages
Confections
Baked goods

compounds

Ethyl acetate

Low-density polyethylene « Formaldehyde
* Butyl acetate

resins (“LDPE")

Paints

Coatings

Adhesives

Textiles

Paper finishing

Flexible packaging
Lamination products
Photovoltaic cell systems
Medical tubing

» Automotive parts

Paints
Coatings
Adhesives
Lubricants
Pharmaceuticals
Films
Textiles
Inks
Plasticizers
Esters
Solvents

@ Consolidated net sales of $ 6,763 million for tlearyended December 31, 2011 also includes $ lomilti net sales from Other Activities,
which is attributable to our captive insurance canips. Net sales for Acetyl Intermediates and CoresuSpecialties exclude inter-
segment sales of $ 468 million and $ 3 millionspectively, for the year ended December 31, 2011 .




Business Strateg

Our strategic foundation is based on three piliamdeliver growth and create sustainable valueir®ss Focus, Strategic Growth Levers and
Strategic Results.

Business Focus to Generate Lo-Term Earnings Growth

We focus on businesses where we have a clearjralg®and competitive advantage to generate leng-earnings growth. We continue to
optimize our business portfolio to achieve industgst and technology leadership while expandingpooduct mix into higher value-added
products.

Strategic Growth Levers for Value Creatic

We expect to accelerate earnings growth, furthengthen our businesses and increase stockholbler traough premier execution of our key
strategic growth levers:

Geographic Growth Celanese is poised for future earnings growtbugh its geographically-balanced global footpridtir global
presence is aligned with the current and expeatedtt of our customers and provides flexible actedsey feedstocks. We have
established a strong presence and manufacturirggibhassia, one of the world's fastest growing regicOur integrated chemical complex
in Nanjing, China, the largest integrated acetgimiplex in the world, serves as a foundation forepansion in Asia and supports the
region's increasing demand. We are also capturiogtf with our established positions in North Ancareind Europe, while pursuing
growth opportunities in other emerging regions sastndia, Indonesia and Brazil.

We own or lease 27 production facilities throughitwet world. Our infrastructure of manufacturingrgla terminals, warehouses and sales
offices provides us with a competitive advantagariticipating and meeting the needs of our globdllacal customers in well-established
and growing industries, while our geographic diitgneeduces the potential impact of volatility inyaindividual country or region.
Additionally, our equity and cost investments reyerg an important component of our strategy fomexing our global reach, providing
our core businesses with a significant presenéeia and the Middle East.

Due to our geographic breadth, our net sales damted across the global regions. For the yearceBéeember 31, 2011 , 27% of our net
sales were to customers located in North Amerit&6 4 customers in Europe and Africa, 29% to custenn Asia-Pacific and 3% to
customers in South America.

Innovation - Our innovation efforts are focused on creatinly®and finding solutions for our customers throunglv technologies, new
applications and platforms, alternative raw materend new market channels. These efforts bolsteearnings potential and drive
technology leadership in our products and processgsxample, our Advanced Engineered Materiatsriass has industry-leading
polymer technologies used in high performance appitins and our Industrial Specialties businessiges attractive economic solutions
for environmentally-sensitive low-VOC applicatiomsgluding paints, coatings and adhesives. Our ydatermediates business uses
industry-leading proprietary and licensed technigsgincluding our AOPIu&, AOPIus®2 and AOPIu$ 3 technologies for acetic acid
production and VAntag®, VAntage Plus™, and VAntade technologies for VAM production. Innovation oppaorities in our Consumer
Specialties business are focused on product andigadiversification and build off of our core falation of acetylation chemistry, fiber
processing and food chemistry. In 2010, we intredugur innovative Celanese TCXthanol process technology which is expected tp
meet the world's increasing need for low cost tidfuiels. Using basic hydrocarbons - not food croas feedstock, the innovative Celanese
TCX ®process technology is built on our industry-leadicgtyl platform and integrates new proprietarjitedogies.

Productivity- Through ongoing productivity efforts in all of obusinesses and functions, we continually purgmodunities to increase
value, improve our competitive cost structures @eliler sustainable productivity improvement. Sesrof productivity include improvin
yields, reducing energy consumption and reducixgdfimanufacturing and selling, general and admmatise costs. Each year, we gene
productivity from hundreds of projects across dobgl operations to strengthen our operating leyerdvantage and deliver cost
improvements to offset fixed cost inflation. Receramples of successful projects include consatidaif our North American and
European financial shared services functions, anggnreduction program at our facility in Clear kakexas and a manufacturing
optimization project at our Lanaken, Belgium fagiliWwe have a relentless focus on operational éetet, and these efforts allow us to
offset inflation, improve operating performance aethvest in our business.




« Portfolio Enhancements- We continually pursue and execute value-cregiongfolio enhancements that meet our investmeterizi and
strengthen our technology-focused and specialtgrizgds businesses. During the last 10 years, we bagcuted acquisitions and
divestitures to broaden our portfolio and accessg teehnology, products and markets. These portfaticancements have led to the uni
portfolio of leading global businesses we enjoyatacdRecent portfolio enhancements include our atiipm of the LFT business of FACT
GmbH (Future Advanced Composites Technology) (“FACAs well as the ZeniteLCP and Therm® PCT product lines from DuPont
Performance Polymers in 2009 and 2010, respectit@lupport growth in our Advanced Engineered Mal® business. In 2010, we also
announced our plans to invest in a new POM fadilitpugh our 25%-owned National Methanol Compartgr(‘Sina”) venture in Saudi
Arabia to strengthen our specialty materials pdidfdn 2012, we acquired the Vin&and Flexbond product lines from Ashland Inc.
which will support the strategic growth of our Irstiial Specialties Emulsions business.

Delivering Strategic Results with an Advantaged Ffolio

We have created a unique portfolio of technology secialty materials businesses that will enalgllai@se to deliver strategic results. Our
advantaged portfolio is well positioned to drivetsined earnings growth of 10 to 15% per year, drigblative margins, lower earnings
volatility and return on invested capital which egds our weighted average cost of capital.

Business Segments
Advanced Engineered Material

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment usesaddgyolymer technology to produce a broad podfofihigh performance specialty
polymers used in a wide spectrum of applicatiomduiding automotive, medical and electronics prasiuas well as other consumer and
industrial applications. As a performance-drivelugons provider, Advanced Engineered Materialsntans its competitive advantage with
leading technical and application expertise thatbéss innovation and new product development ircedrwith its customers. By focusing on
new application development for its product linesften creates custom formulations to satisfytdwhnical and processing requirements of its
customers' applications. With a strong specificaposition, Advanced Engineered Materials is ableuild upon its differentiated polymer
processing and material capability to create snabde value for its high performance polymers. Heigment also includes four strategic
affiliates that complement our global reach, allesto capture growth opportunities in emerging eooies and position us as a leading
participant in the global specialty polymers indyst

Advanced Engineered Materials' specialty polymengehchemical and physical properties that enalgetto perform in a variety of
conditions. These include enduring elevated tentpers, resisting adverse chemical interactions aatkients and withstanding deformation.
POM, PBT and LFT are used in a broad range of padiace-demanding applications including automatimeponents, medical devices,
electronics, appliances and industrial applicati@IdR ® ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene is usedbattery separators, conveyor belts,
filtration equipment, coatings and medical devid&rsmary end uses for LCP are electrical and edaats applications or products. These
value-added applications in diverse end-uses stipwbusiness' global growth trends.

Value-in-use pricing for most of these productstipalarly specialized product grades for targedpglications, generally reflect the value
added in complex polymer chemistry, precision foatian and compounding, and the extensive appticatievelopment services provided.

Advanced Engineered Materials has polymerizatiommounding and research and technology centergimény, Brazil, China and the
United States. In 2010, we announced the exterddionr Ibn Sina strategic venture, which includes ¢onstruction of a new 50,000 ton POM
manufacturing facility in Saudi Arabia. Engineerioig the facility began in 2010. In 2011, we opeaedate-of-the art POM production facility
in Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park, Germany. Tiesv POM facility, the world's largest, strengthens Advanced Engineered Materials
segment and is expected to meet the increasedl gletmand for innovative specialty solutions in pobr-based products.

» Key Product:

POM . Polyoxymethylene, also commonly known as polyaldetthe chemical industry, is sold by Advancedjiaerered Materials under the
trademarks Celcohand Hostaforn?. POM is used for mechanical parts in automotivaliagtions, including door locks and seat belt
mechanisms, and in electrical, medical and cons@amglications such as drug delivery systems andsdgealarge appliances. POM and other
engineering resins are manufactured in the Asiafieaegion by Polyplastics Co., Ltd., our 45%-owih&trategic venture (“Polyplastics”), and
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd., our 50%-owsgdtegic venture (“KEPCQO").
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The primary raw material for POM is formaldehyddieh is manufactured from methanol. Advanced Ergjie¢ Materials purchases
formaldehyde in the United States from our Acetykimediates segment and manufactures formaldehylerope from purchased methanol.

Ultra-high molecular weight polyethyleneOur ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene protusold under the trademark G83Rare highly
engineered materials designed for heavy-duty imidisind automotive applications. They are useiteims such as industrial conveyor belts,
car battery separator panels, as well as speciatical and consumer applications, such as sparstheses and equipment. GBRicro
powder grades are used for high-performance fjltammbranes, diagnostic devices, coatings andieelslifor thermoplastics and elastomers.
High tenacity fibers based on GURIltra-high molecular weight polyethylene are alsediin protective ballistic applications. The prigneaw
material for GURP ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene is ethyden

PolyestersOur products include a series of thermoplastic @stigrs including CelanéPBT, CelaneX PET, Therm¥’ PCT and Vanddt, as
well as Riteflex®, a thermoplastic polyester elastomer. They ard irsa wide variety of automotive, electrical armhsumer applications,
including ignition system parts, radiator grillesectrical switches, appliance and sensor houslitlg,emitting diodes (“LEDs") and technical
fibers.

LCP. Liquid crystal polymers, such as Vecfrand Zenité®, are primarily used in electrical and electror@pplications for precision parts with
thin walls and complex shapes. They are also usatjh heat cookware applications. Raw materiald. €@P include acetic anhydride, whict
sourced from our Acetyl Intermediates segment,randomers such as hydroxybenzoic acid, which is lyideailable.

LFT. Celstran®and CompeP are long-fiber reinforced thermoplastics that imigstra strength and stiffness, making them moitaisie for
larger parts than conventional thermoplastics. Botiducts are used in automotive, transportatiahiadustrial applications, such as
instrument panels, consoles and front end modiiles primary raw materials for LFT include polyprdgrye and a variety of fibers such as
glass, stainless steel and carbon.

» Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinationtioé net sales of the Advanced Engineered Mates@isnent by geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Adinced Engineered Materials

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 43¢ 34 384 34 28t 35
Europe and Africa 622 48 53C 48 40z 50
Asia-Pacific 191 15 152 14 82 1C
South America 47 3 43 4 38 5
Total 1,29¢ 1,10¢ 80¢

*  Customers

Advanced Engineered Materials' principal custonagesconsumer product manufacturers and supplighetautomotive industry that primat
produce engineered products. By collaborating watltustomers, Advanced Engineered Materials assisteveloping and improving
specialized applications and systems. Advancedrieeged Materials has long-standing relationshipls miost of its major customers. In
addition, it uses distributors for its major protiy@s well as a number of electronic marketplécesach a larger customer base. Contracts
with customers for most Advanced Engineered Matepeoducts typically have a term of one to tworgea

Advanced Engineered Materials' sales in Asia ardentirectly and through distributors, includingstsategic affiliates. These affiliates,
Polyplastics, KEPCO and Fortron Industries LLC, 50#-owned strategic venture with Kureha CorporatibJapan (“Fortron”), are
accounted for under the equity method of accourdimgjtherefore not included in Advanced Enginedfaterials' consolidated net sales. If
Advanced Engineered Materials' portion of the salasle by these strategic affiliates were incluaethé table above, the percentage of sales
sold in Asia-Pacific would be substantially high&mumber of Advanced
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Engineered Materials' POM customers, particularlthie appliance, electrical components and cestgtions of the
electronics/telecommunications fields, have mowadinng and molding operations to Asia, particulesbuthern China. In addition to our
Advanced Engineered Materials strategic affiliates directly service Asian demand by offering oustomers global solutions.

» Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials' principal competifociude BASF AG, E.l. DuPont de Nemours and Camgp®SM N.V., SABIC
Innovative Plastics and Solvay S.A. Other regiauahpetitors include Asahi Kasei Corporation, MitstibGas Chemical Company, Inc.,
Chevron Phillips Chemical Company, L.P., Braskef.S.anxess AG, Teijin, Sumitomo Corporation andaylndustries Inc.

Consumer Specialties

The Consumer Specialties segment includes our fecPr@ducts and Nutrinova businesses, which semsumer-driven applications. These
businesses deliver growth primarily through mantufiseg productivity, geographic expansions andetirg high value opportunities in dive
applications, and generally are not dependent ossgiomestic product.

Our Acetate Products business is a leading prodaurcdsupplier of cellulose acetate flake, film &md, primarily used in filter products
applications. We also hold an approximately 30% enship interest in three separate ventures in Chisiaproduce acetate flake and tow.
China National Tobacco Corporation, a Chinese stateed tobacco entity, has been our venture paftmerver two decades and has driven
successful growth in our Acetate business.

Acetate Products has production sites in the Uriiiadles, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiunongl with its three acetate ventures in
China. During 2010, we announced the shutdown phoatate tow and flake manufacturing operatiormiatSpondon, Derby, United
Kingdom site. We will continue to operate our Chaiti® film manufacturing operations at this facility.

Our Nutrinova business is a leading internationglpdier of premium quality ingredients for the fodbverage and pharmaceutical industry.
The company produces and sells Subétesulfame potassium), a high intensity sweeténiaralso one of the world's largest producers of
food protection ingredients, such as sorbates artdcsacid. Nutrinova's expertise is based on ibsenthan sixty years of experience in
developing and marketing specialty ingredienth#food and beverage and pharmaceutical industiibge this business has traditionally
focused on providing low calorie sweeteners inkteéeerage industry, it continues to target high @apportunities in more diverse applicatit
such as oral hygiene, pharmaceuticals, dairy arehte

Nutrinova has a production facility in Germany,w#ales and distribution facilities in all majogiens of the world
» Key Product:

Acetate flake and tov. Acetate tow is a fiber used primarily in cigaedfitters. In order to produce acetate tow, we fir@duce acetate flake
processing wood pulp with acetic acid and acetitydride. Wood pulp generally comes from reforedteds and is purchased externally from
a variety of sources, and acetic anhydride is tarrimediate chemical that we produce from acetid.ddie acetate flake is then further
processed into acetate tow.

Sales of acetate tow amounted to 14%, 15% and ¥@¥raonsolidated net sales for the years endextibber 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 ,
respectively.

Sunett® sweetenerAcesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweetenlersuder the trademark Sunétis used in a variety of beverages,
confections and dairy products throughout the wdlahett® sweetener is the ideal blending partner for caland non-caloric sweeteners and
is known for its consistent product quality andaielle supply.

Food protection ingredientaNutrinova's food protection ingredients are maimdgd in foods, beverages and personal care prodiets
primary raw materials for these products are ketartbcrotonaldehyde. Sorbates pricing is extrersehsitive to demand and industry capacity
and is not necessarily dependent on the priceavofmaterials.




» Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinationtioé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyegedigraphic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — @Gsumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 18C 16 18¢€ 17 17¢ 16
Europe and Africa 45¢ 40 44§ 41 452 42
Asia-Pacific 457 39 394 36 40z 37
South America 63 5 61 6 48 5
Total 1,15¢ o 1,08¢ @ 1,07¢ @

@ Excludes inter-segment sales of $3 million , $diariland $6 million for the years ended December2gil1 , 2010 and 2009 ,
respectively.

e Customers

Acetate tow is sold principally to the major toba@ompanies that account for a majority of worldsvaigarette production. Contracts with
most of our customers are generally entered intaroannual basis.

Customers of Clarifoif include printers, carton manufacturers, retailpegkaging buyers, publishers and designers.

Nutrinova primarily sells Sune® sweetener to a limited number of large multinati@ral regional customers in the beverage and foddsitry
under long-term and annual contracts. Nutrinovis $ebd protection ingredients primarily througlgi@nal distributors to small and medium
sized customers and directly to large multinatianedtomers in the food industry.

»  Competition
Acetate Products’ principal competitors include d@hiChemical Industries Ltd., Eastman Chemical Gafion and Solvay S.A.

The principal competitors for Nutrinova’'s Sun&gweetener are The NutraSweet Company, Ajinomotpl@o., Tate & Lyle PLC and several
Chinese manufacturers. In sorbates, Nutrinova ctespeith Nantong AA, Daicel Chemical Industries Lasid other Chinese manufacturers.

Industrial Specialties

The Industrial Specialties segment, which incluthesEmulsions and EVA Performance Polymers busa®e$s active in every major global
industrial sector and serves diverse industrial@msumer end-use applications. These includetiadi vinyl-based end uses, such as paints
and coatings and adhesives, as well as other yrtigle-value end uses including solar cells andioaépplications.

The Emulsions business is a leading global prodateinyl acetate-based emulsions and developsyatsdand application technologies to
improve performance, create value and drive inriouah applications such as paints and coatingsesigtes, construction, glass fiber, textiles
and paper. The business has manufacturing fasilitienajor global regions and is supported by exigehnical service regionally. Celanese
emulsion products are sold under globally and mjlg recognized brands including EcoVAEMowilith ®, Vinamul®, Celvolit®, BriteCoat
™ TufCOR™ and Avicor™ . The Emulsions business has production sitessifutited States, Canada, China, Spain, SwedeiNdtrerland
and Germany.

EVA Performance Polymers is a leading North Americaanufacturer of a full range of lodensity polyethylene and specialty EVA resins
compounds. Sold under the Atévand VitalDose™ brands, these products are used in many applicatiocluding flexible packaging films,
lamination film products, hot melt adhesives, mabtigroducts, automotive, carpeting and photovoltaits. EVA Performance Polymers has a
production facility in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada.
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The Industrial Specialties segment builds on oadileg acetyls technology. Our Acetyl Intermedistegment produces VAM, a primary raw
material for our Emulsions and EVA Performance Rays businesses. Ethylene, another key raw matesrialirchased externally from a
variety of sources.

Our Industrial Specialties businesses have expegikrignificant growth in Asia, and we have madestments to support continued growt
the region. In 2008, we began emulsions productasur integrated chemical complex in Nanjing, @hémd in 2011 , we doubled the VAE
capacity to meet the increased global demand faniative specialty solutions in vinjlased emulsions. EVA Performance Polymers incre
capacity at its manufacturing facility in Edmontéiberta, Canada by 15% for our higher vinyl acetaintent EVA grades in order to serve
growing Asia region.

In addition to geographic growth, the businessed@rused on innovation efforts to increase vallme segment has successfully launched new
innovative products and technologies in non-traddl applications such as medical, carpet, texsitespaper.

Our polyvinyl alcohol (“PVOH”) business was inclutlizn our Industrial Specialties segment until itsvemld in July 2009 to Sekisui Chemical
Co. Ltd. for a net cash purchase price of $168ionill

* Key Product:

Our Emulsions business produces conventional \ang-acrylate-based emulsions and VAE. Emulsionsnaide from VAM, ethylene,
acrylate esters and styrene. VAE is a key compoofewater-based architectural coatings, adhesives,wovens, textiles, glass fiber and other
applications.

EVA Performance Polymers produces low-density pblylene and EVA resins and compounds. EVA resimsampounds are produced in
high-pressure reactors from ethylene and VAM.

* Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinationtloé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segtgmteographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — bustrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(in millions, except percentages)
North America 49z 40 45( 43 382 39
Europe and Africa 55C 45 481 47 504 52
Asia-Pacific 16¢ 14 97 9 78 8
South America 12 1 8 1 1C 1
Total 1,222 1,03¢ 974

e Customers

Industrial Specialties' products are sold to a igegroup of regional and multinational custom€rsstomers for emulsions products are
manufacturers of water-based paints and coatitjgsives, paper, building and construction prodgtss fiber, non-wovens and textiles.
Customers for EVA Performance Polymers producteagaged in the manufacture of a variety of praguotiuding hot melt adhesives,
automotive components, solar energy products, thldlaminations, flexible and food packaging materienedical packaging and controlled-
release medical devices.

» Competition

Principal competitors for the Emulsions businesduide The Dow Chemical Company, BASF AG, Dairen @iwal, Wacker Chemie AG and
several smaller regional manufacturers.

Principal competitors for the EVA Performance Potymbusiness include E.I. DuPont de Nemours andp@oyn ExxonMobil Chemical,
Arkema and several Asian manufacturers.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and gspatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc anhydride and acetate esters. Tl
products are generally used as starting mateoalsdlorants, paints, adhesives, coatings and rmedicOther chemicals produced in this
business segment are organic solvents and inteatesdor pharmaceutical, agricultural and chenpeatiucts.

As an industry leader, Acetyl Intermediates haét i its leading technology, an advantaged feedsposition and attractive competitive
position to drive growth. With decades of expergraxdvanced proprietary process technology anddhale production costs, we are a leading
global producer of acetic acid and VAM. Our prodoctof acetyl products employs our leading projmgtand licensed technologies, incluc
AOPIus®, AOPIus®2 and AOPIug 3 technologies for the production of acetic acid ®#ntage®, VAntagePlus" and VAntage® 2 VAM
technologies. Our technology is expected to enharmduction efficiency and lower operating cost@Rus® 3 technology, introduced in
2011, extends our historical technology advantageesmables us to construct a greenfield aceticfacitity with a capacity of 1.8 million tons
at a lower capital cost. VAntage technology, also introduced in 2011, could inseedAM capacity by 50% to meet growing customer
demand globally. We believe our production techgglis among the lowest cost in the industry andvipies us with global growth
opportunities through low cost expansions and aadgantage over our competitors. Acetyl Intermisdidnas production sites in the United
States, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, FranceGarchany. As of December 31, 2009 , we ceasedcametl and VAM production at our
Pardies, France location.

In November 2010, we announced our newly devel@aeeinced technology to produce ethanol. Celane3e®gthanol process technology
was developed to supply current and prospectiveomesxs with ethanol for industrial purposes andofitver potential uses. Industrial ethanol is
used in chemical and industrial applications far tanufacture of paints, coatings, inks and phaentazals. This innovative, new process
combines our proprietary and leading acetyl platfevith highly advanced manufacturing technologptoduce ethanol from hydrocarbon-
sourced feedstocks.

In 2011, we began construction of a technology adement unit for ethanol production at our facilityClear Lake, Texas, which is expected
to be operational in 2012, and will allow us to tione the advancement of our acetyl and T&chnologies. In addition, we plan to modify
and enhance our existing integrated acetyl fadititfdanjing, China, with our TCX advanced technology. The modifications would add
approximately 200,000 tons of ethanol productiopacity by mid-2013, pending approvals. We alsoridt® construct one, and possibly two,
industrial ethanol complexes in China, followingcassary approvals, that use Celanese T€anol process technology to help supply
applications for the fast-growing Asia region.

» Key Product:

Acetyl ProductsAcetyl products include acetic acid, VAM, acetihgdride and acetaldehyde. Acetic acid is primargd to manufacture
VAM, purified terephthalic acid and other acetytigatives. VAM is used in a variety of adhesiveaings, films, coatings and textiles. Acetic
anhydride is a raw material used in the produobtibeellulose acetate, detergents and pharmacesitidabtaldehyde is a major feedstock fol
production of a variety of derivatives, such adgipes, which are used in agricultural products. Manufacture acetic acid, VAM and acetic
anhydride for our own use, as well as for saldiatparties.

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic acetyl intermedigbesducts, are impacted by global supply and denfiamdamentals and are cyclical in
nature. The principal raw materials in these preglace: carbon monoxide, which we generally purehasler long-term contracts; methanol,
which we generally purchase under long-term andtgbom contracts; and ethylene, which we purciema numerous sources. With the
exception of carbon monoxide, methanol and ethytgeecommodity products available from a wide wgred sources.

Sales from acetyl products amounted to 34% of onsalidated net sales for each of the years enéeérber 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 .

Solvents and DerivativeWe manufacture a variety of solvents, formaldehgué other chemicals, which in turn are used imthaufacture ¢
paints, coatings, adhesives and other productsyMalvents and derivatives products are deriveohfoorr production of acetic acid. Primary
products are:

» Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sblsad in coatings, inks and adhesives and in greufacture of photographic films and coated
papers;
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* Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sohaad in inks, pharmaceuticals and perft

» Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde and formcelschvhre primarily used to produce adhesive resinplfavood, particle board, coatings,
POM engineering resins and a compound used in rggdatyurethane; and

« Other chemicals, such as crotonaldehyde, whielused by the Nutrinova business for the produoatifcsorbates, as well as raw materials
for the fragrance and food ingredients industry.

Sales from solvents and derivatives products aneoltat 12%, 11% and 10% of our consolidated nesdalethe years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

» Geographic Region
The following table illustrates net sales by desion of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by geplgicaregion.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Astyl Intermediates

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 717 23 654 24 501 22
Europe and Africa 1,11¢C 36 897 34 771 35
Asia-Pacific 1,16¢ 38 1,04¢ 39 884 40
South America 90 3 85 3 64 3
Total 3,08: © 2,68z ® 2,22C

@ Excludes inter-segment sales of $468 million , $aiion and $383 million for the years ended Debtem31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 ,
respectively.

* Customers

Acetyl Intermediates markets its products bothaliyeto customers and through distributors. Acatidd, VAM and acetic anhydride are global
businesses which have several large customersr&@kmneve supply these global customers under ryd@ér contracts. Acetic acid, VAM and
acetic anhydride customers produce polymers useaiar-based paints, adhesives, paper coatinggesels, film modifiers, pharmaceuticals,
cellulose acetate and textiles. We have long-standilationships with most of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diversegofuegional and multinational customers undertisygdar contracts and on the basis of long-
standing relationships. Solvents and derivativesaroers are primarily engaged in the productiopaifits, coatings and adhesives. We
manufacture formaldehyde for our own use as wefbasale to a few regional customers that inclodaufacturers in the wood products and
chemical derivatives industries. The sale of fodehalyde is based on long- and short-term agreenmgpégialty solvents are sold globally to a
wide variety of customers, primarily in the coasrand resins and the specialty products indusffiesse products serve global regions in the
synthetic lubricant, agrochemical, rubber procegsind other specialty chemical areas.

»  Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermeéisisegment include Atofina S.A., BASF AG, BP PLGa@g Chun Petrochemical Co., Ltd.,
Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd., The Dow Chemicahpany, Eastman Chemical Corporation, E.I. DuPeritldmours and Company,
LyondellBasell Industries, Nippon Gohsei, Perstioip, Jiangsu Sopo Corporation (Group) Ltd., Sh@eako K.K., Kuraray Co. Ltd. and
other Chinese producers.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrategivities such as legal, accounting and
treasury functions, interest income and expensecaged with our financing activities, and our ¢egt
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insurance companies. Our two whotiyned captive insurance companies are a key compofeur global risk management program, as"
as a form of self-insurance for our liability andnkers compensation risks. The captive insuranogpemies issue insurance policies to our
subsidiaries to provide consistent coverage amictdlting costs in the insurance market and to ldareg-term insurance costs through the
reduction of certain regulatory fees and expenBes.captive insurance companies retain risk atdesgproved by management and obtain
reinsurance coverage from third parties to limé tiet risk retained. One of the captive insurameepanies also insures certain third-party
risks.

Strategic Affiliates

Our strategic affiliates represent an important gonent of our strategy for accelerated growth doliaj expansion. We have a substantial
portfolio of ventures in various regions, includiAgia-Pacific, North America, the Middle East and Europleese ventures, some of which ¢
back as far as the 1960s, have sizeable operatiahare significant within their industries.

Our strategic affiliates have similar growth patgeand business models as our core businessesshiitbd characteristics such as products,
applications, and manufacturing technology, théxsgegjic affiliates complement and extend our tedbgy and specialty materials portfolio.
We have historically entered into these investmenmtmin access to local demand, minimize costsaandlerate growth in areas we believe
have significant future business potential. Depegadin the level of investment and other factorsas@unt for our strategic ventures using
either the equity method or cost method of accognti

Our strategic affiliates contribute substantiaesakarnings and cash flows. During the year eDémémber 31, 2011 , our equity affiliates
generated combined sales of $5 billion , resultm@elanese recording $192 million of equity in aatnings of affiliates in the accompanying
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2(®1l1 .

Our key strategic affiliates as of December 31,128f as follows:

Year
Location Ownership Partner(s) Entered
Equity Method Investments
Advanced Engineered Materials
National Methanol Company Saudi 25% Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (“SABIC”)/ Tex 1981
Arabia Eastern Arabian Corporation Ltd.
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd South 50% Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc./Mitsubishi 1999
Korea Corporation
Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Japan 45% Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd. 1964
Fortron Industries LLC us 50% Kureha Corporation 1992
Cost Method Investments
Consumer Specialties
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30% China National Tobacco Corporation 1993
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 31% China National Tobacco Corporation 1986
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30% China National Tobacco Corporation 1993

National Methanol Company (Ibn Sini Founded in 1981, National Methanol Company reprissapproximately 2% of the world's methanol
production capacity and is one of the world's latgeoducers of methyl tertiary-butyl ether (MTBB)gasoline additive. Its production
facilities are located in Saudi Arabia. We inditp@wn a 25% interest in Ibn Sina through CTE Petemicals Company, a 50%/50% joint
venture with Texas Eastern Arabian Corporation (dich also indirectly owns a 25% interest). Thenaining 50% interest in lIbn Sina is
by the Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (“SABICSABIC is responsible for all product marketinggdduse methanol is a key feedstock for
POM production, we enjoy an advantaged positioaugh our Ibn Sina venture that mitigates the impacaw material and energy volatility.

In April 2010, we announced that the term of the $ina agreement was extended until 2032 andhbkgbint venture will construct a 50,000
ton POM production facility in Saudi Arabia. Themé&cility will supply POM to support Advanced Engiered Materials' accelerated future
growth plans as well as our venture partners' regibusiness development. Upon successful stafttipd®OM facility, our indirect economic
interest in Ibn Sina will increase from 25% to 32.55SABIC's economic interest will remain unchanged.
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Korea Engineering Plastics Co., L1 Founded in 1987, KEPCO is the leading produc&®M in South Korea. KEPCO is a venture between
Celanese's Ticona business (50%), Mitsubishi Gasntal Company, Inc. (40%) and Mitsubishi Corpanat{10%). KEPCO has polyacetal
production facilities in Ulsan, South Korea, compding facilities for PBT and nylon in Pyongtaek uBoKorea, and participates with
Polyplastics and Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Compang, in a world-scale POM facility in Nantong, China

Polyplastics Co., Ltc Polyplastics is a leading supplier of enginegriedtics in the Asia-Pacific region and is a veatoetween Daicel
Chemical Industries Ltd., Japan (55%), and Celdsdseona business (45%). Established in 1964, ptadyics is a producer and marketer of
POM and LCP in the Asia-Pacific region, with pripai production facilities located in Japan, Taiwilalaysia and China.

Fortron Industries LLC Fortron is a leading global producer of polyphemd sulfide (“PPS”), sold under the Fortfdsrand, which is used in

a wide variety of automotive and other applicatiarspecially those requiring heat and/or chemiesistance. Established in 1992, Fortron is a
limited liability company whose members are Ticématron Inc. (50% ownership and a wholly-owned sdibsy of CNA Holdings, LLC) and
Kureha Corporation (50% ownership and a wholly-ogvaebsidiary of Kureha Chemical Industry Co., ldflJapan). Fortron's facility is
located in Wilmington, North Carolina. This ventw@mbines the sales, marketing, distribution, commgiing and manufacturing expertise of
Celanese with the PPS polymer technology expesfisaireha.

China acetate strategic venture®/e hold an approximate 30% ownership intereshied separate acetate production ventures in Chitese
include the Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd., KimgrCellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. and Zhuhai Cellul&#gers Co. Ltd. The China National
Tobacco Corporation, the Chinese state-owned tabawtity, controls the remaining ownership inteiestach of these ventures.

With an estimated 30% share of the world's ciganetbduction and consumption, China is the wotld'gest and fastest growing area for
acetate tow products according to the 2009 StarRegkarch Institute International Chemical Econarkiandbook. Combined, these ventures
are a leader in Chinese domestic acetate produatidrare well positioned to supply Chinese ciganetbducers.

In December 2009, we announced plans with ChinégoNalt Tobacco to expand our acetate flake and &ypacity at our venture's Nantong
facility and we received formal approval for thgparsions, each by 30,000 tons, during 2010. Shneie inception in 1986, the China acetate
ventures have completed 12 expansions, leadingrtorgys growth and increased dividends.

Our Chinese acetate ventures fund their operatisimg operating cash flow. During 2011, we maddrdmutions of $8 million related to the
capacity expansions in Nantong and have commitetributions of $9 million in 2012. In 2010, we neadontributions of $12 million .

Our Chinese acetate ventures pay a dividend isghend quarter of each fiscal year, based on theeires' performance for the preceding year.
In 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , we received cash divid@fi&78 million, $71 million and $56 million, resgtively.

Although our ownership interest in each of our @héicetate ventures exceeds 20%, we account fa ifmesstments using the cost method of
accounting because we determined that we cannatis@esignificant influence over these entities tlukbcal government investment in and
influence over these entities, limitations on awdlvement in the day-to-day operations and thegmeinability of the entities to provide
timely financial information prepared in accordamdgth generally accepted accounting principleshim tnited States (“US GAAP”).

e Other Equity Method Investment

InfraServs We hold indirect ownership interests in severatd8erv Groups in Germany that own and develop inidlparks and provide on-
site general and administrative support to tendris.table below represents our equity investmientisfraServ ventures as of December 31,
2011 :

Ownership %

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG 32
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Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials and enexgy Sources in many countries for use in our pridangrocesses. We have a policy of
maintaining, when available, multiple sources qifgy for materials. However, some of our individpénts may have single sources of su
for some of their raw materials, such as carbonorinle, steam and acetaldehyde. Although we have akele to obtain sufficient supplies of
raw materials, there can be no assurance thatesdgen developments will not affect our raw matestgiply. Even if we have multiple sources
of supply for a raw material, there can be no aswe that these sources can make up for the lassnajor supplier. There cannot be any
guarantee that profitability will not be affecteubsild we be required to qualify additional souro&supply to our specifications in the event of
the loss of a sole supplier. In addition, the pd€eaw materials varies, often substantially, frpear to year.

A substantial portion of our products and raw niatetare commodities whose prices fluctuate aslguad demand fundamentals change.
production facilities rely largely on fuel oil, nal gas, coal and electricity for energy. Mosthaf raw materials for our European operations
are centrally purchased by one of our subsidiaviaich also buys raw materials on behalf of thiegtigs. We manage our exposure to
commodity risk primarily through the use of longresupply agreements, multi-year purchasing anessajreements and forward purchase
contracts.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesradugaprecious metals, such as rhodium, used a$ystd for the manufacture of Acetyl
Intermediates products. For precious metals, thgele are distributed among a minimum of three tegser product.

Research and Development

Our businesses are innovation-oriented and corrdaetirch and development activities to develop aed optimize existing, production
technologies, as well as to develop commerciabyphd new products and applications. We consideatheunts spent during each of the last
three fiscal years on research and developmenitésito be sufficient to execute our currenttstgéc initiatives.

Intellectual Property

We attach great importance to patents, trademedgsirights and product designs in order to prabectinvestment in research and
development, manufacturing and marketing. Pateats eover processes, products, intermediate produmctproduct uses. We also seek to
register trademarks extensively as a means of gtiotethe brand names of our products. We protecirdgellectual property vigorously agai
infringement and also seek to register design ptiote where appropriate.

PatentsIn most industrial countries, patent protectiorsexifor new substances and formulations, as wétirasnique applications and
production processes. However, we do businesgjione of the world where intellectual property gaiton may be limited and difficult to
enforce. We maintain strict information securitylipies and procedures wherever we do business. fmtmation security policies and
procedures include data encryption, controls dverdisclosure and safekeeping of confidential imfation, as well as employee awareness
training. Moreover, we monitor competitive develamts and vigorously defend against infringementsumintellectual property rights.

Trademarks.AOPIlus®, AOPIlus®2, AOPIus® 3, VAntage®, VAntagePIlus", VAntage®2, BuyTiconaDirect", Celanex®, Celcon®,
Celstrar®, Celvolit®, Clarifoil ®, Compel®, Erkol®, GUR®, Hostaforn®, Impet®, Mowilith ®, Nutrinova®, Riteflex®, Sunetf’, Thermx®,
Zenite®, Vandar®, Vectra®, Vinamul®, EcoVAE®, Duroset®, Ateva®, Acetex®, TCX®, VitalDose™, BriteCoat™ and certain other
branded products and services named in this doduanemegistered or reserved trademarks or seméar&s owned or licensed by Celanese.
The foregoing is not intended to be an exhausti@mprehensive list of all registered or reserrademarks and service marks owned or
licensed by Celanese. Fortr®is a registered trademark of Fortron Industries Lbfie of Celanese's strategic affiliates.

Neither Celanese nor any particular business segimematerially dependent upon any one patentetresdk, copyright or trade secr
Environmental and Other Regulation

Matters pertaining to environmental and other ratjohs are discussed liem 1A. Risk Factorslitem 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems— Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates — Aaeting for Commitments and
Contingencies and Note 15 and Note 23 to the accompanying diolased financial statements.
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Employees
The approximate number of employees employed bsr@sle on a continuing basis throughout the word i®llows:

Employees as of
December 31, 2011

North America

us 2,60(
Canada 25C
Mexico 65C
Total 3,50(
Europe
Germany 1,60(
Other Europe 1,40(
Total 3,000
Asia 1,05(C
Rest of World 50
Total 7,600
Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantéathr of the level of future sales activity. In gead, we do not manufacture our products
against a backlog of orders. Production and inugrievels are based on the level of incoming or@ars/ell as projections of future demand.
Therefore, we believe that backlog informationds material to understanding our overall businessshould not be considered a reliable
indicator of our ability to achieve any particulavel of revenue or financial performance.

Available Information — Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Filings and Corporate Governance Maerials

We make available free of charge, through our irgewebsite (http://www.celanese.com), our annejabrts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and ameds to those reports filed or furnished pursta@ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as well as owrpnsports on Form 3 and Form 4, as soon as rebiopeacticable after electronically
filing such material with, or furnishing it to, tf®EC. The SEC maintains an internet site that amtaports, proxy and information stateme
and other information regarding issuers, includi@lanese Corporation, that electronically file whle SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

We also make available free of charge, throughrternet website, our Corporate Governance Guidslof our Board of Directors and the
charters of each of the committees of the Board.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Many factors could have an effect on our financiahdition, cash flows and resuof operations. We are subject to various risks itagy from
changing economic, environmental, political, indysbusiness, financial and regulatory conditiofbe factors described below represent our
principal risks.

Risks Related to Our Business

We are a company with operations around the worlitlaare exposed to general economic, political argjulatory conditions and risks in
the countries in which we have significant operatis.

We operate globally and have customers in manytcesnOur major facilities are primarily locatedNorth America, Europe and Asia, and
we hold interests in ventures that operate in t8e Germany, China, Japan, Malaysia, South Koresyaleand Saudi Arabia. Our principal
customers are similarly global in scope, and theegrof our most significant products are typicaligrld market prices. Also, our operations in
certain foreign jurisdictions are subject to nasiliration and expropriation risk, and some of camtcactual relationships within these
jurisdictions are subject to cancellation withouit Eompensation for loss. In certain cases wherédanefit from local government subsidies
other undertakings, such benefits are subjectastvency of local government entities and argestitbo termination without meaningful
recourse or remedies. Consequently, our businesfiraancial results are affected, directly and iadily, by world economic, political and
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regulatory conditions.

In addition to the worldwide economic downturn, diions such as the uncertainties associated wath terrorist activities, civil unrest,
epidemics, pandemics, weather, natural disastesftects of climate change or political instapiln any of the countries in which we operate
or have significant customers or suppliers coufdcfus by causing delays or losses in the supptielivery of raw materials and products, as
well as increasing security costs, insurance premiand other expenses. These conditions couldedsdt in or lengthen economic recession
in the United States, Europe, Asia or elsewhere.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, rules, rigions or court decisions could expose us to fipesalties and other costs. Moreover,
changes in laws or regulations, such as unexpeti@oges in regulatory requirements (including inhporexport licensing requirements), or
changes in the reporting requirements of the Urfiitades, Canadian, Mexican, German, European UIa#") or Asian governmental
agencies, could increase the cost of doing busingbgse regions. Any of these conditions may taveffect on our business and financial
results as a whole and may result in volatile atreand future prices for our securities, includmg stock. Although we maintain insurance to
cover risks associated with the operation of owiress, there can be no assurance that the typresuoince we obtain or the level of coverage
is adequate or that we will be able to continum#intain our existing insurance or obtain comparaiurance at a reasonable cost, if at all.

In particular, we have invested significant resesrin China and other Asian countries. This regigndwth has slowed, and we may fail to
realize the anticipated benefits associated withireestment there and our financial results mapdbeersely impacted.

In addition, we have significant operations anaficial relationships based in Europe. Europe teterigally accounted for over one-third of
our net revenues. If not resolved amicably andtimaly manner, an extension or exacerbation oBhpean sovereign debt crisis may
continue to negatively impact our overall financiedults due to decreased end-use customer demdrtatightening of European credit
markets that some of our customers rely on for ifumdAs of December 31, 2011, we held $180 millioicash in European banks. This cash is
primarily invested in deposits in several Europbanks, a European money market fund which invedisin highly rated and liquid European
sovereign debt and a US Treasury money market flimel allocation of the cash invested in each adetmptions fluctuates based on market
conditions. As of December 31, 2011, we also ha&irfiilion of direct investments in highly rated Bpean sovereign debt in our pension
funds accounting for less than 3% of our total peméund assets, that may be affected if Europeam@mic conditions worsen. Finally, our
ability to access additional liquidity from Euromefinancial institutions in the future may alsoibgaired.

We are subject to risks associated with the inceasolatility in the prices and availability of keyaw materials and energy.

We purchase significant amounts of natural gay/etie, carbon monoxide and methanol from thirdipaifior use in our production of basic
chemicals in the Acetyl Intermediates segment,gpaly acetic acid, VAM and formaldehyde. We ugsoation of our output of these
chemicals, in turn, as inputs in the productiod@fvnstream products in all our business segmergsaldb purchase some of these raw
materials for use in our Industrial Specialtiesrsegt, primarily for VAE and EVA production, as wal significant amounts of wood pulp for
use in our production of cellulose acetate in conglimer Specialties segment. The price of manede items is dependent on the available
supply of that item and may increase significaalya result of production disruptions or strikesparticular, to the extent of our vertical
integration in the production of chemicals, shoewm the availability of raw material chemicalscls as natural gas, ethylene and methanol, or
the loss of our dedicated supplies of carbon matepdéan have an increased adverse impact on tisasGause a shortage in intermediate and
finished products. Such shortages would adversebact our ability to produce certain products araease our costs.

We are exposed to volatility in the prices of cawmaterials and energy. Although we have agreesrgoviding for the supply of natural gas,
ethylene, carbon monoxide, wood pulp, electricitd &uel oil, the contractual prices for these raatenials and energy can vary with economic
conditions and may be highly volatile. Factors tiate caused volatility in our raw material priaeshe past and which may do so in the fu
include:

. Shortages of raw materials due to increasing eema.g., from growing uses or new uses;

. Capacity constraints, e.g., due to constructielays, labor disruption or involuntary shutdowns;
. The general level of business and economic agtiand

. The direct or indirect effect of governmental ukgion.
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If we are not able to fully offset the effects adimer energy and raw material costs, or if suchroouities were unavailable, it could have a
significant adverse effect on our financial results

Production at our manufacturing facilities could bdisrupted for a variety oreasons, which could prevent us from producing embuof our
products to maintain ouisales and satisfy our customers' demands.

A disruption in production at one or more of ourmaacturing facilities could have a material adeegffect on our business. Disruptions could
occur for many reasons, including fire, naturahdters, weather, unplanned maintenance or othenfaoring problems, disease, strikes,
transportation interruption, government regulatiooljtical unrest or terrorism. Alternative facdéis with sufficient capacity or capabilities may
not be available, may cost substantially more oy take a significant time to start production, ea€lwhich could negatively affect our
business and financial performance. If one of @y anufacturing facilities is unable to produce pwducts for an extended period of time,
our sales may be reduced by the shortfall causabebglisruption and we may not be able to meetastomers' needs, which could cause t
to seek other suppliers. In particular, productisruptions at our manufacturing facilities thadguce chemicals used as inputs in the
production of chemicals in other business segmentd) as acetic acid, VAM and formaldehyde, coaldeha more significant adverse effect
on our business and financial performance andtestibperation to the extent of such verticalgnéion. Furthermore, to the extent a
production disruption occurs at a manufacturinglifgachat has been operating at or near full cayathe resulting shortage of our product
could be particularly harmful because productiothatmanufacturing facility may not be able to rebesels achieved prior to the disruption.

Failure to develop new products and production tectogies or to implement productivity and cost redion initiatives successfully may
harm our competitive position.

Our operating results depend significantly on teeedlopment of commercially viable new productsdoict grades and applications, as well as
process technologies. If we are unsuccessful ieldping new products, applications and productiatesses in the future, our competitive
position and operating results may be negativdiycédd. For example, we recently announced ouniitte to construct new ethanol
manufacturing facilities in China and the US thdt wtilize advanced technology developed with edets of our proprietary advanced acetyl
platform. However, as we invest in the commercalan of this new process technology, we face igleof unanticipated operational or
commercialization difficulties, including an inaibjl to obtain necessary permits or governmental@gds, the development of competing
technologies, failure of facilities or processegperate in accordance with specifications or etgiems, construction delays, cost over-runs,
the unavailability of financing, required materialsequipment and various other factors. Likewige have undertaken and are continuing to
undertake initiatives in all business segmentsmorove productivity and performance and to genezast savings. These initiatives may no
completed or beneficial or the estimated cost ggvfrom such activities may not be realized.

Our business is exposed to risks associated withdreditworthiness of our suppliers, customers dngsiness partners and the industries in
which our suppliers, customers and business parsearticipate are cyclical in nature, both of whiahay adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

Some of the industries in which our end-use custsrparticipate, such as the automotive, electramistruction and textile industries, are
cyclical in nature, thus posing a risk to us whikbeyond our control. The industries in which theastomers participate are highly
competitive, to a large extent driven by end-usdiegtions, and may experience overcapacity, allloich may affect demand for and pricing
of our products. Our business is exposed to risks@ated with the creditworthiness of our key $iepp customers and business partners and
reductions in demand for our customers' produdis. donsequences of this could include the inteionpif production at the facilities of our
customers, the reduction, delay or cancellatiooustomer orders, delays in or the inability of ousérs to obtain financing to purchase our
products, delays or interruptions of the supplyaaf materials we purchase and bankruptcy of custarsappliers or other creditors. The
occurrence of any of these events may adversedgtadiur cash flow, profitability and financial cation. Furthermore, the continuing
European sovereign debt crisis could increaselkbBHood and impact of these events for our Euampeustomers by potentially limiting end-
use customer demand and restricting our customersss to capital, which could continue to negbtiaéfect our financial results.

Environmental regulations and other obligations &ing to environmental mattercould subject us to liability for fines, clean-u@nd other
damages, require us to incur significant costs tadify our operations and increase our manufacturirand delivery costs.

Costs related to our compliance with environmelatak and regulations, and potential obligationdwétspect to sites currently or formerly
owned or operated by us, may have a significanatiegimpact on our operating results. We also have
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obligations related to the indemnity agreementaioed in the demerger and transfer agreement bet@elanese GmbH and Hoechst AG,
referred to as the demerger agreement, for envieorah matters arising out of certain divestitutes took place prior to the demerger.

Our operations are subject to extensive internatjorational, state, local and other laws and s that govern environmental and health
and safety matters. We incur substantial capitdlather costs to comply with these requirementaelfviolate any one of those laws or
regulations, we can be held liable for substafiiti@s and other sanctions, including limitationsooum operations as a result of changes to or
revocations of environmental permits involved. @& environmental, safety and health laws, reguiatand enforcement policies could result
in substantial costs and liabilities to us or latibns on our operations and could subject our lirgndnanufacture, transport, use, reuse or
disposal of substances or pollutants to more rigeszrutiny than at present.

One example of such regulations is the Nationaldsian Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants foustdal, Commercial, and Institutional
Boilers and Process Heaters (“Boiler MACT"), whighs published by the Environmental Protection AggEPA”) in the Federal Register
on March 21, 2011. On May 16, 2011, the EPA adrtriatisely stayed the Boiler MACT regulation pendirggolution of legal petitions and 1
EPA's reconsideration of portions of the final rileat stay was vacated by a federal court on Jgrey®012. In the interim, the EPA signed
the reproposed, reconsidered Boiler MACT regulatinorDecember 2, 2011 and plans to have a finaksigule later in 2012. The Boiler
MACT regulation will require us to make significacdpital expenditures to comply with stricter enans requirements for industrial boilers
and process heaters at our facilities in the neatto four years. Consequently, compliance wittséhkaws and regulations may negatively
affect our earnings and cash flows in a partictégorting period.

Changes in environmental, health and safety regudets in the jurisdictions where we manufacture amsell our products could lead to a
decrease in demand for our products.

New or revised governmental regulations and inddpenstudies relating to the effect of our productdealth, safety and the environm
may affect demand for our products and the copt@ducing our products.

In June 2009, the California Office of Environméniaalth Hazard Assessment (“OEHHA") formally prged to add VAM, along with 11
other substances, to a list of chemicals “knowthéostate of Californiato cause cancer. OEHHA is required to maintainltisinder the Sal
Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 198®(bposition 65”). Celanese filed comments in opjimsito the proposed listing because
the listing was not based on a scientific reviewhef relevant data and the legal standard for gddiM to the Proposition 65 list had not be
met. Celanese also filed an action in the Sacram@atinty Superior Court seeking declaration thaHBIB's proposed listing of VAM would
be contrary to law. The Sacramento County Sup&aurt granted Celanese's request for relief. Areapfiled by OEHHA is pending in the
California Court of Appeal.

We can provide no assurance that the SacramentotyC8uperior Court decision will be affirmed on aph or that VAM or other chemicals
we produce will not be classified in other jurigéhos in a manner that would adversely affect desrfan such products.

We are a producer of formaldehyde and plasticwvddrirom formaldehyde. Several studies have ingattd possible links between
formaldehyde exposure and various end points imcultukemia. The International Agency for ReseamstCancer (“lARC"), a private
research agency, has reclassified formaldehyde Gomup 2A (probable human carcinogen) to Groupnbgkn human carcinogen) based on
studies linking formaldehyde exposure to nasoptgeghcancer, a rare cancer in humans. In Octol29,28RC also concluded based on a
recent study that there is sufficient evidenceafeausal association between formaldehyde andetvel@pment of leukemia. We expect the
results of IARC's review will be examined and cdesed by government agencies with responsibilityséiting worker and environmental
exposure standards and labeling requirements.

Other pending initiatives will potentially requitexicological testing and risk assessments of a&wafiety of chemicals, including chemicals
used or produced by us. These initiatives inclisgeMfoluntary Children's Chemical Evaluation Progréfigh Production Volume Chemical
Initiative and expected modifications to the ToSigbstances Control Act (“TSCA”) in the United Statas well as various European
Commission programs, such as the Registration,uatiah, Authorization and Restriction of ChemicdREACH?").

The above-mentioned assessments in the Uniteds@tateEurope may result in heightened concernstaibewchemicals involved and
additional requirements being placed on the pradnchandling, labeling or use of the subject cheaisi. Such concerns and additional
requirements could also increase the cost incuyenlir customers to use our chemical products and
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otherwise limit the use of these products, whichlddead to a decrease in demand for these pradbiath a decrease in demand would likely
have an adverse impact on our business and reduperations.

US federal regulations aimed at increasing securétycertain chemical production plants and similéggislation that may be proposed in the
future, if passecinto law, may increase our operating costs and cawas adverse effect on our results of operations.

Regulations are being implemented by the US Departrof Homeland Security (“DHS”) aimed at decregdime risk, and effects, of potential
terrorist attacks on chemical plants located withim United States. Pursuant to these regulattbase goals would be accomplished in part
through the requirement that certain high-priofégilities develop a prevention, preparedness,rasgonse plan after conducting a
vulnerability assessment. In addition, companieg bearequired to evaluate the possibility of udess dangerous chemicals and technologies
as part of their vulnerability assessments andriggqlans and implementing feasible safer techgi@e in order to minimize potential damage
to their facilities from a terrorist attack. We leanegistered certain of our sites with DHS in adeoce with these regulations, have conducted
vulnerability assessments at applicable sites amdwaiting DHS review and approval of securitynglaUntil that is done we cannot determine
with certainty the costs associated with any sécuaneasures that DHS may require.

We are subject to risks associated with possibimate change legislation, regulation and internatial accords.

Greenhouse gas emissions have become the subgtarge amount of international, national, regipatate and local attention. Cap and trade
initiatives to limit greenhouse gas emissions Haeen introduced in the EU. Similarly, numerousshiéllated to climate change have been
introduced in the US Congress, which could advgrisepact all industries. In addition, the EPA hasrpulgated rules limiting greenhouse gas
emissions and regulation of greenhouse gas aldd ogcaur pursuant to future US treaty obligatiostafutory or regulatory changes under the
Clean Air Act or new climate change legislation.

While not all are likely to become law, many coiggrare considering or have implemented regulgtorgrams to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions. Future environmental legislative andilegry developments related to climate changeassible, which could materially increase
operating costs in the chemical industry and themetrease our manufacturing and delivery costs.

Our business exposes us to potential product lispitlaims and recalls, which could adversely affexr financial condition and
performance.

The development, manufacture and sales of speahéignical products by us, including products preduior the food, beverage, cigarette,
automobile, medical device and pharmaceutical itriiss involve a risk of exposure to product ligticlaims, product recalls, product seizt
and related adverse publicity. A product liabilifgim or judgment against us could also resuluiostantial and unexpected expenditures,
affect consumer or customer confidence in our petgjland divert management's attention from otbgponsibilities. Although we maintain
product liability insurance, there can be no asstedhat this type or the level of coverage is adégjor that we will be able to continue to
maintain our existing insurance or obtain comparaidurance at a reasonable cost, if at all. Aycbcecall or a partially or completely
uninsured judgment against us could have a matadisdrse effect on our results of operations arfamal condition.

Our production facilities handle the processing sdme volatile and hazardous materials that subjestto operating risks that could have a
negative effect on our operating results.

Our operations are subject to operating risks datgtwith chemical manufacturing, including thiated storage and transportation of raw
materials, finished products and waste. These iis#tade, among other things, pipeline and stotagk leaks and ruptures, explosions and
fires and discharges or releases of toxic or hazsrdubstances.

These operating risks can cause personal injuopegsty damage and environmental contamination naaylresult in the shutdown of affected
facilities and the imposition of civil or crimingkenalties. The occurrence of any of these evenysdisaupt production and have a negative
effect on the productivity and profitability of aicular manufacturing facility and our operatiggults and cash flows.

Our business and financial results may be adversaffected by various legal and regulatory proceegin

We are subject to legal and regulatory proceedilagssuits and claims in the normal course of bussrend could become subject to additional
claims in the future, some of which could be malefihe outcome of existing proceedings, lawsuits elaims may differ from our
expectations because the outcomes of litigatiaiuding regulatory matters, are often difficultrediably predict. Various factors or
developments can lead us to change current estsmatibilities and related insurance
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receivables where applicable, or permit us to nsalah estimates for matters previously not susclepttbreasonable estimates, such as a
significant judicial ruling or judgment, a signiéint settlement, significant regulatory developmeotshanges in applicable law. A future
adverse ruling, settlement, or unfavorable devekngould result in charges that could have a n@@tverse effect on our business, results
of operations or financial condition in any partaxuperiod. For a more detailed discussion of egal proceedings, séem 3. Legal
Proceeding:below.

Changes in tax legislation throughout the world clslmaterially impact our results.

Our future effective tax rate and related tax bedasheet attributes could be impacted by changes itegislation throughout the world. In
particular, proposed US tax legislation could matgrimpact our results. Currently, the majoritiyaur revenue is generated from customers
located outside of the US, and a substantial podifoour assets and employees are located outbitie /S We have not accrued income taxes
and foreign withholding taxes on undistributed @aga for most non-US subsidiaries, because thasenggs are intended to be indefinitely
reinvested in the operations of those subsidia@estain proposals could substantially increasetaxexpense, which would substantially
reduce our income and have a material adverset effiegur results of operations and cash flows foparating activities.

Changes in our tax rates could affect our futureselts.

Our future effective tax rates could be affectedbginges in the mix of earnings in countries wiffedng statutory tax rates, expirations of
holidays, changes in the valuation of deferredassets and liabilities, or changes in tax lawsragdlations or their interpretation. We are
subject to the regular examination of our incomerédurns by various tax authorities. We reguladgess the likelihood of adverse outcomes
resulting from these examinations to determineatifiequacy of our provision for taxes. There candagssurance that the outcomes from these
examinations will not have a material adverse ¢ffecour financial condition and operating results.

Our success depends upon our ability to attract aethin key employees and the identification andvdpment of talent to succeed senior
management.

Our success depends on our ability to attract atadr key personnel, and we rely heavily on our ag@ment team. The inability to recruit and
retain key personnel or the unexpected loss ofpleegonnel may adversely affect our operationsdtitan, because of the reliance on our
management team, our future success depends iarpattr ability to identify and develop talent teceeed senior management. The retention
of key personnel and appropriate senior managesugession planning will continue to be criticaihyportant to the successful
implementation of our strategies.

Some of our employees are unionized, representedidnkers councils or are subject to local laws trexe less favorable to employers th
the laws of the US.

As of December 31, 2011 , we had approximately@,&8ployees. Approximately 19% of our 2,600 USebasmployees are unionized. Our
two US based collective bargaining agreements expi2013 and 2014. In addition, a large numbearusfemployees are employed in count
in which employment laws provide greater bargairoangther employment rights than the laws of the Bi&h employment rights require us
work collaboratively with the legal representatiedthe employees to effect any changes to laboreagents. Most of our employees in Eur
are represented by workers councils and/or unioaismust approve any changes in terms and congliibamployment, including potentially
salaries and benefits. They may also impede effontsstructure our workforce. Although we believe have a good working relationship w
our employees and their legal representativestamdhances are low, a strike, work stoppage, erdslorn by our employees could occur,
resulting in a disruption of our operations or l@gbngoing labor costs.

We may not be able to complete future acquisitimmsuccessfully integrate future acquisitions intaur business, which could affect
adversely our business or results of operations.

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to puraoguisitions and joint venture opportunities. Sstul accomplishment of this objective
may be limited by the availability and suitabildf acquisition candidates and by our financial teses, including available cash and borrov
capacity. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, irdihg difficulty determining appropriate valuationtegrating operations, technologies,
services and products of the acquired lines omagsies, personnel turnover and the diversion oagement's attention from other business
matters. In addition, we may be unable to achieniipated benefits from these acquisitions inttheeframe that we anticipate, or at all, wtr
could affect adversely our business or resultspefations.
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Our significant non-US operations expose us to giblexchange rate fluctuations that could adversétypact our profitability.

Because we conduct a significant portion of ourragiens outside the United States, fluctuationsurrencies of other countries, especially the
Euro, may materially affect our operating resufist example, changes in currency exchange ratedetagase our profits in comparison to
the profits of our competitors on the same prodsotd in the same markets and increase the cit&no$ required in our operations.

A substantial portion of our net sales is denongdan currencies other than the US dollar. In @nsolidated financial statements, we trans
our local currency financial results into US ddléiased on average exchange rates prevailing daiiegorting period or the exchange rate at
the end of that period. During times of a strengihg US dollar our reported international salesnie@s, assets and liabilities will be reduced
because the local currency will translate into feW8 dollars.

In addition to currency translation risks, we ineucurrency transaction risk whenever one of o@raing subsidiaries enters into either a
purchase or a sales transaction using a currefffeyatit from the operating subsidiary's functiooatrency. Given the volatility of exchange
rates, we may not be able to manage our curreaogaction and translation risks effectively, anttility in currency exchange rates may
expose our financial condition or results of opierat to a significant additional risk. Since a pmrtof our indebtedness is and will be
denominated in currencies other than US dollaveeakening of the US dollar could make it more difft for us to repay our indebtedness
denominated in foreign currencies unless we hash ftaws in those foreign currencies from our fgreoperations sufficient to repay that
indebtedness out of those cash flows.

We use financial instruments to hedge certain axgo® foreign currency fluctuations, but we canmadrantee that our hedging strategies will
be effective. Failure to effectively manage thasksrcould have an adverse impact on our finampaaltion, results of operations and cash
flows.

Significant changes in pension fund investment penfnance or assumptions relating pension costs may have a material effect on the
valuation of pension obligations, the funded stataépension plans and our pension cost.

The cost of our pension plans is incurred over Ipagods of time and involves many uncertaintiesrduthose periods of time. Our funding
policy for pension plans is to accumulate plan &st, over the long run, will approximate thegant value of projected benefit obligations.
Our pension cost is materially affected by the @ist rate used to measure pension obligationdetle and value of plan assets available to
fund those obligations at the measurement datéhenexpected long-term rate of return on plan as§gnificant changes in investment
performance or a change in the portfolio mix ofdsted assets will likely result in correspondingréases and decreases in the valuation of
plan assets and a change in the discount ratdikeily result in an increase or decrease in theatidn of pension obligations. The combined
impact of these changes will affect the reporteuifd status of our pension plans as well as thperaidic pension cost in the following fiscal
years. In recent years, an extended duration gtratethe asset portfolio has been implementedimesplans to reduce the influence of liabi
volatility due to changes in interest rates. If theded status of a pension plan declines, we reagguired to make unscheduled contributions
in addition to those contributions for which we baready planned.

Our future success depends in part on our abilitygrotect our intellectual property rights. Our irlity to protect and enforce these rights
could reduce our ability to maintain our market pit®n and our profit margins.

We attach great importance to our patents, tradesmaopyrights, knowtow and trade secrets in order to protect our invest in research ai
development, and competitive commercial positionsianufacturing and marketing of our products. \eehalso adopted rigorous internal
policies for protecting our valuable know-how aratie secrets. We sometimes license patents andtetieology from third parties. Our
practice is to seek the widest possible protedtosignificant developments that provide us cortpetadvantages and freedom to practice
our businesses. Patents may cover catalysts, pexgzoducts, intermediate products and prodest U$hese patents are usually filed widely
around the world and provide varying periods arapsf protection based on the filing date andype of patent application. The legal life
and scope of protections provided by patents may v@tween countries in which we seek protection patents expire, the catalysts, proce
and products described and claimed in those patesmysbecome generally available for use by theipwhibject to our continued protection
associated know-how and trade secrets. We alsotseelister trademarks extensively as a meansotégting the brand names of our
products, which brand names become more importesg the corresponding product or process patentsdwpired. We operate in regions of
the world where intellectual property protectionynee limited and difficult to enforce and our coniéd growth strategy may bring us to
additional regions with similar challenges. If we aot successful in protecting or maintaining patent, license, trademark or other
intellectual property rights, our revenues, resoftsperations and cash flows may be adverselytite
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We are subject to information technology security¢ats that could materially affect our business.

We have been and continue to be subject to advgrersistent information technology security thre®ile some unauthorized access to our
information technology systems occurs, we believedte these threats have not had a material ingpaatir business. We seek to detect and
investigate these security incidents and to pretreit recurrence but in some cases we might bevargaof an incident or its magnitude and
effects. The theft, mis-use or publication of mtellectual property and/or confidential businegsimation or the compromising of our
systems or networks could harm our competitivetfmosi cause operational disruption, reduce theesafuour investment in research and
development of new products and other strategi@tivies or otherwise adversely affect our busires®sults of operations. To the extent that
any security breach results in inappropriate dmale of our employees', customers' or vendorsidemtfial information, we may incur liability
as a result. Although we attempt to mitigate thiésles by employing a number of measures, includiagitoring of our systems and networks,
and maintenance of backup and protective systemnsystems, networks, products and services repwantially vulnerable to increasingly
sophisticated advanced persistent threats thathaeasy a material effect on our business. In additioe devotion of additional resources to the
security of our information technology systemshia future could significantly increase the costioing business or otherwise adversely im
the Company's financial results.

We may incur significant charges in the event west or divest all or part of a manufacturing plaot facility.

We periodically assess our manufacturing operatioosder to manufacture and distribute our proglirctthe most efficient manner. Based on
our assessments, we may make capital improvenenmedernize certain units, move manufacturing stritiiution capabilities from one plant
or facility to another plant or facility, discontia manufacturing or distributing certain produatslose or divest all or part of a manufacturing
plant or facility. We also have shared servicegagrents at several of our plants and if such aggetmare terminated or revised, we would
assess and potentially adjust our manufacturingatipas. The closure or divestiture of all or pafre. manufacturing plant or facility could
result in future charges that could be significant.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation antlylaws, as well as any stockholders' rights plarayrdiscourage a takeover attem

Provisions contained in our certificate of incor@tton and bylaws could make it more difficult fothérd party to acquire us, even if doing so
might be beneficial to our stockholders. Provisiohsur certificate of incorporation and bylaws iose various procedural and other
requirements, which could make it more difficult &sockholders to effect certain corporate actiéiws.example, our certificate of
incorporation authorizes our Board of Directorsi&termine the rights, preferences, privileges astrictions of unissued series of preferred
stock, without any vote or action by our stockhesdd hus, our Board of Directors can authorize igade shares of preferred stock with voting
or conversion rights that could adversely affeettbting or other rights of holders of our Seriesddnmon stock. These rights may have the
effect of delaying or deterring a change of contfobur company. In addition, a change of contfadar company may be delayed or deterred
as a result of our having three classes of diredtaich class elected for a three year term) arrasult of any stockholders' rights plan that our
Board of Directors may adopt. These provisions adintit the price that certain investors might biling to pay in the future for shares of our
Series A common stock.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

Our level of indebtedness could diminish our abjlito raise additional capital to fund our operatignlimit our ability to react to changes in
the economy or the chemicals industry and preveatftom meeting obligations under our indebtedness.

Our total indebtedness is $3.0 billion as of Decen#i, 2011 . See Note 13 to the accompanying tidased financial statements for further
information.

Our level of indebtedness could have important equences, including:

» increasing our vulnerability to general economma industry conditions including exacerbatingithpact of any adverse business effects
that are determined to be material adverse evertsrwour existing senior credit facilities (the f8® Credit Agreement”);

e requiring a substantial portion of cash flownfroperations to be dedicated to the payment otjg@h and interest on indebtedness,
therefore reducing our ability to use our cash ftoviund operations, capital expenditures and &ibursiness opportunities or pay
dividends on our common stock;

* exposing us to the risk of increased interest rasesertain of our borrowings are at variable rafésterest
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« limiting our ability to obtain additional finaimgy for working capital, capital expenditures, puotidevelopment, debt service requirements,
acquisitions and general corporate or other pugcaed

« limiting our ability to adjust to changing matl@nditions and placing us at a competitive disedi@ge compared to our competitors who
have less debt.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the futusghich could increase the risks described above.

Although covenants under the Senior Credit Agredraad the indentures governing the $600 millioadggregate principal amount of
6.625% Senior Notes due 2018 and the $400 millicengigregate principal amount of 5.875% Senior Ndtes2021 (together, the “Notes”)
limit our ability to incur certain additional indeainess, these restrictions are subject to a nuaflipralifications and exceptions, and the
indebtedness we could incur in compliance with éhestrictions could be significant. To the extidatt we incur additional indebtedness, the
risks associated with our debt described abovéydireg our possible inability to service our debtluding the Notes, would increase.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to ierate risk, which could cause our debt serviddigations to increase significantly and
affect our operating results.

Certain of our borrowings are at variable rategterest and expose us to interest rate risk téfr@st rates were to increase, our debt service
obligations on our variable rate indebtedness windtease. As of December 31, 2011 , we had $1liarbj €219 million and CNY1.0 billion

of variable rate debt and outstanding interestsatap agreements with notional values of $1.1dilthat expire January 2, 2014, which are
accounted for as cash flow hedges. These inteasswap agreements have the economic effect offyiragithe variable rate obligations into
fixed interest obligations, which leaves $39 millio€219 million and CNY 1.0 billion of variable eatlebt subject to interest rate exposure.
Accordingly, a 1% increase in interest rates waon@ilease annual interest expense by $5 million F€gruary 1, 2012, the Company executed
forward-starting interest rate swaps with a totaional amount of $500 million which are effectid@nuary 2, 2014 through January 2, 2016.
Seeltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis dadiiéral Condition and Results of Operations - Liquiénd Capital Resources, Item
7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures AbMarket Riskbelow and Note 21 to the accompanying consolidéteshcial statements for
further information.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cashdos/ge our indebtedness and may be forced to tatkeeioactions to satisfy obligations
under our indebtedness, which may not be successful

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or tmagice our debt obligations depends on the findioiadition and operating performance of
our subsidiaries, which is subject to prevailingreamic and competitive conditions and to certamaficial, business and other factors beyond
our control. We may not be able to maintain a l@felash flows from operating activities sufficieatpermit us to pay the principal, premium,
if any, and interest on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayorced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capitadstructure or refinance our indebtedness. Taksmative measures may not be successful
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debiceeobligations. In the absence of such operatsglts and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be reqdite dispose of material assets or operations &t & debt service and other obligations.
The Senior Credit Agreement restricts our abilityispose of assets and use the proceeds fronisfiesidion. We may not be able to
consummate those dispositions or to obtain thegade which we could realize from them and thesegads may not be adequate to meet any
debt service obligations then due.

Restrictive covenants in our debt agreements mayitliour ability to engage ircertain transactions and may diminish our abilitp tmake
payments on ouindebtedness.

The Senior Credit Agreement and the indentures mivg the Notes each contain various covenantdithétour ability to engage in specified
types of transactions. The indentures governind\ibiies limit Celanese US's and certain of its slibges' ability to, among other things, incur
additional debt; pay dividends or make other rettd payments; consummate specified asset sates;ieto transactions with affiliates; incur
liens, impose restrictions on the ability of a sdlasy to pay dividends or make payments to CelaridS and its restricted subsidiaries; merge
or consolidate with any other person; and seligassransfer, lease, convey or otherwise dispds#l or substantially all of Celanese US's
assets or the assets of its restricted subsidiaries

In addition, the Senior Credit Agreement requiresaimaintain a maximum first lien senior secumgttage ratio if there are outstanding
borrowings under the revolving credit facility. Calvility to meet this financial ratio can be affstty events beyond our control, and we may
not be able to meet this test at all.
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Such restrictions in our debt instruments couldltés us having to obtain the consent of holddrthe Notes and of our lenders in order to 1
certain actions. Disruptions in credit markets megvent us from obtaining or make it more difficoitmore costly for us to obtain such
consents. Our ability to expand our business adtiress declines in our business may be limitaetifire unable to obtain such consents.

A breach of any of these covenants could reswdtdefault, which, if not cured or waived, could a/material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Rartnore, a default under the Senior Credit Agree¢roeunld permit lenders to accelerate the
maturity of our indebtedness under the Senior Creglieement and to terminate any commitments td.lérwe were unable to repay such
indebtedness, the lenders under the Senior Crepléelnent could proceed against the collateral gdatat them to secure that indebtedness.
Our subsidiaries have pledged a significant porntibour assets as collateral to secure our indektsiunder the Senior Credit Agreement. If
the lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement ecatel the repayment of such indebtedness, we mdyane sufficient assets to repay such
amounts or our other indebtedness, including thie&dn such event, we could be forced into bartksupr liquidation.

Celanese and Celanese US are holding companiesdeapend on subsidiaries to satisfy their obligatiomsder the Notes and the guarantee
of Celanese US's obligations under the Notes bydbeke.

As holding companies, Celanese and Celanese USicbsdbstantially all of their operations throuphit subsidiaries, which own
substantially all of our consolidated assets. Cgusastly, the principal source of cash to pay Cedarand Celanese US's obligations, including
obligations under the Notes and the guaranteeso€tlanese US's obligations under the Notes byn€séa is the cash that our subsidiaries
generate from their operations. We cannot assateotir subsidiaries will be able to, or be pernditi®, make distributions to enable Celanese
US and/or Celanese to make payments in respelbenfdbligations. Each of our subsidiaries is diniis legal entity and, under certain
circumstances, applicable state laws, regulatomijtdtions and terms of our debt instruments mayt iPelanese US's and Celanese's ability to
obtain cash from our subsidiaries. While the indezg governing the Notes limit the ability of oubsidiaries to restrict their ability to pay
dividends or make other intercompany payments tthese limitations are subject to certain quadiiiens and exceptions, which may have the
effect of significantly restricting the applicalyiof those limits. In the event Celanese US an@klanese do not receive distributions from our
subsidiaries, Celanese US and/or Celanese mayaiseuto make required payments on the Notes, theagtee of Celanese US's obligations
under the Notes by Celanese, or our other indebg=dn

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

During December 2011 the Company received a comtattat from the Staff of the Securities and Exad@@ommission seeking information
on contacts with Iran, Syria, Sudan and Cuba (“Engped Countries”). The Company replied to the Staffcating we were not aware of non-
compliance with any laws or regulations concerrifrggEmbargoed Countries and are awaiting respaasethe Staff. On January 30, 2012,
the Staff asked for additional information conceghour response.
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Item 2. Properties

Description of Property

We and our affiliates own or lease numerous pradnand manufacturing facilities throughout the ldoWWe also own or lease other

properties, including office buildings, warehouggpglines, research and development facilitiessaies offices. We continuously review and
evaluate our facilities as a part of our strateggptimize our business portfolio. The followindpla sets forth a list of our principal production
and other facilities throughout the world as of Baber 31, 2011.

Site

Leased/Owned

Products/Functions

Corporate Offices

Budapest, Hungary

Dallas, Texas, US

Irving, Texas, U’

Nanjing, China

Shanghai, China

Sulzbach, Germany

Advanced Engineered Materials
Auburn Hills, Michigan, US

Bishop, Texas, US

Florence, Kentucky, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Fuji City, Japan

Jubail, Saudi Arabia
Kaiserslautern, Germariy
Kelsterbach, Germany
Kuantan, Malaysia

Nanjing, Chind”

Oberhausen, Germarty

Shelby, North Carolina, US
Suzano, Brazif’

Ulsan, South Korea
Wilmington, North Carolina, U$
Winona, Minnesota, US
Consumer Specialties

Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Kunming, China

Lanaken, Belgium

Nantong, China

Narrows, Virginia, US

Ocotlan, Mexico

Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom
Zhuhai, China

Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Owned by Polyplastics Co., Ltd.

Owned by National Methanol Compafly
Leased

Owned

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt&.

Leased

Leased
Owned
Leased

Owned by Korea Engineering Plastics Co., [%td.

Leased
Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Owned by Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Lfd.
Owned

Owned by Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd.
Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Lf.
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Administrative offices
Corporate headquarters
Corporate headquarters
Administrative offices
Administrative offices
Administrative offices

Automotive Development Center

POM, GUR® ultra-high molecular
weight polyethylene, Compounding

Compounding

POM, Compounding

POM, PBT, LCP, Compounding
MTBE, Methanol

LFT

Site is no longer operating
POM, Compounding

LFT, GUR®ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene, Compounding

GUR ® ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene

LCP, Compounding
Compounding

POM

PPS

LFT

Sorbates, Sunett sweetener

Acetate tow

Acetate tow

Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Acetate tow, Acetate flake

Acetate tow, Acetate flake, Acetate film
Acetate tow




Site

Leased/Owned

Products/Functions

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Canada
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada
Enoree, South Carolina, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy}
Geleen, Netherlands
Meredosia, lllinois, US
Nanjing, Chind®

Perstorp, Sweden
Tarragona, Spaift

Acetyl Intermediates

Bay City, Texas, U%®

Bishop, Texas, US
Cangrejera, Mexico

Clear Lake, Texas, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Jurong Island, Singapofé

Nanjing, Chind®
Pardies, France
Roussillon, Franc®
Tarragona, Spaiff

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Owned

Owned

Leased

Owned

Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa AfE

Leased
Owned
Owned
Owned
Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Leased

Leased
Owned
Leased
Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa ATE

Conventional emulsions

LDPE, EVA

Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
VAE emulsions

Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic

VAM

Formaldehyde

Acetic anhydride, Ethyl acetate
Acetic acid, VAM

Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl acetate

Acetic acid, Butyl acetate, Ethyl acetate,
VAM

Acetic acid, Acetic anhydride, VAM
Site is no longer operating

Acetic anhydride

VAM

@ Celanese owns the assets on this site, but uttliieeand through the terms of a lotegm land leas

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opasadit the Nanjing facility. Celanese owns thetasse this site, but utilizes the land
through the terms of a long-term land lease.

®  Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opasadit the Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park loddteFrankfurt am Main, Germar

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opasadit the Tarragona site. Celanese owns the ass#iss site but shares ownership in
the land. Celanese’s ownership percentage in titkial5%.

® A Celanese cost method investm

® A Celanese equity method investm

™ Celanese will move its corporate headquartersvindr Texas in 2012. Certain administrative funetiavill remain at the Dallas offic

®  Fortron Industries LLC owns the assets on this bit¢ utilizes the land through the terms of a lomgn land leas
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in a number of legal and regulafmgceedings, lawsuits and claims incidental tortbienal conduct of our business, relating
to such matters as product liability, land disputestracts, antitrust, intellectual property, wenk compensation, chemical exposure, asbestos
exposure, prior acquisitions and divestitures, peste disposal practices and release of cheniitalthe environment. The Company is
actively defending those matters where it is naa®d defendant. See Note 15 and Note 23 to thenpaotying consolidated financial
statements for a discussion of environmental matad commitments and contingencies related td seghregulatory proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
Executive Officers of the Registral

The names, ages and biographies of our executiieer as of February 10, 2012 are as follows:

Name Age Position
David N. Weidman 56 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief ExeeuBfficer
Douglas M. Madden 58 Chief Operating Officer
Steven M. Sterin 40 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Gjon N. Nivica, Jr. 47  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corp@atretary
Mark W. Oberle 46 Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs
Jay C. Townsend 53 Senior Vice President, Business Strategy Developm@ueth Procurement
Jacquelyn H. Wolf 50 Senior Vice President, Human Resources
Christopher W. Jensen 45 Senior Vice President, Finance

David N. Weidmarhas been our Chief Executive Officer and Presidedta member of our board of directors since Deeer2®04. He
became Chairman of the board of directors in Felgra@07. Mr. Weidman joined Celanese AG (the Conyfsapredecessor) in September
2000 where he held a number of executive positiomst recently Vice Chairman and a member of ilrté@f management. Before joining
Celanese AG, Mr. Weidman held various leadershgitipms with AlliedSignal, most recently as the $tdent of its performance polymers
business. Mr. Weidman began his career in the danmdustry with American Cyanamid in 1980. Haisiember of the board of the
American Chemistry Council, the National Advisorguicil of the Marriott School of Management and Stueiety of Chemical Industry. He
also a member of the Advancement Counsel for Eergiing and Technology for the Ira A. Fulton CollegfeEngineering and Technology an
member of the board and Chairman of the financensitt@e of The Conservation Fund. On November 71204r. Weidman notified our
board of directors of his intent to retire as a raemand Chairman of our Board of Directors, andnftbe Company as Chief Executive Offic
effective April 2, 2012.

Douglas M. Madderhas served as our Chief Operating Officer sinceebdxer 2009. Prior to that time, Mr. Madden serve@arporate
Executive Vice President with responsibility foetGompany’s Acetyl Intermediates and Industrialcggdes Segments since February 2009.
He was the Executive Vice President and Presidergtate, EVA Performance Polymers and Emulsionsv&®H from 2006 through February
2009. Mr. Madden previously served as Presideftedinese Acetate from October 2003 to 2006. Reiassuming leadership for Celanese
Acetate, Mr. Madden served as Vice President anmiefa¢ Manager of the acrylates business and heghblofl supply chain for Celanese
Chemicals from 2000 to October 2003. Prior to 2000,Madden held various vice president level poss in finance, global procurement ¢
business support with the Hoechst Celanese Liferses Group, Celanese Fibers and Celanese Chemisit®sses. In 1990, he served as
business director for Ticona’s GUR business and pgbr responsibilities as director of quality rmgement for Specialty Products.

Mr. Madden started his career with American Hoe€iporation in 1984 as manager of corporate bistion. His prior experience included
operational and distribution management with Watrenbert and Johnson & Johnson. Mr. Madden recesvBdchelor of Science degree in
business administration from the University ofrdis.

Steven M. Sterirthas served as our Senior Vice President and ChiahEial Officer since July 2007. Mr. Sterin prewvdty served as our Vice
President, Controller and Principal Accounting ©dfi from September 2005 to July 2007 and Directéiimance for Celanese Chemicals from
2003 to 2005 and Controller of Celanese Chemicals 2004 to 2005. Prior to joining Celanese, MeriBtworked for Reichhold, Inc., a
subsidiary of Dainnippon Ink and Chemicals, Incogted, beginning in 1997. There he held a variétgadership positions in the finance
organization before serving as Treasurer from 200001
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and later as Vice President of Finance, CoatingnRésom 2001 to 2003. Mr. Sterin began his caegd?rice Waterhouse LLP, currently
known as PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Mr. Sterberified Public Accountant, graduated from the ugnsity of Texas at Austin in May
1995, receiving both a Bachelor of Arts degreeusibess and a master's degree in professional @begu

Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.has served as our Senior Vice President, Generaigeband Corporate Secretary since April 200%rRoi that time,

Mr. Nivica served as Vice President and GeneralnSeLof the $5 billion Honeywell Transportation &yss business group from 2005 to
2009, during which time he also served as Deputye@® Counsel and Assistant Secretary to Honeywitnational Inc. Prior to that time, he
was the Vice President and General Counsel to Hoakerospace Electronic Systems from 2002 to 2808 to Honeywell Engines Syste
and Services from 1996 to 2002. Mr. Nivica begandaireer in 1989 as a corporate associate in théhgeles office of Gibson, Dunn &
Crutcher, where he specialized in acquisitionsestitures and general corporate and securities,wefbre becoming M&A Senior Counsel to
AlliedSignal Aerospace Inc. from 1994 to 1996. Mivica received his J.D., magna cum laude, fromt8o&Jniversity Law School.

Mark W. Oberlehas served as our Senior Vice President, Corpaféaés since February 2010. From April 2005 to Redry 2010, Mr. Ober!
served as our Vice President, Investor Relatiomsassumed overall responsibility for global commoations and public affairs in 2006. Prior
to joining Celanese, Mr. Oberle was Director ofdator Relations for Navistar International Corpimmtwhere he served in a variety of
financial and commercial roles. Prior to that tihe,was a management consultant with KPMG. Mr. @learned bachelor's and master’s
degrees in business administration from BradleyEhsity.

Jay C. Townsendhas served as our Senior Vice President, Busirteate@y Development and Procurement since 2010Tblunsend
previously served as our Senior Vice Presidengt&gly and Business Development from 2007 to 20idas our Vice President of Business
Strategy and Development from 2005 to 2006. Mr. isend joined Celanese in 1986 as a Business Araiygshas held several roles of
increasing responsibility within the US and Eurojde. Townsend received his Bachelor of Science eegn international finance from
Widener University in 1980.

Jacquelyn H. Wolfhas served as our Senior Vice President, HumanurResosince December 2009. Prior to that time wsdsethe Executive
Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer fom@rica, Incorporated from January 2006 to Decer2b@8. Ms. Wolf also held the
position as Global Human Resources Director forgea@nMotor’s Finance, Asset Management, and Ecoa@eielopment & Enterprise
Services organizations from May 1, 2002. Priothis position, she supported the Information Syst&n$ervices upon joining General Motors
in July 2000 to January 2006. Before joining Gehktators, she served as Vice President of Humaro&ess for Honeywell’'s (previously
AlliedSignal) Aerospace Market Segments in Phoeiik, Prior to this role, she was Vice Presidentnidim Resources at the Honeywell
AlliedSignal Truck Brakes Division in Cleveland.iétrto Honeywell (AlliedSignal), she spent 12 yeer$iuman resource management and
labor relations positions at the General Electocg@ration. Ms. Wolf earned a Ph.D. and a mastiigee in organizational and human
systems from Fielding Graduate University (SantebBea, California), a master's degree in managernent Baker University (Overland
Park, Kansas) and a bachelor’s degree in orgaairtcommunications from Youngstown State Univgréitoungstown, Ohio).

Christopher W. Jenselhas served as our Senior Vice President, Finance #ipril 2011. From August 2010 to April 2011, Mensen served
as our Senior Vice President, Finance and Treadarer to August 2010, Mr. Jensen served as ooe Yresident and Corporate Controller
from March 2009 to July 2010. From May 2008 to oy 2009, he served as Vice President of Finandelaeasurer. In his current capacity,
Mr. Jensen has global responsibility for corpofatance, treasury operations, insurance risk mamage pensions, business planning and
analysis, corporate accounting, tax and genergkledccounting. Mr. Jensen was previously the gesisCorporate Controller from March
2007 through April 2008, where he was responsiieSEC reporting, internal reporting, and technaaounting. In his initial role at Celane
from October 2005 through March 2007, he built ditdcted the compang'technical accounting function. From August 200@ttober 200:
Mr. Jensen worked in the inspections and registmadivision of the Public Company Accounting OvghdiBoard. He spent 13 years of his
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in variousipas in both the auditing and mergers & acquisisi groups. Mr. Jensen earned bache
and master’s degrees in accounting from Brighamngduniversity and is a Certified Public Accountant.
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PART Il
Iltem 5. Market for the Registrant’'s Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of EquBgcurities
Market Information

Our Series A common stock has traded on the New $twck Exchange under the symbol “CE” since Jan@ar 2005. The closing sale price
of our Series A common stock, as reported by the Merk Stock Exchange, on February 3, 2012 wasX&1The following table sets forth
the high and low intraday sales prices per shamupSeries A common stock, as reported by the Mew Stock Exchange, for the periods
indicated.

Price Range
High Low

2011

Quarter ended March 31, 2011 $ 454: $  38.3¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2011 $ 538 $ 429t

Quarter ended September 30, 2011 $ 58.6¢ $ 32.4¢

Quarter ended December 31, 2011 $ 47.00 $ 29.4:
2010

Quarter ended March 31, 2010 $ 3471 $ 28.2

Quarter ended June 30, 2010 $ 358 $ 24.8¢

Quarter ended September 30, 2010 $ 3300 $ 234

Quarter ended December 31, 2010 $ 417/ $ 31.2%

Holders

No shares of Celane’'s Series B common stock and no shares of Celasids2b% convertible perpetual preferred stock f&tred Stock™)are
issued and outstanding. As of February 3, 2012ettvere 44 holders of record of our Series A comstook. By including persons holding
shares in broker accounts under street names, leoyee estimate we have approximately 42,750 beiakfiolders.

On February 1, 2010, we delivered notice to thelérs of our Preferred Stock that we were callinglie redemption of all of our 9,600,000
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock. HoldereePtreferred Stock were entitled to convert eaehesbf Preferred Stock into 1.2600 share
our Series A common stock, par value $0.0001 parestat any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York Qitpe, on February 19, 2010. As of such
date, holders of Preferred Stock had elected toe19,591,276 shares of Preferred Stock into ameggte of 12,084,942 shares of Series A
common stock. The 8,724 shares of Preferred Statkémained outstanding after such conversions vasfeemed by us on February 22, :
for 7,437 shares of Series A common stock, in atamoee with the terms of the Preferred Stock. Iritamidto the shares of Series A common
stock issued in respect of the shares of Pref&tedk converted and redeemed, we paid cash ifiactional shares. See Note 16 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statementéuidher discussion of the Preferred Stock redemmptio

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors has a policy of declaringpject to legally available funds, a quarterly cdalidend on each share of our Series A
common stock as determined in its sole discreffamsuant to this policy, we paid quarterly dividemd $0.05 per share on February 1, 2011
and May 2, 2011 and similar quarterly dividendsimyieach quarter of 2010 . In April 2011 , our Bbaf Directors approved a 20Wicrease i
the quarterly dividend rate from $0.05 to $0.06 geare of Series A common stock, which equate® @4%per share annually. Pursuant to this
policy change, we paid quarterly dividends of $0o@6 share on August 1, 2011 and November 1, 20h& annual cash dividend declared
paid during the years ended December 31, 2011 @hd &ere $34 million and $28 million , respectiveBur Board of Directors may, at any
time, modify or revoke our dividend policy on owerf@s A common stock.

We were required under the terms of our Prefertedko pay scheduled quarterly dividends, sulijgt¢gally available funds for so long as
the Preferred Stock remains outstanding. Pursoahig policy, we paid quarterly dividends of $0i#¥ share on our Preferred Stock on
February 1, 2010 and May 1, 2010 and similar qugrtividends during each quarter of 2009. No dérids were declared or paid subsequent
to May 1, 2010 as a result of the Preferred Stedemption as described above. The annual castedivideclared and paid during the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $0 and $3
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million , respectively.

On January 5, 2012 , we declared a cash divide®.06 per share on our Series A common stock atimguto $9 million. The cash dividen
was for the period from November 1, 2011 to Jan34ry2012 and was paid on February 1, 2012 to heloferecord as of January 18, 2012 .

Based on the increase in the quarterly dividenel fratm $0.05 to $0.06 per share of Series A comstock beginning August 201 umber o
outstanding shares as of December 31, 2011 anddeoing the redemption of our Preferred Stock, dadisldends to be paid in 2012 are
expected to be comparable to those paid in 2011 .

The amount available to us to pay cash dividendsssicted by our Senior Credit Agreement andi¢ines of our Notes. Any decision to
declare and pay dividends in the future will be matthe discretion of our Board of Directors anlll depend on, among other things, our
results of operations, cash requirements, finarmdadition, contractual restrictions and otherdesthat our Board of Directors may deem
relevant.

Celanese Purchases of its Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regardingurehases of our Series A common stock duringhtteetmonths ended December 31, 2011 :

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares

Total Number of Remaining that may
Total Number Average  Shares Purchased as be
of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased Under the
Period Purchased per Share  Announced Program Program @
October 1 - 31, 2011 173,87: @ $ 33.7t — ¢ 175,000,00
November 1 - 30, 2011 60,66( $ 43.2¢ 60,66( $ 172,400,00
December 1 - 31, 2011 = $ = — ¢ 172,400,00
Total 234,53: 60,66(

@ Relates to shares withheld from employees to ctheir statutory minimum withholding requirements personal income taxes related to
the vesting of restricted stock units.

@ QOur Board of Directors authorized the repurchaseunfCommon Stock as follows: February 2008 , $4llon , October 2008 , $100
million and April 2011 , $129 million , for a totauthorization of $629 million . These authoriza@ive management discretion in
determining the timing and conditions under whiblares may be repurchased, and the program doéawein expiration date.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotioia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall
such information be incorporated by reference ity future filing under the Securities Act of 1@8Xecurities Exchange Act of 1934, each
as amended, except to the extent that we spebjifioabrporate it by reference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

CE S4F 500 _S4F 500 Chemicsls _S&F 500 Specisty Chemicds
6 - honth IREEL) (5.1%) (11.1%) (5.2%)
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This comparison is based on a return asswming 3100 invested Decentber 30, 2005 in Celanese Corporation Comnion Si‘pckmd the S&P 500 Composite
Tndex, the 5&P 500 Chemicals Index and the 5&P Specialty Chemicals Index, asswming the reinvestment of all dividends

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Our deferred compensation plan offers certain ofsemior employees and directors the opportunityetier a portion of their compensation in
exchange for a future payment amount equal to trefgrments plus or minus certain amounts based tiomarket-performance of specified
measurement funds selected by the participant.eTtdeferred compensation obligations may be corsidescurities of Celanese. Participants
were required to make deferral elections undeptae prior to January 1 of the year such defeméllsoe withheld from their compensation.
We relied on the exemption from registration preddy Section 4(2) of the Securities Act in makinig offer to a select group of employees,
fewer than 35 of which were non-accredited investorder the rules promulgated by the SecuritiesEamtitange Commission.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2012041, and the statements of operations data éoyelrs ended December 31, 2011 , 2010
and 2009, all of which are set forth below, arewa® from the consolidated financial statementiuded elsewhere in this Annual Report and
should be read in conjunction with those finanstatements and the notes thereto. The balance ddteets of December 31, 2009 , 2008 and
2007 and the statements of operations data foyales ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 shown bedogvderived from previously issued
financial statements, adjusted for applicable difooied operations.

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales 6,76% 5,91¢ 5,08: 6,82:% 6,444
Other (charges) gains, net (48) (46) (13¢) (10¢) (58)
Operating profit 69C 503 29C 44( 74¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 75& 53¢ 251 43¢ 437
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 60€ 42€ 494 37C 327
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 1 (49 4 (90 9C
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caitjmor 607 377 49¢ 281 41¢€
Earnings (loss) per common share
Continuing operations — basic 3.8¢ 2.7: 3.31 2.4 2.0t
Continuing operations — diluted 3.81 2.6¢ 3.1¢ 2.2i 1.9C
Balance Sheet Data (at the end of period)
Trade working capitd? 91C 764 594 68E 827
Total assets 8,51¢ 8,281 8,41 7,15¢ 8,051
Total debt 3,017 3,21¢ 3,501 3,53¢ 3,55¢
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity 1,341 92€ 58€ 174 1,05¢
Other Financial Data
Depreciation and amortization 29¢ 287 30¢ 35C 291
Capital expenditure® 364 22z 167 267 30€
Dividends paid per common shdPe 0.22 0.1¢ 0.1¢ 0.1¢ 0.1¢

@ Trade working capital is defined as trade accotetsivable from third parties and affiliates neabbwance for doubtful accounts, plus
inventories, less trade accounts payable to thartigs and affiliates. Trade working capital isccddited in the table below:

As of December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables, net 871 827 721 631 1,00¢
Inventories 712 61C 522 577 63€
Trade payables (673 (679 (649) (523 (81¢)
91C 764 594 68E 827

Trade working capital

@ Amounts include accrued capital expenditures. An®do not include capital expenditures relatedajgital lease obligations or capital
expenditures related to the relocation of our Tacplant in Kelsterbach. See Note 24 and Note 2@e¢@ccompanying consolidated

financial statements.

®  Annual dividends for the year ended December 311 2®nsists of two quarterly dividend payments 6f@5 and two quarterly dividend
payments of $0.06 per share. In April 2011 the BadrDirectors approved a 20% increase in our guigrtividend rate from $0.05 to
$0.06 per share of Series A common stock applidabividends payable beginning in August 2011. dadrdividends for the year ended
December 31, 2010 consists of two quarterly dividpayments of $0.04 and two quarterly dividend payts of $0.05 per share. In April
2010 the Board of Directors approved a 25% incrégaser quarterly dividend rate from $0.04 to $0¥5 share of Series A common
stock applicable to dividends payable beginninguigust 2010.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

In this Annual Report on Form -K (“Annual Report”), the term “Celanese” refers ©elanese Corporation, a Delaware corporation, avod
its subsidiaries. The terms the “Company,” “we,” 0" and “us,” refer to Celanese and its subsidiasi®n a consolidated basis. The term
“Celanese US" refers to the Company’s subsidiarglabese US Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liagikompany, and not its subsidiaries.

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith the accompanying consolidated financiatements and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, which are prepared in accommawith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of Americ“US
GAAP™).

Investors are cautioned that the forw-looking statements contained in this section atheioparts of this Annual Report involve both risid
uncertainty. Several important factors could caastial results to differ materially from those anpiated by these statements. Many of these
statements are macroeconomic in nature and areetbee, beyond the control of management. See “Rotw.ooking Statements” below.

Forward-Looking Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financtaddtion and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) and ettparts of this Annual Report
contain certain forwartboking statements and information relating toheg tare based on the beliefs of our managemenethgasvassumptior
made by, and information currently available ta,@enerally, words such as “believe,” “expect,”tdnd,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,”
“plan,” “may,” “can,” “could,” “might,” and “will,” and similar expressions, as they relate to ugnéeaded to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements reflect our curremsuivith respect to future events, are not guaesné future performance and involve risks
and uncertainties that are difficult to predictrther, certain forward-looking statements are bageth assumptions as to future events that
may not prove to be accurate. Segpecial Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemémtisthe beginning of this Annual Report for further
discussion.

Item 1A. Risk Factorof this Annual Report also contains a descriptiboestain risk factors that you should considerahhtould significantly
affect our financial results. In addition, the &lling factors could cause our actual results tedihaterially from those results, performanc
achievements that may be expressed or implied dly fwward-looking statements. These factors ingJuanong other things:

» changes in general economic, business, politichlragulatory conditions in the countries or regionehich we operat

« the length and depth of product and industryin®ss cycles particularly in the automotive, eleetr textiles, electronics and construction
industries;

» changes in the price and availability of raw enalls, particularly changes in the demand forpbupf, and market prices of ethylene,
methanol, natural gas, wood pulp and fuel oil dregrices for electricity and other energy sources;

» the ability to pass increases in raw material grime to customers or otherwise improve marginsuifingorice increase
« the ability to maintain plant utilization rates aedmplement planned capacity additions and exipas:

« the ability to reduce or maintain at their catrievels production costs and improve productibyyimplementing technological
improvements to existing plants;

» increased price competition and the introductionarhpeting products by other compar

» changes in the degree of intellectual propenty @ther legal protection afforded to our prodwsttechnologies, or the theft of such
intellectual property;

» costs and potential disruption or interruptidrpmduction or operations due to accidents, cgeeurity incidents, terrorism or political
unrest, or other unforeseen events or delays istoastion of facilities;

« potential liability for remedial actions and reased costs under existing or future environmeatallations, including those relating to
climate change;
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» potential liability resulting from pending ortfure litigation, or from changes in the laws, regigdns or policies of governments or other
governmental activities in the countries in which @perate;

» changes in currency exchange rates and interes

» our level of indebtedness, which could dimingghr ability to raise additional capital to fund ogions or limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or the chemicals industiy; a

» various other factors, both referenced and noteefsed in this Annual Repc

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in natudease, therefore, beyond our control. Should anaare of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions piriagerrect, our actual results, performance oregdinents may vary materially from those
described in this Annual Report as anticipatedelet, estimated, expected, intended, plannedajeged. We neither intend nor assume any
obligation to update these forward-looking statetmemwhich speak only as of their dates.

Overview

We are a global technology and specialty matecatspany. We are one of the world’s largest prodsicgéacetyl products, which are
intermediate chemicals, for nearly all major indiest, as well as a leading global producer of ligtformance engineered polymers that are
used in a variety of high-value applications. Ageognized innovator in the chemicals industry,engineer and manufacture a wide variety of
products essential to everyday living. Our broaatipct portfolio serves a diverse set of end-usdicdons including paints and coatings,
textiles, automotive applications, consumer andioz@pplications, performance industrial applicas, filter media, paper and packaging,
chemical additives, construction, consumer andstrihl adhesives, and food and beverage applicationr products enjoy leading global
positions due to our large global production catyaciperating efficiencies, proprietary productiechnology and competitive cost structures.

Our large and diverse global customer base prignedihsists of major companies in a broad arrapdfistries. We hold geographically
balanced global positions and participate in difiex end-use applications. We combine a demorestriiack record of execution, strong
performance built on shared principles and objestiand a clear focus on growth and value creatinawn for operational excellence and
execution of our business strategies, we delivierevep customers around the globe with best-insctashnologies and solutions.

2011 Highlights:

* We opened a state-of-the art polyacetal (“POMYduction facility in Frankfurt Hoechst Industridark, Germany. With a nameplate
capacity of 140,000 tons per year, the new POMtpgatihe world's largest and strengthens our Ti@ngineering polymers business,
including its global operations and advanced temdindapabilities.

¢ We published independent third-party analyseSedinese TCX, our proprietary technology for ethanol productiomder non-
disclosure agreements to protect intellectual ptgpeghts and maintain confidentiality, Fluor Coration and WorleyParsons evaluated
our advanced ethanol technology that uses basiobgtbon feedstocks.

* We doubled the capacity of our vinyl acetateylethe (“VAE”) unit in Nanjing, China. The expandadit started production in the second
quarter of 2011 and is expected to meet the inetkglbal demand for innovative specialty solutiomginyl-based emulsions.

¢ We nearly doubled production capacity at ours€eh®long-fiber reinforced thermoplastic (“LFT") manufacing unit in Nanjing, China
during the fourth quarter of 2011. The unit cambknanin 2008 with an initial nameplate capacity5od00 tons per year.

*  We successfully completed a public offering 408 million in aggregate principal amount of seniosecured notes at 5.875% due 2021 .
We used the net proceeds from the offering, plss ca hand, to retire $516 million of existing serdgecured credit facility indebtedness
that was set to mature in 2014 .

» Polyplastics Co., Ltd. (“Polyplastics”), onetbE company's strategic equity affiliates, annodree®0,000 ton per year expansion to
increase polyacetal production capacity in Malayisé is expected to be operational in early 20h& expansion is currently anticipated
to be funded by Polyplastics.

36




We announced plans for one, and possibly twdystrial ethanol production facilities in China.dddition, we plan to accelerate our entry
into the industrial ethanol business six to 12 memarlier than previously expected, by modifying anhancing our existing integrated
acetyl facility at the Nanjing Chemical IndustrRédrk with our TCX® advanced technology, adding approximately 200,666 of ethanol
production capacity by mid-2013.

We broke ground on the previously announcedstana technology development unit for ethanodpiiion at our facility in Clear Lake,
Texas, which is now expected to be commissioneahioly2012. We also intend to construct a new re$eantl development facility at our
Clear Lake site to continue the advancement ofgetyl and TCX technologies.

We announced the expansion of our ethylene \dngtate (“EVA”) capacity at our Edmonton manufaiciy facility due to strong growth
in strategic, high-value segments. Global EVA puihn increases are fueled by demand in the phétieaell industry in China, strong
demand for EVA in other parts of Asia, and demandBVA in innovative applications like controllediease excipients and medical
packaging. We increased our capacity 15% for ogindri vinyl acetate content EVA grades in the foguhrter of 2011.

We announced that our Board of Directors applav@0% increase in our quarterly Series A comntockscash dividend. The dividend
rate increased from $0.05 to $0.06 per share oéSércommon stock on a quarterly basis and fror2®€ $0.24 per share on an annual
basis. Our Board of Directors also approved are@se of $129 million to our existing share repuseteuthorization for a total
authorization of $629 million of our Series A commstock.

2012 Outlook:

On November 7, 2011, we announced the futureereént of our chairman and chief executive offid@avid N. Weidman, who will
remain with Celanese through April 2, 2012. CelateBoard of Directors has appointed Mark C. Rohsucceed Mr. Weidman as chief
executive officer, and will appoint Mr. Rohr as @hzan, both effective as of April 2, at which poMt. Weidman will also retire from the
Board. Mr. Weidman will be working with Mr. Rohr,hw has served on the Celanese Board of Directocg 2007, to complete a smooth
and effective transition.

On January 3, 2012, the Company announced iptaiad the acquisition of certain assets from Asthlec., including two product lines,
Vinac®and Flexbond, which will support the strategic growth of thel@reese Emulsions business. Virfdiranded products are used to
make a variety of adhesives for use in woodworkind paper packaging and converting applicationss&lvinyl-based polymers can be
used to make water resistant wood glues and adisesivtable for use with various craft and coatguepboards. Flexborfthranded
products are used to make interior and exteridnigactural paints. These paints exhibit charadiessuch as scrub and stain resistance in
interior paints and weather resistance in extdaonulas.

On January 18, 2012, we announced the endorseh@ongressman Pete Olson's Domestic Alterndtiwes Act of 2012 which was
introduced on January 17, 2012. If enacted, tHemoilild allow ethanol produced from domestic hy@ntmons other than petroleum, such
as ethanol produced from our proprietary T€hanol process technology, to satisfy the Reneabeéls Standard requirement to use
conventional biofuel (corn-based ethanol) to redheequantity of petroleum used in transportatioei.f

In 2012, we expect to grow revenues in exce0tP global gross domestic product (“GDP”) growates based on increased demand for
our innovative products and geographic growth drikig the growing middle class in developing regiohthe world. We expect to
increase earnings in excess of revenue growthaloartleading technologies and culture of produgstivoth of which contribute to our

high operating leverage. Equity in net earningaféifiates is also expected to improve during 2di2 to continued geographic growth
and no planned plant turnarounds at our stratdfjiiztes.
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Results of Operations

Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Other (charges) gains, net

Operating profit (loss)

Equity in net earnings of affiliates

Interest expense

Refinancing expense

Dividend income - cost investments

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t

Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations

Net earnings (loss)

Other Data
Depreciation and amortization
Earnings from continuing operations before tax psr@entage of net sales

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term borrowings and current installmentsoofg-term debt - third party and affiliates
Long-term debt

Total debt
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2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)

6,76: 5,91¢ 5,08z

1,43¢ 1,18( 1,00
(53¢) (50%) (474
(48) (46) (136)

69C 503 29C

192 16€& 99
(221) (204) (207)

(©) (16) —

80 73 57

755 53¢ 251

60€ 42¢ 494

1 (49 4

607 377 49¢

29¢€ 287 30¢

11.2% 9.1% 4.9%

As of December 31,

2011

2010

(In $ millions)

682 74C
144 22¢
2,87 2,99(
3,015 3,21¢




Consolidated Results — Year Ended December 31, 20Cbmpared with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net sales increased 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher pricing aas@ll of our business segments. Favorable for@igrency impacts
also added to the increase in net sales. In addibidnigher pricing, our Advanced Engineered Malsrsegment contributed to our increase in
net sales reflecting the impact of the two prodinets, Zenite? LCP and Therm® PCT, acquired from DuPont Performance Polymers @y M
2010, as well as higher volumes in almost all ®pitoduct lines, particularly in LFT and GURiltra-high molecular weight polyethylene.
Increased net sales also were a result of higlevtgrand innovation volumes from our Emulsions bass. Volumes in our Consumer
Specialties business remained relatively flat whdkimes in our Acetyl Intermediates segment desgeégrimarily due to planned and
unplanned production outages at our Nanjing facilit

Gross profit increased from the prior year dueighér net sales and the absence of certain writeamfd accelerated amortization recorded in
2010 . During the year ended December 31, 2010wnwte-off other productive assets of $18 milli@hated to our Singapore and Nanjing,
China facilities, which are included in our Acelytermediates segment. We also recorded $22 mitifaccelerated amortization to write-off
the asset associated with a raw material purchgreement with a supplier who filed for bankruptoy2009. The accelerated amortization was
recorded as $20 million to our Acetyl Intermediasgegment and $2 million to our Advanced Enginedatkrials segment. Both the write-off
of other productive assets and accelerated ambotivavere recorded to Cost of Sales in the accoryipgrconsolidated statements of
operations during the year ended December 31, 2@t0ss profit as a percentage of sales in 20lrkdésed due to higher pricing which more
than offset higher raw material costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@#@n 2011 primarily due to costs associated titsiness and functional optimization
initiatives and higher spending on innovation. Hoare as a percentage of sales, selling, generahdministrative expenses declined from
8.5% to 7.9% for the year ended December 31, 28bmpared to the same period in 2010 due to saktai efficiencies.

Other (charges) gains, net increased $2 millioindu2011 as compared to 2010 :

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefits (22 (32
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation 47 (26)
Plumbing actions 6 59
Insurance recoveries — 18
Asset impairments Q) (74)
Plant/office closures — 4)
Commercial disputes 15 13
Other 1 —

Total (48) (46)

As a result of the Company’s Pardies, France “Rta@éClosure” and the previously announced closifithe Company’s Spondon, Derby,
United Kingdom facility, the Company recorded $4liom and $4 million, respectively, of employee termination benefitsrmyithe year ends
December 31, 2011 . The Pardies, France operai@niscluded in our Acetyl Intermediates segmehe $pondon, Derby, United Kingdom
operations are included in our Consumer Speciatgment. See Note 4 to the accompanying consaedidatancial statements for further
information regarding these plant closures.

Additionally, the Company recorded $8 million of pimyee termination benefits during the year endeddinber 31, 2011 related to the
relocation of the Company's Ticona Kelsterbach n@ery operations to Frankfurt Hoechst IndustriakP&ermany. On September 26, 2011,
the Company announced the start-up of the new P@dugtion facility in Frankfurt Hoechst Industridark, Germany. The Ticona German
operations are included in our Advanced Enginebtatérials segment. See Note 27 in the accomparggngolidated financial statements for
further information regarding the Ticona Kelsterb@tant relocation.

The Company recorded $6 million of employee termidmabenefits during the year ended December 311 2lated to a business optimizat
project which is included in our Other Activitiesggsment.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011 , the Coynpceived consideration of $17 million in connectwith the settlement of a claim
against a bankrupt supplier. The resolution of teismercial dispute is included in the Acetyl Imiediates segment.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, 204 010 was partially offset by $6 million and $B®lion , respectively, of recoveries
and decreases in legal reserves associated withbplg actions which are included in our AdvancediBeered Materials business segment.

As a result of certain events beginning in Oct&®@38 and subsequent periodic cessation of produdtioing 2009, we recorded $25 millioh
insurance recoveries during the year ended Dece81he&2010 in our Industrial Specialties segments Bimount was partially offset by a $7
million charge from our captive insurance compaimietuded in our Other Activities segment.

During 2010 , we concluded that certain long-lieadets were partially impaired at our acetate falcetow manufacturing operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom. Accordingly, we terdown the related property, plant and equipmeitstfair value of $31 million,
resulting in long-lived asset impairment losse$a2 million .

Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased dgr2011 primarily due to higher earnings in our 8ina affiliate in our Advanced Engineered
Materials segment.

Our effective income tax rate for the year endeddbaber 31, 2011 was 20% compared to 21% for thegreged December 31, 2010 . The
effective tax rate for 2011 was favorably impadbgdncreased foreign tax credit benefits realizethe United States and changes in
assessments regarding valuation allowances onrceeéerred tax assets, partially offset by fordiggses not providing tax benefits. The
effective rate for 2010 was favorably impacted leadments to tax legislation in Mexico.

Consolidated Results - Year Ended December 31, 200@mpared with Year Ended December 31, 2009

During 2010 the global economy gradually begaretmyer from the challenging economic environmenewgerienced during the second half
of 2008 and throughout 2009. Net sales increas@®1® from 2009 primarily due to increased volurags result of the gradual recovery and
increased selling prices across the majority oftusiness segments. The increase in net salesimgdubm our acquisition of FACT in
December 2009 only slightly offset the decreaseeinsales due to the sale of our polyvinyl alcdt¥®VOH”) business in July 2009 within our
Industrial Specialties segment. Unfavorable foreigrrency impacts only slightly offset the increaseet sales.

Gross profit increased due to higher net saless€poofit as a percentage of sales remained censisith prior year as increased pricing of
increased raw material and energy costs.

In 2010 , we wrote off $18 million of other prodivet assets related to our Asian facilities and réed $22 million in accelerated amortization
to write off an asset associated with a raw mdtpriechase agreement with a supplier who filed bapicy. Both of these costs were recorded
to cost of sales during the year ended Decembe2®1) .

Selling, general and administrative expenses isetauring 2010 primarily due to the increase insaées and higher legal costs and costs
associated with business optimization initiatives.a percentage of sales, selling, general andrasimzitive expenses declined slightly as
compared to 2009 due to our continued fixed spendéduction efforts, restructuring efficiencies anplositive impact from foreign currency.
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Other (charges) gains, net decreased $90 millioimgl2010 as compared to 2009 :

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefits (32 (205)
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (26) (16)
Plumbing actions 59 10
Insurance recoveries 18 6
Asset impairments (74) (19
Plant/office closures 4) ()]
Commercial disputes 13 —
Other — —

Total (46) (13€)

During the year ended December 31, 2010 , we vaoben certain property, plant and equipment at qaarn8on, Derby, United Kingdom
facility to its fair value, recording a $72 millidang-lived asset impairment loss. We also recoide2D10 $15 milliorof employee terminatio
benefits relating to the planned closure of thislity.

As a result of our Pardies, France “Project of Gtes we recorded exit costs of $12 million durihg year ended December 31, 2010 , which
primarily consisted of $6 million in employee termation benefits, $1 million of long-lived asset iamment losses, $3 million of contract
termination costs and $3 million of reindustriatiza costs.

In 2010 , we recorded $18 millimf net insurance recoveries ($8 million for propetamage and $10 million for business interrupti@téting
to certain events and production outages that oedun 2008 and 2009 at our EVA Performance Polgrfeility in Edmonton, Alberta,
Canada.

As a result of several business optimization ptsjeadertaken by us beginning in 2009 and contgthmoughout 2010 , we recorded $11
million in employee termination costs during theayended December 31, 2010 .

During the year ended December 31, 2010 , we redosd4 million of recoveries and $45 million of vetions in legal reserves related to
lawsuits alleging that certain plastics utilizedlie production of plumbing systems for residergiaperty were defective or caused such
plumbing systems to fail. See Note 23 to the ac@ming consolidated financial statements for furihéormation regarding the plumbing
actions.

In November 2006, we finalized a settlement agredmith the Frankfurt, Germany Airport (“Fraport9 relocate the Kelsterbach, Germany
Ticona operations, resolving several years of ldggdutes related to the planned Fraport expanBiaring 2010 , we recorded $26 million of
expenses related to the Ticona Kelsterbach plémtaton. See Note 27 to the accompanying congelitifinancial statements for further
information regarding the Ticona Kelsterbach plahbcation.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, 28b0ncluded gains of $13 milligmet, related to settlements in resolution of meercia
disputes.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates and dividemdome from cost investments increased during 28mpared to the same period in 2009 .
Our strategic affiliates experienced similar volumereases due to increased demand during theeyel@d December 31, 2010 . As a result,
our proportional share of net earnings from eqaffifiates increased $69 million and our dividendome from cost investments increased $16
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 aspzoed to the same period in 2009 .

Our effective tax rate for continuing operationstfe year ended December 31, 2010 was 21% compaf@d)% for the year ended
December 31, 2009 . Our effective tax rate for 28@8 favorably impacted by the release of the UBatimn allowance on net deferred tax
assets, partially offset by increases in valuagibowances on certain foreign net deferred taxtass®d the effect of new tax legislation in
Mexico. The effective rate for the year ended Ddoen31, 2010 was favorably impacted by amendmertisxtlegislation in Mexico.
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Selected Data by Business Segment

Net sales
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Inter-segment eliminations
Total
Other (charges) gains, net
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Operating profit (loss)
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities

Total

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations beforeax

Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Depreciation and amortization
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Operating margin ®
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Total

1)

Defined as operating profit (loss) divided by redes

Year Ended Decembel Year Ended
31, December 31,
2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

1,29¢ 1,10¢ 18¢ 1,10¢ 80¢ 301
1,161 1,09¢ 63 1,09¢ 1,08¢ 14
1,227 1,03¢ 187 1,03¢ 974 62
3,551 3,082 46¢ 3,08: 2,60: 47¢
1 2 (@) 2 2 —
477) (409) (62 (409) (389) (20
6,76 5,91¢ 84t 5,91¢ 5,082 83¢€
(49 31 (80) 31 (18) 49
©) (76) 73 (76) 9 (67)
— 25 (25) 25 4 21
14 (12 26 (12 (92) 79
(20 ()] 4 ()] (22 8
(48) (46) 2 (46) (13€) aC
76 18¢€ (110 18¢€ 38 14¢
227 164 63 164 231 (67)
10C 89 11 89 89 —
45¢ 24% 21€ 24% 92 151
(172) (179 7 (179 (160) (19
69C 50z 187 50z 29C 21%
23¢ 32¢ (90 32¢ 114 21t
307 237 70 237 28¢ (52)
10z 89 13 89 89 —
46¢ 252 217 252 10z 15C
(362) (369) 7 (369) (342) (27)
755 53¢ 217 53¢ 251 287
10C 76 24 76 73 3
44 42 2 42 5C (8)
45 41 4 41 51 (20
96 117 (21) 117 123 (6)
13 11 2 11 11 —
29¢ 287 11 287 30¢ (21)
5¢ % 16.€ % (10.99 % 16.€ % 4.7 % 12.1
19.¢ % 14.¢ % 47 % 14< % 212 % (6.9
8.2 % 8.6 % 0.9 % 8.6 % 9.1 % (0.5
12.¢ % 7S % 5 % 7S % 3.5 % 4.4
10.2 % 8.5 % 17 % 8.5 % 57 % 2.8
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Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Sales

The percentage increase (decrease) in net saldsefgears ended December 31 attributable to efattte dactors indicated for each of our

business segments is as follows:

Volume Price Currency Other Total
(In percentages)
2011 Compared to 2010
Advanced Engineered Materials 2 8 3 4 @ 17
Consumer Specialties 1 5 — — 6
Industrial Specialties 2 13 3 — 18
Acetyl Intermediates 4) 16 3 — 15
Total Company D 13 3 — @ 15
2010 Compared to 2009
Advanced Engineered Materials 35 1 (3) 4 @ 37
Consumer Specialties 2 — (0] — 1
Industrial Specialties 11 6 (3) (8) ® 6
Acetyl Intermediates 10 10 2 — 18
Total Company 13 7 2 2 @ 16
Q) 2011 includes the effects of the two produntd acquired in May 2010 from DuPont Performandgriers.
(2) Includes the effects of the captive insurammaganies and the impact of fluctuations in integrsent eliminations.

3 2010 does not include the effects of the PVQ@iitess, which was sold on July 1, 2009.
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Business Segments — Year Ended December 31, 201IPared with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Advanced Engineered Material

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2011 2010 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,29¢ 1,10¢ 18¢
Net sales variance

Volume 2 %

Price 8 %

Currency 3 %

Other 4 %
Other (charges) gains, net (49) 31 (80)
Operating profit (loss) 76 18¢€ (110
Operating margin 528 % 16.¢ %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 161 144 17
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 23¢ 32¢ (90)
Depreciation and amortization 10C 76 24

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devefopsiuces and supplies a broad portfolio of higfiqgmance specialty polymers for
application in automotive, medical and electromiozducts, as well as other consumer and industpiglicatio ns. Together with our strategic
affiliates, our Advanced Engineered Materials segnea leading participant in the glolsglecialty polymers industry. The primary produd
Advanced Engineered Materials are polyoxymethylaism commonly known as polyacetal (“POM?”), lonbdi reinforced thermoplastics
(“LFT"), polybutylene terephthalate (“PBT"), polytlene terephthalate (“PET"), GURultra-high molecular weight polyethylene, liquid
crystal polymers (“LCP”) and polycyclohexylene-ditmgene terephthalate (“PCT”). POM, LFT, PBT, PQU&ET are used in a broad range
of products including automotive components, mddiezices, electronics, appliances and industpalieations. GUR ultra-high molecular
weight polyethylene is used in battery separatasyeyor belts, filtration equipment, coatings amedical devices. Primary end uses for LCP
are electrical and electronics.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre&48@ million for the year ended December 31, 20drhgared to the same period in 2010 .
The increase in net sales is primarily due to iases in average pricing for all products, the inhpatwo product lines, ZeniteLCP and
Thermx®PCT, acquired from DuPont Performance Polymers ay 010, favorable currency impacts, as well abérigolumes in almost all
product lines, particularly in LFT and GURiltra-high molecular weight polyethylene.

Operating profit decreased by $110 million for ylear ended December 31, 2011 as compared to theemaniod in 2010 mainly due to an
increase in other charges related to the relocati@ur POM production facility to Frankfurt Hoe¢hsdustrial Park. In addition, AEM
experienced higher depreciation related to this R&M plant, higher raw material costs and additiepanding on innovation, distribution,
energy costs and inflation. Other charges weredrigihan in the prior year reflecting the absence décrease in legal fees and recoveries
associated with plumbing actions in 2010 as wethashigher costs incurred in 2011 associated thi¢hrelocation and expansion of our Ticona
Kelsterbach, Germany POM production operationss&hegher costs were partially offset by our exgahgross margins and higher volumes.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , an incieasgulity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates pally offset the decrease in earnings (loss)
from continuing operations before tax. The increasget earnings (loss) of affiliates was primadiyven by higher earnings in our Ibn Sina
affiliate, which provides an economic hedge agaiaat material costs used in our Ticona operationsia constructing a 50,000 ton POM
production facility.

Operating and financial results of our Polyplassitategic affiliate were modestly impacted by kherch 2011 natural disasters in Japan and a
plant turnaround during the year ended Decembe2@11 .
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Consumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2011 2010 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,161 1,09¢ 63
Net sales variance

Volume 1%

Price 5 %

Currency — %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net (©)] (76) 73
Operating profit (loss) 227 164 63
Operating margin 19.€ % 14.¢ %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 2 2 —
Dividend income - cost investments 78 71 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 307 237 70
Depreciation and amortization 44 42 2

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oata#e Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our AcBratducts business produces and
supplies cellulose acetate flake, film and towyaniily used in filter products applications. Ourthlova business produces and sells Sihett
a high intensity sweetener, and food protectiomeédgents, such as sorbates and sorbic acid, fdotte beverage and pharmaceuticals
industries.

Net sales for Consumer Specialties incre&$63 million for the year ended December 31, 201dcaspared to the same period in 2010 .
Acetate Products pricing increased while volumegedd relatively flat year over year. Nutrinova'swoes increased slightly reflecting higher
demand and new applications for Suffetbffsetting its decrease in pricing. Sorbates pobgrice increases more than offset its slighte®se
in volumes.

Operating profit increased $63 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 as compared with the parigel in 2010 primarily due to the
absence of the long-lived asset impairment losE&32 million incurred in 2010 associated with mg@aents assessment of the closure of
acetate flake and tow production operations in 8panDerby, United Kingdom. Higher raw material amgkrgy costs and increased spending
on planned maintenance and reliability efforts waffset by higher acetate pricing.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 , the Coynipaurred an additional $4 millian other charges relating to severance associaitéx
the Spondon shut down. In 2010 , other chargesdec the $72 million for asset impairment losses.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2011 2010 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,22¢ 1,03¢ 187
Net sales variance

Volume 2 %

Price 13 %

Currency 3 %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net — 25 (25)
Operating profit (loss) 10C 89 11
Operating margin 8.2 % 8.6 %
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 10z 89 13
Depreciation and amortization 45 41 4

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Emaos and EVA Performance Polymers businessesERdsions business is a leading
global producer of vinyl acetate based emulsiomsdavelops products and application technologymjarove performance, create value and
drive innovation in applications such as paints ematings, adhesives, construction, glass fib&tilés and paper. Celanese emulsions products
are sold under globally and regionally recognizeahlds including EcoVAE, Mowilith ®, Vinamul®, Celvolit®, BriteCoat™, TufCOR™,

and Avicor™ . EVA Performance Polymers, the specialty polyntersiness of Celanese, is a leading North Americanufacturer of a full

range of low-density polyethylene and specialty EN¢8ins and compounds. Sold under the Afearad VitalDos€™ trade names, these
products are used in many applications, includiexgilble packaging films, lamination film productst melt adhesives, medical products,
automotive, carpeting and photovoltaic cells.

Net sales increased in our Industrial Specialtggrent by$187 million for the year ended December 31, 2Qdrhmared to the same period in
2010 . Increased net sales were a result of gebigrgpowth, and higher volumes of innovative apgtiens from our Emulsions business,
favorable currency impact and higher pricing intbotir Emulsions and our EVA Performance Polymessrasses.

Operating profit increased by $11 million for theay ended December 31, 2011 compared to the saiod pe2010 . The increase in
operating profit is attributed to higher volumesl amcreased pricing offset by higher raw matergts, increased spending on plant
maintenance, additional spending on innovatiorhdiglepreciation with the completion of our Chiaaility expansion, as well as the impact
of an insurance recovery in 2010 related to evehtarce majeure at our EVA Performance Polymecdifg in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada in
2008 and 2009.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2011 2010 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 3,551 3,08z 46¢
Net sales variance

Volume 4) %

Price 16 %

Currency 3 %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net 14 12 26
Operating profit (loss) 45¢ 242 21€
Operating margin 12.¢ % 7.8 %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 5 5 —
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 46¢ 252 217
Depreciation and amortization 96 117 (21)

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and &spatetyl products, including acetic acid, vinggtate monomer (“VAM"), acetic
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeadjg used as raw materials for colorants, paadbesives, coatings, textiles and medic
This business segment also produces organic selagultintermediates for pharmaceutical, agricultamd chemical products.

Net sales increased 1$469 million for the year ended December 31, 2Qdrhpmared to the same period in 2010 due to highieingrand
favorable foreign currency impacts offset partiddjylower volumes. Volumes decreased primarily thuplanned and unplanned outages at our
Nanjing facility and industry destocking at the exfdhe year. Favorable pricing for all major at¢elgrivative product lines was achiev

across all regions, reflecting the recovery of biglaw material costs and a tight supply.

Operating profit increased by $216 million for §ear ended December 31, 2011 compared to the saroel in 2010 . The increase in
operating profit is primarily due to higher salekps and favorable foreign currency impacts windre than offset the increase in raw
material costs. During the year ended Decembe2@11 , we also received consideration of $17 nmiliioconnection with the settlement of a
claim against a bankrupt supplier which was readbtdeother charges. The increase in operating tpatsfo reflects the absence of closure costs
of our acetic acid and VAM production operation$ardies, France which were incurred in 2010 .

Depreciation and amortization for the year endedeb®er 31, 2011 was less than in the prior yea20li® , $20 million of accelerated
amortization was recorded to write-off the asssbamted with a raw material purchase agreemehtaviupplier who filed for bankruptcy
during 2009.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administratie#ivities, and our captive insurance
companies.

The operating loss for Other Activities decreasg&b million for the year ended December 31, 20drhpared to the same period in 2010
primarily due to lower selling, general and adntirsisve expenses and other charges. Selling, geardsadministrative expenses decreased
primarily due to lower shared services costs, stmsed compensation and lower legal claims, sligiffset by strategic growth initiatives.
Other charges were lower in 2011 compared to 20&0al the absence of insurance recoveries.
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Business Segment - Year Ended December 31, 2010 Qamred with Year Ended December 31, 2009

Advanced Engineered Material

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2010 2009 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,10¢ 80¢ 301
Net sales variance

Volume 35 %

Price 1%

Currency 3) %

Other 4 %
Other (charges) gains, net 31 (18) 49
Operating profit (loss) 18¢€ 38 14¢
Operating margin 16.¢ % 47 %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 144 78 66
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 32¢ 114 21¢
Depreciation and amortization 76 73 3

Advanced Engineered Materials' net sales incre®36d million for the year ended December 31, 20dfiared to the same period in 2009 .
The increase in net sales is primarily relateddaicant increases in volume which are due togredual recovery in the global economy,
continued success in the innovation and commezaitidin of new products and applications and thaiiadgpn of FACT in December 2009.
Net sales was also positively impacted by increasaserage pricing as a result of implementedepincreases in addition to integrating
DuPont product lines LCP and PCT that were acquirédday 2010 into our sales process during thetfoquarter. These increases were only
partially offset by unfavorable foreign currencypacts.

Operating profit increased $148 million for the yeaded December 31, 2010 as compared to the sameel fin 2009 . The positive impact
from higher sales volumes, increased pricing farfagh performance polymers and higher productiolumes, including a planned inventory
build for the relocation of our facility in Kelstesich, Germany, more than offset higher raw mataridlenergy costs. Other charges positively
impacted operating profit for the year ended Decandi, 2010 driven by a $45 million decrease imlegserves and $14 million of recoveries
associated with plumbing actions partially offsgtedxpenses related to our European expansion alstel@ach relocation. Depreciation and
amortization includes $2 million of accelerated atization for the year ended December 31, 2010ritevoff the asset associated with a raw
material purchase agreement with a supplier wieal fibr bankruptcy during 2009 .

Earnings from continuing operations before taxéased for the year ended December 31, 2010 as cednfoethe same period in 2009 due to
increased operating profit and increased equityeinearnings of affiliates. Our equity affiliatés¢luding Ibn Sina, have experienced similar
volume increases due to increased demand duringetireended December 31, 20185 a result, our proportional share of net eaysiof thes
affiliates increased $66 million for the year endtember 31, 2010 compared to the same periodd 2
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Consumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2010 2009 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,09¢ 1,08¢ 14
Net sales variance

Volume 2 %

Price — %

Currency (1) %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net (76) 9 (67)
Operating profit (loss) 164 231 (67)
Operating margin 14.¢ % 21 %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 2 1 1
Dividend income - cost investments 71 56 15
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 237 28¢ (51)
Depreciation and amortization 42 50 (8

Net sales for Consumer Specialties incre:$14 million for the year ended December 31, 201€amspared to the same period in 2009. The
increase in volume and price in our Acetate Praglbosiness more than offset the decline in volungkepaice in our Nutrinova business as

lower demand in Sunetinegatively impacted net sales.

During the first half of 2010, we experienced aluhecin net sales related to an electrical diskpfind subsequent production outage at our
Acetate Products manufacturing facility in Narrowgginia. The facility resumed normal operationgidg the second quarter of 2010 and we
recovered the impacted volume during the secorfdh@010 as we experienced increased volumesrioatate Products business due to
higher demand in acetate tow and improved businessetate film.

Operating profit decreased for the year ended DbeeRil, 2010 as compared to the same period in 28@9ncrease in other charges for the
year endeDecember 31, 2010 had the most significant impaamerating profit as it was unfavorably impactgddng-lived asset
impairment losses of $72 million associated witmagement's assessment of the closure of our adletledeand tow production operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom during the three therended March 31, 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2010 , earrfings continuing operations before tax decreasedtdl®ver operating profit, which was
partially offset by higher dividends from our Chimentures of $15 million compared to 2009 .

49




Industrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2010 2009 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,03¢ 974 62
Net sales variance

Volume 11 %

Price 6 %

Currency ) %

Other (8) %
Other (charges) gains, net 25 4 21
Operating profit (loss) 89 89 —
Operating margin 8.6 % 9.1 %
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 89 89 —
Depreciation and amortization 41 51 (20

Net sales increased for the year enDecember 31, 2010 compared to the same periodd 2hcreased net sales were a result of higher
growth and innovation volumes from our Emulsionsibass and higher volumes from our EVA Performdalgmers business partially offset
by impacts resulting from the sale of our PVOH hass in July 2009. The increase in our EVA PerforzeaPolymers business' volumes was
partly as a result of our Edmonton, Alberta, Cangldat being fully operational during 2010 . Volusngere lower during 2008ue to technici
issues at our Edmonton, Alberta, Canada plant. &atimical production issues were resolved and aboperations resumed prior to the end
of the third quarter of 2009. Higher prices in &WA Performance Polymers business due to priceeas®s and favorable product mix were
partially offset by lower prices in our Emulsiongsiness due to unfavorable foreign exchange rates.

In July 2009, we completed the sale of our PYOHmss to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) fonet cash purchase price of $168
million , excluding the value of accounts receiwabhd payable we retained. The transaction resintadjain on disposition of $34 millicand
includes long-term supply agreements between SekigliCelanese.

Due to certain events in October 2008 and subségegiodic cessations of production of our spegiptilymers products produced at our E
Performance Polymers facility in Edmonton, Albe@&anada, we declared two events of force majeuwnan® 2009 , we replaced long-lived
assets damaged in October 2008. As a result of #anemnts and subsequent periodic cessation of gtioduwe recorded $25 million and
$10 million of insurance recoveries to other chardering the years ended December 31, 2010 and,2@89ectively. These amounts were
partially offset by $7 million and $10 million, nesctively, recorded as a charge by our captiverarste companies included in the Other
Activities segment. The net insurance recoveriesmded during the year ended December 31, 201Q®ndllion consisted of $8 million
related to property damage and $10 million reldaellusiness interruption.

Operating profit remained unchanged for the yededrDecember 31, 2010 compared to the same par2@00 . Increases in operating profit
in 2010 are primarily due to the resumption of nakoperations at our EVA Performance Polymers itgcihet insurance proceeds received in
2010 and increases in sales volumes and priceseTihereases were offset by the 2009 gain on disposf assets related to the divestiture of
our PVOH business and higher raw material cost®th our EVA Performance Polymers and Emulsionsnasses.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended December 31,

Change
2010 2009 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 3,08z 2,60: 47¢
Net sales variance

Volume 10 %

Price 10 %

Currency 2) %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net (12 (92) 79
Operating profit (loss) 242 92 151
Operating margin 7.8 % 35 %
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 5 5 —
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 252 102 15C
Depreciation and amortization 117 123 (6)

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and gspatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc anhydride and acetate esters. Tl
products are generally used as starting mateoalsdlorants, paints, adhesives, coatings, textifeslicines and more. Other chemicals
produced in this business segment are organicrstshamd intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricaltand chemical products. To meet the
growing demand for acetic acid in China and to suppngoing site optimization efforts, we succebgfexpanded our acetic acid unit in
Nanjing, China from 600,000 tons per reactor argueall.2 million tons per reactor annually duriting fourth quarter of 2009. Using n«
AOPIus®2 capability, the acetic acid unit could be furtegpanded to 1.5 million tons per reactor annualth only modest additional capital.

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales increased $47%aniltluring the year ended December 31, 2010 as amdpo the same period in 2009 due to
improvement in the global economy resulting in @aged overall demand across all regions for themaagtyl derivative product lines.
Increases in volume were also a direct result ofsoacessful acetic acid expansion at our Nanfiiigna plant. We also experienced favorable
pricing which was driven by rising raw material toand price increases in acetic acid and VAM acadisregions. The increase in net sales
was only slightly offset by unfavorable foreign mmcy impacts.

Operating profit increased during the year endedeber 31, 2010 compared to the same period in 2086 increase in operating profit is
primarily due to higher volumes and prices and eida in plant costs resulting from the closureof less advantaged acetic acid and VAM
production operations in Pardies, France. A deergaether charges, due primarily to the reductibplant closure costs related to the 2009
closure of our Pardies, France facility, also hdavarable impact on operating profit. These insesato operating profit were only slightly
offset by higher variable costs and unfavorableifpr currency impacts. Higher variable costs wed@ect result of price increases in all me
raw materials. Depreciation and amortization ine&i§20 million of accelerated amortization for ylear ended December 31, 2010 to wafe-
the asset associated with a raw material purchgreement with a supplier who filed for bankruptayidg 2009 .

Earnings from continuing operations before taxéased during the year ended December 31, 2010 cethfztathe same period in 2009 due to
increased operating profit.

Other Activities

The operating loss for Other Activities increas&@ #illion for the year ended December 31, 2010mamed to the same period in 2009 . The
increase was primarily due to a $38 million inceesselling, general and administrative costs civhias only partially offset by a $14 million
gain on the sale of an office building. Higher isgj] general and administrative expenses were pityrdue to higher legal costs and costs
associated with business optimization initiatives.

The loss from continuing operations before taxeased $27 million for the year ended December @10 Zompared to the same period in
2009 . The increase is primarily related to $1diarilof fees associated with our debt refinancimat bccurred during the three months ended
September 30, 2010.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexf operations, available cash and cash equivadentslividends from our portfolio of
strategic investments. In addition, as of Decende2011 we have $154 million available for bormgvuinder our credit-linked revolving
facility and $600 million available under our réving credit facility to assist in meeting our wanl capital needs and other contractual
obligations, if required.

While our contractual obligations, commitments detit service requirements over the next severakyaa significant, we continue to belie
we will have available resources to meet our ligyicequirements, including debt service, in 20f2ur cash flow from operations is
insufficient to fund our debt service and otherigédions, we may be required to use other meantabl&to us such as increasing our
borrowings, reducing or delaying capital expenditiiseeking additional capital or seeking to restine or refinance our indebtedness. There
can be no assurance, however, that we will contiougenerate cash flows at or above current levels.

In January 2011, we signed letters of intent tostrutt and operate one, and possibly two industtteinol production facilities in China. The
sites selected were Nanjing, China at the Nanjihgraical Industrial Park, and Zhuhai, China at tle®I&n Port Economic Zone. We expect to
begin industrial ethanol production within 30 manfbllowing project approvals with anticipated iaithameplate capacity of 400,000 tons per
year per unit and an initial investment of approaiety $300 million per unit. In June 2011, we anmzed our plans to accelerate our entry

the industrial ethanol business six to 12 monthmbgifying and enhancing our existing integrateetglcfacility at the Nanjing Chemical
Industrial Park with our TCX advanced technology. This would add approximat8ly,@00 tons per year of ethanol production capdmity
mid-2013.

In June 2011, we broke ground on a technology deweént unit for ethanol production at our facilityClear Lake, Texas, which will be
operational by mid-2012. We also intend to constaucew research and development facility at oea€CLake site to continue the
advancement of our acetyl and T€¥chnologies.

In April 2010, we announced that, through our siyat affiliate Ibn Sina, we will construct a 50,0@H POM production facility in Saudi
Arabia. Our pro rata share of invested capitahsnPOM expansion is expected to total approxima&i@B5 million over a four year period
which began in late 2010. For the years ended DkeeeBil, 2011 and 2010, we incurred $7 million aRdriilion, respectively, of capital
expenditures. We anticipate related cash outflawsapital expenditures in 2012 will be $15 milliGm$20 million.

Cash outflows for capital expenditures are expetdeadnge from $350 million to $400 million in 20&2cluding amounts related to the
relocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterbach aagaxcity expansion in Europe. Per the terms of gteeanent with Fraport, we ceased POM
operations at our Kelsterbach, Germany facilitppto July 31, 2011. Accordingly, we received thmaf cash installment of €110 million in
June 2011. As the relocation project progressecexpanded the scope of the new production fadlihes a result, we have spent in excess of
total proceeds received from Fraport. On Septer2be2011, the Company announced the opening afetnePOM production facility in
Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park, Germany. Wedapéte related cash outflows for capital expendstin 2012 will be €30 million.

In December 2009, we announced plans with ChinéoNalt Tobacco Corporation to expand the acetake fiand tow capacity at the venture’s
Nantong facility and in 2010 we received formal mqmal to expand flake and tow capacities, each®9@@ tons. Our Chinese acetate vent
fund their operations using operating cash flow. the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, mighutted $8 million and $12 million ,
respectively, to the Nantong expansion and expecomtribute an additional $9 million in 2012.

As a result of the previously announced closureufacetate flake and tow manufacturing operatidriee Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom
site, we expect to record total expenses of $3bamito $45 million, consisting of $20 million fgrersonnel-related exit costs and $20 million
of other facility-related shutdown costs such astiaet termination costs and accelerated depreadiati fixed assets. We expect that
substantially all of the exit costs (except forelecated depreciation of fixed assets of $15 mnm)liwill result in future cash expenditures. Cash
outflows are expected to occur into 2013. For tharyended December 31, 2011 , we recorded exi ob$4 million related to personnel-
related costs and $ 10 million of other plant sbutd costs. We expect the closure of the acetate fiad tow manufacturing operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom to occur during 208€e Note 4 and Note 17 to the accompanying colaset! financial statements.

In addition to exit-related costs associated whth ¢losure of the Spondon, Derby, United Kingdoetate flake and tow manufacturing
operations, we expect to incur capital expenditirertain capacity and efficiency improvementingpally at our Lanaken, Belgium facilil
to optimize our global production network. For ffears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
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we incurred $26 million and $5 million, respectiyelelated to these capital projects and expedt oatflows of $13 million in 2012 related to
the same projects.

As a result of the National Emission Standard faz&tdous Air Pollutants for Industrial, Commercaald Institutional Boilers and Process
Heaters (“Boiler MACT") regulations discussedliem 1A. Risk Factorswe preliminarily estimate our costs in the Uxaeed $100 million
in total over the next four years, depending ortitthéng and requirements of final signed rule.

On a stand-alone basis, Celanese has no matesebasther than the stock of its subsidiaries anithdependent external operations of its own.
As such, Celanese generally will depend on the flaghof its subsidiaries and their abilities toypdividends and make other distributions to
Celanese in order to meet its obligations, inclgdibligations under its Series A common stock,@eeriedit facilities and its senior notes.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2861 %682 million , which is a change of $58 millibrom December 31, 2010 . As of
December 31, 2011 , $549 million of the $682 millmf cash and cash equivalents was held by ouigiosubsidiaries. If these funds are
needed for our operations in the US, we may beiredjto accrue and pay US taxes to repatriate thesks. Our intent is to permanently
reinvest these funds outside of the US, with thesjide exception of funds that have been previosishject to US federal and state taxation.
Our current plans do not demonstrate a need tdriatgacash held by our foreign subsidiaries iaxable transaction to fund our US operati
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 28d0%v40 million, which was a decrease of $514ionilfrom December 31, 2009.

* Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiti

Cash flow provided by operating activities increhbg $186 million for the year ended December2BiL1 as compared to the same period in
2010 . Cash flow provided by operations was paaliyivmpacted by the increase in earnings from ootiig operations as well as lower cash
taxes. The increase in cash provided by operati@sspartially offset by the impact of increasesrémle working capital and higher pension
contributions made during the year ended DecembgeP@L1 than in the prior year.

Cash flow provided by operating activities for tear ended December 31, 2010 decreased $144 maliccompared to the same perio
2009. The increase in trade working capital anditteeeases in cash paid for taxes and legal settiesn which negatively affected ¢
provided by operating activities, more than offéet increase in earnings and the increase in cashdur foreign currency hedges.

* Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activit

Net cash used in investing activities decre:$119 million for the year ended December 31, 20 tcampared to the same period in 2010 .
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we red€i¢&8 million from Fraport related to the relooatof our Kelsterbach, Germany Ticona
operations. No such proceeds were received dunmgdme period in 2010. In addition, in 2011 cépitpenditures related to the relocation of
our Kelsterbach, Germany Ticona operations wer@$iillion lower than in 2010. In 2011 we acquiredwsiness primarily consisting of
emulsions process technology from Crown Paints teichfor $8 million while in 2010 we incurred $46lioin related to our acquisition of two
product lines, Zenit8 LCP and Therm® PCT, from DuPont Performance Polymers. These dsesda cash used were partially offset by an
increase in capital expenditures related to prgpetant and equipment.

Net cash from investing activities decreased frooash inflow of $31 million in 2009 to a cash oowfl of $560 million for the same period
2010. The decrease is primarily related to theiptad proceeds of $412 million related to the TieoKelsterbach plant relocation and
receipt of $168 million for the sale of our PVOHsimess that were both received in 2009. There wersuch proceeds in 2010. Adding to
decrease was cash outflows of $46 million incuire@010 related to our acquisition of two produnes from DuPont Performance Polyn
as compared to the cash outflows for our FACT kessracquired in 2009 which were $8 million.

Our cash outflows for capital expenditures wereS@dllion , $201 million and $176 million for theeprs ended December 31, 2011 , 2840
2009, respectively, excluding amounts related ¢oréhocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterbachpi@a expenditures were primarily relatec
major replacements of equipment, capacity expassimajor investments to reduce future operatingscarsd environmental and health and
safety initiatives. Cash outflows for capital exgieares for our Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocaticere $204 million, $312 million and $351
million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2ah@ 2009, respectively.
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* Net Cash Used in Financing Activitie

Net cash used in financing activities decree$135 million for the year ended December 31, 20@fnfa cash outflow of $388 million in 2010
to a cash outflow of $253 million in 2011 . The dese in cash used in financing activities is prilpaelated to lower net borrowings and
fewer stock repurchase transactions when comparegttsame period in 2010. On May 6, 2011, we cetaglan offering of $400 million of
5.875% senior unsecured notes due 2021 (the “5.89Y884s”). We used the proceeds from the issuanteeds.875% Notes and cash on hand
to prepay the outstanding balance of $516 millioroar Term B loan facility.

Net cash used in financing activities increasechfeocash outflow of $112 million in 2009 to a casitflow of $388 million for the same peri
in 2010. The $276 million increase primarily relate the net pay down on longrm debt of $297 million and $48 million used &purchas
shares of the Company's Series A common stock.

In addition, exchange rate effects on cash and egslivalents was an unfavorable currency impack2million in 2011 compared ta
unfavorable impact of $18 million in 2010 and adeable impact of $63 million in 2009.

Debt and Other Obligation
*  Senior Notes

In September 2010, Celanese US completed an affefi$600 million aggregate principal amount ofZa8 senior unsecured notes due 2018
in a private placement conducted pursuant to R&dAlunder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendsal“GBecurities Act”)On April 14, 2011
Celanese US issued $600 million aggregate prineipadunt of 6.625% senior unsecured notes (the 3846Rotes”) in exchange for tendered
6.625% senior unsecured notes issued under thatprvacement in an exchange offer registered uheéeBecurities Act. The 6.625% Notes
have substantially identical terms as the noteseidsinder the private placement except the trans$trictions, registration rights and rights to
increased interest in addition to the stated istenae do not apply to the exchange notes. THEb6tENotes are guaranteed on a senior
unsecured basis by Celanese and each of the dorsebsidiaries of Celanese US that guarantee ligadions under its senior secured credit
facilities (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”).

The 6.625% Notes were issued under an indentues det of September 24, 2010 (the “Indenture”) am@elgnese US, Celanese, the
Subsidiary Guarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, Natidsaociation, as trustee. The 6.625% Notes bearédst at a rate of 6.625% per annum
and were priced at 100% of par. Celanese US willipgerest on the Notes on April 15 and OctobepfilBach year commencing on April 15,
2011. The 6.625% Notes are redeemable, in whale maurt, at any time on or after October 15, 20titha redemption prices specified in the
Indenture. Prior to October 15, 2014, Celanese @$ radeem some or all of the 6.625% Notes at amptien price of 100% of the principal
amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if amthe redemption date, plus a “make-whole” premasmspecified in the Indenture. The
6.625% Notes are senior unsecured obligations #En@ése US and rank equally in right of payment \altiother unsubordinated indebtedness
of Celanese US.

The Indenture contains covenants, including, btifinoted to, restrictions on the Company’s andsittsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness;
grant liens on assets; merge, consolidate, oaseéts; pay dividends or make other restricted pajgsnengage in transactions with affiliate:
engage in other businesses.

Additionally, on May 6, 2011 , Celanese US complede offering of $400 million in aggregate prindipanount of 5.875% senior unsecured
notes due 2021 (the “ 5.875% Notes”) in a publferifig registered under the Securities Act. Th&5% Notes are guaranteed on a senior
unsecured basis by Celanese and the Subsidianaoes.

The 5.875% Notes were issued under an indentura dinst supplemental indenture, each dated M&0&,1 (the “First Supplemental
Indenture”) among Celanese US, Celanese, the Sahsiduarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, National A&g@n, as trustee. Celanese US will
pay interest on the 5.875% Notes on June 15 andrmeer 15 of each year commencing on December 18, Fjior to June 15, 2021,
Celanese US may redeem some or all of the 5.87584sNxt a redemption price of 100% of the princgrabunt, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date, plus akexwhole” premium as specified in the First Supmatal Indenture. The 5.875% Notes are
senior unsecured obligations of Celanese US ardegunally in right of payment with all other unsuiimated indebtedness of Celanese US.

The First Supplemental Indenture contains covenamthiding, but not limited to, restrictions onrability to incur indebtedness; grant liens
on assets; merge, consolidate, or sell assetgjipagnds or make other restricted payments; engaggansactions with affiliates; or engage in
other businesses.
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e Senior Credit Facilities

In September 2010, we entered into an amendmeegagmt with the lenders under our existing serdoured credit facilities in order to
amend and restate the corresponding credit agreéedetad as of April 2, 2007 (as previously amendeel “Existing Credit Agreement”, and
as amended and restated by the amendment agre¢neeimended Credit Agreement”). Our Amended Crédjreement consists of the
Term C loan facility having principal amounts of, $40 million of US dollar-denominated and €204 roill of Euro-denominated term loans
due 2016, the Term B loan facility having principatounts of $417 million US dollar-denominated &68 million of Euro-denominated term
loans due 2014, a $600 million revolving creditiffacterminating in 2015 and a $228 million credlitked revolving facility terminating in
2014.

On May 6, 2011, Celanese US, through its subselaprepaid the outstanding Term B loan facilitdemthe Amended Credit Agreement set
to mature in 2014 in an aggregate principal amot$516 million using proceeds from the 5.875% Naad cash on hand. The prepaid
principal amount was comprised of $414 million @ dollar-denominated Term B loan facility and €6@iom of Euro-denominated Term B
loan facility.

The balances available for borrowing under the Ikeng credit facility and the credit-linked revohg facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011
(In $ millions)

Revolving credit facility
Borrowings outstanding —
Letters of credit issued —
Available for borrowing 60C

Credit-linked revolving facility
Letters of credit issued 74
Available for borrowing 154

As a condition to borrowing funds or requesting feeters of credit be issued under the revolvirgdit facility, our first lien senior secured
leverage ratio (as calculated as of the last dai@most recent fiscal quarter for which finansi@tements have been delivered under the
revolving facility) cannot exceed the thresholdspscified below. Further, our first lien senior @@t leverage ratio must be maintained at or
below that threshold while any amounts are outstendnder the revolving credit facility.

Our amended first lien senior secured leveragesatnd the borrowing capacity under the revolvirgglit facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Estimate, If Fully Borrowing
Maximum Estimate Drawn Capacity
(In $ millions)
First Lien Senior Secured Leverage Ratio 3.90 to 1.0( 1.05 to 1.0( 1.49 to 1.0( 60C

The Amended Credit Agreement contains covenantading, but not limited to, restrictions on our liito incur indebtedness; grant liens on
assets; merge, consolidate, or sell assets; pajedids or make other restricted payments; makestments; prepay or modify certain
indebtedness; engage in transactions with affgia¢ater into saléeaseback transactions or hedge transactions;gagenn other businesses
well as a covenant requiring maintenance of a manirfirst lien senior secured leverage ratio.

We are in compliance with all of the covenantstezldo our debt agreements as of December 31, 2011
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Share Capital

We have a policy of declaring, subject to legaimgitable funds, a quarterly cash dividend on edwresof Series A common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share. On April 25, 2011, we annouticetour Board of Directors approved a 20% incréaske Celanese quarterly Series A
common stock cash dividend. The Board of Directiacseased the quarterly dividend rate from $ 0d)$ 0.06 per share of Series A common
stock on a quarterly basis, which equates to aase from $0.20 to $0.24 per share of Series Avomrstock annually. The new dividend
rate is applicable to dividends payable beginningugust 2011. On January 5, 2012 , we declarezsh dividend of $0.06 per share on our
Series A common stock amounting to $9 million . Thsh dividends are for the period from Novembe&01,1 to January 31, 2012 and will be
paid on February 1, 2012 to holders of record araofiary 18, 2012 .

Our Board of Directors authorized the repurchaseuofCommon Stock as follows:

Date of Board Authorization Authorization Amount

(In $ millions)

February 2008 40C
October 2008 10C
April 2011 12¢

As of December 31, 2011 62¢

These authorizations give management discretialeiermining the timing and conditions under whibhres may be repurchased. This
repurchase program does not have an expiration date

The share repurchase activity pursuant to thisaaiziéition is as follows:

Total From
Year Ended December 31, February 2008 Through
2011 2010 2009 December 31, 2011
Shares repurchased 652,01¢ 1,667,59: — 12,082,80
Average purchase price per share $ 46.9¢ $ 2877 3 —  $ 37.7i
Amount spent on repurchased shares (in millions) $ 31 $ 48 $ — $ 45€

The purchase of treasury stock will reduce the remalb shares outstanding and the repurchased sianebe used by us for compensation
programs utilizing our stock and other corporatgppees. We account for treasury stock using thernethod and include treasury stock as a
component of stockholders’ equity.
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Contractual Debt and Cash Obligations
The following table sets forth our fixed contradtdabt and cash obligations as of December 31, 2011

Payments due by period

Less Than After 5
Total 1 Year Years2& 3 Years4&5 Years

(In $ millions)

Fixed contractual debt obligations

Senior notes 1,00¢ — — — 1,00(
Term C loan facility 1,38¢ 14 28 1,34 —
Interest payments on debt and other obligations 1,26( @ 181 32¢ 30z 45(C
Capital lease obligations 24¢ 12 27 34 17¢
Other debt 38z @ 11¢ 36 37 19z
Total 4,27 32t 417 1,71¢ 1,815
Operating leases 33t 58 95 76 10€
Uncertain tax positions, including interest andajées 252 7C — — 182 @
Unconditional purchase obligations 3,42¢ @ 74€ 1,28( 73C 67(
Pension and other postretirement funding obligation 1,13 © 167 40C 301 262
Environmental and asset retirement obligations 16¢ 52 55 19 43
Total 9,591 1,42( 2,247 2,844 3,08(

®MWe have outstanding interest rate swap agreenteattexpire on January 2, 2014, accounted for dsftms hedges that have the economic
effect of modifying the variable rate obligatiorssaciated with our term loans into fixed interdsigations. The impact of these interest
rate swaps was factored into the calculation oftieére interest payments on loterm debt. Future interest expense is calculated)ube
rate in effect on December 31, 2011 .

@0Other debt of $383 million is primarily made upfixed rate pollution control and industrial reverhmnds, short-term borrowings from
affiliated companies and other bank obligations.

©®Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectaaitlement of tax positions with the respectivénta authorities, we are unable to determine
the timing of payments related to our uncertaindbkgations, including interest and penalties. Sghamounts are therefore reflected in
“After 5 Years”.

®Unconditional purchase obligations primarily remtsthe take-or-pay provisions included in certairg-term purchase agreements. We do
not expect to incur material losses under thessmgaments. These amounts also include other p@didigations such as maintenance
and service agreements, energy and utility agressneonsulting contracts, software agreements #mat mniscellaneous agreements and
contracts, obtained via a survey of the Company.

® Excludes expected payments from rmpralified trusts related to nonqualified pensioangl of $134 millior
Contractual Guarantees and Commitments

As of December 31, 2011 , we have current staneltigrs of credit of $74 million and bank guarante&e$9 million outstanding which are
irrevocable obligations of an issuing bank thatueagpayment to third parties in the event thatatersubsidiaries fail to perform in accordance
with specified contractual obligations. The lik@dd is remote that material payments will be regphinnder these agreements. In addition, the
senior notes issued by Celanese US are guarangeeédlidnese and certain domestic subsidiaries afréske US. See Note 13 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements fdescription of this guarantee and the guaranteesr our senior credit facility.

See Note 23 to the accompanying consolidated finbstatements for a discussion of commitmentsamdingencies related to legal and
regulatory proceedings.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not entered into any material off-balafeesarrangements.
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Market Risks

Please setem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosureoabMarket Rislof this Form 10-K for additional information abouir Market
Risks.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are basdti@srelection and application of significant acamgpolicies. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformityhmitS Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“G8AP”) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosfirontingent assets and liabilities at the
of the consolidated financial statements and thented amounts of revenues, expenses and allochtedes during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimateswidver, we are not currently aware of any reasoriétsly events or circumstances that
would result in materially different results.

We believe the following accounting policies antireates are critical to understanding the finanmglorting risks present in the current
economic environment. These matters, and the judtm@and uncertainties affecting them, are alsontisd¢o understanding our reported and
future operating results. See Note 2 to the accogipg consolidated financial statements for furttiiscussion of our significant accounting
policies.

* Recoverability of Lon-Lived Asset:
Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefin-Lived Assets

We test for impairment of goodwill at the reportimgjt level. Our reporting units are either our igtimg business segments or one level below
our operating business segments for which diséisecial information is available and for whicheypting results are regularly reviewed by
business segment management and the chief opedatiigion maker. Our operating business segmentsiieen designated as our reporting
units and include Advanced Engineered Materialgtate Products, Nutrinova, Emulsions, Celanese P¥#&ormance Polymers (formerly £
Plastics) and Acetyl Intermediates businesses. $§ess the recoverability of the carrying valuewfgoodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets annually during the third quasfesur fiscal year using June 30 balances or wiemevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset nwybe fully recoverable. Recoverability of goodwaihd other indefinite-lived intangible
assets is measured using a discounted cash flowlrimmbrporating discount rates commensurate wighrisks involved for each reporting

unit. Use of a discounted cash flow model is comm@ttice in impairment testing in the absencevailable transactional market evidence to
determine the fair value.

The key assumptions used in the discounted cashvidduation model include discount rates, growtiesacash flow projections and terminal
value rates. Discount rates, growth rates and ftashprojections are the most sensitive and suslolepio change as they require significant
management judgment. Discount rates are deternbipeding a weighted average cost of capital (“WALThe WACC considers market and
industry data as well as company-specific riskdexcfor each reporting unit in determining the ayppiate discount rate to be used. The
discount rate utilized for each reporting unitridicative of the return an investor would expeateceive for investing in such a business.
Operational management, considering industry angpemy-specific historical and projected data, depelgrowth rates and cash flow
projections for each reporting unit. Terminal vatate determination follows common methodology aptaring the present value of perpetual
cash flow estimates beyond the last projected gexgsuming a constant WACC and low long-term graatés. If the calculated fair value is
less than the current carrying value, impairmerthefreporting unit may exist. If the recoverapitiést indicates potential impairment, we
calculate an implied fair value of goodwill for theporting unit. The implied fair value of goodwisl determined in a manner similar to how
goodwill is calculated in a business combinatidthé implied fair value of goodwill exceeds therging value of goodwill assigned to the
reporting unit, there is no impairment. If the garg value of goodwill assigned to a reporting wniteeds the implied fair value of the
goodwill, an impairment charge is recorded to waidevn the carrying value. An impairment loss carsateed the carrying value of goodwill
assigned to a reporting unit but may indicate dgettang-lived and amortizable intangible asset®aisdéed with the reporting unit may require
additional impairment testing.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible assétizing the relief from royalty method to deteima the estimated fair value for each
indefinite-lived intangible asset. The relief fraoyalty method estimates the Company's theoretigadlty savings from ownership of the
intangible asset. Key assumptions used in this fiodiide discount rates, royalty rates, growtlkesasales projections and terminal value
rates. Discount rates, royalty rates, growth ratebsales projections are the assumptions mostigsered susceptible to change as they
require significant management judgment. Discoates used are similar to the rates estimated bWHREC considering any differences in
company-specific risk factors. Royalty rates are
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established by management and are periodicallytautisted by third-party valuation consultants. @pienal management, considering
industry and company-specific historical and prtgdadata, develops growth rates and sales profecéesociated with each indefinite-lived
intangible asset. Terminal value rate determinatdiows common methodology of capturing the presetue of perpetual sales estimates
beyond the last projected period assuming a con®{&CC and low long-term growth rates.

For all significant goodwill and indefinite-livedtangible assets, the estimated fair value of siseteexceeded the carrying value of the asset b
a substantial margin at the date of the most reoguaiirment test.

Recoverability of Lor-Lived and Amortizable Intangible Assets

We assess the recoverability of long-lived and dizale intangible assets whenever events or cistamnces indicate that the carrying value of
the asset may not be recoverable. Examples ofregehia events or circumstances include, but ardiméed to, a decrease in the market price
of the asset, a history of cash flow losses reltddtie use of the asset or a significant advena@age in the extent or manner in which an asset
is being used. To assess the recoverability of-lawggl and amortizable intangible assets we compi@earrying amount of the asset or group
of assets to the future net undiscounted cash feoypected to be generated by the asset or assgt. drong-lived and amortizable intangible
assets are tested for recognition and measurerhantimpairment loss at the lowest level for whidéntifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdities. If such assets are considered impaitieel jmpairment recognized is measured a
amount by which the carrying amount of the asse¢eds the fair value of the asset.

The development of future net undiscounted cash fimjections require management projections rdlegesales and profitability trends and
the remaining useful life of the asset. Projectiohsales and profitability trends are the assuomstimost sensitive and susceptible to change a
they require significant management judgment. Tipeegections are consistent with projections wetosmanage our operations internally.
When impairment is indicated, a discounted cask flaluation model similar to that used to valuedwitl at the reporting unit level,
incorporating discount rates commensurate withsresdsociated with each asset, is used to deteth@rfair value of the asset to measure
potential impairment. We believe the assumptioresiuse reflective of what a market participant widuhve used in calculating fair value.

Valuation methodologies utilized to evaluate goddarnd indefinite-lived intangible, amortizable amgible and long-lived assets for
impairment were consistent with prior periods. Végiqdically engage third-party valuation consulaiot assist us with this process. Specific
assumptions discussed above are updated at thefdzdeh test to consider current industry and @mggspecific risk factors from the
perspective of a market participant. The curresifess environment is subject to evolving marketdmns and requires significant
management judgment to interpret the potential chmathe Company's assumptions. To the extentctieatges in the current business
environment result in adjusted management projestiompairment losses may occur in future periods.

¢ Income Taxes

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowancedgéded based on historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, applicable taxipiag strategies, and the expected timing of tensals of existing temporary differences. A
valuation allowance is provided when it is morelikthan not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. In forming
our judgment regarding the recoverability of defdrtax assets related to deductible temporaryrdiffees and tax attribute carryforwards, we
give weight to positive and negative evidence basethe extent to which the forms of evidence cawoljectively verified. We attach the m
weight to historical earnings due to its verifiahkgure. Weight is attached to tax planning stiatei the strategies are prudent and feasible
and implementable without significant obstaclessd weight is attached to forecasted future earrdngsto its subjective nature, and expected
timing of reversal of taxable temporary differentegiven little weight unless the reversal of talesand deductible temporary differences
coincide. Valuation allowances have been estaldighignarily on net operating loss carryforwards attter deferred tax assets in the US,
Netherlands, Luxembourg, France, Spain, ChinaUttieed Kingdom and Canada. We have appropriatélgated increases and decrease

our valuation allowance based on the overall weijlositive versus negative evidence on a jurtgatichy jurisdiction basis. In 2009, based
on cumulative profitability, the Company concludedt the US valuation allowance should be reveeseapt for a portion related to certain
federal and state net operating loss carryforwtrdsare not likely to be realized.

We record accruals for income taxes and associatest that may become payable in future yeaesrasult of audits by tax authorities. We
recognize tax benefits when it is more likely thmt (likelihood of greater than 50%), based on méxdl merits, that the position will be
sustained upon examination. Tax positions that ieetmore-likely-than-not threshold are measureédgua probability weighted approach as
the largest amount of tax benefit that is gredtant50% likely of being
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realized upon settlement. Whether the more-likebntnot recognition threshold is met for a tax posiis a matter of judgment based on the
individual facts and circumstances of that posigealuated in light of all available evidence.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets and ¢glsegnition and measurement of uncertain tax postaye subject to various assumptions and
management judgment. If actual results differ fibim estimates made by management in establishingaimtaining valuation allowances
against deferred tax assets, the resulting chantjeivaluation allowance would generally impachaas or Other comprehensive income
depending on the nature of the respective deféaedsset. In addition, the positions taken withered to tax contingencies may be subject to
audit and review by tax authorities which may resufuture taxes, interest and penalties.

*  Benefit Obligations

We have pension and other postretirement beneaiitsptovering substantially all employees who mbgibdity requirements. With respect to
its US qualified defined benefit pension plan, miom funding requirements are determined by theiBer&otection Act of 2006. Various
assumptions are used in the calculation of theasietvaluation of the employee benefit plans. Eh@ssumptions include the discount rate,
compensation levels, expected long-term ratestofimen plan assets and trends in health care.dostsldition to the above mentioned
assumptions, actuarial consultants use factors asigfithdrawal and mortality rates to estimateptegected benefit obligation. The actuarial
assumptions used may differ materially from acteaults due to changing market and economic camditihigher or lower withdrawal rates
longer or shorter life spans of participants. Thaifferences may result in a significant impacthie amount of net periodic benefit cost
recorded in future periods.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated finhstaiements related to pension and other postneéint benefits are determined on an
actuarial basis. A significant assumption useddtednining our net periodic benefit cost is theeotpd long-term rate of return on plan assets.
As of December 31, 2011 , we assumed an expeabgdtéosm rate of return on plan assets of 8.5%HerdS defined benefit pension plans,
which represent approximately 82% and 86% of oung@ue of pension plan assets and projected Hestdfgation, respectively. On average,
the actual return on the US qualified defined pemgilans' assets over the long-term (20 yearsgxeseded 8.5%.

We estimate a 25 basis point decline in the expldoteg-term rate of return for the US qualifiedidefl benefit pension plan to increase net
periodic benefit cost by an estimated $5 millior2012. Another estimate that affects our pensiahather postretirement net periodic benefit
cost is the discount rate used in the annual defuauations of pension and other postretirentemtefit plan obligations. At the end of each
year, we determine the appropriate discount rateqg to determine the present value of future das¥sfcurrently expected to be requirec
settle the pension and other postretirement beolgligations. The discount rate is generally basethe yield on high-quality corporate fixed-
income securities. As of December 31, 2011 , weedesed the discount rate to 4.6% from 5.30%6f December 31, 2010 for the US plans.
estimate that a 50 basis point decline in our distoate will increase our annual net periodic lii¢gests by an estimated $8 million, and
increase our benefit obligations by approximatalyGmillion for our US pension plans. In addititime same basis point decline in our
discount rate will also increase our annual neipp@s benefit costs and benefit obligations by s $1 million and $9 million respectively,
for our US postretirement medical plans. We estintlaat a 50 basis point decline in the discour fat the nornlJS pension and postretirem
medical plans will increase pension and other ptistment annual net periodic benefit costs by exiprately $1 million and less than

$1 million, respectively, and will increase our béhobligations by approximately $35 million and fillion, respectively.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medical life insurance benefits to retirees who me@irmim age and service requirements. The
key determinants of the accumulated postretirerbentfit obligation (“APBO”) are the discount ratedethe healthcare cost trend rate. The
healthcare cost trend rate has a significant effec¢he reported amounts of APBO and related expdfer example, increasing or decreasing
the healthcare cost trend rate by one percentageipeach year would result in the APBO as of &aber 31, 2011 increasing by
approximately $5 million and decreasing by $4 roiilirespectively. Additionally, increasing or dexsimg the healthcare cost trend rate by one
percentage point in each year would result in ®iEL2postretirement benefit cost changing by leas 81 million.

Pension assumptions are reviewed annually on agpldrcountry-specific basis by third-party actusidad senior management. Such
assumptions are adjusted as appropriate to reffestges in market rates and outlook. We deterrhiméong-term expected rate of return on
plan assets by considering the current target afleention, as well as the historical and expectdes of return on various asset categories in
which the plans are invested. A single ldegn expected rate of return on plan assets is¢akenlated for each plan as the weighted averé
the target asset allocation and the long-term drpeaate of return assumptions for each asset agtegthin each plan.
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Differences between actual rates of return of plssets and the long-term expected rate of retuplaznassets are generally not recognized in
net periodic benefit cost in the year that theaddhce occurs. These differences are deferredrandiaed into net periodic benefit cost over
the average remaining future service of employ@ésapply the long-term expected rate of returnlan pssets to a market-related value of
plan assets to stabilize variability in the plaredsalues.

* Accounting for Commitments and Contingenci

We are subject to a number of legal proceedingsués, claims, and investigations, incidentalhe hormal conduct of our business, relating
to and including product liability, patent and illeetual property, commercial, contract, antitryssist waste disposal practices, release of
chemicals into the environment and employment ngttehich are handled and defended in the ordinanyse of business. We routinely
assess the likelihood of any adverse judgmentsimomes to these matters as well as ranges of iplobad reasonably estimable losses.
Reasonable estimates involve judgments made bifterscansidering a broad range of information inlihg: notifications, demands,
settlements which have been received from a regylauthority or private party, estimates perforrbgdndependent consultants and outside
counsel, available facts, identification of othetgmtially responsible parties and their abilityctmtribute, as well as prior experience. With
respect to environmental remediation liabilitiessiour policy to accrue through fifteen yearsless we have government orders or other
agreements that extend beyond fifteen years. Amdtation of the amount of loss contingency reqiiiéany, is assessed in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acoting Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) Topic 48Dontingenciesand recorded if
probable and estimable after careful analysis ofi @adividual matter. The required reserves maygkan the future due to new developments
in each matter and as additional information becawailable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated fimhstatements included in this Annual Report omi@0-K for a discussion of recent
accounting pronouncements.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Market Risks

Our financial market risk consists principally ofp@sure to currency exchange rates, interest emt@£ommodity prices. Exchange rate and
interest rate risks are managed with a varietgdfniques, including use of derivatives. We havglace policies of hedging against change
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contynuittes as described below. Contracts to hedgesxes are primarily accounted for ur
FASB ASC Topic 815Derivatives and HedginfFASB ASC Topic 815").

See Note 21 to the accompanying consolidated finhstatements for further discussion of our marisit management and the related impact
on our financial position and results of operations

Interest Rate Risk Managemel

We use interest rate swap agreements to managmenest rate risk of our total debt portfolio amethted overall cost of borrowing. To reduce
the interest rate risk inherent in our variable fadrrowings, we utilize interest rate swap agregs® convert a portion of our variable rate
borrowings to a fixed rate obligation. These ins¢rate swap agreements are designated as cashdtiyes.

Our US-dollar interest rate swap derivative arrangets are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
80C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2012 4.92%
40C January 2, 2008 January 2, 2012 4.32%
20C April 2, 2009 January 2, 2012 1.92%
1,10( January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%

@ Fixes the LIBOR portion of the Company’s WisHar denominated variable rate borrowings (N@g

61




As of December 31, 2010

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
10C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2011 4.92%
80C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2012 4.92%
40C January 2, 2008 January 2, 2012 4.3%%
20C April 2, 2009 January 2, 2012 1.92%
1,10 January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%

@ Fixes the LIBOR portion of the Company’s WisHar denominated variable rate borrowings (N@g

Our Euro interest rate swap derivative arrangemangss follows:

As of December 31, 2010
Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®

(In € millions)

15C April 2, 2007 April 2, 2011 4.0%

@ Fixes the EURIBOR portion of the Compas¥uro denominated variable rate borrowings (N8

As of December 31, 2011 , we had $1.1 billion ,¥&iillion and CNY1.0 billion of variable rate dedmd outstanding interest rate swap
agreements with notional values of $1.1 billiont tepire January 2, 2014, which are accounteddarash flow hedges. These interest rate
swap agreements have the economic effect of modjfifie variable rate obligations into fixed intérmasligations, which leaves $39 million ,
€219 million and CNY1.0 billion of variable rate detubject to interest rate exposure. Accordingly%aincrease in interest rates would
increase annual interest expense by $5 million F€ruary 1, 2012, the Company executed forwandisgginterest rate swaps with a total
notional amount of $500 million which are effectid@nuary 2, 2014 through January 2, 2016.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The primary business objective of this hedging progis to maintain an approximately balanced pwsitn foreign currencies so that excha
gains and losses resulting from exchange rate esamgt of related tax effects, are minimizeds tur policy to minimize currency exposures
and to conduct operations either within functiotiairencies or using the protection of hedge strased\ccordingly, we enter into foreign
currency forwards and swaps to minimize our expasoiforeign currency fluctuations. From time toéiwe may also hedge our currency
exposure related to forecasted transactions. Fdre@mtracts are not designated as hedges under A&E&BTopic 815.
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The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure reletédhort) long foreign exchange forward
contracts outstanding by currency. All of the cants included in the table below will have approiety offsetting effects from actual
underlying payables, receivables, intercompanydaarother assets or liabilities subject to foreggnhange remeasurement.

2012 Maturity
(In $ millions)

Currency

Euro (34%)
British pound sterling (10
Chinese renminbi (84)
Mexican peso 19
Singapore dollar 43
Canadian dollar 42
Japanese yen 1
Brazilian real (17)
Swedish krona 5
Other 5

Total (33€)

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiegvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier than the US dollar. Fluctuations in
the value of these currencies against the US dodlarhave a direct and material impact on the legsiand financial results. For example, a
decline in the value of the Euro versus the USadalsults in a decline in the US dollar value of sales and earnings denominated in Euros
due to translation effects. Likewise, an increasthé value of the Euro versus the US dollar woeklilt in an opposite effect.

Commodity Risk Management

We have exposure to the prices of commodities impoacurement of certain raw materials. We manageegposure to commodity risk
primarily through the use of long-term supply agneats, multi-year purchasing and sales agreemadtfoaward purchase agreements. We
regularly assess our practice of purchasing aqrodf our commaodity requirements under forward pase agreements and other raw material
hedging instruments in accordance with changesarrket conditions. Forward purchases and swap adstfar raw materials are principally
settled through actual delivery of the physical coodity. For qualifying contracts, we have electe@pply the normal purchases and normal
sales exception of FASB ASC Topic 815 based ormptbbability at the inception and throughout thertef the contract that we would not
settle net and the transaction would settle by ighyslelivery of the commodity. As such, realizeddrng and losses on these contracts are
included in the cost of the commodity upon thelsetént of the contract.

In addition, we occasionally enter into financiatigatives to hedge a component of a raw materiahergy source. Typically, these types of
transactions do not qualify for hedge accountingese instruments are marked to market at eachtiegp@eriod and gains (losses) are
included in Cost of sales in the accompanying clidaied statements of operations. We recognizegamo or loss from these types of contr.
during the years ended December 31, 2011 , 201@@0@ . As of December 31, 2011 , we did not haweapen financial derivative contracts
for commodities.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and suppléangedata are included item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduoiléisis

Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Quarterly Financial Information

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales

Gross profit

Other (charges) gains, net
Operating profit (loss)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax

Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations

Net earnings (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share — basic
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted

Net sales

Gross profit

Other (charges) gains, net
Operating profit (loss)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax

Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations

Net earnings (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share — basic
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted

Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data)
1,58¢ 1,752 1,807 1,61«
351 41C 401 272
3 (18) @ (24) @ (9) @

18¢ 20¢ 19¢€ 97

18C 28C 201 94

13¢€ 20E 167 96

4 (2 — 1)

14z 20z 167 95

0.91 1.3C 1.07 0.61

0.9C 1.2¢ 1.0¢ 0.6(

Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data)

1,38¢ 1,515 1,50¢ 1,507
21¢€ 30z 34¢€ 313

77 @ (6) 36 © 1

(14) 15€ 221 14C

@) 224 191 13C

13 163 147 102
1 3 (2 (45)

14 16C 14¢E 58

0.07 1.0Z 0.9z 0.37

0.07 1.01 0.92 0.3¢

@ Includes $16 million in costs and $4 million of eloyee termination benefits related to the relocatibthe Company's Ticona
Kelsterbach, Germany operations to Frankfurt Hoelttustrial Park, Germany.
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@ Includes $14 million in costs and $1 million of eloyee termination benefits related to the relogatibthe Company's Ticona
Kelsterbach, Germany operations to Frankfurt Hoeletthustrial Park, Germany, and a $7 million unfeaalde settlement in a resolution of
a commercial dispute.

® Includes $4 million in costs and $3 million of emypée termination benefits related to the relocatibthe Company's Ticona Kelsterbach,
Germany operations to Frankfurt Hoechst Induskek, Germany.

@ Includes $72 million in long-lived asset impairmésgses. The long-lived asset impairment losseasseciated with the proposed closure
of the Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom acetate petida facility.

® Includes $18 million in net insurance recoverie$2& million reduction in plumbing legal reservasd a $15 million favorable settlement
in a resolution of a commercial dispute, partialfiset by $16 million of employee termination costated to the closures of the Pardies,
France and Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom plardtioos.

For a discussion of material events affecting penénce in each quarter, séem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis o&Raial
Condition and Results of Operationall amounts in the table above have been retiealgtadjusted for the effects of discontinued apiens.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including the Chief Executive €@ifiand Chief Financial Officer, we he
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otmtind procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Ruwdelb8b) as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report. Based on that ev@minagas of December 31, 2011 , the Chief Execubfficer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that our disclosure controls andgutores are effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended December 31, 2(idre twere no changes in our internal control owvemitial reporting that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal controls over finaheporting for the Company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process toyide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabflibur financial reporting for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principtasegally accepted in the United States of Ametiti@rnal control over financial reporting
includes maintaining records that in reasonableaidatcurately and fairly reflect our transactiopsyviding reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary for prepaditour consolidated financial statements; pdowg reasonable assurance that receipts and
expenditures of company assets are made in acamddth management authorization; and providingoeable assurance that unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of company ass$eisdould have a material effect on our consold#iteancial statements would be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. Because of its giitdimitations, internal control over financiapating is not intended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our consolidataddial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effeatise of our internal control over financial repagtbased on the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Fram ework issued by the Cottemiof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwamn@gsion. Based on this
evaluation, management concluded that the Compamgmal control over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2011 . The
Company's independent registered public accoufiitimy KPMG LLP, has issued an audit report on tffeaiveness of the Company's inter
control over financial reporting. Their report foNs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited Celanese Corporation and subsidigthe “Company”) internal control over financieporting as of December 31, 2011 ,
based on criteria establishediiiernal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatodribe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offiateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying report of management on
internal control over financial reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigiternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coragvar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aaldi@ng the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaWe believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Celanese Corporation and subsieamaintained, in all material respects, effedtivernal control over financial reporting as
December 31, 2011 , based on criteria establighbdearnal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Celanese Corporation and sutisgés of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , and thtetetonsolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), equity,cash flows for each of the years in the threeg-pedod ended December 31, 2011 , and
our report dated February 10, 2012 expressed awmalifigd opinion on those consolidated financiatsments.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 10, 2012
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governe

The information required by this Item 10 is incorged herein by reference from the sections captid®roposal 1: Election of Directors,”
“Corporate Governance” and “Stock Ownership Infaiiora- Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportdgmpliance” of the Company’s
definitive proxy statement for the 2012 annual rmgeof stockholders to be filed with the Securittgsl Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adi9#¥4, as amended (the “2012 Proxy Statement"rinétion about executive officers of
the Company is contained in Part | of this AnnuapBt.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incaigted herein by reference from the sections captid@ompensation Discussion and
Analysis,” “Risk Assessment of Compensation Prastit“Compensation Tables,” “Potential Paymentsrupermination or Change in
Control,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks andidler Participation” and “Compensation Committe@®#€’ of the 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aftanagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to beneficial ownepstequired by this Item 12 is incorporated hergindference from the section captioned
“Stock Ownership Information - Principal Stockhalsland Beneficial Owners” of the 2012 Proxy Stateine

Equity Compensation Plans
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following information is provided as of DecemB&, 2011 with respect to equity compensationglan

Number of Securities

Number of Securities to Remaining Available for
be Weighted Average Future Issuance Under
Issued upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Plans (excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in column (a))
(@) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 3,420,46: @ $ 29.3i 15,781,65 @
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders® 4,319,18! @ § 17.6¢ —
Total 7,739,64: 15,781,65

@ Includes 2,067,520 restricted stock units grantedkuthe Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Inceftlaa (the “2009 Plan”), including
shares that may be issued pursuant to outstandifigrmance-based restricted stock units, assurhimggtrget award is met; actual shares
may vary, depending on actual performance. Upotinggsa share of the Company's Series A CommonkSsoissued for each restricted
stock unit. Column (b) does not take these awargsadaccount because they do not have an exerdgse pr

@ Includes shares available for future issuance utide€elanese Corporation 2009 Employee Stock ReecRlan approved by stockholders
on April 23, 2009 (the “ESPP”). As of December 3Q@11, an aggregate of 14,000,000 shares of ouesSarCommon Stock were
available for future issuance under the ESPP. Moeshhave been offered for purchase under the BSBPDecember 31, 2011.
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®  The shares to be issued under plans not approvetbbkholders relate to either the Celanese Cotipor2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the
“2004 Plan”), which is our former broad-based stomentive plan for executive officers, key emplegeand directors. No further awards
were made pursuant to the 2004 Plan upon stockhafifoval of the 2009 Plan in April 2009. The 2#04n and the 2009 Plan are
described in more detail in Note 19 of the accorgpannotes to the consolidated financial statemehdslitionally, there are 37,176
shares of phantom stock for compensation for dires#trvices deferred by certain of our non-emplajieectors under the 2008 Deferred
Compensation Plan which are not reflected in colg@nEach share of phantom stock representsghéto receive one share of Series A
Common Stock.

@ Includes 126,798 restricted stock units granteceutite 2004 Plan, including shares that may betspursuant to outstanding
performance-based restricted stock units, assuthm¢arget award is met; actual shares may vaperlding on actual performance. Upon
vesting, a share of the Company's Series A ComnmekSs issued for each restricted stock unit. @oiyb) does not take these awards
into account because they do not have an exerdise p

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abatector Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted herein by reference from the section captid@ertain Relationships and Related
Person Transactions” and “Corporate Governance reclir Independence” of the 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorqed herein by reference from the section captiéReoposal 4: Ratification of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm” of the 2012 Br&tatement.

PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statement§.he report of our independent registered publioanting firm and our consolidated financial statatsere listed
below and begin on pa ge 73 of this Annual Reporform 10-K.

Page Number

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjlLo
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AN AN
© 00N IO 01 I~ W

2. Financial Statement Schedules.
The financial statement schedules required byitéis are included as Exhibits to this Annual Report-orm 10-K.
3. Exhibit List.

See Index to Exhibits following our consolidateddficial statements contained in this Annual Repooform 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /sl David N. Weidman
Name: David N. Weidman
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors and €hi

Executive Officer

Date: February 10, 2012
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anuirgpfsSteven M. Sterin

and Christopher W. Jensen, and each of them,Ugsaind lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with fudwer of substitution and resubstitution to
sign in his name, place and stead, in any andaphdities, to do any and all things and executeaadyall instruments that any such attorney-in-
fact may deem necessary or advisable under thaiesiExchange Act of 1934 and any rules, regafetiand requirements of the US
Securities and Exchange Commission in connectidin the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscahyended December 31, 2011 and any
and all amendments hereto, as fully for all inteartd purposes as he might or could do in persahhareby ratifies and confirms all that any
such said attorney-in-fact, acting alone, or hisssitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or causéé¢ done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant in the capacities and on the dates atelit

Signature Title Date

Director, Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ David N. Weidman
David N. Weidman

February 10, 2012

s/ Steven M. Sterin Senior Vice President, Chief Financial

Steven M. Sterin

/sl Christopher W. Jensen

Christopher W. Jensen

/s/ James E. Barlett

James E. Barlett

/s/ David F. Hoffmeister

David F. Hoffmeister

/s/ Martin G. McGuinn

Martin G. McGuinn

Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President, Finance
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director
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February 10, 2012

February 10, 2012

February 10, 2012

February 10, 2012

February 10, 2012




Signature

/s/ Paul H. O’'Neill

Paul H. O’'Neill

/s/ Mark C. Rohr

Mark C. Rohr

/s/ Daniel S. Sanders

Daniel S. Sanders

/sl Farah M. Walters

Farah M. Walters

/s/ John K. Wulff

John K. Wulff
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Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 10, 2012
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February 10, 2012
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjLfor the years ended December 31, 2011, 201QG0®
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Celanese Corporation and subsidighesCompany”) as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated stattsnof operations, comprehensive income (lossjityegnd cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 20hkse consolidated financial statements are tipons#ility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all mategapects, the financial position of Celanese
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 311 20t 2010 , and the results of their operatioktheir cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 201tqgriformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfinigciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of @etber 31, 2011 , based on criteria establishéatémnal Control — Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 10, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of@lmmpany’s internal control over financial reporting

/s KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 10, 2012
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangible assets
Research and development expenses
Other (charges) gains, net
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and gssets
Operating profit (loss)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates
Interest expense
Refinancing expense
Interest income
Dividend income - cost investments
Other income (expense), net
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t
Income tax (provision) benefit
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operzio
Income tax (provision) benefit from discontinueceggions
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrollimigrests
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caitjmr
Cumulative preferred stock dividends
Net earnings (loss) available to common stockhslder
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)
Earnings (loss) per common share - basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss) - basic
Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss) - diluted
Weighted average shares - basic
Weighted average shares - diluted

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialsstatements.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions, except share and per share data)

6,76: 5,91¢ 5,08
(5,329 (4,73%) (4,079
1,43¢ 1,18(¢ 1,00¢
(536) (505) (474
(62 (62) (77)
(96) (70 (70
(48) (46) (13€)
— ©) 2
2 8 42
69C 508 29C
192 16€ 99
(221) (204) (207)
(©) (16) —
3 7 8
8C 73 57
14 7 4
75& 53¢ 251
(149) (112) 24z
60¢€ 42¢ 494
2 (80) 6
_ 2 _
@ 29 @
1 (49 4
607 371 49¢
607 377 49¢
— (©) (10)
607 374 48¢
60¢€ 42¢ 494
1 (49 4
607 371 49¢
3.8¢ 2.7% 3.37
0.01 (0.31) 0.0z
3.8¢ 242 3.4C
3.81 2.6¢ 3.14
0.01 (0.31) 0.0¢
3.82 2.3¢ 3.17
156,204,07 154,564,13 143,688,74
158,947,83 158,372,19 157,115,52
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Net earnings (loss) 607 377 49¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities — ()] 3
Foreign currency translation (27) 37 5
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 27 17 15
Pension and postretirement benefits (180) (63) (97)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (180 (20 (80)
Total comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 427 367 41¢€
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norredlintg interests — — =
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Cela@srporation 421 367 41¢

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiakstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS



As of December 31,

2011 2010

(In $ millions, except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 682 74C
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates (@fedllowance for doubtful accounts - 2011: $9;

2010: $12) 871 827
Non-trade receivables, net 23t 258
Inventories 712 61C
Deferred income taxes 104 92
Marketable securities, at fair value 64 78
Assets held for sale — 9
Other assets 35 59

Total current assets 2,708 2,66¢

Investments in affiliates 824 83¢
Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulatgatetiation - 2011: $1,316; 2010: $1,131) 3,26¢ 3,015
Deferred income taxes 421 44z
Other assets 344 28¢
Goodwill 76C 774
Intangible assets, net 197 252

Total assets 8,51¢ 8,281

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt - third party and affiliates 144 22¢
Trade payables - third party and affiliates 67% 67%
Other liabilities 53¢ 59¢
Deferred income taxes 17 28
Income taxes payable 12 17
Total current liabilities 1,38¢ 1,542
Long-term debt 2,87: 2,99(
Deferred income taxes 92 11€
Uncertain tax positions 182 273
Benefit obligations 1,49: 1,35¢
Other liabilities 1,15: 1,07t

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sharthorized (2011 and 2010: 0 issued and
outstanding) — —

Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,@@0shares authorized (2011: 179,385,1(
issued and 156,463,811 outstanding; 2010: 178,028ssued and 155,759,293 outstandin — —

Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000sbares authorized (2011 and 2010: 0
issued and outstanding) — —

Treasury stock, at cost (2011: 22,921,294 shaf&):22,269,278 shares) (860) (829)
Additional paid-in capital 627 574
Retained earnings 2,42¢ 1,851
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net (850) (67C)
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity 1,341 92¢
Noncontrolling interests — —
Total equity 1,341 92¢
Total liabilities and equity 8,51¢ 8,281

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialsstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Preferred stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Redemption of preferred stock
Balance as of the end of the period
Series A common stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Conversion of preferred stock
Redemption of preferred stock
Stock option exercises
Purchases of treasury stock
Stock awards
Balance as of the end of the period
Treasury stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Purchases of treasury stock, including related fees
Balance as of the end of the period
Additional paid-in capital
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Stock-based compensation, net of tax
Stock option exercises, net of tax
Balance as of the end of the period
Retained earnings
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caijmor
Series A common stock dividends
Preferred stock dividends
Balance as of the end of the period
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance as of the end of the period

Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Divestiture of noncontrolling interests

Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontroliimgrests

Balance as of the end of the period
Total equity

2011 2010 2009

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
(In $ millions, except share data)

— — 9,600,00! — 9,600,00! —
— — (9,600,001) — — —
— — — — 9,600,00! —
155,759,29 — 144,394,06 — 143,505,70 —
— — 12,084,94 — — —
— — 7,431 — — —
842,34. — 800,34 — 806,58 —
(652,016 — (1,667,59) — — —
514,19: — 140,09( — 81,78: —
156,463,81 — 155,759,29 — 144,394,06 —
22,269,27 (829) 20,601,68 (781) 20,601,68 (781)
652,01t 31 1,667,59; (48) — —
22,921,29 (860) 22,269,27 (829) 20,601,68 (781)
574 522 49t
17 19 13
3€ 33 14
627 574 522
1,851 1,50¢ 1,04(
607 377 49¢
(39) (29) (23)
— ©) (1)
2,424 1,851 1,50¢
(670 (660) (580)
(180) (20 (80)
(850) (670C) (66C)
1,341 92¢€ 58¢€
— — 2
— — @
1,341 92¢ 58¢€

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialastatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)
Operating activities

Net earnings (loss) 607 377 49¢
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash provided by operating activities
Other charges (gains), net of amounts used (6) 5) 73
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 311 30C 31¢
Deferred income taxes, net 93 15 (402)
(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and gssets 1 (8 (40)
Refinancing expense 3 16 —
Other, net 56 11 12
Operating cash provided by (used in) discontinysetrations 9 8 2
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates, net (83 (90 (79
Inventories (112 (98) 3C
Other assets 17 9 9
Trade payables - third party and affiliates 22 19 104
Other liabilities (262) (102) 74
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 63€ 452 59¢
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigme (349) (207) (17€)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 8 (46) 9
Proceeds from sale of businesses and assets, net 6 26 171
Deferred proceeds from Ticona Kelsterbach plamtcagion 15¢ — 412
Capital expenditures related to Ticona Kelsterky@eaht relocation (204) (312) (351)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — — 15
Other, net (45) (27) (32)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (441 (560) 31
Financing activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net (16) (16) 9
Proceeds from long-term debt 411 60C —
Repayments of long-term debt (591 (897) (80)
Refinancing costs (8) (29 3
Purchases of treasury stock, including related fees (32) (48) —
Stock option exercises 2C 14 14
Series A common stock dividends (39 (28) (23
Preferred stock dividends — 3 (20
Other, net 4 14 Q)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (259) (38¢) (112
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivalents 2 (18) 63
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (58) (514 57¢
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of period 74C 1,25¢ 67¢
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of period 682 74C 1,254

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialastatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Preseritan
Description of the Compan

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (colleltj the “Company”) is a global technology anda@pky materials company. The Company’
business involves processing chemical raw matesatsh as methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylenknatural products, including wood
pulp, into value-added chemicals, thermoplastigmpelrs and other chemical-based products.

Definitions

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Rep9rtthe term “Celanese&fers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware corporaind not it
subsidiaries. The term “Celanese US” refers tadQbmpany's subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LLCekmWare limited liability company,
and not its subsidiaries.

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements containgdigmAnnual Report were prepared in accordance agttounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAM®T all periods presented. The consolidated fof@rstatements and other financial
information included in this Annual Report, unlegkerwise specified, have been presented to sepashtow the retroactive effects of
discontinued operations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangretinto contracts and agreements relative to bruef topics, including acquisitions,
dispositions, joint ventures, supply agreemenisdpet sales and other arrangements. The Compamaeors to describe those contracts or
agreements that are material to its business,tsesubperations or financial position. The Compamy also describe some arrangements that
are not material but in which the Company belignesstors may have an interest or which may haea loecluded in a Form 8-K filing.
Investors should not assume the Company has dedabcontracts and agreements relative to thepg@ayis business in this Annual Report.

For those consolidated subsidiaries in which them@any's ownership is less than 100% , the outsatgisolders' interests are shown as
noncontrolling interests.

The Company has reclassified certain prior perindwants to conform to the current period’s preséonat
2. Summary of Accounting Policies
» Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with US GAAP for all periodssented and include the accounts of
Company and its majority owned subsidiaries oveictvthe Company exercises control. All significartercompany accounts and transact
have been eliminated in consolidation.

» Estimates and assumptior

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with US GAAP requires managementtake estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liadslitilisclosure of contingent assets and liabildiethe date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenugsnses and allocated charges during the reporérigch Significant estimates pertain to
impairments of goodwill, intangible assets and ptbeg-lived assets, purchase price allocatiorstyueturing costs and other (charges) gains,
net, income taxes, pension and other postretiretramfits, asset retirement obligations, envirortaldiabilities and loss contingencies,
among others. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

» Cash and cash equivalen
All highly liquid investments with original matuid@s of three months or less are considered cashaguts.

79




* Inventories

Inventories, including stores and supplies, areedtat the lower of cost or market. Cost for ineeiets is determined using the first-in, first-out
(“FIFO”) method. Cost includes raw materials, diredor and manufacturing overhead. Cost for stargssupplies is primarily determined by
the average cost method.

* Investments in marketable securitit

The Company classifies its investments in debtemdty securities as “available-for-sale” and répdiose investments at their fair market
values in the consolidated balance sheets as Mdnlectecurities, at fair value. Unrealized gainksses, net of the related tax effect on
available-for-sale securities, are excluded frommieégs and are reported as a component of Accustliather comprehensive income (loss),
net until realized. The cost of securities soldésermined by using the specific identification huoet.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be dti@rtemporary results in a reduction in
carrying amount to fair value. The impairment isugfed to earnings and a new cost basis for theise@uestablished. To determine whether
impairment is other-than-temporary, the Companysimers whether it has the ability and intent tadhtble investment until a market price
recovery and evidence indicating the cost of tivestment is recoverable outweighs evidence todhé&ary. Evidence considered in this
assessment includes the reasons for the impairtenseverity and duration of the impairment, cleasnig value subsequent to year end and
forecasted performance of the investee.

The Company reviews all investments for other-ttemporary impairment at least quarterly or as iattics of impairment exist. Indicators of
impairment include the duration and severity ofdleeline in fair value below carrying value as vesithe intent and ability to hold the
investment to allow for a recovery in the markdteaof the investment. In addition, the Companysiders qualitative factors that include, but
are not limited to: (i) the financial condition abdsiness plans of the investee including its fiearnings potential, (ii) the investee’s credit
rating, and (iii) the current and expected market mdustry conditions in which the investee opesatf a decline in the fair value of an
investment is deemed by management to be othertémporary, the Company writes down the carryingeaf the investment to fair value,
and the amount of the write-down is included ineeanings. Such a determination is dependent ofatite and circumstances relating to each
investment.

* Investments in affiliates

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (*ASC”) Topic 328yvestments - Equity Method and
Joint Venturey("FASB ASC Topic 323"), stipulates that the equitythod should be used to account for investmenésetly an investor has
“the ability to exercise significant influence ovagrerating and financial policies of an investdrit does not exercise control. FASB ASC
Topic 323 generally considers an investor to haeeability to exercise significant influence whéewwns 20% or more of the voting stock of
an investee. FASB ASC Topic 323 lists circumstanoeger which, despite 20% ownership, an investor ntd be able to exercise significant
influence. Certain investments where the Companysogreater than a 20% ownership interest are ateddior under the cost method of
accounting because the Company cannot exerciséicign influence or control. The Company deternditiieat it cannot exercise significant
influence over these entities due to local govemnimevestment in and influence over these entitiggtations on the Company's involvement
in the day-to-day operations and the present iitwloif the entities to provide timely financial ovination prepared in accordance with US
GAAP.

In certain instances, the financial informatiortted Company's equity investees is not availabla tmely basis. Accordingly, the Company
records its proportional share of the investea’siegs or losses on a consistent lag of no mone time quarter .

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events anges in circumstances indicate a loss in
value that is other than a temporary decline. A losvalue of an equity method or cost method imaest which is other than a temporary
decline will be recognized as the difference betwe carrying amount of the investment and itsvaiue.

The Company's estimates of fair value are detemnirgsed on a discounted cash flow model. The Coynpeariodically engages third-party
valuation consultants to assist with this process.
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* Property, plant and equipment, n

Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, hiaery and equipment, including capitalized interaad property under capital lease
agreements, are recorded at cost less accumulepedaiation. The Company records depreciation amattization in its consolidated
statements of operations as either Cost of sal8glling, general and administrative expenses sterdi with the utilization of the underlying
assets. Depreciation is calculated on a straigktiiasis over the following estimated useful ligédepreciable assets:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 30 years
Machinery and equipment 20 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over ten y@dttse remaining life of the respective lease,chbver is shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the estichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair erantenance costs, including costs for
planned maintenance turnarounds, that do not exttendseful life of the asset are charged to egenérs incurred. Fully depreciated assets are
retained in property and depreciation accountd salil or otherwise disposed. In the case of dialspsissets and related depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and the net amountsplegeeds from disposal, are included in earnings.

The Company also leases property, plant and equipumeler operating and capital leases. Rent exgensgerating leases, which may have
escalating rentals or rent holidays over the tefthe lease, is recorded on a straight-line bags the lease term. Amortization of capital lease
assets is included as a component of depreciaxipanse.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatlitheir fair values and depreciated over teetasremaining useful lives or the
Company's policy lives, whichever is shorter.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipmenendwver events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoumtnodsset or asset group may not be recoverablenpairment loss would be assessed when
estimated undiscounted future cash flows from theration and disposition of the asset group aretlean the carrying amount of the asset
group. Asset groups have identifiable cash flond @ largely independent of other asset groupsshtement of an impairment loss is based
on the excess of the carrying amount of the agseipgover its fair value. Fair value is measurddgisiscounted cash flows or independent
appraisals, as appropriate. Impairment lossesamrded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

»  Goodwill and other intangible asse

Customer-related intangible assets and other iittlggwith finite lives are amortized on a straifjhe basis over their estimated useful lives.
The excess of the purchase price over fair valugebfdentifiable assets and liabilities of an aseglibusiness (“goodwill”), trademarks and
trade names and other indefinite-lived intangilsisets are not amortized, but rather tested forimmest, at least annually. The Company tests
for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetpairment during the third quarter of its fiscalay using June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwilaaeporting unit may not be fully recoverable cBeerability is measured at the reporting
unit level based on the provisions of FASB ASC Td@h0,Intangibles - Goodwill and OthdfFASB ASC Topic 350”). Impairment losses are
recorded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

The Company measures recoverability of goodwilldach reporting unit using a discounted cash flawdehincorporating discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved, which is sifesd as a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASQcCT&R0, Fair Value Measurement
(“FASB ASC Topic 820”). The key assumptions usethia discounted cash flow valuation model includealnt rates, growth rates, cash
flow projections and terminal value rates. Discouatés, growth rates and cash flow projectionglaenost sensitive and susceptible to che

as they require significant management judgmenrg. Company periodically engages third-party valuatonsultants to assist with this
process. The valuation consultants assess faie\®iiequally weighting a combination of two mar&pproaches (market multiple analysis and
comparable transaction analysis) and the discourash flow approach.
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If the calculated fair value is less than the aotrirrying value, impairment of the reporting unity exist. When the recoverability test
indicates potential impairment, the Company, arértain circumstances, a third-party valuation attast, will calculate an implied fair value
of goodwill for the reporting unit. The implied faialue of goodwill is determined in a manner samitib how goodwill is calculated in a
business combination. If the implied fair valuegobdwill exceeds the carrying value of goodwilligesd to the reporting unit, there is no
impairment. If the carrying value of goodwill agségl to a reporting unit exceeds the implied falugaf the goodwill, an impairment loss is
recorded to write down the carrying value. An immpaent loss cannot exceed the carrying value of gilbdssigned to a reporting unit but rr
indicate certain long-lived and amortizable intdnhgiassets associated with the reporting unit reguire additional impairment testing.

The Company assesses recoverability of other inilefiived intangible assets at least annually bemever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the indefifiited intangible asset may not be fully recoveealitecoverability is measured by a
comparison of the carrying value of the indefiriteed intangible asset over its fair value. Any egs of the carrying value of the indefinite-
lived intangible asset over its fair value is retiagd as an impairment loss. The Company peridgliealgages thirgbarty valuation consultar

to assist with this process. Impairment lossesererded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible asaétizing the relief from royalty method to deteima the estimated fair value for each
indefinite-lived intangible asset which is classifias a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Td&flc Bhe relief from royalty method
estimates the Company's theoretical royalty savirage ownership of the intangible asset. Key asdionp used in this model include disco
rates, royalty rates, growth rates, sales projestand terminal value rates. Discount rates, rgyales, growth rates and sales projections are
the assumptions most sensitive and susceptibleange as they require significant management judgridéscount rates used are similar to
rates estimated by the weighted-average cost afatdpWACC”) considering any differences in compaspecific risk factors. Royalty rates
are established by management and are periodmaigtantiated by third-party valuation consulta®gerational management, considering
industry and company-specific historical and prtgdadata, develops growth rates and sales profecéssociated with each indefinite-lived
intangible asset. Terminal value rate determinatdiows common methodology of capturing the présetue of perpetual sales estimates
beyond the last projected period assuming a con®{&CC and low long-term growth rates.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finredlintangible assets in the same manner as émepty, plant and equipment as described
above. Impairment losses are recorded primari@tteer (charges) gains, net.

e Financial instruments

The Company manages its exposures to currency rgehates, interest rates and commaodity pricesigira risk management program that
includes the use of derivative financial instrunsefithe Company does not use derivative financ&timents for speculative trading purpo:
The fair value of all derivative instruments isoeed as an asset or liability at the balance dfetet Changes in the fair value of these
instruments are reported in earnings or Accumulatedr comprehensive income (loss), net, depenalindpe use of the derivative and whet
it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment untiergrovisions of FASB ASC Topic 81Bgrivatives and HedginfFASB ASC Topic 815”).

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualifgs cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutztezt comprehensive income (loss), net,
to the extent the hedges are effective, until théeulying transactions are recognized in earnimgshe extent effective, gains and losses on
derivative and non-derivative instruments usedeaighs of the Company's net investment in foreigratmns are recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), net as pahieofdreign currency translation adjustment. Théfémtive portions of cash flow hedges and
hedges of net investment in foreign operationanif, are recognized in earnings immediately. Déreanstruments not designated as hedges
are marked to market at the end of each accoup#ngd with the change in fair value recorded imaws.

e Concentrations of credit risl

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémonpayment by customers and counterparties cidditworthiness of customers and
counterparties is subject to continuing review|uding the use of master netting agreements, wiher€ompany deems appropriate. The
Company minimizes concentrations of credit rislottyh diverse customers across many different imegsand geographies. In addition, cr
risk arising from derivative instruments is notrafgcant because the counterparties to these atisteae primarily major international financial
institutions and, to a lesser extent, major chehtompanies. Where appropriate, the Company hagslfied its selection of counterparties.
Generally, collateral is not required from custosn@nd counterparties and allowances are providespferific risks inherent in receivables.
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* Allowance for doubtful account:

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®for estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make required
payments. The Company believes, based on histggsalts, the likelihood of actual write-offs hagia material impact on financial results is
low. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estidatising factors such as customer credit ratiras, gollection history and general risk
profile. Receivables are charged against the alheedor doubtful accounts when it is probable thatreceivable will not be recovered.

» Deferred financing cost:

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taiakdebt financings and amortizes these costguwsimethod that approximates the effec
interest rate method over the terms of the reldeddd. Upon the extinguishment of the related deog, unamortized capitalized debt financing
costs are immediately expensed.

e Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fiohamical products throughout the world. Accordynghe Company's operations are
subject to various hazards incidental to the pridnof industrial chemicals including the use, dilamg, processing, storage and transportation
of hazardous materials. The Company recognizesdamsd accrues liabilities relating to environmemiatters if available information

indicates that it is probable that a liability Heesen incurred and the amount of loss can be rebgoestimated. Depending on the nature of the
site, the Company accrues through fifteen yeaigssrthe Company has government orders or otheeagmts that extend beyond fifteen
years. If the event of loss is neither probablersasonably estimable, but is reasonably possiteCompany provides appropriate disclos

in the notes to the consolidated financial statamiithe contingency is considered material. Tlin@any estimates environmental liabilities
on a case-by-case basis using the most currenssifitivailable facts, existing technology, prelyesacted laws and regulations and prior
experience in remediation of contaminated sitesoReries of environmental costs from other pariesrecorded as assets when their rece
deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofrdarainated site might include, for example, a ps@vri for one or more of the following
types of costs: site investigation and testingssadeanup costs, costs related to soil and watgiamination resulting from tank ruptures and
post-remediation monitoring costs. These resereasod take into account any claims or recoveriemfinsurance. The measurement of
environmental liabilities is based on the Compapgisodic estimate of what it will cost to perforach of the elements of the remediation
effort. The Company utilizes third parties to assighe management and development of cost essfat its sites. Changes to environmental
regulations or other factors affecting environmeligilities are reflected in the consolidateddirtial statements in the period in which they
occur.

* Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todostingency matters when the costs associateddefédnding these matters can be
reasonably estimated and are probable of occurtith@ther legal fees are expensed as incurred.

* Revenue recognitiol

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofiséss have been transferred to the customer, rgiyat the time of shipment of produc
and provided that four basic criteria are metp@psuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;e{b)edy has occurred or services have been
rendered; (c) the fee is fixed or determinable; @)collectibility is reasonably assured. Shoutdmges in conditions cause the Company to
determine revenue recognition criteria are notfmetertain transactions, revenue recognition wdiddielayed until such time that the
transactions become realizable and fully earnegmiats received in advance of meeting the aboventes recognition criteria are recorded as
deferred revenue. Shipping and handling fees bitletlistomers in a sales transaction are recordiiet sales and shipping and handling costs
incurred are recorded in Cost of sales.

* Research and developme
The costs of research and development are chasgan expense in the period in which they are imcurr
» Insurance loss reserve

The Company has two wholly-owned insurance compa(tiee “Captives”) that are used as a form of isslfirance for liability and workers
compensation risks. The Captives enter into rearsze arrangements to reduce their risk of loss. The
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reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Caphioen their obligations to policyholders. Failukthe reinsurers to honor their obligations
could result in losses to the Captives. The Captexaluate the financial condition of their reireggrand monitor concentrations of credit ris
minimize their exposure to significant losses fragimsurer insolvencies and to establish allowafmeamounts deemed non-collectible.

One of the Captives also insures certain thirdypasks. The liabilities recorded by the Captivekate to the estimated risk of loss, which is
based on management estimates and actuarial valsagind unearned premiums, which represent thpaf the third-party premiums
written applicable to the unexpired terms of théges in-force. Liabilities are recognized for kmo claims when sufficient information has
been developed to indicate involvement of a spepiflicy and the Company can reasonably estimafeltility. In addition, liabilities have
been established to cover additional exposure timlbwown and unasserted claims. Estimates of éidlities are reviewed and updated
regularly. It is possible that actual results cadiffier significantly from the recorded liabilitieRremiums written are recognized as revenue
based on the terms of the policies. Capitalizatibthe Captives is determined by regulatory guitksi

¢ Income taxes

The provision for income taxes has been determiisath the asset and liability approach of accognfiim income taxes. Under this approach,
deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effetteraporary differences between the carrying ammohiassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for indampurposes and net operating loss and tax aradigforwards. The amount of deferred
taxes on these temporary differences is determisetd) the tax rates that are expected to applye@éeriod when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, as applicable, based on t&bes and laws in the respective tax jurisdictioacted as of the balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets favexability and establishes a valuation allowaraseld on historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, applicable taatstries and the expected timing of the reversaéxisting temporary differences. A valuation
allowance is provided when it is more likely thast (likelihood of greater than 50% ) that some jporor all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized.

The Company considers many factors when evaluatinigestimating its tax positions and tax benefitich may require periodic adjustments
and which may not accurately anticipate actual@utes. Tax positions are recognized only whenritase likely than not, based on technical
merits, that the positions will be sustained upxangination. Tax positions that meet the more-likibigin-not threshold are measured using a
probability weighted approach as the largest amofiteax benefit that is greater than 50% likelybefng realized upon settlement. Whether the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is met & tax position is a matter of judgment basetherindividual facts and circumstances of
that position evaluated in light of all availabldence.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiescktatunrecognized tax benefits in Income tax (jsion) benefit in the consolidated
statement of operations.

* Functional and reporting currencie:

For the Company's international operations whegduhctional currency is other than the US dobesets and liabilities are translated using
period-end exchange rates, while the statemenpafadions amounts are translated using the avesadenge rates for the respective period.
Differences arising from the translation of assetd liabilities in comparison with the translatioithe previous periods or from initial
recognition during the period are included as as®p component of Accumulated other compreherisoame (loss), net.

3. Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Stateddpdate (“ASU”) 2011-11Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Gffegt
Assets and LiabilitiesUnder the new requirements, entities must disdbatle gross information and net information abostrimments and
transactions eligible for offset in the statemefrfirancial position and instruments and transargisubject to an agreement similar to a master
netting arrangement. ASU 2011-11 is effective funal periods beginning January 1, 2013, and mteeriods within those annual periods.
The Company expects to comply with the disclosaggirements of this ASU for the quarter ending M&3&, 2013.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011B08;losures about an Employer's Participation iMaltiemployer Plan an amendment to
FASB ASC Subtopic 715-8@ompensation-Retirement Benefits-Multiemployer ®larhe update requires additional disclosures reggrthe
significant multiemployer plans in which an emploparticipates, the level of an employer's partitign including contributions made, and
whether the contributions made represent more $B&uof the total
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contributions made to the plan by all contributergployers. The expanded disclosures also addresm#ncial health of significant
multiemployer plans including the funded status exidtence of funding improvement plans, the eristeof imposed surcharges on
contributions to the plan, as well as the natureroployer commitments to the plan. The Company tdbASU 2011-09 beginning December
15, 2011 and amendments have been applied rettosggdor all prior periods presented.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011F@8ting Goodwill for Impairmentan amendment to FASB ASC Topic 3&@tangibles -
Goodwill and Other The update provides an entity with the optiofirt assess qualitative factors in determining thbeit is more likely tha
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is |#san its carrying amount. After assessing theitpiale factors, if an entity determines that it is
not more likely than not that the fair value ofeporting unit is less than its carrying amountptperforming the two-step impairment test is
unnecessary. If an entity concludes otherwise, thisrrequired to perform the first step of theobatep impairment test as described in FASB
ASC Topic 350. Entities have the option to bypassdualitative assessment for any reporting urédiniy period and proceed directly to
performing the first step of the two-step impairiist as well as resume performing the qualitadisgessment in any subsequent period. The
ASU is effective for the Company for annual aneiith goodwill impairment tests performed for fisgeblrs beginning after December 15,
2011. Early adoption was permitted, including fonaal and interim goodwill impairment tests perfedras of a date before September 15,
2011, if an entity’s financial statements for thestnrecent annual or interim period had not yehlisgued. The Company did not early adopt
the provisions of this ASU; however, the Compamayisual goodwill impairment testing did not resalan impairment charge (Note 10).
Accordingly, the Company does not expect the imp&etopting this ASU to be material to the Compafiipancial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011®&sentation of Comprehensive Incona® amendment to FASB ASC Topic 28@mprehensiv
Income. The update gives companies the option to prekertotal of comprehensive income, the componentebincome, and the
components of other comprehensive income eitharsimgle continuous statement of comprehensiveamecor in separate but consecutive
statements. The amendments in the update do nogetibe items that must be reported in other congmsive income or when an item of
other comprehensive income must be reclassifietttancome. This amendment also required an etatipresent on the face of the financial
statements adjustments for items that are reciaddifom accumulated other comprehensive inconreetoancome, however, in December 2011
the FASB issued ASU 2011-1Referral of the Effective Date for Amendments ®Rhesentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU-05. The update defers the specific requirement tegmeitems that are reclassified
from accumulated other comprehensive income tanceme separately with their respective componehtset income and other
comprehensive income. The Company adopted ASU 261dnd ASU 2011-12 beginning December 15, 201laamehdments have been
applied retrospectively for all prior periods pretssl.

In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB ASU 2011-Bmendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureaneinDisclosure Requirements
in U.S. GAAP and IFRSsan amendment to FASB ASC Topic 82aijr Value MeasurementThe update revises the application of the
valuation premise of highest and best use of aatatb®e application of premiums and discounts &rvalue determination, as well as the
required disclosures for transfers between Lewaid Level 2 fair value measures and the highesbastluse of nonfinancial assets. The
update provides additional disclosures regardingeL8 fair value measurements and clarifies cem#er existing disclosure requirements.
The ASU is effective for the Company for interimdaamnual periods beginning after December 15, 20tié.Company does not expect the
impact of adopting this ASU to have a material effen the Company's consolidated financial statéspdrut the adoption of this ASU may
require additional disclosures.

4. Acquisitions, Dispositions, Ventures and Plant [Bsures
Acquisitions

On February 6, 2011, the Company acquired a busipré®arily consisting of emulsions process tecagglfrom Crown Paints Limited. The
acquired operations are included in the Indus8fécialties segment. Pro forma financial informagance the acquisition date has not been
provided as the acquisition did not have a mat@righct on the Company’s financial information.

The Company allocated the purchase price of thaisitipn to developed technology acquired basedsestimated fair value. The excess of
purchase price over the fair value of the develdpetinology was recorded as goodwill. Developelbrelogy was valued using the relief fr
royalty methodology which is considered a Level @&surement under FASB ASC Topic 820. The reliehfroyalty method estimates the
Company'’s theoretical royalty savings from ownepshii the intangible asset. Key assumptions usélisrmodel include discount rates,
royalty rates, growth rates, sales projectionstandinal value rates, all of which require sigrafi¢ management judgment and, therefore, are
susceptible to change.
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The consideration paid and the amounts of the giltde assets acquired recognized at the acquidiiid® are as follows:

Weighted
Average Life
(In years) (In $ millions)
Cash consideration 8
Intangible assets acquired
Developed technology 4 7
Goodwill 1
Total 8

In May 2010, the Company acquired Zeffitejuid crystal polymer (“LCP”) and Thernpolycyclohexylene-dimethylene terephthalate
(“PCT”) product lines from DuPont Performance Pogys1 The acquisition continues to build upon thenBany’s position as a global supplier
of high performance materials and technology-driapplications. These product lines broaden the @ayip Ticona Engineering Polymers
offerings within its Advanced Engineered Materiségment, enabling the Company to respond to a ligaizacustomer base, especially in the
high growth electrical and electronics applications

In connection with the acquisition, the Company ogtted to purchase certain inventories at a futlate. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company purchased $12 million of inventories ansliafurther commitment to purchase additional mweges pursuant to the acquisition
agreement.

Dispositions

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale gdatgvinyl alcohol (“PVOH”) business to Sekisui CGhieal Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) for a net
cash purchase price of $168 million , resulting igain on disposition of $34 million . The net casinchase price excludes the accounts
receivable and payable retained by the Companytraimeaction includes long-term supply agreemeetwden Sekisui and the Company and
therefore, does not qualify for treatment as aatifoued operation. The PVOH business is includettié Industrial Specialties segment.

Ventures

The Company indirectly owns a 25% interest in itdibhal Methanol Company (“lbn Sina”) affiliate ttugh CTE Petrochemicals Company
(“CTE"), a joint venture with Texas Eastern Arabi@orporation Ltd. (which also indirectly owns 25%lon Sina). The remaining interest in
Ibn Sina is held by Saudi Basic Industries Corporaf*SABIC”). SABIC and CTE entered into the Ibim& joint venture agreement in 1981.
In April 2010, the Company announced that Ibn Suibconstruct a 50,000 ton per year polyacetaldW’) production facility in Saudi

Arabia and that the term of the joint venture agreet was extended until 2032. Ibn Sina’s existiatural gas supply contract expires in 2022.
Upon successful startup of the POM facility, thex@any’s indirect economic interest in Ibn Sina wilkrease from 25% to 32.5&tthough th
Company's indirect ownership interest will remanthianged. SABIC’s economic and ownership interésr@main unchanged. The Ibn Sina
equity method investment is included in the AdvahEegineered Materials segment.

Plant Closures
» Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom

In March 2010, the Company assessed the possibflitpnsolidating its global acetate flake and toanufacturing operations to strengther
Company's competitive position, reduce fixed casid align future production capacities with anttgd industry demand trends. The
assessment was also driven by a global shift idgmbconsumption and included considering the puiipaof closing the Company's acetate
flake and tow manufacturing operations in Sponderpy, United Kingdom. Based on this assessmeatCthmpany concluded that certain
long-lived assets were partially impaired. Accogtin in March 2010, the Company recorded long-liasdet impairment losses of $72 million
(Note 17) to Other (charges) gains, net in the clitsted statements of operations. The SpondomDémited Kingdom operations are
included in the Consumer Specialties segment.

In April 2010, the Company announced the propossgation of operations at the acetate flake andrtanufacturing operations in Spondon,
Derby, United Kingdom and began the consulting pssovith employees and their representatives. rasudt, in August 2010, the Company
announced it would consolidate its global acetad@ufacturing capabilities by closing its acetatdd and tow manufacturing operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom. The Company expecserve its acetate customers under this projpysaptimizing its global production
network, which includes facilities in Lanaken,
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Belgium; Narrows, Virginia; and Ocotlan, Mexico,wsll as the Company's acetate affiliate faciliire€hina. The Company expects the
closure of the acetate flake and tow manufactusperations in Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom tousauring 2012.

The exit costs and plant shutdown costs relatede@losure of the acetate flake and tow manufaxgloperations in Spondon, Derby, United
Kingdom (Note 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefits (4) (15
Asset impairments — (72
Total exit costs recorded to Other (charges) gaies, (4) (87)
Accelerated depreciation @) (6)
Other (©)] —
Total plant shutdown costs (10) (6)

 Pardies, France

In July 2009, the Company completed the consuhagtimcess with the workers council on its “Projeic€losure” and social plan related to the
Company’s Pardies, France facility pursuant to Wihiee Company ceased all manufacturing operatindsaasociated activities in December
2009. The Pardies, France operations are includ#tei Acetyl Intermediates segment.

The exit costs and plant shutdown costs relat¢dedroject of Closure (Note 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefits 4 (6) (60)
Asset impairments — QD (12
Contract termination costs — 3 a7
Reindustrialization costs — 3 —
Other — 1 —
Total exit costs recorded to Other (charges) gaies, (4) (12 (89
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net 1 — —
Inventory write-offs — 4 —
Accelerated depreciation — — 9
Other (4 (8 8
Total plant shutdown costs 3) (12) (17)
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5. Marketable Securities, at Fair Value
The Captives and nonqualified pension trusts heédlable-for-sale securities for capitalization dndding requirements, respectively.
Realized gains (losses) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Realized gain on sale of securities — 8 5
Realized loss on sale of securities — — —
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securities — 8 5

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, groesalined loss and fair values for available-foressgcurities by major security type are as
follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value
(In $ millions)
Mutual funds 64 — — 64
As of December 31, 2011 64 — — 64
US corporate debt securities 1 — — 1
Mutual funds 77 — — 77
As of December 31, 2010 78 — — 78

See Note 22, Fair Value Measurements, for additiofarmation regarding the fair value of the Compa marketable securities.

6. Receivables, Net

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates 88( 83¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts - third party arfiliates 9 (12
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates, net 871 827

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Non-income taxes receivable 82 82
Reinsurance receivables 24 31
Income taxes receivable 66 60
Other 64 81
Allowance for doubtful accounts - other Q) Q)
Non-trade receivables, net 23¢ 25¢
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7. Inventories

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Finished goods 511 44z
Work-in-process 38 31
Raw materials and supplies 168 137
Total 71z 61C

8. Investments in Affiliates

The Company is a party to various transactions wfiitiated companies. Entities in which the Compaias an investment accounted for under
the cost or equity method of accounting are comsitiaffiliates; any transactions or balances witthscompanies are considered affiliate
transactions.

Equity Method

Equity method investments and ownership interegtsusiness segment are as follows:

Ownership Carrying Share of Dividends and
Percentage Value Earnings (Loss) Other Distributions
as of as of Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(In percentages) (In $ millions)
Advanced Engineered Materials
Ibn Sina 25 25 54 53 112 81 51 (111 (84 (41)
Fortron Industries LLC 50 50 87 79 7 5 3 — — —
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd. 50 50 15C 15z 23 2C 14 (22 (20 (20
Polyplastics Co., Ltd. 45 45 202 22¢ 19 37 15 (45) (20 (4)
Una SA® — 50 — 3 — 1 — (3) — —
Other Activities
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39 39 33 27 1C 4 3 3 2 5)
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG 32 32 12t 12¢€ 16 16 15 (16) (18 (249
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27 27 21 22 5 4 5 5) 4 4
Consumer Specialties
Sherbrooke Capital Health and
Wellness, L.P® 10 10 5 5 — — ) — — —
Total 677 69¢ 192 16€ 99 (205) (23¢) (78)

@M The Company divested this investment in March 2011.

@The Company accounts for its ownership intere§tharbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.P. utiteequity method of accounting
because the Company is able to exercise signifinéinence.
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Financial information for Ibn Sina is not providexthe Company on a timely basis and as a rebgltCompany's proportional share is repa
on a one quarter lag. Accordingly, summarized faianinformation of Ibn Sina presented below isoaand for the 12 months ended
September 30 as follows:

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Current assets 35C 22¢€
Noncurrent assets 21C 20z
Current liabilities 162 10¢
Noncurrent liabilities 41 39
2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Revenues 1,204 92: 63C
Gross profit 54¢ 40z 25€
Net income 481 357 222
Cost Method
Cost method investments and ownership interestaibiness segment are as follows:
Dividend
Ownership Carrying Income for the
Percentage as of Value as of Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2009
(In percentages) (In $ millions)
Consumer Specialties
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 30 30 14 14 12 11 1C
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 31 31 97 89 56 51 38
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 30 30 14 14 1C 9 8
Other Activities
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden KG 8 8 6 6 2 2 1
Other 16 16 — — —
Total 147 13¢ 80 73 57

Transactions with Affiliates
Transactions with affiliates are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Purchases 19C 16¢ 143
Sales 1C 8 6
Interest income 1 1 1
Interest expense — — 1
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Balances with affiliates are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables — 3
Non-trade receivables 15 20
Total due from affiliates 15 23
Short-term borrowings 34 48
Trade payables 4 16
Current Other liabilities 8 8
Total due to affiliates 46 72

The Company has agreements with certain affiligitémarily real estate service companies (“InfraSentities”) (Note 15), whereby excess
affiliate cash is lent to and managed by the Companvariable interest rates governed by thoseeagents.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Land 56 57
Land improvements 41 39
Buildings and building improvements 63€ 334
Machinery and equipment 3,47: 2,58¢
Construction in progress 37¢ 1,12¢
Gross asset value 4,58¢ 4,14¢
Accumulated depreciation (2,31¢) (2,132
Total 3,26¢ 3,017

Assets under capital leases, net, included intheuats above are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Buildings 33 23
Machinery and equipment 274 263
Accumulated depreciation (96) (74)
Total 211 21z

Capitalized interest costs and depreciation exparsas follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Capitalized interest 4 2 2
Depreciation expense 232 19t 213

During 2011, 2010 and 2009 , certain long-livecetssvere impaired (Note 4 and Note 17).
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10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill
Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Total
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2009
Goodwill 268 257 35 243 79¢
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Total 262 257 35 24:¢ 79¢
Acquisitions (Note 4) 13 — — — 13
Reallocation of Ibn Sina goodwil? 34 — — (34) —
Exchange rate changes (12) 8 — (18) (37)
As of December 31, 2010
Goodwill 29¢ 24¢ 35 191 774
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Total 29¢ 24¢ 35 191 774
Acquisitions (Note 4) — — 1 — 1
Exchange rate changes (5) 3 @ (6) (15)
As of December 31, 2011
Goodwill 294 24¢ 35 18t 76C
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Total 294 24¢ 35 18t 76C

@ Effective April 2010, the Company moved its investrhin its Ibn Sina affiliate from its Acetyl Inteediates segment to its Advanced
Engineered Materials segment to reflect the chémgfee affiliate's business dynamics and growthaopmities as a result of the future
construction of a POM facility (Note 4).

In connection with the Company's annual goodwilb&inment test performed during the three montheerg@kptember 30, 2011 using June 30
balances, the Company did not record an impairfosstrelated to goodwill as the estimated fair gdhr each of the Company's reporting
units exceeded the carrying value of the underlgisgpts by a substantial margin. No events or @saingcircumstances occurred during the
three months ended December 31, 2011 that wouldatelthat the carrying amount of the assets mapadully recoverable. Accordingly, no
additional impairment analysis was performed duthrag period.
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Intangible Assets, Ne

Customer- Covenants
Trademarks Related Not to
and Trade Intangible Developed Compete
Names Licenses Assets Technology and Other Total

(In $ millions)
Gross Asset Value

As of December 31, 2009 83 29 552 13 12 68¢
Acquisitions 9 — 6 7 11 33
Exchange rate changes 4 1 (32 — — (35)
As of December 31, 2010 88 30 52€ 2C 23 687
Acquisitions (Note 4) — — — 7 — 7
Exchange rate changes 2 2 (23 — Q) ()]
As of December 31, 2011 86 32 51c 27 22 68(

Accumulated Amortization

As of December 31, 2009 (5) (6) (362) (11) (1) (395)
Amortization — ©)] (59 (@)} (©)] (62)
Exchange rate changes — (D) 21 1 — 21
As of December 31, 2010 (5) (20 (395) (11) ()] (435)
Amortization — 3 (52 3 (4) (62
Exchange rate changes — — 14 — — 14
As of December 31, 2011 ®) (23 (439) (29 (18 (482)
Net book value 81 19 8C 13 4 197

Estimated amortization expense for the succeedweditcal years is as follows:

(In $ millions)

2012 48
2013 3C
2014 19
2015 8
2016 5

The Company'’s trademarks and trade names havelefirite life. Accordingly, no amortization experiseecorded on these intangible assets.

In connection with the Company's annual indefitiited intangible assets impairment test performexdngd) the three months ended September
30, 2011 using June 30 balances, the Company dictoord an impairment loss to indefinite-livedaingible assets as the estimated fair value
for each of the Company's indefinite-lived intargibssets exceeded the carrying value of the widgrasset. No events or changes in
circumstances occurred during the three monthscebdeember 31, 2011 that would indicate that theyoay amount of the assets may not be
fully recoverable. Accordingly, no additional impaient analysis was performed during that period.tke year ended December 31, 201He
Company did not renew or extend any intangibletasse
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11. Current Other Liabilities

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Salaries and benefits 101 111
Environmental (Note 15) 25 16
Restructuring (Note 17) 44 57
Insurance 19 27
Asset retirement obligations 22 31
Derivatives (Note 21) 26 69
Current portion of benefit obligations (Note 14) 47 49
Interest 25 29
Sales and use tax/foreign withholding tax payable 16 15
Uncertain tax positions (Note 18) 7C 15
Other 144 177

Total 53¢ 59¢

12. Noncurrent Other Liabilities

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Environmental (Note 15) 71 85
Insurance 64 69
Deferred revenue 40 46
Deferred proceed$ 892 781
Asset retirement obligations 42 46
Derivatives (Note 21) 13 14
Income taxes payable 2 4
Other 29 3C

Total 1,158 1,07¢

@ Primarily relates to proceeds received from thenKiart, Germany Airport as part of a settlementtfee Company to relocate its Kelsterbz
Germany Ticona operations, included in the Advarteegdineered Materials segment, to a new site (RéjeSuch proceeds will be
deferred until the transfer of title to the Frankfiermany Airport. The Company recognized $8ionillof deferred proceeds during the
three months ended June 30, 2011 related to theleted sale of its Pampa, Texas facility includethie Acetyl Intermediates segment.
Plant assets with a net book value of $9 millidatetl to the Company's Pampa, Texas facility weckided in Assets held for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010.
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Changes in asset retirement obligations are amsl|

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Balance at beginning of year 77 67 49
Additions® — — 14
Accretion 3 3 2
Payments (10 (15) (14)
Revisions to cash flow estimat@s 5) 23 15
Exchange rate changes D D 1
Balance at end of year 64 77 67

@ Primarily relates to sites and impaired long-lizdets (Note 17) which management no longer cassiddave an indeterminate life.
@Primarily relates to revisions to the estimated ob$uture plant closures.

Included in the asset retirement obligations ferybars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is $liomahd $10 million , respectively,
related to a business acquired in 2005. The Compasy corresponding receivable of $8 million ideld in noncurrent Other assets and $2
million in Non-trade receivables, net in the coidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 .

Periodically, the Company will conclude a site ander has an indeterminate life based on long-lagskt impairment triggering events and
decisions made by the Company. Accordingly, the Gamy will record asset retirement obligations asged with such sites. To measure the
fair value of the asset retirement obligations,@tmenpany will use the expected present value tectenivhich is classified as a Level 3
measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. The expguesknt value technique uses a set of cash flatseapresent the probabilityeightec
average of all possible cash flows based on thepaogis judgment. The Company uses the followingt®po determine the fair value of the
asset retirement obligations based on the Compargarience with fulfilling obligations of this tgpand the Company's knowledge of market
conditions: a) labor costs; b) allocation of overtheosts; c) profit on labor and overhead costeffért of inflation on estimated costs and
profits; e) risk premium for bearing the uncertgimherent in cash flows, other than inflationtifhe value of money represented by the risk-
free interest rate commensurate with the timinthefassociated cash flows; and g) nonperformaskeelating to the liability which includes
the Company's own credit risk.

The Company has identified but not recognized assieément obligations related to certain of itgséng operating facilities. Examples of
these types of obligations include demolition, deogdssioning, disposal and restoration activitiesgél obligations exist in connection with
retirement of these assets upon closure of thétfasior abandonment of the existing operationswelver, the Company currently plans on
continuing operations at these facilities indeéhjtand therefore a reasonable estimate of fairevennot be determined at this time. In the
event the Company considers plans to abandon seagzerations at these sites, an asset retirerbbgation will be reassessed at that time. If
certain operating facilities were to close, thatell asset retirement obligations could signifilyaatfect the Company's results of operations
and cash flows.

13. Debt

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Short term borrowings and current installmentsoofj-term debt - third party and affiliates

Current installments of long-term debt 38 74
Short-term borrowings, including amounts due tdiafés, weighted average interest rate - 2011%4.3
2010: 3.3% 10€ 154
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As of December 31,
2011 2010

(In $ millions)

Long-term debt
Senior credit facilities

Term B loan facility due 2014 — 50¢
Term C loan facility due 2016 1,38¢ 1,40¢
Senior unsecured notes due 2018, interest rat6a5%o 60C 60C
Senior unsecured notes due 2021, interest rate3@5% 40C —
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgiiest rates ranging from 5.7% to 6.7%, due at uardate:
through 2030 182 181
Obligations under capital leases due at varioussttiirough 2054 24¢ 24t
Other bank obligations, interest rates ranging foi® to 6.7%, due at various dates through 2017 95 121
Subtotal 2,911 3,06¢
Current installments of long-term debt (38) (74)
Total 2,87: 2,99(

Senior Notes

In September 2010 , Celanese US completed anmdfefi$600 million in aggregate principal amoun6d25% senior unsecured notes due
2018 in a private placement conducted pursuantute R44A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amdr{the “Securities Act”). On April 14,
2011, Celanese US issued $600 million aggregateipal amount of 6.625 % senior unsecured notes‘(6.625% Notes”) in exchange for
tendered 6.625% senior unsecured notes issued thedprivate placement in an exchange offer regidtender the Securities Act. The 6.625
% Notes have substantially identical terms as titesnissued under the private placement exceptahsfer restrictions, registration rights and
rights to increased interest in addition to théestanterest rate do not apply to the exchangesndtee 6.625 % Notes are guaranteed on a
senior unsecured basis by Celanese and each dbthestic subsidiaries of Celanese US that guarétstebligations under its senior secured
credit facilities (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”).

The 6.625% Notes were issued under an indentuesl dggptember 24, 2010 (the “Indenture”) among @slatyS, Celanese, the Subsidiary
Guarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assamiaths trustee. Celanese US will pay interest er6t625% Notes on April 15 and October
15 of each year commencing on April 15, 2011 . 81625% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in padngtime on or after October 15, 2014
at the redemption prices specified in the IndentBréor to October 15, 2014 , Celanese US may rademme or all of the 6.625% Notes at a
redemption price of 100% of the principal amoutispaccrued and unpaid interest, if any, to themgation date, plus a “make-whole”
premium as specified in the Indenture. The 6.6258teblare senior unsecured obligations of Celan&sarid rank equally in right of payment
with all other unsubordinated indebtedness of GedarlS.

The Indenture contains covenants, including, btifinoted to, restrictions on the Company’s andsibsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness;
grant liens on assets; merge, consolidate, oassé#ts; pay dividends or make other restricted pagnengage in transactions with affiliate:
engage in other businesses.

On May 6, 2011, Celanese US completed an offerfri#00 million in aggregate principal amount 38% senior unsecured notes @021
(the “ 5.875% Notes”) in a public offering registdrunder the Securities Act. The 5.875% Notes aaeagteed on a senior unsecured basis by
Celanese and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

The 5.875% Notes were issued under an indenture dingt supplemental indenture, each dated M&0&1 (the “First Supplemental
Indenture”) among Celanese US, Celanese, the Sahstduarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, National Asg@n, as trustee. Celanese US will
pay interest on the 5.875% Notes on June 15 andrbleer 15 of each year commencing on December 18, 2Brior to June 15, 2021 ,
Celanese US may redeem some or all of the 5.87584sNah a redemption price of 100% of the princgrabunt, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date, plus akexwhole” premium as specified in the First Supm@atal Indenture. The 5.875% Notes are
senior unsecured obligations of Celanese US aridequally in right of payment with all other unsutfimated indebtedness of Celanese US.
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The First Supplemental Indenture contains covenarthiding, but not limited to, restrictions oret€ompany’s and its subsidiaries’ ability to
incur indebtedness; grant liens on assets; meagsotidate, or sell assets; pay dividends or mékergestricted payments; engage in
transactions with affiliates; or engage in othesibasses.

Senior Credit Facilities

In September 2010 , Celanese US, Celanese, amincefthe domestic subsidiaries of Celanese U&redtinto an amendment agreement (the
“Amendment Agreement”) with the lenders under CetanUS'’s existing senior secured credit facilitiesrder to amend and restate the
corresponding Credit Agreement, dated as of Aprl(7 (as previously amended, the “Existing CrAditeement”, and as amended and
restated by the Amendment Agreement, the “AmendediCAgreement”). Our Amended Credit Agreementsisis of the Term C loan

facility having principal amounts of $1,140 milliaf US dollar-denominated and €204 million of Eglenominated term loans, the Term B
loan facility having principal amounts of $417 nah US dollar-denominated and €69 million of Euendminated term loans, a $600 million
revolving credit facility terminating in 2015 andb228 million credit-linked revolving facility terimating in 2014 .

On May 6, 2011 , Celanese US, through its subs@diaprepaid its outstanding Term B loan facilinder the Amendment Agreement set to
mature in 2014 with an aggregate principal amo@i®d6 million using proceeds from the 5.875% Nated cash on hand.

As a result of the Term B loan payoff by the issteaaf the 5.875% Notes, the Company acceleratedtaation of deferred financing costs of
$3 million which is recorded as Refinancing expeinste consolidated statements of operationsdtitian, the Company recorded deferred
financing costs of $8 million which are being anmat over the term of the 5.875% Notes.

Amortization of deferred financing costs is asdualt:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)

Interest expense 4 7 7

Net deferred financing costs are as follo

As of December 31,
2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Noncurrent Other assets 28 27

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement bearest at a variable interest rate based on LIBfORUS dollars) or EURIBOR (for
Euros), or, for US dollar-denominated loans undetain circumstances, a base rate, in each casephargin. The margin may increase or
decrease 0.25% based on the following:

Estimated Margin

Estimated Estimated Total Net

Margin as of Decreases .25% Increases .25% Leverage Ratio as of
December 31, 201 If the Estimated Total Net Leverage is: December 31, 201
Credit-linked revolving facility 1.5(% not applicable > 2.25:1.0( 1.5¢
Term C 2.7%% <=1.75:1.0¢ > 2.25:1.0( 1.5¢

The margin for borrowings under the revolving ctddcility is currently 2.5% above LIBOR or EURIBQRS applicable, subject to increase or
reduction in certain circumstances based on changee Companys corporate credit ratings. Term loan borrowingdasrthe Amended Cre:
Agreement are subject to amortization at 1% ofitit&l principal amount per annum, payable qudytdn addition, the Company pays
quarterly commitment fees on the unused portiorth®fevolving credit facility and credit-linkedwaving facility of 0.25% and 1.50% per
annum, respectively.
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The Amended Credit Agreement is guaranteed by @staand certain domestic subsidiaries of Celan&sand is secured by a lien on
substantially all assets of Celanese US and suatagtors, subject to certain agreed exceptionfu@ivey for certain real property and certain
shares of foreign subsidiaries), pursuant to thar@tee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of Rp20D07 .

As a condition to borrowing funds or requestingdet of credit be issued under the revolving fagcithe Company’s first lien senior secured
leverage ratio (as calculated as of the last dali@Mmost recent fiscal quarter for which finansi@tements have been delivered under the
revolving facility) cannot exceed the thresholdspscified below. Further, the Company’s first l&mior secured leverage ratio must be
maintained at or below that threshold while any ants are outstanding under the revolving creditifgc

The Company’s first lien senior secured leveragiesand the borrowing capacity under the revolirggit facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Estimate, if Fully Borrowing
Maximum Estimate Drawn Capacity

(In $ millions)
First lien senior secured leverage ratio 3.90 to 1.0( 1.05 to 1.0( 1.49 to 1.0( 60C

The balances available for borrowing are as foltows

As of December
31, 2011

(In $ millions)
Revolving credit facility
Borrowings outstanding —
Letters of credit issued —
Available for borrowing 60C

Credit-linked revolving facility
Letters of credit issued 74
Available for borrowing 154

The Amended Credit Agreement contains covenantading, but not limited to, restrictions on the Quany’s and its subsidiaries’ ability to
incur indebtedness; grant liens on assets; meagsotidate, or sell assets; pay dividends or mékergestricted payments; make investments;
prepay or modify certain indebtedness; engageaimstictions with affiliates; enter into sale-leas&lisansactions or hedge transactions; or
engage in other businesses.

The Amended Credit Agreement also maintains a numifbevents of default, including a cross defaolother debt of Celanese, Celanese US,
or their subsidiaries, including the 6.625% Noted 8.875% Notes, in an aggregate amount equal te than $40 million and the occurrence
of a change of control. Failure to comply with thesvenants, or the occurrence of any other eviedgfault, could result in acceleration of the
borrowings and other financial obligations under #&mended Credit Agreement.

98




Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oygpdebt, including short-term borrowings, aréoflews:

(In $ millions)

2012 144
2013 43
2014 48
2015 45
2016 1,37(
Thereafter 1,367

Total 3,01

The Company is in compliance with all of the cowetsaelated to its debt agreements as of Decenthe2( 1 .
14. Benefit Obligations

Pension obligations Pension obligations are established for beneéij@ple in the form of retirement, disability anahéuing dependent
pensions. The commitments result from participatiodefined contribution and defined benefit plgmdmarily in the US. Benefits are
dependent on years of service and the employeeipasation. Supplemental retirement benefits peaid certain employees are
nonqualified for US tax purposes. Separate truste heen established for some nonqualified plagssiBn costs under the Company's
retirement plans are actuarially determined.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plaN®rth America, Europe and Asia. Independenttsros insurance companies administer
the majority of these plans.

The Company sponsors various defined contributlangin North America, Europe and Asia coveringaiaremployees. Employees may
contribute to these plans and the Company will mé#tese contributions in varying amounts. The Camfsamatching contribution to the
defined contribution plans are based on specifexdgntages of employee contributions.

The Company participates in a multiemployer defibedefit plan in Germany covering certain employ@ég Company's contributions to the
multiemployer defined benefit plan are based ortifipd percentages of employee contributions abrmdt in a works council agreement,
covering all German entity employees. Statutorylaions and the works council agreement requieectintributions to fully fund the pension
plan. The risks of participating in this multiemypds plan are different from single-employer plamshie following aspects:

» Assets contributed to the multiemployer plarobg employer may be used to provide benefits td@meps of other participating
employers.

» If a participating employer stops contributimgthe plan, any underfunding may be borne by theameing participants, especially since
regulations strictly enforce funding requirements.

« If the Company chooses to stop participatinthenmultiemployer plan, the Company may be requiogoly the plan an amount based on
the underfunded status of the plan, referred thasvithdrawal liability.

Based on the 2011 unaudited and 2010 audited mygt@yer defined benefit plan's financial statemgthts plan is at least 100% funded in
2011, 2010 and 2009. The number of employees causrehe Company's multiemployer defined benefinplemained relatively stable year
over year from 2009 to 2011, resulting in minimiahnges to employer contributions. The multiemplglan that the Company patrticipates in
is not considered individually significant. The Cuamy's contributions to the multiemployer plan wess than 5% of the total contributions to
the plan. No other factors would indicate the ptaimdividually significant.

As of January 1, 2012, the multiemployer defineddfié pension plan described above will be clogedaw employees. German entity
employees hired after December 31, 2011 will besced by a newly created multiemployer defined ébation plan. The Company's
contributions to this multiemployer defined contrilon plan will be based on specified percentadgesnployee contributions, similar to the
defined benefit plan, but at a lower rate.
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Contributions to the defined contribution plans amadtiemployer defined benefit pension plans aréolsws:
Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Defined contribution plans 15 14 11
6 6 6

Multiemployer defined benefit plan

Other postretirement obligation<ertain retired employees receive postretiremeatthcare and life insurance benefits under plpnasored
by the Company, which has the right to modify oni@ate these plans at any time. The cost for apers shared between the Company and
the retiree. The cost of providing retiree healthecand life insurance benefits is actuarially iebeed and accrued over the service period of

the active employee group. The Company's polid¢g fsind benefits as claims and premiums are pdié.JS plan was closed to new

participants effective January 1, 2006.
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Summarized information on the Company's pensionpastretirement benefit plans is as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010

(In $ millions)
Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation as of beginning ofiper 3,53¢ 3,34z 282 281
Service cost 28 30 1 1
Interest cost 182 18¢€ 13 15
Participant contributions — — 21 22
Plan amendments 3 — — —
Net actuarial (gain) los$ 274 21C 13 11
Divestitures — — — —
Settlements (D) — — —
Benefits paid (23€) (227) (53 (56)
Federal subsidy on Medicare Part D — — 4 7
Curtailments (D] 3 — —
Exchange rate changes (15) @) — 1
Projected benefit obligation as of end of period 3,761 3,53¢ 281 282
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as of beginning of period 2,46( 2,32¢ — —
Actual return on plan assets 16¢ 30¢ — —
Employer contribution§ 181 52 32 34
Participant contributions — — 21 22
Divestitures — — — —
Settlements — — — —
Benefits paid® (23€) (227) (593 (56)
Exchange rate changes (12 2 — —
Fair value of plan assets as of end of period 2,562 2,46( — —
Funded Status as of end of period (1,199 (1,079 (281) (282
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsluamsist of
Noncurrent Other assets 27 18 — —
Current Other liabilities (22 (22 (25 (27
Benefit obligations (1,209 (1,069 (25€) (255)
Net amount recognized (1,199 (1,079 (281) (282)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelieriscome consist of
Net actuarial (gain) los3 994 72C (35) (50)
Prior service (benefit) cost 7 6 1 1
Net amount recognized 1,001 72€ (34) (49)

@ Primarily relates to change in discount rates.

@ Amount includes $ 1 million and $ 1 million as oé&mber 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively, relat¢let Company's equity method
investments. Amount shown net of tax of $203 milland $93 million as of December 31, 2011 and 20&8pectively, in the
consolidated statements of equity (Note 16).

® Included in pension benefits are contributionsrtd benefit payments from nonqualified trusts relatenonqualified pension plans of $20
million and $20 million as of December 31, 2011 20d0 .
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The percentage of US and international projectecttiteobligation at the end of the period is asdiwk:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
(In percentages)
US plans 86 85 88 89
International plans 14 15 12 11
Total 100 100 100 100

The percentage of US and international fair valiuglan assets at the end of the period is as falow

Pension Benefits
As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In percentages)
US plans 82 82
International plans 18 18
Total 100 100

Pension plans with projected benefit obligationsxoess of plan assets are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Projected benefit obligation 3,54( 3,32(
Fair value of plan assets 2,314 2,22¢
Included in the above table are pension plans adgttumulated benefit obligations in excess of pkaets as follows:
As of December 31,
2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Accumulated benefit obligation 3,46¢ 3,21¢
Fair value of plan assets 2,30( 2,21¢

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmhefit pension plans is as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Accumulated benefit obligation 3,691 3,43¢
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The components of net periodic benefit costs arfelbsvs:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Service cost 28 3C 29 1 1 1
Interest cost 182 18¢€ 19¢ 13 15 17
Expected return on plan assets (202 (297) (207) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost 1 1 — — — —
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss 29 8 1 2 4 (5)
Curtailment (gain) loss 2 4 (@) — — —
Settlement (gain) loss — — — — — —
Special termination benefits — — 2 — — —
Total 36 26 17 12 12 13

Amortization of Accumulated other comprehensiveome (loss), net into net periodic benefit cost@i2is expected to be as follows:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

(In $ millions)

Net actuarial (gain) loss 57 D
Prior service cost 1 —
Total 58 (1)

The Company maintains nonqualified pension plansiéd with nonqualified trusts for certain US empgley as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Marketable securities, at fair value 64 77
Noncurrent Other assets, consisting of insuranogracts 69 70
Current Other liabilities 20 20
Benefit obligations 23t 228

Expense relating to the nonqualified pension plaakided in net periodic benefit cost, excludinturas on the assets held by the nonqualified
pension trusts, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)
Total 16 16 15

Valuation

As part of the valuation process for its defineddf# plans and other postretirement benefits Gbhepany uses a corridor approach to
recognize actuarial gains and losses. The cordgdproach defers all actuarial gains and lossedtiresfrom variances between actual results
and economic estimates or actuarial assumptionsdéfmed benefit pension plans, these unrecogriaéts and losses are amortized when the
net gains and losses exceed 10% of the greatbeaharket-related value of plan assets or the gtexjebenefit obligation at the beginning of
the year. For other postretirement benefits, amatitn occurs when the net gains and losses exd®édf the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation at the beginning of the yeare Hmount in excess of the corridor is amortized tive average remaining service period to
retirement date for active plan participants or régired participants, the average remainingdXpeectancy.

103




The principal weighted-average assumptions usee@termine benefit obligation are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligations

US plans 4.60 5.30 4.30 4.90
International plans 4.70 5.05 4.10 4.95
Combined 4.61 5.26 4.28 491
Rate of compensation increase
US plans 4.00 4.00
International plans 2.63 2.66
Combined 3.58 3.58

The principal weighted-average assumptions use@termine benefit cost are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligations

US plans 5.30 5.90 6.50 4.90 5.50 6.40
International plans 5.05 5.41 5.84 4.95 5.49 6.11
Combined 5.26 5.83 6.41 491 5.50 6.37
Expected return on plan assets
US plans 8.50 8.50 8.50
International plans 6.00 6.07 5.29
Combined 8.06 8.06 7.94
Rate of compensation increase
US plans 4.00 4.00 4.00
International plans 2.66 2.94 3.24
Combined 3.58 3.84 3.90

The expected rate of return is assessed annuallisdrased on long-term relationships among majsetaclasses and the level of incremental
returns that can be earned by the successful inguitation of different active investment managensénattegies. Equity returns are based on
estimates of long-term inflation rate, real rateaitirn, 10-year Treasury bond premium over cashegpuity risk premium. Fixed income
returns are based on maturity, long-term inflati@a| rate of return and credit spreads. The Udifaqachdefined benefit plans' actual return on
assets for the year ended December 31, 2011 wisvesus an expected long-term rate of asset ressumption of 8.5% .

In the US, the rate used to discount pension amer @ostretirement benefit plan liabilities wasdshsn a yield curve developed from market
data of over 300 Aa-grade non-callable bonds aeBéer 31, 2011 . This yield curve has discountrttat vary based on the duration of the
obligations. The estimated future cash flows fer plension and other benefit obligations were mak¢behe corresponding rates on the yield
curve to derive a weighted average discount rate.

The Company determines its discount rates in thre Eane using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond aedi with appropriate adjustments for
the duration of the plan obligations. In other intgional locations, the Company determines itsalist rates based on the yields of high
quality government bonds with a duration approprtatthe duration of the plan obligations.
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On January 1, 2011, the Company's health carerewst assumption for US postretirement medical'plaat periodic benefit cost was 8% for
the first four years , declining 0.5% per year noutimate rate of 5% . On January 1, 2010, the @amg's health care cost trend assumption for
US postretirement medical plan's net periodic benet was 8.5% for the first year declining 0.p% year to an ultimate rate of 5% . On
January 1, 2009, the Company's health care cogt assumption for US postretirement medical plaetgeriodic benefit cost was 9% for the
first year declining 0.5% per year to an ultimatterof 5% .

Assumed health care cost trend rates for US pastmetnt medical plans have a significant effectt@amounts reported for the health care
plans.

The impact of a one percentage point change imssamed health care cost trend is as follows:

Trend Rate Change

Decreases 1% Increases 1%

(In $ millions)
Postretirement obligations 4 5
Service and interest cost — —

Plan Asset:
The investment objective for the plans are to eavar moving twenty-year periods, the logm expected rate of return, net of investment
and transaction costs, to satisfy the benefit alitigns of the plan, while at the same time maimgiisufficient liquidity to pay benefit

obligations and proper expenses, and meet any céisérneeds, in the short- to medium-term.

The weighted average target asset allocationéoCompany's pension plans are as follows (in pésiges):

US Plans 2012
Bonds - domestic to plans 53
Equities - domestic to plans 26
Equities - international to plans 20
Other 1
Total 100
International Plans 2012
Bonds - domestic to plans 75
Equities - domestic to plans 16
Equities - international to plans 5
Other 4
Total 100

The equity and debt securities objectives are ¢wige diversified exposure across the US and Gleqaity markets and to manage the plan's
risks and returns through the use of multiple marmagnd strategies. The fixed income strategysgyded to reduce liability-related interest
rate risk by investing in bonds that match the tionsand credit quality of the plan liabilities. Detives based strategies may be used to
improve the effectiveness of the hedges. Otherstgbénvestments include investments in real estateinsurance contracts.

The Company adopted certain provisions of FASB A®@ic 715-20-50Compensation - Retirement Benefits: Defined BeRéits -

General: Disclosurd“FASB ASC Topic 715-20-50"), on January 1, 2008.9B ASC Topic 715-2®0 requires enhanced disclosures abot
plan assets of a company's defined benefit persidrother postretirement plans intended to profiidencial statement users with a greater
understanding of the inputs and valuation techriqused to measure the fair value of plan assettheneffect of fair value measurements u
significant unobservable inputs on changes in pesets for the period using the framework estaddisinder FASB ASC Topic 820. FASB
ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarclay grioritizes the inputs used to measure fair &althe hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurement). This hierarchy requiregiestto maximize the use of observable inputs aimihnize the use of unobservable input:

a financial instrument uses inputs that fall irfetiént levels of the hierarchy, the instrument Wwél categorized based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value caldida. Valuations for fund investments
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such as common/collective trusts and registeregsimrent companies, which do not have readily détexore fair values, are typically
estimated using a net asset value provided byra plairty as a practical expedient.

The levels of inputs used to measure fair valueaar®llows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices for identicakess or liabilities in active markets accessiblei®/Company

Level 2 - inputs that are observable in the malkeother than those inputs classified as Level 1

Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable in the maikee and significant to the valuation

The Company's defined benefit plan assets are meghatifair value on a recurring basis and inclilgefollowing items:

Cash and Cash Equivalent$ioreign and domestic currencies as well as short securities are valued at cost plus accruedeistiewhich
approximates fair value.

Common/Collective TrustsComposed of various funds whose diversified ptictfic comprised of foreign and domestic equitfésed income
securities, and short term investments. Investmemgtyalued at the net asset value of units helthéplan at year-end.

Corporate stock and government and corporate déf#tued at the closing price reported on the aatiagket in which the individual securit
are traded. Automated quotes are provided by melfigcing services and validated by the plan alisto. These securities are traded on
exchanges as well as in the over the counter market

Registered Investment Compani Composed of various mutual funds and other investraompanies whose diversified portfolio is corage
of foreign and domestic equities, fixed income siies, and short term investments. Investments/ahged at the net asset value of units held
by the plan at year-end.

Mortgage Backed Securitie Fair value is estimated based on valuations obthirom third-party pricing services for identicalcomparable
assets. Mortgage Backed Securities are tradectiowvtér the counter broker/dealer market.

Derivatives: Derivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using discounted cash flow techniques. & teshniques incorporate
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs such as interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates. These margatsrare utilized in the discounted cash
flow calculation considering the instrument's tenational amount, discount rate and credit risgn8icant inputs to the derivative valuation

for interest rate swaps, foreign currency forwadd swaps, and options are observable in the atiiwkets and are classified as Level 2 in the
hierarchy.

Insurance contracts Valued at contributions made, plus earnings, festicipant withdrawals and administrative expensgsch approximate
fair value.
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The fair values of pension plan assets are aswello

December 31, 2011
Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(In $ millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14 — — 14
Common/collective trusts
Equities — 158 — 158
Derivatives
Swaps — 10 — 10
Equity securities
US companies 327 — — 327
International companies 35¢€ — — 35¢€
Fixed Income
Collateralized mortgage obligations — 6 — 6
Corporate debt 1 761 — 762
Treasuries, other debt 36 37¢ — 411
Mortgage backed securities — 44 — 44
Registered investment companies — 282 — 282
Securities lending collateral 63 — — 63
Short-term investments — 18€ — 18¢€
Insurance contracts — 29 — 29
Other 7 10 — 17
Total assets 80¢ 1,85¢ — 2,662
Liabilities
Derivatives
Swaps — 10 — 10
Other — 1 — 1
Obligations under securities lending 63 — — 63
Total liabilities 63 11 — 74
Total net asset§" 748 1,84¢ — 2,58¢

MTotal net assets excludes non-financial plan reteés and payables of $38 million and $64 millisespectively. Non-financial items
include due to/from broker, interest receivabled accrued expenses.
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Common/collective trusts
Loans
Equities
Derivatives
Swaps
Other
Equity securities
US companies
International companies
Fixed Income
Collateralized mortgage obligations
Corporate debt
Treasuries, other debt
Mortgage backed securities
Registered investment companies
Securities lending collateral
Short-term investments
Insurance contracts
Other
Total assets
Liabilities
Derivatives
Swaps
Other
Obligations under securities lending
Total liabilities

Total net asset$”

December 31, 2010

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(In $ millions)
9 — — 9
— — 26 26
— 20C — 20C
— 8 — 8
— 1 — 1
402 — — 402
33t — — 33t
— 21 — 21
2 77¢€ — 78C
33 23€ — 26¢
68 — 68
— 292 — 293
14C — — 14C
— 58 — 58
— 29 — 29
7 9 — 16
92¢ 1,701 26 2,65¢
— 8 — 8
— 1 — 1
14C — — 14C
14C 9 — 14¢
78¢€ 1,692 26 2,50¢

MTotal net assets excludes non-financial plan redgés and payables of $26 million and $72 millisespectively. Non-financial items

include due to/from broker, interest receivabled accrued expenses.
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The Company's Level 3 investment in common/coNectiusts was valued using significant unobservadgats. Inputs to this valuation
include characteristics and quantitative data irgab the asset, investment cost, position sigajdity, current financial condition of the
company and other relevant market data. Levelr3/fdue measurements using significant unobseniaplas are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
As of the beginning of the year 26 19
Unrealized gain (loss) 3 8
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net (29) Q)
As of the end of the year — 26

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compmeive review of each plan's liability
structure. The Company's asset allocation polibased on detailed asset/liability analysis. Ineli@ying investment policy and financial goi
consideration is given to each plan's demograptiiesteturns and risks associated with currentadtednative investment strategies and the
current and projected cash, expense and fundifasrat each plan. Investment policies must alsomgrwith local statutory requirements as
determined by each country. A formal asset/liap#itudy of each plan is undertaken every 3 to $syeawhenever there has been a material
change in plan demographics, benefit structureindihg status and investment market. The Compasytiapted a long-term investment
horizon such that the risk and duration of investitesses are weighed against the loergn potential for appreciation of assets. Althotiggre
cannot be complete assurance that these objegtilld®e realized, it is believed that the likelinbor their realization is reasonably high, be
upon the asset allocation chosen and the histaitdlexpected performance of the asset classeedthly the plans. The intent is for
investments to be broadly diversified across adassses, investment styles, market sectors, inwgtmanagers, developed and emerging
markets and securities in order to moderate pastfalatility and risk. Investments may be in segfaraccounts, commingled trusts, mutual
funds and other pooled asset portfolios provided #il conform to fiduciary standards.

External investment managers are hired to managggreassets. Investment consultants assist watBdreening process for each new
manager hired. Over the long-term, the investmertfgio is expected to earn returns that exceedraposite of market indices that are
weighted to match each plan's target asset altoeatihe portfolio return should also (over the ldagn) meet or exceed the return used for
actuarial calculations in order to meet the futueeds of each plan.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andtaiisement benefits are estimated to be $137 anilind $25 million , respectively, in 2012
Employer contributions to and benefit payments frmonqualified trusts related to nonqualified pengitans are estimated to be $20 million in
2012 . The table below reflects pension benefifeeted to be paid from the plans or from the Comjigaassets. The postretirement benefits
represent the Company's share of the benefit cost.

Postretirement

Benefit
Pension Expected
Benefit Federal
Payments® Payments Subsidy
(In $ millions)
2012 23t 58 6
2013 23Z 59 6
2014 234 60 3
2015 234 61 2
2016 237 60 2
2017-2021 1,22¢ 28¢ 8

M Payments are expected to be made primarily from aésets.
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Other Obligations
Additional benefit obligations are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 26 27
Other 6 8

15. Environmental
General

The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide that impose limitations on tlischarge of pollutants into the air and
water and establish standards for the treatmeargge and disposal of solid and hazardous waskesCbmpany believes that it is in substa
compliance with all applicable environmental lawsl aegulations. The Company is also subject tarretbenvironmental obligations specified
in various contractual agreements arising fromdirestiture of certain businesses by the Compargnerof its predecessor companies.

Environmental expenditures for preventative andediation efforts are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Capital expenditures 30 19 22
Other expenditure® 41 47 56
Total 71 66 78

®Includes expenditures for US Superfund sites afnikon , $2 million and $1 million for the yearsided December 31, 2011 , 2010 and
2009 , respectively.

The total environmental expenditures are expeaedrhain in this range in 2012 and 2013.
The components of environmental remediation resesave as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Demerger obligations (Note 23) 34 36
Divestiture obligations (Note 23) 24 26
Active sites 20 22
US Superfund sites 14 13
Other environmental remediation reserves 4 4
Total 96 101

Remediation

Due to its industrial history and through retaimedtractual and legal obligations, the Companythabligation to remediate specific area:
its own sites as well as on divested, demergeharmr US Superfund sites. In addition, as pathefdemerger agreement between the
Company and Hoechst AG (“Hoechst”), a specifiediparof the responsibility for environmental liatigs from a number of Hoechst
divestitures was transferred to the Company (N8)e Phe Company provides for such obligations wienevent of loss is probable and
reasonably estimable. The Company believes that@maental remediation costs will not have a matadverse effect on the financial
position of the Company, but may have a materiakesk effect on the results of operations or chsbsfin any given period.
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Remediation efforts recorded are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Cost of sales 2 1 9
Selling, general and administrative expenses 6 8 6

The Company did not record any insurance recoveesg 2011or have any receivables for insurance recoveriasegt to these matters as
December 31, 2011 . As of December 31, 2011 an@ 2@Here were receivables of $6 million and $7ianil, respectively, from the former
owner of the Company's Spondon, Derby, United Kimgdicetate flake, tow and film business, which a@ired in 2007, and is included in
the Company's Consumer Specialties segment.

German InfraServ Entities

On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorganizatibthe Hoechst businesses in Germany, real estatice companies (“InfraServ Entities”)
were created to own directly the land and propany to provide various technical and administrasi@esices at each of the manufacturing
locations. The Company owns manufacturing fac#iti¢ the InfraServ location in Frankfurt am Mainddbst, Germany and holds equity
interests in the companies which own and operatéaimer Hoechst sites in Frankfurt am Main-Hoec@sndorf and Knapsack, all of which
are located in Germany.

InfraServ Entities are liable for any residual @mnination and other pollution because they owrrglaé estate on which the individual facilities
operate. In addition, Hoechst, and its legal susmss as the responsible party under German plalvlicis liable to third parties for all
environmental damage that occurred while it wadkthg owner of the plants and real estate (Nofe P8Be contribution agreements entered

in 1997 between Hoechst and the respective opgratimpanies, as part of the divestiture of thesepamies, provide that the operating
companies will indemnify Hoechst, and its legalcassors, against environmental liabilities resglfiom the transferred businesses.
Additionally, the InfraServ Entities have agreedrtdemnify Hoechst, and its legal successors, atjaimy environmental liability arising out of
or in connection with environmental pollution ofyasite.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sahetween the partners, each partner is resperesitdny contamination caused
predominantly by such partner. Any liability, whichnnot be attributed to an InfraServ partner anavhich no third party is responsible, is
required to be borne by the InfraServ partnership.

If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respectngemnification obligations to eliminate residuahtamination, the owners of the remaining
participation in the InfraServ companies have agjtedund such liabilities, subject to a numbelimiitations. To the extent that any liabilities
are not satisfied by either the InfraServ Entitesheir owners, these liabilities are to be bdipéhe Company in accordance with the deme
agreement. However, Hoechst, and its legal successdl reimburse the Company for two-thirds ofyasuch costs. Likewise, in certain
circumstances the Company could be responsiblénéoelimination of residual contamination on sevsitas that were not transferred to
InfraServ companies, in which case Hoechst, anegal successors, must also reimburse the Comfpamyo-thirds of any costs so incurred.
The German InfraServ Entities are owned partigyiyie Company (Note 8), as noted below, and the@ing ownership is held by various
other companies. The Company's ownership intereseavironmental liability participation percentader such liabilities which cannot be
attributed to an InfraServ partner are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Ownership Liability Reserves?

(In percentages) (In $ millions)
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39 10 11
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27 22 1
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG 32 40 71

M Gross reserves maintained by the respective Infrasity.
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US Superfund Sites

In the US, the Company may be subject to substantdéisns brought by US federal or state regulatmggncies or private individuals pursuant
to statutory authority or common law. In particuldre Company has a potential liability under tt& Ebderal Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980amended, and related state laws (collectivebrred to as “Superfundfpr investigatior
and cleanup costs at certain sites. At most oktkées, numerous companies, including the Compamyne of its predecessor companies,
been notified that the Environmental Protection ge state governing bodies or private individualasider such companies to be potentially
responsible parties (“PRP”) under Superfund ornteeldaws. The proceedings relating to these sieefavarious stages. The cleanup process
has not been completed at most sites and the sthtias insurance coverage for some of these pdoge is uncertain. Consequently, the
Company cannot accurately determine its ultimatieility for investigation or cleanup costs at theies.

As events progress at each site for which it has Ibamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as appropriatbility for site cleanup. Such
liabilities include all costs that are probable @ad be reasonably estimated. In establishing tiedsiéties, the Company considers its
shipment of waste to a site, its percentage of teaate shipped to the site, the types of wastedwied, the conclusions of any studies, the
magnitude of any remedial actions that may be seegsind the number and viability of other PRPse®the Company joins with other PRPs
to sign joint defense agreements that settle, arRétigs, each party’s percentage allocation of @igtee site. Although the ultimate liability
may differ from the estimate, the Company routimelyiews the liabilities and revises the estimateappropriate, based on the most current
information available.

One such site is the Lower Passaic River Study Area Company and 70 other companies are parti@day 2007 Administrative Order on
Consent with the US Environmental Protection Agefi&PA”) to perform a Remedial Investigation/Fedl#p Study (“RI/FS”) of the
contamination in the lower 17.8 miles of the rivEnis study is ongoing and may take several moaesy® complete. The Company has also
been named as a third-party defendant along witterti@an 200 other entities in an action initiallplaght by the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection (“NJDEP”) in the Supremau@ of New Jersey against Occidental Chemical @@jon and several other
companies. This suit by NJDEP seeks recovery dfgasfuture clean-up costs, as well as unspeod@shomic damages, punitive damages,
penalties and a variety of other forms of reliesiag from alleged discharges into the Lower PasBarer. In 2007, the EPA issued a draft
study that evaluated alternatives for early remedifion of a portion of the river at an estimatedt of $900 million to $2.3 billion . Several
parties commented on the draft study, and to &®&, has not taken further action. Given that th& BRs not finalized its study and that the
RI/FS is still ongoing, the Company does not baithat remedial costs can be reliably estimatedigtime. The contamination allegedly
released by the Company is likely an insignificaspect of the final remedy, which will likely limtite ultimate contribution from the Compe
to less than approximately 1% to 2% . The Companggorously defending these and all related msitter

16. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

In February 2010, the Company delivered noticdéoholders of its 4.25% Convertible Perpetual é&refl Stock (the “Preferred Stockhat it
was calling for the redemption of all 9,600,000stamding shares of Preferred Stock. Holders oPtieéerred Stock were entitled to convert
each share of Preferred Stock into 1.2600 shdrb&dompany’s Series A Common Stock, par valu@GlL per share (“Common Stock”).
Holders of the Preferred Stock elected to conv&®B276 shares of Preferred Stock into an agtgegfal2,084,9428hares of Common Stoc
The 8,724 shares of Preferred Stock that remainéstanding after such conversions were redeemeldebgompany for 7,437 shares of
Common Stock, in accordance with the terms of tiedePred Stock. In addition to the shares of Comi@turck issued in respect of the shares
of Preferred Stock converted and redeemed, the @oynpaid cash in lieu of fractional shares.

Common Stock

The Company’s Board of Directors follows a polidydeclaring, subject to legally available fundsgjuarterly cash dividend on each share of
the Company’s Series A common stock unless the @ogip Board of Directors, in its sole discretioefemines otherwise. The amount
available to pay cash dividends is restricted lyGompany’s Amended Credit Agreement, the 6.625%Nand the 5.875% Notes.

On April 25, 2011, the Company announced that @garB of Directors approved a 20% increase in the@my’s quarterly Common Stock
cash dividend. The Board of Directors increasedjtreterly dividend rate from $0.05 to $0.06 parstof Common Stock on a quarterly basis
and $0.20 to $0.24 per share of Common Stock aananal basis. The new dividend rate is applicabiitidends payable beginning in
August 2011.
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Treasury Stock

The Company’s Board of Directors authorized theurepase of the Company’s Common Stock as follows:

Date of Board Authorization Authorization Amount
(In $ millions)
February 2008 40C
October 2008 10C
April 2011 12¢
As of December 31, 2011 62¢

The authorization gives management discretion tardgning the timing and conditions under whichrsisamay be repurchased. The share
repurchase activity pursuant to this authorizaisoas follows:

Total From
Year Ended December 31, February 2008 Through
2011 2010 2009 December 31, 2011
Shares repurchased 652,01¢ 1,667,59: — 12,082,80
Average purchase price per share $ 46.9¢ $ 2877 % — 37.7i
Amount spent on repurchased shares (in millions) $ 31 $ 48 $ —  $ 45€

The purchase of treasury stock reduces the nunflstraoes outstanding and the repurchased sharebenaged by the Company for
compensation programs utilizing the Company'’s sttt other corporate purposes. The Company acctarrtteasury stock using the cost
method and includes treasury stock as a compofietbakholders’ equity.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax
Gross (Provision) Net Gross (Provision) Net Gross (Provision) Net
Amount Benefit Amount  Amount Benefit Amount  Amount Benefit Amount

(In $ millions)
Unrealized gain (loss) on

marketable securities — — — — ()] (D) 5) 2 3
Foreign currency translatic (29) 2 (27) 26 11 37 1C 5) 5
Unrealized gain (loss) on

interest rate swaps 37 (20 27 32 (15 17 23 (8) 15
Pension and postretirement

benefits (290 11C (280) (102) 39 (63) (150) 53 (97

Total (282) 10z (280) (44) 34 (10) (222) 42 (80)
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Adjustments to Accumulated other comprehensiverme@oss), net, are as follows:

Accumulated

Unrealized Unrealized Pension and Other
Gain (Loss) on Foreign Gain (Loss) Postretire- Comprehensive
Marketable Currency on Interest ment Income
Securities Translation Rate Swaps Benefits (Loss), Net
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2008 3 (43 (11¢) (424) (580)
Current period change (5) 1C 23 (250 (122)
Income tax (provision) benefit 2 5) (8) 54 42
As of December 31, 2009 — (38) (201) (521) (660)
Current period change — 26 32 (102) (44)
Income tax (provision) benefit (@)} 11 (15 39 34
As of December 31, 2010 @ @ (84) (584) (670)
Current period change — (29 37 (290 (282)
Income tax (provision) benefit — 2 (20 11C 102
As of December 31, 2011 (1) (28) (57) (769 (850)
17. Other (Charges) Gains, Net
Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefits (22 (32 (205)
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (Note 27) 47 (26) (16)
Plumbing actions (Note 23) 6 59 10
Insurance recoveries (Note 28) — 18 6
Asset impairments Q) (74) (19
Plant/office closures — 4) ()]
Commercial disputes 15 13 —
Other 1 — —
Total (48) (46) (13€)
2011

As a result of the Company’s Pardies, France “Rta@éClosure” and the previously announced closifithe Company’s Spondon, Derby,
United Kingdom facility (Note 4), the Company reded $4 million and $4 million , respectively, of ployee termination benefits during the
year endeDecember 31, 2011 . Additionally, during the yeatled December 31, 2011 , the Company recorded Bi8mrof employee
termination benefits related to the relocationhef Company's Ticona Kelsterbach, Germany operatmhsankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park,
Germany (Note 27) and $6 million of employee termtion benefits related to a business optimizatiajegt which is included in the Other
Activities segment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 , the Coynpceived consideration of $17 million in connectwith the settlement of a claim
against a bankrupt supplier. The resolution of teismercial dispute is included in the Acetyl Imiediates segment.

2010

In 2010, the Company concluded that certain lougdiassets were partially impaired at its acetatefand tow manufacturing operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom (Note 4). Accordindhe Company wrote down the related propertyntad equipment to its fair value,
resulting in long-lived asset impairment losse$72 million for the year ended December 31, 20I8e Company calculated the fair value
using a discounted cash flow model incorporatirsgalint rates commensurate with the risks involeedhe reporting unit which is classified
as a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Topic B26.key assumptions used in the discounted cashvidduation model include discou
rates, growth rates, cash
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flow projections and terminal value rates. Discowates, growth rates and cash flow projectiondteanost sensitive and susceptible to che
as they require significant management judgment.

As a result of the announced closure of the Compaetate flake and tow manufacturing operatior&pondon, Derby, United Kingdom
(Note 4), the Company recorded $15 million of emypk termination benefits during the year endedebdser 31, 2010The Spondon, Derb
United Kingdom facility is included in the Consuntecialties segment.

As a result of the Company's Pardies, France “BrojeClosure” (Note 4), the Company recorded eggts of $12 million during the year
ended December 31, 2010 , which primarily consiste®b million in employee termination benefits, ®lllion of long-lived asset impairment
losses, $3 million of contract termination cosid 3 million of reindustrialization costs. Theréas, France facility is included in the Acetyl
Intermediates segment.

As a result of several business optimization pitsjeadertaken by the Company beginning in 2009camdinuing throughout 2010, the
Company recorded $11 million in employee terminatiosts during the year ended December 31, 2010 .

Other charges for the year ended December 31, @8b0ncluded gains of $13 million , net, relatedséttlements in resolution of commercial
disputes. The settlements were recorded in the @ogp Consumer Specialties segment.

2009

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company begfiorts to align production capacity and stafflagels with the Company's view of an
economic environment of prolonged lower demand.tkeryear ended December 31, 2009 , Other changksled employee termination
benefits of $40 million related to this endeavis.a result of the shutdown of the vinyl acetatesnoroer (“VAM”) production unit in
Cangrejera, Mexico, the Company recognized emplégemgination benefits of $1 million and long-livedset impairment losses of $1 million
during the year ended December 31, 2009 . The VAddiyction unit in Cangrejera, Mexico is includedlie Company's Acetyl Intermediates
segment.

As a result of the “Project of Closure” (Note 4thér charges for the Company included exit cost88f million during the year ended
December 31, 2009 , which consisted of $60 milliaremployee termination benefits, $17 million cohtract termination costs and $12
million of long-lived asset impairment losses rethto capitalized costs associated with asseenséint obligations (Note 12). The Pardies,
France facility is included in the Acetyl Intermatlis segment.

Due to continued declines in demand in automotieelectronic sectors during 2009, the Company anced plans to reduce capacity by
ceasing polyester polymer production at its Ticoraufacturing plant in Shelby, North Carolina. Qtblearges for the year ended
December 31, 2009 included employee terminatiorefismof $2 million and long-lived asset impairmémdses of $1 million related to this
event. The Shelby, North Carolina facility is ind&d in the Advanced Engineered Materials segment.
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The changes in the restructuring reserves by bssisegment are as follows:

Employee Termination Benefits
As of December 31, 2009
Additions
Cash payments
Other changes
Exchange rate changes

As of December 31, 2010

Additions

Cash payments

Other changes

Exchange rate changes
As of December 31, 2011

Plant/Office Closures
As of December 31, 2009
Additions
Cash payments
Exchange rate changes
As of December 31, 2010
Additions
Cash payments
Exchange rate changes
As of December 31, 2011

Total
18. Income Taxes

Income Tax Provisior

Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Other Total
(In $ millions)
7 4 3 6C 7 81
2 17 — 6 7 32
(6) (©) (©) (37 (4) (53
— (1) — — — )
— 1) — ©) — (6)
3 16 — 24 1C 54
8 4 — 1 8 21
&) o) — (20) (4) (28)
— — — — (©) (©)
@) — — — — ©)
8 18 — 5 11 42
— — — 17 1 18
— — — 6 — 6
— — — (18) — (18)
— — — &) — &)
— — — 3 1 4
— — — @) — @)
— — — 1 1 2
8 18 — 6 12 44

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befapeliy jurisdiction are as follows:

us
International

Total

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
31C 214 294
44t 324 (43
75¢& 53¢ 251
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The income tax provision (benefit) consists of filleowing:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)

Current
us 24 62 11
International 32 35 14¢
Total 56 97 15¢
Deferred
us 89 16 (4049)
International 4 (1) 2
Total 93 15 (402)
Total 14¢ 112 (24%)

A reconciliation of the significant differences Wween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% anceffective income tax rate on income from
continuing operations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 264 18¢ 88
Change in valuation allowance 7 39 (319
Equity income and dividends (25) (47) (20
(Income) expense not resulting in tax impact (16) 8 4
US tax effect of foreign earnings and dividends 48 28 10
Foreign tax credits (66) (33 —
Other foreign tax rate differentials (62) (17) 2
Legislative changes — (71 71
Tax-deductible interest on foreign equity investtseand other related

items 3 3 (76)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 10 5 6
Other, net ) 3 (10)

Income tax provision (benefit) 14¢ 112 (249)
Effective income tax rate 20% 21% (97)%

Federal and state income taxes have not been piwid accumulated but undistributed earnings of BRlion as of December 31, 2011 as
such earnings have been permanently reinvestérihusiness. The determination of the amount ofitiecognized deferred tax liability
related to the undistributed earnings is not pcatilie. The effective tax rate for 2011 was favorétpacted by increased foreign tax credit
benefits realized in the US and changes in valoatltowances on certain deferred tax assets, panifiset by foreign losses not providing tax
benefits. The effective rate for the year endedebder 31, 2010 was favorably impacted by amendnterté legislation in Mexico.

Prior to 2009, the Company maintained a valuatiowance against its US net deferred tax assetan®2009, the Company concluded that,
due to cumulative profitability, it is more likethan not that it will realize its net US deferraa fassets with the exception of certain state net
operating loss carryforwards. Accordingly, durihg tyear ended December 31, 2009, the Company etardeferred tax benefit of $492
million for the release of the beginning-of-the-y&ES valuation allowance associated with those BiSleferred tax assets expected to be
realized in 2009 and subsequent years.

The Company operates under tax holidays in vargousitries which are effective through December 204@ 2011 , the Company's tax rate
in China is 50% of the statutory rate, or 12.5%elasn the statutory rate of 25% . In Singapore,afrthe Company's entities had a tax holiday
that provided for a 0% tax rate through Octoberl20The Company realized $6 million of tax benefit2011 from tax holidays.
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Deferred Income Taxe

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the carrying am@ohfssets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for incampurposes. Significant components of the codatdid deferred tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

As of December 31,
2011 2010

(In $ millions)

Deferred tax assets

Pension and postretirement obligations 52¢ 35€
Accrued expenses 57 238
Inventory 1 1C
Net operating loss 35¢ 341
Tax credit carryforwards 94 81
Other 15¢ 19:
Subtotal 1,19¢ 1,21¢
Valuation allowancé” (369) (385)
Total 83¢€ 82¢

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 31¢ 328
Investments in affiliates 5C 47
Other 51 68
Total 42C 43¢
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 41€ 391

®Includes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesapily for the Company's deferred tax assets @uls, Luxembourg, France, Spain, Ch
the United Kingdom and Germany, as well as othegifm jurisdictions. These valuation allowanceateprimarily to net operating loss
carryforward benefits and other net deferred taetss all of which may not be realizable.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , the valuatiowance decreased by $22 million consistinga@fan increase of $7 million related to
income tax expense, (b) a decrease of $3 millitated to foreign currency translation adjustmemis @) $26 million of other decreases
related to uncertain tax positions and other anjasts to deferred taxes. The change in valuatiowahce associated with foreign currency
translation adjustments is related to changesfierdsl tax assets for unrealized foreign excharagesgand losses on effective hedges and on
foreign income previously taxed but not yet recdirethe US. The change also relates to foreigreoay translation adjustments for deferred
tax assets recorded in various foreign jurisdictiorhe decrease related to uncertain tax posiiodother adjustments to deferred taxes
includes adjustments to temporary differences ataperating loss carryforwards due to changesigedain tax positions in jurisdictions
where valuation allowances are recorded.

Legislative Change

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the bille@pd the existing asset-based tax and
established a dual income tax system consistiregrefw minimum flat tax (the “IETU”) and the exigiinegular income tax system. The IETU
system taxes companies on cash basis net incom&sting only of certain specified items of reveramel expense, at a rate of 17% and 17.5%
for 2009 and 2010 forward, respectively. In generaimpanies must pay the higher of the income takelETU, although the IETU is not
creditable against future income tax liabilitieheTCompany has determined that it will primarilysobject to the IETU in future periods.
Accordingly, the Company has recorded tax expenesed(fit) of $4 million , $19 million , and $(5) ridn for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 , respectively, for the téeot$ of the IETU system.

In December 2009, Mexico enacted the 2010 MexicanReform Bill (“Tax Reform Bill”) to be effectivdanuary 1, 2010. Under this
legislation, the corporate income tax rate was tmanily increased and the recapture period fornimedax loss carryforwards was accelerated
and effectively required payment of taxes if a i¢weas not obtained through the tax
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consolidation regime. In addition, significant midchitions were made to the rules for income taxesipusly deferred on intercompany
dividends, as well as to income taxes relatedfferginces between consolidated and individual Maxiax earnings and profits. The income
tax impact to the Company of the Tax Reform BilDatcember 31, 2009 was $73 million and was recotodédcome tax (provision) benefit in
the consolidated statements of operations.

During 2010, the Mexican tax authorities issuedddimneous Tax Resolutions (“2010 MTR&)clarify various provisions included in the 1
Reform Bill related to recapture amounts for 200d prior years, including certain aspects of tteapeure rules related to income tax loss
carryforwards, intercompany dividends and diffeesbetween consolidated and individual Mexicaretxings and profits. The application
of the 2010 MTRs resulted in a reduction of $7diorilto the income tax impact of the Tax Reforml Biat was initially recorded by the
Company in 2009.

In December 2010, the President of the United Stsitgned a multi-billion dollar tax package, thex Relief, Unemployment Reauthorization
and Job Creation Act of 2010 (“2010 Tax Relief AcfThe 2010 Tax Relief Act increased 50% bonus el@ption to 100% for qualified
investments made after September 8, 2010 and bédoreary 1, 2012, and also made 50% bonus depoecéatailable for qualified property
placed in service after December 31, 2011 and befanuary 1, 2013. The 2010 Tax Relief Act alswigenl a two-year extension of expired
provisions that were relevant to the Company iniclgdhe research tax credit and look through treatnfior controlled foreign corporations.
The new legislation allowed the Company to accéedaductions of capital improvements resulting ireduction to income taxes payable of
$27 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company has US fedetaperating loss carryforwards of $36 millitvat are subject to limitation. These net
operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in20At December 31, 2011 , the Company also hdd st operating loss carryforwards, net
of federal tax impact, of $36 million , $34 milliai which are offset by a valuation allowance duencertain recoverability. A portion of the
net operating loss carryforwards will begin to egpn 2012 .

The Company also has foreign net operating logyfoawards as of December 31, 2011 of $1 billionlfaxembourg, France, Spain, Canada,
China, the United Kingdom, Germany and other fargigisdictions with various expiration dates. Meerating losses in China have various
carryforward periods and begin expiring in 2011et Nperating losses in most other foreign jurisdict do not have an expiration date. Net
operating losses in Mexico have a ten-year camdod period and began to expire in 2009 . Howethese losses are not available for use
under the new IETU tax regulations in Mexico. Ae tRTU is the primary system upon which the Compaillybe subject to tax in future
periods, a deferred tax asset has not been reflactbe consolidated balance sheets as of Dece®lh@011 for these income tax loss
carryforwards.

Uncertain Tax Positions

FASB ASC Topic 740lncome Taxe§'FASB ASC Topic 740"), clarifies the accounting fimcome taxes by prescribing a minimum
recognition threshold a tax benefit is requiredneet before being recognized in the financial stetets. FASB ASC Topic 740 also provides
guidance on derecognition, measurement, classditanterest and penalties, accounting in intgueniods, disclosure and transition.
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A reconciliation of the amount of uncertain tax ifioss is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)

As of the beginning of the year 244 20¢ 19t
Increases in tax positions for the current year — — 19
Increases in tax positions for prior years 37 85 39
Decreases in tax positions for prior years (54) (48) (38
Decreases due to settlements (16) Q) @)

As of the end of the year 211 244 20¢
Total uncertain tax positions that, if recognizeduld impact the effective tax rate 23C 264 20¢
Total amount of interest and penalties recognineitié consolidated statements of operations (D) 12 7
Total amount of interest and penalties recognineitié consolidated balance sheets 55 56 45

The Company operates in the US (including multgtége jurisdictions), Germany and 40 other forgigisdictions including Canada, China,
France, Mexico and Singapore. Examinations areiaggo a number of those jurisdictions includingyshsignificantly, Germany for the ye
2001 to 2004 and 2005 to 2007 and the US for tlhaesy2009 to 2010. The Company's US federal inc@xeeturns for 2003 and forward are
open for examination under statute. The Compangtsn@n corporate tax returns for 2001 and forwaedogen for examination under statute.
A further change in uncertain tax positions mayunagithin the next twelve months related to theleetent of one or more tax examination:
the lapse of applicable statutes of limitationsctsamounts have been reflected as the currenbpasfiuncertain tax positions (Note 11).

19. Management Compensation Plans
General Plan Description

In April 2009, the Company and our stockholdersraped a global incentive plan which replaces then@any’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
(“2004 SIP”). The 2009 Global Incentive Plan (“20B%") enables the compensation committee of thar8of Directors to award incentive
and nonqualified stock options, stock appreciatights, shares of Series A common stock, restristedk, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and
incentive bonuses (which may be paid in cash aksto a combination thereof), any of which may kef@rmance-based, with vesting and
other award provisions that provide effective irnteento Company employees (including officers), mnanagement directors and other service
providers. Under the 2009 GIP, the Company no lbnga grant RSUs with the right to participate ividends or dividend equivalents.

The maximum number of shares that may be issuedruhd 2009 GIP is equal to 5,350,000 shares(pluany shares of Series A common
stock that remain available for issuance unde@@4 Stock Incentive Plan (“SIP”) (not includingyashares of Series A common stock that
are subject to outstanding awards under the 2084 6any shares of Series A common stock that i8steed pursuant to awards under the
2004 SIP) and (b) any awards under the 2004 staniive plan that remain outstanding that ceasarfg reason to be subject to such awards
(other than by reason of exercise or settlemethi@award to the extent that such award is exetdeeor settled in vested and non-forfeitable
shares).

Total shares available for awards and total shewbgect to outstanding awards are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Shares Available for Shares Subject to
Awards Outstanding Awards
2009 GIP 1,781,65! 3,420,46.
2004 SIP — 4,319,18! @

@ At the Company's discretion under the 2004 SIPCQibimpany had the right to award dividend equivalemt RSU grants which are earned
in accordance with the Company's common stock diuvidpolicy and are reinvested in additional RSUsidend equivalents on these
RSUs are forfeited if vesting conditions are not.me
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Upon the termination of a participant’s employmeith the Company by reason of death or disabilithythe Company without cause (as

defined in the respective award agreements), andawamount equal to (i) the value of the awaranged multiplied by (ii) a fraction, (x) the
numerator of which is the number of full monthsvibetn grant date and the date of such terminatimh(y the denominator of which is the

term of the award, such product to be rounded divthe nearest whole number, and reduced by lfigMalue of any award that previously

vested, shall immediately vest and become payahileet Participant. Upon the termination of a Pgséint's employment with the Company
any other reason, any unvested portion of the asfaatl be forfeited and cancelled without consitera

There was $25 million and $19 million of tax behedalized from stock option exercises and vestinBSUs during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively. Dutiegyear ended December 31, 2011 , the Companysext&0 million of the $19 milliotax
benefit that was realized during the year endecebBer, 2010 .

Stock Options

The Company has a stock-based compensation plam#iees awards of stock options to the Compseyecutives and certain employees.
the Company’s policy to grant options with an eisg@rice equal to the average of the high anddoee of the Company’s Series A common
stock on the grant date. The options issued hagearanging from seven to ten years and vestgna@ded basis over four years . The
estimated value of the Company’s stock-based awasdsexpected forfeitures is recognized over Werds’ respective vesting period on a
straight-line basis.

Generally, vested stock options are exercised ir@ubroker-assisted cashless exercise progranmoiebassisted cashless exercise is the
simultaneous exercise of a stock option by an eyeg@nd a sale of the shares through a broker.ofimd shares of the Company’s Series A
common stock are used to settle stock options.

Beginning in October 2010, the Company startedtgrgrawards of stock options to certain executiffeeers of the Company that require a
holding period of one year subsequent to exercigispck option award for net profit shares (agneef below) acquired upon exercise. Net
profit shares means the aggregate number of sbatesmined by the Company’s human resources depattrapresenting the total number of
shares remaining after taking into account theWaithg costs related to exercise: (i) the aggregpten price with respect to the exercise;

(i) the amount of all applicable taxes with redpecthe exercise, assuming the participant’s marmapplicable federal, state and local tax
rates (and applicable employment taxes); anda(iij) transaction costs.

The fair value of each option granted is estimatedhe grant date using the Black-Scholes opti@ringr method. The weighted average
assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 0.81% 1.27% 1.9(%
Estimated life in years 4.7t 5.72 5.2C
Dividend yield 0.6(% 0.5%% 0.9€%
Volatility 45.0(% 51.7%% 54.3(%

The computation of the expected volatility assuoptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is based on the Company’s
historical volatilities. When establishing the egfesl life assumptions, the Company reviews annigéditical employee exercise behavior of
option grants with similar vesting periods.
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The summary of changes in stock options outstanidiag follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
(In millions) (In $) (In years) (In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2010 5.3 19.27 4.2 11t
Granted 0.2 32.51
Exercised (0.9 23.90
Forfeited — —
Expired — —

As of December 31, 2011 4.€ 18.94 3.€ 11¢
Options exercisable at end of year 4.4 18.37 3.5 114
The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofksteptions granted is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Total $ 11.3¢ % 14.7¢  $ 7.4¢€

The total intrinsic value of options exercised aadh received from stock option exercises is davist

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Intrinsic value of stock options 2C 13 9
Cash received from stock option exercises 20 14 14

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company had $4 millibtotal unrecognized compensation expense rktatstock options, excluding actual
forfeitures, which is expected to be recognized dhe weighted-average period of 3.2 years.

Restricted Stock Unit

The Company’s RSUs are net settled by withholdhmeyas of the Comparg'Series A common stock to cover minimum statutocgme taxe:
and remitting the remaining shares of the Compa8gises A common stock to an individual brokeragmpant. Authorized shares of the
Company’s Series A common stock are used to dR8lgs.

Performanc-based RSUsThe Company grants performance-based RSUs todhgeény’s executive officers and certain employeez@er
year. The Company may also grant perform-based RSUs to certain new employees or to empdoybe assume positions of increasing
responsibility at the time those events occur. iitmaber of performance-based RSUs that ultimatedy igedependent on one or both of the
following according to the terms of the specificaadlagreement: The achievement of a) internal fatufity targets (performance condition)
and b) market performance targets measured byottgarison of the Company’s stock performance veasiisfined peer group (market
condition).

The performance-based RSUs generally cliff-vesinguthe Company’s quarter-end September 30 blatkeriod three years from the date of
grant. The ultimate number of shares of the ComisaBgries A common stock issued will range fronozerstretch , with stretch defined
individually under each award, net of shares usembver minimum statutory personal income taxebhétd. The market condition is factored
into the estimated fair value per unit and compgosaxpense for each award will be based on thbahility of achieving internal profitabili
targets, as applicable, and recognized on a striighbasis over the term of the respective griass estimated forfeitures. For performance-
based RSUs granted without a performance conditimmpensation expense is based on the fair valuenierecognized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the grant, less estimatddifores. Upon the termination of participant’s@ayment by the Company without cause

prior to the vesting date, the participant is dligifor a prorated number of performance-based R&ided on a formula as outlined in each
agreement.
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A summary of changes in nonvested performance-baS&és outstanding is as follows:

Weighted

Number of Average

Units Fair Value

(In thousands) (In $)

As of December 31, 2010 1,17¢ 30.6i
Granted 26¢€ 40.81
Vested (290) 14.6¢
Cancelled (24) 21.3(
Forfeited (70 36.8¢
As of December 31, 2011 1,05; 37.4:

The fair value of shares vested for performanced®&SUs is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)

Total 14 8 2

Fair value for the Company’s performantased RSUs was estimated at the grant date usditante Carlo simulation approach less the pre
value of the expected dividends not received duttiegperformance period. Monte Carlo simulation wiiized to randomly generate future
stock returns for the Company and each compartyeiéfined peer group for each grant based on coyrgzecific dividend yields,

volatilities and stock return correlations. Thesgims were used to calculate future performansed&SU vesting percentages and the
simulated values of the vested performance-basatsR&re then discounted to present value usingkafreée rate, yielding the expected value
of these performance-based RSUs.

The range of assumptions used in the Monte Camalsition approach is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 0.3&% 0.7%% 1.11%
Dividend yield 0.00 -4.37% 0.00 -4.18% 0.00 -4.64%
Volatility 25 -90% 25 -70% 25 -75%

Time-based RSUsThe Company grants non-employee Directors timed&SUs annually that generally vest one year gf@ant. The fair
value of the time-based RSUs is equal to the dipgiite of the Company’s Series A common stockhengrant date less the present value of
the expected dividends not received during theivggteriod.

The Company also grants time-based RSUs to the Goy'gexecutives and certain employees that véablsaover intervals ranging from
three to four years . The fair value of the timsdzhRSUs is equal to the average of the high amgbtae of the Company’s Series A common
stock on the grant date less the present valugeoéxpected dividends not received during the nggteriod. Upon the termination of
participant’s employment by the Company withoutsegprior to the vesting date, the participantigilele for a prorated number of time-based
RSUs based on a formula as outlined in each agmgeme

A summary of changes in nonvested time-based R8tésamding is as follows:

Employee Time-based RSUs Director Time-Based RSUs
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Units Fair Value Units Fair Value
(In thousands) (In $) (In thousands) (In $)
As of December 31, 2010 607 26.41 21 33.13
Granted 33z 33.67 13 49.30
Vested (219) 27.78 (22) 33.13
Forfeited (449 27.27 — —

As of December 31, 2011 68z 30.37 13 49.30
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As of December 31, 2011 , there was $29 millionmfecognized compensation cost related to RSU$ydirg actual forfeitures, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 1.8 years.

The fair value of shares vested for time-based RSUds follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Total 7 6 2

Beginning in October 2010, the Company startedtgrgrboth time-based RSUs and performance-basedsRSExecutive officers and certain
employees of the Company that require a holdingpdesf seven years from the grant date of the asvbod0% to 75% of the shares vested,
depending on salary level, as specified in eaclvidhgal agreement. The fair value of the RSUs waitiding periods were discounted due to
lack of transferability of these RSUs during thédimgg period as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In percentages)

Holding period discount 30 30 N/A

The discount was determined using the weightedagseresults as calculated under the Chaffe anceRinmodels.
Performance Units

In December 2008, the Company granted 200,000 qpesioce units to be settled in cash to the Compad§®. The terms of the performance
units are substantially similar to the performabesed RSUs granted in December 2008 and incluéefarmance condition and a market
condition. On October 14, 2011 the performanceswested and $10 million was paid in cash to them@any's CEO. As of December 31,
2011 , there are not any remaining amounts to e pa

The expense related to performance units is aswsl|

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)
Total 3 5 2

Deferred Compensatio

In April 2007 , certain participants in the Compan®004 deferred compensation plan elected togpatie in a revised program, which
includes both cash awards and restricted stock (sée Restricted Stock Units above). Based oicjpation in the revised program, the
Company expensed $0 million , $9 million and $1@ian during the years ended December 31, 2011102thd 2009 , respectively, related to
the revised program and made payments of $1 milbguearticipants who left the Company and did nakenany payments to active employees
during the year ended December 31, 2011 .

Cash awards

In December 2008 , the Company granted time-ves@stp awards to the Company’s executive officedscamtain other key employees. On
October 14, 2011 the final tranche of these casir@dswested. As of December 31, 2011 , there aramporemaining amounts to be paid. The
activity related to the time-vesting cash awardssifollows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Expense 4 7 7
Payments to active employees 6 5 6
Payments to terminated employees — 1 1
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20. Leases

Rent expense recorded under all operating leasesfalows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Total 17¢ 16C 14¢€

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetahtal and lease agreements which have initiat@raining terms in excess of one year
are as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Capital Leases
(In $ millions)

2012 44
2013 43
2014 43
2015 43
2016 43
Later years 311
Sublease income =

Minimum lease commitments 527
Less amounts representing interest 27¢

Present value of net minimum lease obligations 24¢

As of December 31, 2011
Operating Leases
(In $ millions)

2012 58
2013 51
2014 44
2015 40
2016 36
Later years 10¢€
Sublease income (22)
Minimum lease commitments 314

The Company expects that, in the normal courseaisiniess, leases that expire will be renewed oaoepl by other leases.
21. Derivative Financial Instruments

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in then@any’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrast rate swap agreements to convert a
portion of its variable rate borrowings into a fikeate obligation. These interest rate swap agretnage designated as cash flow hedges and
fix the LIBOR portion of the Company’s US-dollarraeminated variable rate borrowings (Note 13). lirgerest rate swap agreement is
terminated prior to its maturity, the amount presly recorded in Accumulated other comprehensigerite (loss), net is recognized into
earnings over the period that the hedged transautipacts earnings. If the hedging relationshigissontinued because it is probable that the
forecasted transaction will not occur accordingh®original strategy, any related amounts preWorecorded in Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net are recognizedeiatnings immediately.
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US-dollar interest rate swap derivative arrangesiang as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
80C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2012 4.92%
40C January 2, 2008 January 2, 2012 4.3%
20C April 2, 2009 January 2, 2012 1.92%
1,10C January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%

@ Fixes the LIBOR portion of the Company's d8Har denominated variable rate borrowings (N&g

On February 1, 2012, the Company executed forwimndirsg interest rate swaps with a total notiomabant of $500 million . As a result of
these swaps, the Company has fixed the LIBOR podfdb500 million of the Company's variable raterbwings at 1.02% effective

January 2, 2014 through January 2, 2016 .

As of December 31, 2010

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
10C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2011 4.92%
80C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2012 4.92%
40C January 2, 2008 January 2, 2012 4.32%
20C April 2, 2009 January 2, 2012 1.92%
1,10C January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%

@ Fixes the LIBOR portion of the Company's d8Har denominated variable rate borrowings (N@&g

Euro interest rate swap derivative arrangementaafellows:

As of December 31, 2010
Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®

(In € millions)

15C April 2, 2007 April 2, 2011 4.04%

@  Fixes the EURIBOR portion of the Company's Euroateimated variable rate borrowings (Note

The Company did not enter into a new Euro interast swap arrangement upon the expiration of tietieg Euro interest rate swap
arrangement on April 2, 2011.

Interest rate swap activity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Hedging activities - Interest Expense (59) (68) (63)

Ineffective portion - Other income (expense), net — —

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Certain subsidiaries have assets and liabilitie®denated in currencies other than their respedtinetional currencies, which creates foreign
exchange risk. The Company enters into foreignetuay forwards and swaps to minimize its exposufergign currency fluctuations. Throu
these instruments, the Company mitigates its foreigrency exposure on transactions with thirdypartities as well as intercompany
transactions. The foreign currency forwards andoswaae not
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designated as hedges under FASB ASC Topic 815 s@aid losses on foreign currency forwards and seapsed into to offset foreign
exchange impacts on intercompany balances ardfiddsas Other income (expense), net, in the codatedd statements of operations. Gains
and losses on foreign currency forwards and swatesed into to offset foreign exchange impactslbother assets and liabilities are classi
as Foreign exchange gain (loss), net, in the caleteld statements of operations.

The following table indicates the total US dollguésalents of net foreign exchange exposure relat€dhort) long foreign exchange forward
contracts outstanding by currency. All of the caants included in the table below will have approaiety offsetting effects from actual
underlying payables, receivables, intercompanydaarother assets or liabilities subject to foreéggohange remeasurement.

2012 Maturity

(In $ millions)

Currency

Euro (34¢)
British pound sterling (10
Chinese renminbi (84)
Mexican peso 19
Singapore dollar 43
Canadian dollar 42
Japanese yen 1
Brazilian real (11)
Swedish krona 5
Other 5

Total (336)

Gross notional values of the foreign currency foxlgeand swaps are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Total 89¢ 751

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comnesditiits procurement of certain raw materials. Chenpany manages its exposure to
commodity risk primarily through the use of longresupply agreements, multi-year purchasing anessajreements and forward purchase
contracts. The Company regularly assesses itsigganftusing forward purchase contracts and oté@rmaterial hedging instruments in
accordance with changes in market conditions. Fatywarchases and swap contracts for raw matenialprincipally settled through physical
delivery of the commaodity. For qualifying contradise Company has elected to apply the normal psehand normal sales exception of
FASB ASC Topic 815 based on the probability atitteeption and throughout the term of the contraat the Company would not settle net
and the transaction would result in the physicéivdey of the commodity. As such, realized gains émsses on these contracts are included in
the cost of the commodity upon the settlement efdbntract.

In addition, the Company occasionally enters iimaricial derivatives to hedge a component of ame#erial or energy source. Typically,
these types of transactions do not qualify for leegigcounting. These instruments are marked to matleach reporting period and gains
(losses) are included in Cost of sales in the dadeted statements of operations. The Company rézed no gain or loss from these types of
contracts during the years ended December 31, 20010 and 2009 . As of December 31, 2011 , thefgamy did not have any open financial
derivative contracts for commodities.
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Information regarding changes in the fair valu¢hef Company’s derivative arrangements is as follows

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Year Ended December 31, 2010 Year Ended December 31, 2009
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Recognized in Recognized in
Other Gain (Loss) Other Gain (Loss) Other Gain (Loss)
Comprehensive Recognized ir Comprehensive Recognized ir Comprehensive Recognized ir
Income (Loss) Earnings Income (Loss) Earnings Income (Loss) Earnings

(In $ millions)

Derivatives
designated a
cash flow
hedging
instruments
Interest ) )
rate swaps (24) @ (59) @ By ® (68) @ (40) @ (63) @
Derivatives
not
designated a
hedging
instruments
Foreign
currency
forwards
and swaps — (15 ® — 33 ® — (20) ®

Total (24) (74) 31 (39) (40) (83

@ Amount excludes $2 million of gains associated whii& Company’s equity method investments’ derivagictivity and $10 million of tax
expense recognized in Other comprehensive incooss)(l

@ Amount represents reclassification from Accumulattiter comprehensive income (loss), net and isidead in Interest expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.

®  Amount excludes $5 million of gains associated i Company’s equity method investments’ derivagietivity and $15 million of tax
expense recognized in Other comprehensive incoomss)(l

@ Amount excludes $8 millionf tax expens:

® Included in Foreign exchange gain (loss), net fugrating activity or Other income (expense), netfan-operating activity in the
consolidated statements of operations.

See Note 22, Fair Value Measurements, for additiofarmation regarding the fair value of the Comp'a derivative arrangements.
22. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC TR0 for financial assets and liabilities. FASB@3%opic 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measair value. The hierarchy gives the highestnitsido unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Letaheasurement) and the lowest priority to unobssevimputs (Level 3 measurement). This
hierarchy requires entities to maximize the usebsfervable inputs and minimize the use of unobséiaputs. If a financial instrument uses
inputs that fall in different levels of the hierbyg the instrument will be categorized based upenidwest level of input that is significant to
fair value calculation. Valuations for fund invegtints such as common/collective trusts and regisierestment companies, which do not
have readily determinable fair values, are typjcafitimated using a net asset value provided hiré party as a practical expedient.

The levels of inputs used to measure fair valueaar®llows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices for identicak#s or liabilities in active markets accessiblei®yCompany
Level 2 - inputs that are observable in the matkepother than those inputs classified as Level 1

Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable in the ntatkee and significant to the valuation
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The Company'’s financial assets and liabilities mead at fair value on a recurring basis includeistes available for sale and derivative
financial instruments. Securities available foresatclude US corporate bonds and equity securilesivative financial instruments include
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwamtksavaps.

Marketable Securities Where possible, the Company utilizes quoted piilc@stive markets to measure debt and equity &esjrsuch items
are classified as Level 1 in the hierarchy andiudelequity securities. When quoted market pricegifntical assets are unavailable, varying
valuation techniques are used. Common inputs ininglthese assets include, among others, benchyiedds, issuer spreads and recently
reported trades. Such assets are classified a$ 2é@vehe hierarchy and typically include corparéionds. Mutual funds are valued at the net
asset value per share or unit multiplied by the lpemof shares or units held as of the measurenaet d

Derivatives. Derivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using discounted cash flow techniques. & beshniques incorporate
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs such as interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates. These markatsrare utilized in the discounted cash
flow calculation considering the instrument’s temotional amount, discount rate and credit risgn8icant inputs to the derivative valuation
for interest rate swaps and foreign currency fodsand swaps are observable in the active markdtar@ classified as Level 2 in the
hierarchy.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oecarrring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total

(In $ millions)

Marketable securities, at fair value

Mutual funds 64 — 64
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign currency forwards and swaps — 9 9 @
Total assets as of December 31, 2011 64 9 73
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnis
Interest rate swaps — (21) (21) @
Interest rate swaps — (13 13 ®
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps — 2 2 @
Foreign currency forwards and swaps — 3 3 @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 2011 — (39 (39)
Marketable securities, at fair value
US corporate debt securities — 1 1
Mutual funds 77 — 77
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign currency forwards and swaps — 3 30
Total assets as of December 31, 2010 77 4 81
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnis
Interest rate swaps — (59) (59) @
Interest rate swaps — (14) (14) @
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign currency forwards and swaps — (20 (10 @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 2010 — (83) (83)

@ Included in current Other assets in the consolidlatdance shee

@ Included in current Other liabilities in the cornigated balance shee

® Included in noncurrent Other liabilities in the sofidated balance shet

Carrying values and fair values of financial ingtents that are not carried at fair value in thesotidated balance sheets are as follows:

As of December 31,

2011 As of December 31, 20
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In $ millions)
Cost investments 147 — 13¢ —
Insurance contracts in nonqualified pension trusts 69 69 70 70
Long-term debt, including current installments arfig-term debt 2,911 2,967 3,06¢ 3,087

In general, the cost investments included in théetabove are not publicly traded and their faluga are not readily determinable; however,
the Company believes the carrying values approxiroatre less than the fair values.
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , the fair vabfesish and cash equivalents, receivables, traghbpes, short-term debt and the current
installments of long-term debt approximate carrymatues due to the short-term nature of theseuingnts. These items have been excluded
from the table with the exception of the currestaliments of long-term debt. Additionally, certaioncurrent receivables, principally
insurance recoverables, are carried at net reddizalue.

The fair value of long-term debt is based on vadunet from third-party banks and market quotations.
23. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in legal and regulatoryceedings, lawsuits and claims incidental to themabrconduct of business, relating to such
matters as product liability, land disputes, castBaantitrust, intellectual property, workers' gansation, chemical exposure, asbestos
exposure, prior acquisitions and divestitures, peste disposal practices and release of cheniitalthe environment. The Company is
actively defending those matters where the Comjmngmed as a defendant. Due to the inherent diuijgof assessments and
unpredictability of outcomes of legal proceedirntyge, Company's litigation accruals and estimatgsoatible loss or range of possible loss
(“Possible Loss”) may not represent the ultimass|to the Company from legal proceedings. For ressy possible loss contingencies that
may be material and when determinable, the Compatiates its Possible Loss, considering that trag2iny could incur no loss in certain
matters. Thus, the Company's exposure and ultinases may be higher or lower, and possibly mdkgsa, than the Company's litigation
accruals and estimates of Possible Loss. For soatters, the Company is unable, at this time, tionedgée its Possible Loss that is reasonably
possible of occurring. Generally, the less progteashas been made in the proceedings or the &rdlae range of potential results, the more
difficult for the Company to estimate the Possibbss that it is reasonably possible the Companyddoeur. The Company may disclose
certain information related to a plaintiff's claagainst the Company alleged in the plaintiff's diegs or otherwise publicly available. While
information of this type may provide insight inteetpotential magnitude of a matter, it does noessarily represent the Company's estimate of
reasonably possible or probable loss. Some of tregany’s exposure in legal matters may be offsetpgpjicable insurance coverage. The
Company does not consider the possible availakfitpsurance coverage in determining the amouhdsp accruals or any estimates of
Possible Loss.

Plumbing Actions

CNA Holdings LLC (“CNA Holdings”), a US subsidiaf the Company, which included the US business comducted by the Ticona
business that is included in the Advanced Engirntebtaterials segment, along with Shell Oil Compaltghell”), E.l. DuPont de Nemours and
Company (“DuPont”) and others, has been a deferidamseries of lawsuits, including a number okslactions, alleging that plastic resins
manufactured by these companies that were utilizeothers in the production of plumbing systemsrésidential property were defective for
this use and/or contributed to the failure of spithmbing. Based on, among other things, the finslioigoutside experts and the successful use
of Ticona's acetal copolymer in similar applicaip@NA Holdings does not believe Ticona's acetpbbomer was defective for this use or
contributed to the failure of the plumbing. In aéuh, in many cases CNA Holdings' potential futaposure may be limited by, among other
things, statutes of limitations and repose.

In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Sheleesd into national class action settlements inQbg, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese
Corporation, et al., No. 94-0047 (Chancery Ct.,dDiCounty, Tennessee) matter. The time to filentdahgainst the class has expired and the
entity established by the court to administer tlaés was dissolved in September 2010. In addbietwveen 1995 and 2001, CNA Holdings
was named as a defendant in various putative algigms. The majority of these actions have nownlmBemissed. As a result the Company
recorded $59 million in reserve reductions and vedes from associated insurance indemnificatiamtngd 2010. The reserve was further
reduced by $4 million during the year ended Decertie2011 following the dismissal of the remaini§ case (St. Croix, Ltd., et al. v. Shell
Oil Company d/b/a Shell Chemical Company, CaseX®97-CR-467, Virgin Islands Superior Court) whielas appealed during the three
months ended September 30, 2011.
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As of December 31, 2011, the class actions in Canagl subject to a pending class settlement thaldwesult in a dismissal of those cases.
The Company does not believe the Possible Losgia$sd with the remaining matters is material. Cwenpany recorded recoveries and
reductions in legal reserves related to plumbirtgpas (Note 17) to Other (charges) gains, net Hevis:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Recoveries 2 14 1
Legal reserve reductions 4 45 9
Total 6 58 1C

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigatio

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€weanese Corporation (“HCC”), Celanese Americap@ation and Celanese GmbH
(collectively, the “Celanese Entities”) and Hoeglise former parent of HCC, were named as defesdarttvo actions (involving multiple
individual participants) filed in September 2006W$ purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufedtand sold by HCC. The actions alleged
that the defendants participated in a conspiradixtprices, rig bids and allocate customers ofypeter staple sold in the US. These actions
were consolidated in a proceeding by a Multi-Dédttiitigation Panel in the US District Court foretWestern District of North Carolina styled
In re Polyester Staple AntitruLitigation, MDL 1516. On June 12, 2008 the court dismisseddhactions with prejudice against all Celanese
Entities in consideration of a payment by the Conypd his proceeding related to sales by the podyestaple fibers business which Hoechst
sold to KoSa B.V., flk/a Arteva B.V., a subsidiafyKoch Industries, Inc. (“KoSa’in 1998. In November 2003, KoSa sought recovergnftie
Company (Koch Industries, Inc. et al. v. Hoechstiéskigesellschaft et al., No. 03-cv-8679 SoutherstriRit NY) alleging a variety of claims,
including indemnification and breach of represeatet, arising out of the 1998 sale. During the fouuarter of 2010, the parties settled the
case pursuant to a confidential agreement andatbe was dismissed with prejudice. The settlememsishstantial portion of the amount
recognized as Earnings (loss) from discontinuedaijmns in the consolidated statement of incomelferyear ended December 31, 2010.

Prior to December 31, 2008, the Company had eniatedolling arrangements with four other alled¢f purchasers of polyester staple fibers
manufactured and sold by the Celanese Entitiess& pbarchasers were not included in the settlentehbae such company filed suit against
the Company in December 20081{lliken & Company v. CNA Holdings, Inc., Celands®ericas Corporation and Hoechst ASo. 8-SV-
00578 W.D.N.C.)). On September 15, 2011, the camedismissed with prejudice based on a stipulaiahproposed order of voluntary
dismissal.

Commercial Actions

In April 2007, Southern Chemical Corporation (“Swern”) filed a petition in the 190th Judicial DistrCourt of Harris County, Texas styled
Southern Chemical Corporation v. Celanese L{@ause No. 2007-25490), seeking declaratory jiggmelating to the terms of a multi-year
methanol supply contract. The trial court granteel Company's motion for summary judgment in Mar@d&dismissing Southern's claims. In
September 2009, the intermediate Texas appellate @versed the trial court decision and remaritleccase to the trial court. The Texas
Supreme Court subsequently declined both parégsiasts that it hear the case. On August 15, ZBdiithern filed a second amended petition
adding a claim for breach of contract and seekimgtable damages in an unspecified amount fronCibrapany. Southern amended its
complaint again in June, August and November 28handoning its declaratory judgment claim and agldiew claims for fraud and tortious
interference with a third-party contract. More dfieally, Southern now claims the Company “matdyiahisrepresented its intended use of the
methanol to be supplied by Southern” and “violatesl material terms of the contract and failed twext these breaches after Southern
provided notice.” These alleged breaches incluedifig), transferring, swapping or tolling methatolor with entities other than the Company
and to entities or operations outside the U.S. exiwb.” In the November 2011 complaint, Southersesking compensatory damages of $1.3
billion , as well as pre- and post-judgment interagorneys' fees and punitive damages equalingitwes its actual damages. Southern also is
seeking rescission or termination of the contrédal has been reset for July 17, 2012. The Compsuagtively defending the matter. The
Company believes that Southern's claims lack raedtthat its alleged damages are inaccurate amahyievent, grossly inflated. Based on the
Company's evaluation of currently available infotima, including that discovery is ongoing and inxes foreign entities, the plaintiff is
seeking relief other than compensatory damagesn#iter presents meaningful legal uncertaintied,thare are significant facts and legal
claims in dispute, the Company cannot estimatétigsible Loss for this matter, if any, in excessrohaterial amounts accrued.
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Acetic Acid Patent Infringement Matter

As previously disclosed, beginning in 1999, Celanesernational Corporation filed three separatérigement actions against China
Petrochemical Development Corporation (“CPDC”) miwan alleging that CPDC infringed Celanese Intéonal Corporation's patent
covering the manufacture of acetic acid. Since 1889cases have progressed through the Taiwart §aiem, including the Intellectual
Property Court. By mutual agreement on June 291 20k companies entered into a confidential setld of this litigation. The settlement
was not significant to the Company's results ofrapiens for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Award Proceedings in relation to Domination Agreemteand SqueezOut

The Company's subsidiary, BCP Holdings GmbH (“BGitdihgs”), a German limited liability company, islafendant in two special award
proceedings initiated by minority stockholders @l&hese GmbH seeking the court's review of the atsdi) of the fair cash compensation
and of the guaranteed dividend offered in the paseh offer under the 2004 Domination Agreement ‘{B@mination Agreement”) and (ii) the
fair cash compensation paid for the 2006 squeeré-8queeze-Out”) of all remaining stockholdersG#lanese GmbH.

Pursuant to a settlement agreement between BCRngeldnd certain former Celanese GmbH stockholdfettse court sets a higher value for
the fair cash compensation or the guaranteed payuneler the Domination Agreement or the SqueezeeOmpensation, former Celanese
GmbH stockholders who ceased to be stockholde@etz#nese GmbH due to the Squeeze-Out will be edtid claim for their shares the
higher of the compensation amounts determined &g dlurt in these different proceedings relatedhéoomination Agreement and the
Squeeze-Out. If the fair cash compensation deternly the court is higher than the Squeeze-Out eosation of €66.99 , then 1,069,465
shares will be entitled to an adjustment. If thartdetermines the value of the fair cash compé@nsainder the Domination Agreement to be
lower than the original Squeeze-Out compensatiohdbtermines a higher value for the Squeeze-Qupeasation, 924,078 shares would be
entitled to an adjustment. Payments already reddiyethese stockholders as compensation for thaires will be offset so that persons who
ceased to be stockholders of Celanese GmbH die tBqueeze-Out are not entitled to more than diieehiof the amount set in the two court
proceedings.

In September 2011, an expert appointed by the ¢manting the Domination Agreement stockholdersidao assist it in determining the va

of Celanese GmbH rendered an opinion. The expénedphat the fair cash compensation for thesekbtuders ( 145,387 shares) should be
increased from €41.92 to €51.86 . This non-bindipmion recommends a total increase in share wal? million for those claims under the
Domination Agreement. The opinion has no effecttenSqueeze-Out proceeding because the sharea@cm@mmended is lower than the price
those stockholders already received in the Squ@ezeHowever, the opinion also advocates that theranteed dividend should be increased
from €2.89 to €3.79 , aggregating an increasetal guaranteed dividends of €1 million to the Sqe®ut claimants. The Company evaluated
the non-binding opinion of the expert and submitiadritten response during the three months endestmber 31, 2011. No hearing date has
been set. No expert has yet been appointed ingheeze-Out proceedings.

For those claims brought under the Domination Agrest, based on the Company's evaluation of cuyrentiilable information, including the
non-binding expert opinion, and the fact that tbert may adopt this opinion or apply its own, whaduld increase or decrease the Company's
potential exposure, the Company does not belieatetiie Possible Loss is material.

For those remaining claims brought by the Squeazteclaimants, based on the Company's evaluati@uwéntly available information,
including that damages sought are unspecified,pprsted or uncertain, the matter presents mearlifegal uncertainties (including novel
issues of law), there are significant facts in dispand the court has not yet appointed an exierCompany cannot estimate the Possible
Loss, if any, at this time.

Guarantees
The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemnity plarties for environmental and other liabilitigsrsuant to a variety of agreements,
including asset and business divestiture agreemleatses, settlement agreements and various agneemi¢h affiliated companies. Although

many of these obligations contain monetary andiioe limitations, others do not provide such linias.

As indemnification obligations often depend on diceurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutwsts associated with them cannot be
determined at this time.
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The Company has accrued for all probable and redpestimable losses associated with all knowrteraor claims that have been brought
to its attention. These known obligations incluide tollowing:

» Demerger Obligation:

In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the Compameed to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal susmess for various liabilities under the
Demerger Agreement, including for environmentéabiliies associated with contamination arising untie divestiture agreements entered into
by Hoechst prior to the demerger.

The Company's obligation to indemnify Hoechst, agsdegal successors, is capped at €250 millidrandl to the extent the environmental
damage should exceed €750 million in aggregateCtitapany's obligation to indemnify Hoechst anddggl successors applies, but is then
limited to one-third of the remediation cost withdurther limitations. Cumulative payments under thivestiture agreements as of
December 31, 2011 are $56 million . Most of theedhture agreements have become time barred aayanotified environmental damage
claims have been partially settled.

Based on the estimate of the probability of losgeurthis indemnification, the Company had reseofek34 million and $36 million as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, forabigingency. Where the Company is unable to reddgrdetermine the probability of loss
or estimate such loss under an indemnificationbmpany has not recognized any related liabilities

The Company has also undertaken in the Demergerehgent to indemnify Hoechst and its legal succedsor(i) 33.33% of any and all
liabilities that result from Hoechst being heldtlas responsible party pursuant to public law orentror future environmental law or by third
parties pursuant to private or public law rela@ddntamination and (i) liabilities that Hoechstréquired to discharge, including tax liabilities,
which are associated with businesses that werededlin the demerger but were not demerged dweg#d festrictions on the transfers of such
items. These indemnities do not provide for any etary or time limitations. The Company has not ed for any significant reserves
associated with this indemnification as it is ueedl this time to estimate its Possible Loss. Tamgany has not been requested by Hoechst to
make any payments in connection with this indernatfon. Accordingly, the Company has not made awments to Hoechst and its legal
SuCCessors.

» Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agreedetmnify third-party purchasers of former bussesand assets for various pre-closing
conditions, as well as for breaches of represamstiwarranties and covenants. Such liabilities @slude environmental liability, product
liability, antitrust and other liabilities. Thesediemnifications and guarantees represent standatcactual terms associated with typical
divestiture agreements and, other than environrgalslities, the Company does not believe thaytlexpose the Company to any significant
risk. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , the Combaa reserves of $24 million and $26 million estively, for these matters.

The Company has divested numerous businessestrimamts and facilities through agreements contaiimidgmnifications or guarantees to the
purchasers. Many of the obligations contain moetaad/or time limitations, ranging from one yeathoty years . The aggregate amount of
indemnifications and guarantees provided for utidese agreements is $190 million as of Decembe2®l1 . Other agreements do not
provide for any monetary or time limitations.

Purchase Obligation:

In the normal course of business, the Company &imé&y various purchase commitments for goods amndces which extend through 2028 .
The Company maintains a number of “take-or-pay’ti@mots for purchases of raw materials, utilitied ather services. Certain of the contracts
contain a contract termination buy-out provisioattallows for the Company to exit the contractsdiarounts less than the remaining take-or-
pay obligations. The Company does not expect torinay material losses under take-or-pay contréammangements. Additionally, the
Company has other outstanding commitments repriegemiaintenance and service agreements, energytaitylagreements, consulting
contracts and software agreements. As of Decenthet@.1 , the Company had unconditional purchatigaitons of $3.4 billion .

The Company holds variable interests in entitie$ stupply certain raw materials and services tcCtimpany. The variable interests primarily
relate to cosplus contractual arrangements with the suppliedsranovery of capital expenditures for certain plssets plus a rate of returr
such assets. The entities are not consolidatedubedhe Company is not the primary beneficianhefdntities as it does not have the power to
direct the activities of the entities that mosngfigantly
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impact the entities' economic performance. Reltadgtiese variable interest entities, the Comparsy$itamillion and $137 million of capital
lease obligations included in current installmeaftong-term debt and Long-term debt, respectivahyd $119 million of related machinery and
equipment included in Property, plant, and equipineet in the consolidated balance sheet as of Deee31, 2011 . The Company's
maximum exposure to loss as a result of its involeet with these variable interest entities as afddeber 31, 2011 is included within the take-
or-pay obligation discussed above and relates pilyrta contract termination penalties.

During March 2010, the Company successfully conapletn amended raw material purchase agreemenawitpplier who had filed for
bankruptcy. Under the original contract, the Comyparade advance payments in exchange for prefel@niténg on certain volumes of
material purchases over the life of the contrabe Tancellation of the original contract and thengeof the subsequent amendment resulted in
the Company accelerating amortization on the untimear prepayment balance of $22 million during tftree months ended March 31, 2010.
The accelerated amortization was recorded to Gasdles in the consolidated statements of opersitisrfollows: $20 million was recorded in
the Acetyl Intermediates segment and $2 million veae®rded in the Advanced Engineered Materials segnburing the year ended
December 31, 2011 , the Company received considerat $17 million in connection with the settlenerf a claim against this bankrupt
supplier. The consideration was recorded to Otharges (gains), net in the consolidated statenwéraperations in the Acetyl Intermediates
segment.

24. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information for cash and-oash activities is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
(In $ millions)
Taxes, net of refunds 94 13t 17
Interest, net of amounts capitalized 23C 18¢ 20¢
Noncash investing and financing activities
Fair value adjustment to securities available &desnet of tax — 2 3
Capital lease obligations 38 33 38
Accrued capital expenditures 15 21 9
Asset retirement obligations 2 25 30
Accrued Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation costs (33 @) 22

25. Segment Information
Business Segmen

The Company operates through the following busisegsnents according to the nature and economiactaistics of our products as well as
the manner in which the information is used intéyray the Company's key decision maker, who isGuenpany's Chief Executive Officer.

» Advanced Engineered Materia

The Company’s Advanced Engineered Materials segoh@relops, produces and supplies a broad poribéliogh performance specialty
polymers for application in automotive, medical @bectronics products, as well as other consumetiiradustrial applications. The Company
and its strategic affiliates are a leading partaipin the global specialty polymers industry. Phienary products of Advanced Engineered
Materials are used in a broad range of productsdireg automotive components, medical devices telais, appliances, industrial
applications, battery separators, conveyor béltsatfon equipment, coatings, electrical and elewics.

» Consumer Specialtie

The Company’s Consumer Specialties segment comisite Acetate Products and Nutrinova busineSges Acetate Products business
primarily produces and supplies acetate tow, wisalsed in the production of filter products. Thentpany also produces acetate flake which
is processed into acetate fiber in the form ofvaband. The Company’s Nutrinova business produndssells Suneft, a high intensity
sweetener, and food protection ingredients, sudodstes, for the food, beverage and pharmac&uticustries.
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* Industrial Specialties

The Company'’s Industrial Specialties segment inetuthe Emulsions and EVA Performance Polymers bases. The Company’s Emulsions
business is a global leader which produces a hpoadlict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatdgene emulsions, and is a recognized
authority on low VOC (volatile organic compoundsi, environmentally-friendly technology. The Compargmulsions products are used in a
wide array of applications including paints andtougs, adhesives, building and construction, gifdes, textiles and paper. The EVA
Performance Polymers business offers a completeofitow-density polyethylene and specialty ethglemyl acetate resins and compounds.
EVA Performance Polymers’ products are used in megoplications including flexible packaging filmaphination film products, hot melt
adhesives, medical tubing and devices, automotiveet and solar cell encapsulation films.

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale ®@W®H business to Sekisui (Note 4).
» Acetyl Intermediate:

The Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segment prodaoessupplies acetyl products, including acetid,a¢iAM, acetic anhydride and acetate
esters. These products are generally used asigtantiterials for colorants, paints, adhesives,iegst medicines and more. Other chemicals
produced in this business segment are organicrsshaad intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricaltand chemical products.

In November 2010, the Company announced its needgldbped advanced technology to produce ethand.iffthovative, new process
combines our proprietary and leading acetyl platfevith highly advanced manufacturing technologptoduce ethanol from hydrocarbon-
sourced feedstocks.

»  Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administratiegivities such as legal, accounting and
treasury functions and interest income or expesseaated with financing activities of the Compamg the Captives.

The business segment management reporting ancbimgirsystems are based on the same accountingigmas those described in the
summary of significant accounting policies in N@teThe Company evaluates performance based ontopepaofit, net earnings (loss), cash
flows and other measures of financial performamep®rted in accordance with US GAAP.

Sales and revenues related to transactions betwesimess segments are generally recorded at vllaeapproximate thirgrarty selling price:
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Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl Other
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Activities Eliminations Consolidated

(In $ millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Net sales 1,29¢ 1,161 @ 1,22 3,651 @ 1 (477) 6,76%
Other (charges) gains, net (49) 3 — 14 (10 — 48)
Equity in net earnings (loss) o
affiliates 161 2 — 5 24 — 192
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax 23¢ 307 10z 46¢ (362) — 75E
Depreciation and amortization 10C 44 45 96 13 — 29¢
Capital expenditures 64 92 71 122 15 — 364 @
As of December 31, 2011
Goodwill and intangibles, net 391 277 54 23t — — 957
Total assets 2,781 1,15¢ 901 2,03t 1,641 — 8,51¢
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Net sales 1,10¢ 1,09¢ @ 1,03¢ 3,082 @ 2 (409) 5,91¢
Other (charges) gains, net 31 (76) 25 ©® 12 (14) @ — (4¢€)
Equity in net earnings (loss) o
affiliates 144 2 — 5 17 — 16¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax 32¢ 237 89 252 (369) — 53¢
Depreciation and amortization 76 @ 42 41 117 @ 11 — 287
Capital expenditures 52 50 55 49 16 — 222 @
As of December 31, 2010
Goodwill and intangibles, net 42% 284 55 264 — — 1,02¢
Total assets 2,76¢ 99¢ 841 1,90¢ 1,76¢ — 8,281
Year Ended December 31, 2009
Net sales 80¢ 1,08 @ 974 2,60: @ 2 (389) 5,08
Other (charges) gains, net (18) 9 4 ® (91 (22 @ — (36
Equity in net earnings (loss) o
affiliates 78 1 — 5 15 — 99
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax 114 28¢ 89 10z (342) — 251
Depreciation and amortization 73 50 51 12¢ 11 — 30¢
Capital expenditures 27 50 45 36 9 — 167 @

@ Net sales for Acetyl Intermediates and Consumeci@fiies include inte-segment sales of $468 million and $3 million peively, for
the year ended December 31, 2011 and $400 miltidr$@ million , respectively, for the year endecdc®maber 31, 2010 ; and $383 million
and $6 million , respectively, for the year endezt@mber 31, 2009 .

@  Excludes expenditures related to the relocatiagth@fCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach (Note &7 includes an increase in accrued
capital expenditures of $15 million and $21 millifam the years ended December 31, 2011 and Decedih@010 , respectively, and a
decrease in accrued capital expenditures of $%omifbr the year ended December 31, 2009 .
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® Includes $7 million and $10 million for the yearsded December 31, 2010 and 2009 , respectiveipsafance recoveries received from
the Company’s captive insurance companies relatéoet Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility that etiates in consolidation.

@ Includes $2 million for Advanced Engineered Matisrand $20 million for Acetyl Intermediates for thecelerated amortization of the
unamortized prepayment related to a raw materiadh@se agreement (Note 23).

Geographical Segments

Revenues and noncurrent assets are presenteddraiellocation of the business. The net salesdbasé¢he geographic location of the
Company'’s facilities are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)

Net sales
us 1,772 1,55¢ 1,26:
International 4,991 4,36: 3,82(
Total 6,76: 5,91¢ 5,08
International countries with significant net sales
Germany 2,32¢ 1,95( 1,73
China 667 59¢ 46C
Singapore 722 612 513
Belgium 461 451 45¢
Canada 328 271 17:
Mexico 241 267 277

Property, plant and equipment, net based on thgrgphic location of the Company’s facilities isfabows:

As of December 31,
2011 2010

(In $ millions)

Property, plant and equipment, net

us 73¢ 65(C
International 2,53¢ 2,361

Total 3,26¢ 3,015

International countries with significant propenyant and equipment, net

Germany 1,39¢ 1,321
China 57: 557
Singapore 112 9C
Belgium 53 3C
Canada 154 131
Mexico 117 10¢
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26. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In $ millions, except share and per share data)
Amounts attributable to
Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations 60€ 60€ 42€ 42€ 494 494
Earnings (loss) from
discontinued operations 1 1 (49 (49 4 4
Net earnings (loss) 607 607 377 377 49¢ 49¢
Cumulative preferred stock
dividends — — 3 — (10) —
Net earnings (loss) available
to common stockholders 607 607 374 377 48¢ 49€
Weighted-average shares - be  156,204,07 156,204,07 154,564,13 154,564,13 143,688,74 143,688,74
Dilutive stock options 1,930,07: 1,828,741 1,167,92.
Dilutive restricted stock units 813,68! 425,38! 172,24¢
Assumed conversion of
preferred stock — 1,553,92! 12,086,60
Weighted-average shares -
diluted 156,204,07 158,947,83 154,564,13 158,372,19 143,688,74 157,115,52
Per share
Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations 3.8¢ 3.81 2.7 2.6¢ 3.3 3.14
Earnings (loss) from
discontinued operations 0.01 0.01 (0.3)) (0.3) 0.0z 0.0z
3.8¢ 3.82 2.42 2.3¢ 3.4C 3.17

Net earnings (loss)

Securities not included in the computation of ditlhet earnings per share as their effect woulé baen antidilutive are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Stock options 69,39" 575,26t 2,433,51!
Restricted stock units 73t 74,16¢ 302,63!
Convertible preferred stock — — —
Total 70,13( 649,43. 2,736,15!

27. Plant Relocation

In November 2006, the Company finalized a settléragneement with the Frankfurt, Germany Airportr@port”) to relocate the Kelsterbach,
Germany Ticona operations resolving several yeflesgal disputes related to the planned Fraporaesion. As a result of the settlement, the
Company will transition Ticona’s operations fromlgterbach to the Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Rarthe Rhine Main area in Germany.
Under the original agreement, Fraport agreed totipayCompany a total of €670 million over a fiveaygeriod to offset costs associated with
the transition of the operations from its curreddtion and the closure of the Kelsterbach plahé Company subsequently expanded the <
of the new production facilities.

The Company received its final payment from Frap6©€110 million during the three months ended J8@e2011 and ceased POM operations
at the Kelsterbach, Germany Ticona facility primduly 31, 2011. On September 26, 2011, the Compangunced the opening of its new
POM production facility in Frankfurt Hoechst Indrat Park, Germany.

139




A summary of the financial statement impact asdediavith the Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocatioasgollows:

Year Ended December 31, Inc;gitg:l'fl'rr?rngugh
2011 2010 December 31, 2011
(In $ millions)
Deferred proceed8 15¢ — 907
Costs expensed 47 26 10€
Costs capitalize® 171 30& 1,092
Lease buyout — 22 22
Employee termination benefits 8 — 8

@ Included in noncurrent other liabilities in the sofidated balance shet

@ Includes a decrease in accrued capital expendiair$33 million and $7 million for the year endeéd@mber 31, 2011 and 2010 ,
respectively.

28. Insurance Recoveries

Due to certain events in October 2008 and subsegeegivdic cessations of production of the Compasgecialty polymers products produt
at its EVA Performance Polymers facility in Edmamtélberta, Canada, the Company declared two ev#ritece majeure. During 2009, the
Company replaced long-lived assets damaged in @c{08.

In May 2007, the Company announced that it hadrghamned outage at its Clear Lake, Texas acetitfacility. At that time, the Company
originally expected the outage to last until thd ehMay. Upon restart of the facility, additiongberating issues were identified which
necessitated an extension of the outage for furthere extensive repairs. In July 2007, the Comgampounced that the further repairs were
unsuccessful on restart of the unit. All repairseveompleted in early August 2007 and normal prtidacapacity resumed.

Insurance recoveries included in Other (chargeisisgilote 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(In $ millions)

Clear Lake, Texas

Acetyl Intermediates — — 6
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada
Industrial Specialties — 25 1C
Other Activities — @) (20
Total net recoveries — 18 o 6

@ Total net recoveries for the year ended Decembge2@10 consists of $8 million related to properiyrthge and $10 million related to
business interruption.

29. Consolidating Guarantor Financial Information

The 6.6250% Notes and the 5.8750% Notes (colldgtitiee “Notes”) were issued by Celanese US (tlssuer”) and are guaranteed by
Celanese Corporation (the “Parent Guarantor”) AedSubsidiary Guarantors (Note 13). The IssuerSarbidiary Guarantors are 100% owned
subsidiaries of the Parent Guarantor. The Pareatdhtor and Subsidiary Guarantors have guaranieeddtes fully and unconditionally and
jointly and severally

For cash management purposes, the Company tracsférdetween Parent Guarantor, Issuer, Subsi@iaayantors and non-guarantors
through intercompany financing arrangements, couations or declaration of dividends between theeetve parent and its subsidiaries. The
transfer of cash under these activities facilitétesability of the recipient to make specifieddhparty payments. As a result, the Company
presents such intercompany financing activitiegtriloutions and dividends within the category whitye ultimate use of cash to third partie
presented in the consolidated statements of casls fl
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The Company has not presented separate finan&iahiation and other disclosures for each of itssilibry Guarantors because it believes
such financial information and other disclosuresildonot provide investors with any additional infation that would be material in

evaluating the sufficiency of the guarantees.

The consolidating financial information for the Biair Guarantor, the Issuer, the Subsidiary Guaramtod the non-guarantors are as follows:

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)

Net sales — — 2,572 5,24( (2,049 6,76
Cost of sales — — (1,849 (4,509 1,02t (5,329
Gross profit — — 72t 732 (29 1,43¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses — (16€) (36€) — (536)
Amortization of intangible assets — — ()] (45) — (62
Research and development expenses — (64 (32 — (96)
Other (charges) gains, net — — 23 (72) — (48)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — — — —

Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net — — ()] — (D) 2
Operating profit (loss) — — 49¢ 217 (25) 69C
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 60% 77C 165 16€ (1,519 192
Interest expense — (217 (42) (42) 78 (227)
Refinancing expense — 3) — — — 3
Interest income — 23 48 10 (78) 3
Dividend income - cost investments — — — 8C — 8C
Other income (expense), net — — (39 53 — 14
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation:
before tax 60= 573 631 48~ (2,539 75E
Income tax (provision) benefit 2 32 (149 (43 9 (149
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation: 607 60< 482 447 (1,530 60€
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued
operations — — 3 1) — 2
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — — — — —
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — D — — D
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatit — — 2 1) — 1
Net earnings (loss) 607 60t 484 441 (1,530 607
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 607 60 484 441 (1,530 607
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)

Net sales — — 2,271 4,57( (929) 5,91¢
Cost of sales — — (1,709 (3,976 94z (4,73¢)
Gross profit — — 573 594 13 1,18(
Selling, general and administrative expenses — (183) (322) — (505)
Amortization of intangible assets — — ()] (47 — (62)
Research and development expenses — (42 (28) — (70
Other (charges) gains, net — — 68 (1149 — (46)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — ©)] — (©)]

Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net — — 3 5 — 8
Operating profit (loss) — — 40¢% 85 13 503
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 407 551 158 12€ (1,069 16¢
Interest expense — av3) (38) (46) 53 (209)
Refinancing expense — (16) — — — (16)
Interest income — 21 30 9 (53 7
Dividend income - cost investments — — — 73 — 73
Other income (expense), net (27) 2 (52 84 — 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation:
before tax 38C 38t 49¢ 331 (2,056 53¢
Income tax (provision) benefit 3) 22 (92) (38 ) (112)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation: 377 407 407 29¢ (2,05¢) 42¢
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued
operations — — (78 2 — (80)
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — 2 — — 2
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — 28 1 — 29
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatit — — (48) (D) — (49
Net earnings (loss) 377 407 35¢ 292 (1,05¢ 377
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 377 407 35¢ 29z (1,05¢) 371
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)

Net sales — — 2,04¢ 3,98¢ (950 5,082
Cost of sales — — (1,447 (3,579 94z (4,079
Gross profit — — 603 40¢ (8) 1,00z
Selling, general and administrative expenses — (7€) (29¢) — (474
Amortization of intangible assets — — (22 (65) — (77)
Research and development expenses — (47) (29 — (70
Other (charges) gains, net — — (D) (135) — (13€)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — 2 — 2

Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net = — 6 26 1C 42
Operating profit (loss) — — 37¢ (92) 2 29C
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 491 523 72 86 (1,079 99
Interest expense — (169) (44) (47 53 (207)
Interest income — 24 27 1C (53 8
Dividend income - cost investments — 38 19 — 57
Other income (expense), net — 4 2 2 — 4
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax 491 382 47C (21) (1,07 251
Income tax (provision) benefit 7 10¢ 27¢€ (149 — 243
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 49¢ 491 74¢€ (170 (1,07 494
Earnings (loss) from operation of
discontinued operations — — — 6 — 6
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — — — — —
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — — 2 — 2
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations — — — 4 — 4
Net earnings (loss) 49¢ 491 74¢€ (16€) (1,077 49¢
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 49¢ 491 74¢€ (16€) (1,077) 49¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents — — 13z 54¢ — 682
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates — — 297 694 (120) 871
Non-trade receivables, net — 10 1,651 562 (2,989 23t
Inventories, net — — 187 59C (65) 71z
Deferred income taxes — — 87 17 — 104
Marketable securities, at fair value — — 64 — — 64
Assets held for sale — — — — — —
Other assets — 6 18 45 (39 35
Total current assets — 16 2,43 2,45 (2,207) 2,70¢
Investments in affiliates 1,31t 2,97¢ 1,53(C 53t (5,539 824
Property, plant and equipment, net — — 73t 2,53¢ — 3,26¢
Deferred income taxes — 17 382 22 — 421
Other assets — 1,90: 132 29€ (1,987 344
Goodwill — — 29¢ 462 — 76C
Intangible assets, net — — 68 12¢ — 197
Total assets 1,31¢ 4,91¢ 5,58¢ 6,43¢ (9,72¢) 8,51¢

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings and current
installments of long-term debt - third pa

and affiliates — 1,492 17¢€ 131 (2,655 144
Trade payables - third party and affiliates — — 25¢ 53t (120) 67<
Other liabilities — 63 353 50€ (389) 53¢
Deferred income taxes — 16 (16) 17 — 17
Income taxes payable (29 (379) 384 35 (5) 12

Total current liabilities (29) 1,19¢ 1,15¢ 1,22¢ (2,167) 1,38¢

Noncurrent liabilities

Long-term debt — 2,37 834 1,65( (1,989 2,87:
Deferred income taxes — — — 92 — 92
Uncertain tax positions 3 16 27 13€ — 182
Benefit obligations — — 1,34¢ 14¢€ — 1,49
Other liabilities — 13 99 1,05¢ (14) 1,15:
Total noncurrent liabilities 3 2,401 2,30¢ 3,07¢ (1,997) 5,792

Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’
equity 1,341 1,31t 2,122 2,131 (5,56¢) 1,341
Noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Total equity 1,341 1,31¢ 2,122 2,131 (5,56¢) 1,341
Total liabilities and equity 1,31t 4,914 5,58t 6,43¢ (9,729) 8,51¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents — — 12¢ 612 — 74C
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates — — 24¢€ 672 (92) 827
Non-trade receivables, net — 10 1,40( 51E (1,672 25¢
Inventories, net — — 164 484 (38 61C
Deferred income taxes — 25 33 34 — 92
Marketable securities, at fair value — — 77 1 — 78
Assets held for sale — — 9 — — 9
Other assets — 48 33 43 (65) 59
Total current assets — 83 2,09( 2,361 (1,86€) 2,66¢
Investments in affiliates 90:< 3,721 1,41: 53C (5,729 83¢
Property, plant and equipment, net — — 65C 2,36 — 3,017
Deferred income taxes — 19 404 2C — 442
Other assets — 614 12t 38¢ (839) 28¢
Goodwill — — 297 477 — 774
Intangible assets, net — — 79 17z — 252
Total assets 90z 4,437 5,05¢ 6,317 (8,439 8,281

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings and current
installments of long-term debt - third pa

and affiliates — 1,227 137 19C (2,326 22¢
Trade payables - third party and affiliates — — 24¢ 51t (92) 67<
Other liabilities — 87 38t 544 (420) 59¢
Deferred income taxes — — — 28 — 28
Income taxes payable (26) (309) 314 39 Q) 17
Total current liabilities (26) 1,00¢ 1,08¢ 1,31¢ (1,83¢) 1,542
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt — 2,49¢ 98C 34¢€ (8349 2,99(
Deferred income taxes — — — 11€ — 11€
Uncertain tax positions 3 17 28 22t — 275
Benefit obligations — — 1,23( 12¢ — 1,35¢
Other liabilities — 14 12: 954 (16) 1,07t
Total noncurrent liabilities 3 2,52¢ 2,361 1,77(¢ (850) 5,81
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’
equity 92€ 90z 1,612 3,231 (5,746 92¢
Noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Total equity 92€ 90z 1,612 3,231 (5,746 92¢
Total liabilities and equity 90¢ 4,431 9,05¢ 6,31 (8,439 8,281
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 4) — 274 36¢ — 63€
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — (245) (204) — (349
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (8) — — (8)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 1 5 — 6
Deferred proceeds from Ticona Kelsterbach
plant relocation — — — 15¢ — 15¢
Capital expenditures related to Ticona
Kelsterbach plant relocation — — — (204) — (209
Other, net — — (15 (30 — (45)
Net cash provided by (used in) investin
activities — — (167) (274) — (447)
Financing activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — — 5) (11) — (16)
Proceeds from long-term debt — 40C — 11 — 411
Repayments of long-term debt — (532 4 (55 — (597)
Refinancing costs — (8) — — — (8)
Proceeds and repayments from intercomg
financing activities — 14C (140 — — —
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees (32) — — — — (32)
Dividends from subsidiary 45 14E — — (190 —
Dividends to parent — (45) (45) (200 19C —
Contributions from parent to subsidiary — (100) 10C — — —
Stock option exercises 20 — — — — 20
Series A common stock dividends (34) — — — — (34)
Preferred stock dividends — — — — — —
Other, net 4 — (8) — — 4
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 4 — (102) (155) — (253)
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — 2 — 2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents — — 5 (63 — (58
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnir
period — — 12¢ 612 — 74C
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of
— — 13z 54¢ — 682

period
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities (42 — 49 44% — 457
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — (89 (119) — (207)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (46) — — (46)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 4 22 — 26
Deferred proceeds from Ticona Kelsterbach
plant relocation — — — — — —
Capital expenditures related to Ticona
Kelsterbach plant relocation — — — (312) — (312)
Other, net — — (6) (22) — (27)
Net cash provided by (used in) investin
activities — — (13¢) (424) — (560)
Financing activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — — 3 (29 — (16)
Proceeds from long-term debt — 60C — — — 60C
Repayments of long-term debt — (827) 2 (68) — (897)
Refinancing costs — (29 — — — (29
Proceeds and repayments from intercomg
financing activities — 251 (21¢) (33 — —
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees (48) — — — — (48)
Dividends from subsidiary 86 86 — — (172 —
Dividends to parent — (86) (86) — 172 —
Contributions from parent to subsidiary — — — — — —
Stock option exercises 14 — — — — 14
Series A common stock dividends (28) — — — — (28)
Preferred stock dividends 3 — — — — 3
Other, net 16 — 2 — — 14
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 37 — (305) (120) — (38€)
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — (18) — (18)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (5) — (392) (117 — (5149
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnir
period 5 = 52( 72€ — 1,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of
— — 12¢ 61z — 74C

period
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities — — 29¢ 29¢ — 59¢
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — (58 (118) — (17¢€)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — — 9 — 9)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 132 39 — 171
Deferred proceeds from Ticona Kelsterbach
plant relocation — — — 412 — 412
Capital expenditures related to Ticona
Kelsterbach plant relocation — — — (351) — (351)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — — — 15 — 15
Other, net — — (4) (27) — (31
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities — — 70 (39 — 31
Financing activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — — 4 (5) — 9)
Proceeds from long-term debt — — — — — —
Repayments of long-term debt — (28) (16) (36) — (80)
Refinancing costs — (©)] — — — )
Proceeds and repayments from intercomg
financing activities — 31 (32) — — —
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees — — — — — —
Dividends from subsidiary 24 24 4 — (52 —
Dividends to parent — (24) (24) 4 52 —
Contributions from parent to subsidiary — — — — — —
Stock option exercises 14 — — — — 14
Series A common stock dividends (23) — — — — (23)
Preferred stock dividends (10 — — — — (10
Other, net — — D — — Q)
Net cash provided by (used in) financir
activities 5 — (72 (45) — (112
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — 63 — 63
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 5 — 29¢€ 277 — 57¢
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of
period — — 224 452 — 67¢€
Cash and cash equivalents as of end ¢
period 5 — 52C 72¢ — 1,25‘
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30. Subsequent Events

On January 5, 2012 , the Company declared a glyaceesh dividend of $0.06 per share on its CommimeiSamounting to $9 million . The
cash dividend was for the period from NovemberQil,12to January 31, 2012 and was paid on Febru&§1 to holders of record as of
January 18, 2012 .
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibits will be furnished upon request for a noatifee, limited to reasonable expenses.

Exhibit Number Description
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1ite Annual Report on For

10-K filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

3.2 Third Amended and Restated By-laws, effective@f October 23, 2008 (incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Octobey 2808).

3.3 Certificate of Designations of 4.25% ConvéetiBerpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by esfes to Exhibit 3.3 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on Februaty 2011).

4.1 Form of certificate of Series A Common Stackdrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the iRtegtion Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-120187) filed with the SEC on Janu&By 2005).

4.2 Indenture, dated September 24, 2010, by amthgr@elanese US Holdings LLC, the guarantors phdseto, and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdiy reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the
SEC on September 29, 2010).

4.3 Indenture, dated as of May 6, 2011, by andiéet Celanese US Holdings LLC, Celanese CorporatiohWells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddignence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report omi€-K filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2011).

4.4 First Supplemental Indenture, 5.875% Senidebldue 2021, dated as of May 6, 2011, by and leetvelanese US Holdings

LLC, the guarantors party thereto and Wells Fargak8 National Association, as trustee (incorporégdeference to Exhibit 4.3
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with theG&n May 6, 2011).

10.17 Credit Agreement, dated April 2, 2007, am@etpnese Holdings LLC, Celanese US Holdings LIb&,dubsidiaries of Celanese
US Holdings LLC from time to time party theretolasrowers, the Lenders party thereto, Deutsche B&BkNew York Branch,
as administrative agent and as collateral agentrilMieynch Capital Corporation as syndication agekBN AMRO Bank N.V.,
Bank of America, N.A., Citibank NA, and JP Morgahd&e Bank NA, as co-documentation agents (incorpatay reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on May 28, 2010).

10.1(a) First Amendment to Credit Agreement, daietk 30, 2009, among Celanese US Holdings LLGtendMajority Lenders under
the Revolving Facility (incorporated by referenoeeixhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-lédiwith the SEC on July 1,
2009).

10.1(b) Amendment Agreement, dated September®4d) 2mong Celanese Corporation, Celanese US HaldibhG, certain subsidiaries

of Celanese US Holdings LLC, the lenders partyaterDeutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as adnmatiste agent and as
collateral agent, and Deutsche Bank Securities Bb@ Banc of Americas Securities LLC as joint leerdregers and joint book
runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with theGG&n September 29, 2010).

10.1(c) Amended and Restated Credit Agreemengddaéptember 29, 2010 among Celanese Corporatitenése US Holdings LLC,
the subsidiaries of Celanese US Holdings LLC frametto time party thereto as borrowers and guarani@eutsche Bank AG,
New York Branch, as administrative agent and cetidtagent, Deutsche Bank Securities LLC and Baraericas Securitie
LLC as joint lead arrangers and joint book runnEiSBC Securities (USA) Inc., JPMorgan Chase BanR,.Nand The Royal
Bank of Scotland PLC, as Co-Documentation Agehisather lenders party thereto, and certain othents for such lenders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on tepber 29, 2010).

10.1(d) Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, daped 2, 2007, by and among Celanese Holdings LCElanese US Holdings LLC,
certain subsidiaries of Celanese US Holdings LL& Beutsche Bank AG, New York Branch (incorporatgadference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on May 28, 2010).
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Exhibit Number Description

10.2%

10.2(a)t

10.2(b)*

10.3%

10.3(a)t

10.3(b)¥

10.3(c)+

10.3(d)t

10.3(e)t

10.3()t

10.3(g)t

10.3(h)$

10.4%

10.4(a)t

10.5%

10.5(a)t

Celanese Corporation 2004 Deferred Compiens@tan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ the Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-120187) filed with theGSBn January 3, 2005).

Amendment to Celanese Corporation 20GérBs Compensation Plan (incorporated by referémé&exhibit 10.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 307).

Form of 2007 Deferral Agreement between Celanespdtation and award recipient, (incorporated bgrefice to Exhibit 10.1
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SECApril 3, 2007).

Celanese Corporation 2004 Stock Incentiae Bhcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 t® Amnual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreengor employees) between Celanese Corporatioraaredtd recipient (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8(a) to the Annual Re¢por Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 1Q12).

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stoghtion Agreement (for employees) between CelanespdZation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) te innual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SECFebruary 12, 2010).

Form of Amendment Two to Nonqualified @&®ption Agreement (for executive officers) betwézelanese Corporation and
award recipient (incorporated by reference to EixHiB.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filedlwihe SEC on January 26,
20009).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@or non-employee directors) between Celanesp@ation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8(d) te &nnual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SECFRebruary 11, 2011).

Form of Performance-Based RestrictedkStimit Agreement between Celanese Corporation araddrecipient (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the SEC on May 28, 2010).

Form of Performance-Vesting Restrictedc&tUnit Award Agreement between Celanese Corpamatnd award recipient,
together with a schedule identifying substantiadigntical agreements between Celanese Corporatideach of its executive
officers identified thereon (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Fori fled with the SEC on
January 26, 2009).

Performance Unit Award Agreement, datedddnber 11, 2008, between Celanese CorporatioDavid N. Weidman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onulany 26, 2009).

Form of Tim&/esting Cash Award Agreement (for employees) betweelanese Corporation and award recipient, togethb a
schedule identifying substantially identical agreems between the Company and each of its execoftiicers identified thereon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onuany 26, 2009).

Celanese Corporation 2008 Deferred Compiens@tan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.6he Annual Report on Form
10-K filed on February 29, 2008).

Amendment Number One to Celanese Corporation 2@38rizd Compensation Plan (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.2 tc
the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed wlith SEC on April 23, 2009).

Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentlae BEncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 te Registration Statement on Form
S-8 filed with the SEC on April 23, 2009).

Form of 2009 Time-Vesting Restricted 8tdait Award Agreement between Celanese Corporaimhaward recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to theaferly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJuty 29, 2009).
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Exhibit Number Description

10.5(b)+

10.5(c)+

10.5(d)t

10.5(e)t

10.5(f)%

10.5(g)t

10.5(h)$

10.5(i)F

10.5()*

10.5(K)+

10.5(1)%

10.5(m)*

10.6%

10.7%

10.8%

Form of 2009 Performance-Vesting Regtd&tock Unit Award Agreement between Celanese @atipon and award recipient,
together with a schedule identifying substantiadintical agreements between Celanese Corporatideach of its executive
officers identified thereon (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.6 to the Quarterly Report on FA®AQ filed with the SEC on
July 29, 2009).

Form of 2009 Nonqualified Stock Option & Agreement between Celanese Corporation anddaweipient, together with a
schedule identifying substantially identical agreets between Celanese Corporation and each ofdtsigive officers identified
thereon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with SEC on July 29, 2009).

Form of Long-Term Incentive Cash Awarddgment, together with a schedule identifying sattslly identical agreements
between the Company and each of its executiveasffidentified thereon (incorporated by referemcExhibit 10.8 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJaty 29, 2009).

Time-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Agreaity dated April 23, 2009, between Celanese Cotiporand Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to @hearterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJaty 29, 2009).

Form of 2009 Time-Vesting Restricted &tamit Award Agreement (for non-employee directdsejween Celanese Corporation
and award recipient (incorporated by referencexailtit 10.8 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-@diwith the SEC on July
29, 2009).

Form of 2010 Performance-Vesting Restd@tock Unit Award Agreement) between Celanesp@ation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on @egber 13, 2010).

Form of 2010 Time-Vesting Restricted &tooit Award Agreement between Celanese Corporatimhaward recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on ®ember 13, 2010).

Form of 2010 Nonqualified Stock Option aml Agreement between Celanese Corporation anddaweipient (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2010).

Form of 2011 Time-Vesting Restricted &tbamit Award Agreement (for non-employee directdssjween Celanese Corporation
and award recipient (incorporated by referencextoiltit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-@diwith the SEC on July
22,2011).

Form of 2011 Performance-Vesting Restd$tock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC ompteenber 13, 2011).

Form of 2011 Time-Vesting Restricted &tbmnit Award Agreement (incorporated by referene&xhibit 10.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Septeniti&r2011).

Form of 2011 Nonqualified Stock Option &w Agreement (incorporated by reference to ExHiBiB to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2011).

Celanese Corporation 2009 Employee Stockhase Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibito the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed on April 23, 2009).

Executive Severance Benefits Plan, datgd2lyl2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl1td the Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2010).

Summary of pension benefits for David N. digan (updated to include revisions effective aftersummary was first filed as
Exhibit 10.34 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Kedilwith the SEC on March 31, 2005) (incorporatedd§grence to Exhibit
10.13 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed witle SEC on February 11, 2011).
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Exhibit Number Description

10.9%

10.10%

10.11%

10.12%

10.13%

10.13(a)t

10.13(b)%

10.13(c)%

10.14%

10.15*%

10.16

10.17

10.18%t

10.18(a)

Offer Letter, dated February 25, 2009, betw@elanese Corporation and Gjon N. Nivica, Jrcafiporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedwthe SEC on April 28, 2009).

Offer Letter, dated November 18, 2009, kbetwCelanese Corporation and Jacquelyn H. Wolb{parated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on May 28, 2010).

Letter Agreement, dated November 4, 20&tlyéen Celanese Corporation and Mark C. Rohr (parated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on November 7, 2011).

Restrictive Covenant Agreement, dated $dpe 7, 2011, between Celanese Corporation andsJamder (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2011).

Change in Control Agreement, dated Apr2dQ8, between Celanese Corporation and David Ndwéamn, together with a
schedule identifying other substantially identiagteements between Celanese Corporation and eésmafme executive office
identified thereon and identifying the materiaffeliences between each of those agreements aniteth€hanged of Control
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibifl0.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Ap#il2008).

Change in Control Agreement, dated Ma&3008, between Celanese Corporation and Christdphdensen (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 23, 2008).

Form of 2010 Change in Control Agreenfimtiveen Celanese Corporation and participantthegevith a schedule of
substantially identical agreements between Cela@esgoration and the individuals identified therémtorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly Report on FormQGiled with the SEC on July 29, 2010).

Form of Amendment No. 1 to 2010 FornCbénge in Control Agreement between Celanese Catiparand participant, together
with a schedule of substantially identical agreetm®etween Celanese Corporation and the individdelttified thereon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to theaf@erly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC@ctober 26, 2011).

Form of Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back Agremt between Celanese Corporation and award retifieorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the SEC on January 26, 2009).

Summary of NoEmployee Director Compensati

Share Purchase and Transfer Agreement dtien$ent Agreement, dated August 19, 2005 betwesdar@se Europe Holding
GmbH & Co. KG, as purchaser, and Paulson & Co, Brad Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLG;lean behalf of its
own and with respect to shares owned by the invastfunds and separate accounts managed by fite aellers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Reporfonm 10-K filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

Translation of Letter of Intent, dated Nob&m29, 2006, among Celanese AG, Ticona GmbH aapdfr AG (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Reporfomm 8-K filed November 29, 2006).

Purchase Agreement dated as of Decemb@0@8,by and among Celanese Ltd. and certain affittates named therein and
Advent Oxo (Cayman) Limited, Oxo Titan US Corparati Drachenfelssee 520. V V GMBH and Drachenfel&gde V V
GMBH (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27%He Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on Februaty 2007).

First Amendment to Purchase Agreemesetddaebruary 28, 2007, by and among Advent Oxea @aylrtd., Oxea Corporation,
Drachenfelssee 520. V V GmbH, Drachenfelssee 521.GMmbH, Celanese Ltd., Ticona Polymers Inc. anth@ese Chemicals
Europe GmbH (incorporated by reference to ExhiBi6lo the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed oayM, 2007).
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Exhibit Number Description

10.18(b) Second Amendment to Purchase Agreemfsdtis® as of July 1, 2007 by and among Advent O2agman Ltd., Oxea
Corporation, Oxea Holdings GmbH, Oxea DeutschlamtbB, Oxea Bishop, LLC, Oxea Japan KK, Oxea UK L@&klanese Ltd.,
and Celanese Chemicals Europe GmbH (incorporatedfbyence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report-orm 10Q filed with
the SEC on October 24, 2007).

12.1* Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings teeHiCharge

21.1* List of subsidiaries of Celanese Corporal

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing of Celanese Corporation, KPMG LI

23.2* Consent of Independent Auditors of CTE PetrochelmiCampany, BDO USA, LLI

23.3* Consent of Independent Auditors of CTE PetrochelmiCampany, Deloitte & Touche LL

23.4* Consent of Independent Auditors of NatioMi@thanol Company, BDO Dr. Mohamed Amri & Co.
23.5* Consent of Independent Auditors of National Meth@ampany, Deloitte & Touche Bakr Abulkhair & (
24.1* Power of Attorney (included on the signatpege of this Annual Report on Form K-

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer muant to Section 302 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pawant to Section 302 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer muant to Section 906 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pawant to Section 906 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

99.1* Audited financial statements as of Decen81er2011 and 2010 and for each of the years ithileee year period ended December

31, 2011 for CTE Petrochemicals Company.

99.2* Audited financial statements as of Decen@igr2011 and 2010 and for each of the years ithitlee year period ended December
31, 2011 for National Methanol Company.

101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docunt

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*  Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith

1 Indicates a management contract or compensalamygp arrangement

t  Portions of this exhibit have been omittedspant to a request for confidential treatmentifidth the SEC under Rule 24b-2 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 19034, as amended. Triittenl portions of this exhibit have been sepayditdd with the SEC.
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Exhibit 10.15
Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation

Each non-employee director of Celanese Cotjporéthe “Company”) is entitled to (i) an annualst retainer of $85,000, which is paid in
quarterly installments, and (ii) an annual equéttamer of $85,000 in restricted stock units (avedrdt the first regular board meeting following
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders). In additidme thair of the nominating and corporate governaocemittee, compensation committee
and environmental, health & safety committee reze@n annual fee of $10,000 and the chair of tdé aammittee receives an annual fee of
$20,000. The presiding director receives no aduticompensation for his services as such. Beginairihe 2012 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, to be held in April, (i) the annuguity retainer to which each non-employee diredamntitled will be increased to $95,000, (ii)
the additional annual fee the chair of the compegmsa@ommittee receives will be increased to $20,80d (iii) the Company's lead director
(appointed in lieu of a presiding director) wilcedve an additional annual fee of $25,000.

Non-employee directors are also able to ppgte in the Company's 2008 Deferred Compensatiam, ®vhich is an unfunded, nonqualified
deferred compensation plan that allows directoesofiportunity to defer a portion of their compeimgatn exchange for a future payment
amount equal to their deferments plus or minusageeimounts based upon the market performanceeoffig measurement funds selected by
the participant.



Exhibit 12.1

Celanese Corporation and Subsidiaries
Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Bied Charges

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions, except ratios)
Earnings:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape t 75% 53¢ 251 43¢ 437
Subtract
Equity in net earnings of affiliates (192 (16€) (99 (172 (150
Add
Income distributions from equity investments 20t 13¢ 78 182 13t
Amortization of capitalized interest 4 2 2 2 1
Total fixed charges 28C 262 26¢ 324 322
Total earnings as defined before combined fixedgd®s 1,052 77z 50C e 74t
Fixed charges:
Interest expense 221 204 207 261 262
Capitalized interest 1 2 2 6 9
Estimated interest portion of rent expense 58 53 49 47 41
Cumulative preferred stock dividends — 3 10 1C 10
Guaranteed payment to minority shareholders — — — — —
Total combined fixed charges 28( 262 26€ 324 322

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges 3.8x 2.9x 1.9x 2.4x 2.3X



List of Subsidiaries of Celanese Corporation

Exhibit 21.1

Name of Company Jurisdiction

1776461 Canada Inc. Canad:
Acetex Chimie S.A. France
Acetex (Cyprus) Ltd. Cyprus
Acetex Derivatives, SAS France
Acetex Intermediates, SAS France
Acetyls Holdco Cayman Ltd. Cayman Island
Alberta Ag - Industries Ltd. Canad:
Amcel International Co., Inc. Delaware
BCP Holdings GmbH Germany
CAPE Holding GmbH Germany
CCC Environmental Management and Solutions GmbHo& KIS Germany
CCC Environmental Management and Solutions VerwgiuGmbH Germany
Celanese (China) Holding Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Derivatives Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Intermediates Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Chemical Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanijing) Diversified Chemical Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd. China
Celanese Acetate Limited United Kingdon
Celanese Acetate LLC Delaware
Celanese Advanced Materials Inc. Delaware
Celanese Alpine S. ar.l. & Co. KG Germany
Celanese Americas LLC Delaware
Celanese Canada Inc. Canad:
Celanese Chemicals Europe GmbH Germany
Celanese Chemicals Ibérica S.L Spain
Celanese Chemicals Inc. Delaware
Celanese Chemicals India Private Ltd India

Celanese Chemicals S.A. (Pty) Ltd.

Celanese Chemicals UK Ltd.

Celanese Deutschland Holding GmbH

Celanese do Brasil Ltda.

Celanese Emulsions B.V

Celanese Emulsions GmbH

Celanese Emulsions Ltd.

Celanese Emulsions Norden AB

Celanese Emulsions Pension Plan Trust Ltd
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Corporation
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Inc.
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Partnership
Celanese Far East Ltd.

Celanese Global Relocation LLC

Celanese GmbH

Celanese Holding GmbH

Celanese Holdings B.V

Celanese Holdings Luxembourg S.ar.l

South Africe
United Kingdorr
Germany

Brazil
Netherland:
Germany
United Kingdon
Sweder

United Kingdon
North Caroling
Canad:

Canad:

Hong Konc
Delaware
Germany
Germany
Netherland:
Luxembour¢






Celanese Hungary Kft.

Celanese International Corporation
Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.a .|
Celanese Japan Limited

Celanese Korea Chusik Hoesa
Celanese Ltd.

Celanese Mexico Holdings LLC
Celanese Polisinteza d.o.0.*t

Celanese Pte. Ltd.

Celanese S.A.

Celanese S.A./N.V.

Celanese Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Celanese Singapore VAM Pte. Ltd.
Celanese US Holdings LLC

Celanese Ventures USA, Inc.

Celstran GmbH

Celtran Inc.

Celwood Insurance Company

CNA Funding LLC

CNA Holdings LLC

Crystal US Sub 3 Corp.

Edmonton Methanol Company

Elwood Insurance Limited

Estech GmbH & Co. KG**1

Grupo Celanese, S. de R.L. de C.V.***
HNA Acquisition ULC

Hoechst ltalia S.p.A.T

InfraServ Verwaltungs GmbH

KEP Americas Engineering Plastics, LLC
KEP Europe GmbH

Majoriva GmbH

Methanol Holdco Cayman Ltd.

Northern Mountains Celcan LP
NutriCapital Inc.

Nutrinova Benelux S.A./N.V.T

Nutrinova France S.ar.|

Nutrinova Inc.

Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@sbH
RIOMAVA GmbH

Servicios Corporativos Celanese S. de R.L. de C.V.
Tenedora Tercera de Toluca S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ticona Austria GmbH

Ticona CR s.r.o

Ticona Fortron Inc.

Ticona France S.ar.l

Ticona GmbH

Ticona Industrial Co. Ltd.

Ticona ltalia S.r.L

Ticona Japan Ltd.

Ticona Korea Ltd.

Hungary
Delaware
Luxembour¢
Japar
Korea
Texas
Delaware
Slovenie
Singaport
Argentina
Belgium
Singaport
Singaport
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Delaware
Vermont
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Canad:
Bermude
Germany
Mexico
Canad:
Italy
Germany
Delaware
Germany
Germany
Cayman lIsland
Canad:
Delaware
Belgium
France
Delaware
Germany
Germany
Mexico
Mexico
Austria
Czech Republi
Delaware
France
Germany
South Korei
Italy
Japar
Korea






Ticona LLC

Ticona PBT Holding B.V.

Ticona Polymers Inc.

Ticona Polymers Ltda.

Ticona Technische Polymere gAG

Ticona Teknik Polimerler Sanayi ve Tic. Ltd.****t
Ticona UK Limited

Transatlantique Chimie S.A.

Tydeus Erste Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH
Tydeus Zweite Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH
US Pet Film Inc.

* Aggregate ownership is 76.00%
** Aggregate ownership is 51.00%
ok Aggregate ownership is 99.89%
**xk - Aggregate ownership is 99.95%

1) In liquidation

Delaware
Netherland:
Delaware
Brazil
Russie
Turkey
United Kingdorr
France
Germany
Germany
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by refer ence & Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Registratios. 333-122789, 333-128048, 333-
158734, 333-158736 and 333-166358) and on Form (Bejistration No. 333-173822) of Celanese Corpomnatif our reports datel
February 10, 2012 , with respect to the consolilaance sheets of Celanese Corporation as ofnlre31, 2011 and 201@Gnd the relate
consolidated statements of operations, comprehenmsoome (loss), equity, and cash flows for eacthefyears in the thregear period ends
December 31, 2011 , and the effectiveness of iatezontrol over financial reporting as of DecemB&y 2011, which reports appear in 1
December 31, 2011 annual report on Form 10-K oé@ede Corporation.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 10, 2012



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéendfe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N&-BB3822) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-
122789, 333-128048, 333-158734, 333-158736, anell88358) of Celanese Corporation of our reportdi&ebruary 10, 2012relating to th

financial statements of CTE Petrochemicals Compengf December 31, 205hd for the year then ended which appears in thisual Repo
on Form 10-K of Celanese Corporation for the yemleel December 31, 2011 .

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 10, 2012



Exhibit 23.3

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-122789, 333-128048-1%8734, 333-158736, and 333-
166358 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement R8-133822 on Form 3-of Celanese Corporation of our report dated Fayra0, 201
related to the financial statements of CTE Petrodbals Company as of December 31, 2010 and foy#taes ended December 31, 2Gi@
2009 , appearing in this Annual Report on Form 16fICelanese Corporation for the year ended DeceBihe2011 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 10, 2012



Exhibit 23.4

Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéendbe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N&-BB3822) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-
122789, 333-128048, 333-158734, 333-158736, anellB8358) of Celanese Corporation of our reportdi&ebruary 10, 2012relating to th
financial statements of National Methanol Compadiw Sina) (which expresses an unqualified opiniod encludes an explanatory paragr
relating to differences between accounting priregpyenerally accepted in Saudi Arabia and accaymrmciples generally accepted in
United States of America) as of December 31, 20tlfar the year then ended which appears in thisuahReport on Form 10-Kf Celanes
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

/s/ BDO DR. MOHAMED AL-AMRI & CO.

Dammam, Saudi Arabia
February 10, 2012



Exhibit 23.5
Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-122789, 333-128048-1%8734, 333-158736, and 333-
166358 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement R8-133822 on Form 3-of Celanese Corporation of our report dated Fayra0, 201
related to the financial statements of National hMebl Company (Ilbn Sina) (which expresses an uifgpdalopinion and includes
explanatory paragraph relating to differences betwaccounting principles generally accepted in S&udbia and accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Amerisadpf December 31, 2010 and for the years endedrbiger 31, 2010 and 200%ppearin

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Celanese ©oagion for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE BAKR ABULKHAIR & CO.
Al Khobar

Saudi Arabia
February 10, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David N. Weidman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiortny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanaggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlgquarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@rspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inees\'management or other employees who have a samtifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ DAVID N. WEIDMAN

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 10, 2012




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Sterin certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiortny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanaggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlgquarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@rspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inees\'management or other employees who have a samtifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ STEVEN M. STERIN

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 10, 2012




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celanesep@ration (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the metiending December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Reportl),David N. Weidman, Chairman of the Board of Dimes
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, herebitify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpetbpursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl DAVID N. WEIDMAN

David N. Weidman
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 10, 2012



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celanesep@mation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the metiending December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Steven M. BteBenior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifyrguant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pntsa Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley

Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl STEVEN M. STERIN

Steven M. Sterin
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 10, 2012
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Partners of
CTE Petrochemicals Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeTBfR&trochemicals Company (the "Company") as ofeDdwer 31, 2014and the relate
statements of operations, partners' capital, arsth aws for the year then ended. These finandatements are the responsibility of
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgan opinion on these financial statements basedr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audistamdards generally accepted in the United Stdt@snerica. Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonagdeirance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An a
includes consideration of internal control overaficial reporting as a basis for designing auditc@dares that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compaing&snal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptinmgiples used and significant estimates made byagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrechbove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tinancial position of CTE Petrochemic
Company as of December 31, 2014nd the results of its operations and its casidlfor the year then ended in conformity with agttnc
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 10, 2012




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Partners of
CTE Petrochemicals Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheef BfRetrochemicals Company (the "Company") as ofebdaer 31, 2010and the relate
statements of operations, partners' capital, asti 8aws for each of the two years in the periodeshDecember 31, 2010These financii
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgilsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements base
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiitagdards generally accepted in the United Stdtésnerica. Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonaséeirance about whether the financial statemeater of material misstatement. An a
includes consideration of internal control overafigial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedtinas are appropriate in t
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compainyésnal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptimgiples used and significant estimates made bypagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presairtyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of CTE Petrochemicals Company a
December 31, 2010, and the results of their ojpersfand their cash flows for each of the two yéathe period ended December 31, 2010
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 10, 2011




Equity in net earnings of Ibn Sina
Administrative expenses
Withholding tax expense

Income tax benefit

Net earnings

CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
$ 232,25( $ 161,70 $ 134,46¢
(119) — —
(11,329 (7,69¢) (4,126)
— — 4,75(
$ 220,80: $ 154,00t $ 135,09(

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne




Assets
Current assets
Cash

Total current assets

Investment in Ibn Sina

Total assets

Liabilities and Partners' Capital
Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners' capital

CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

See the accompanying notes to the financial statene

As of December 31,

2011 2010

(In thousands)

68 $ —
68 —
143,82 143,78¢
143,89 $ 143,78¢
55 § —
55 —
143,84( 143,78¢
143,89 $ 143,78¢




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' CAPITAL

2011 2010 2009
Texas Texas Texas
Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood
Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance
Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Partners' Capital
Balance as of the beginning
of the period $ 72,34« $ 73,19F $14553¢ $ 72,74t $ 72,747 $14549' $ 46,14: $ 46,14! $ 92,28¢
Net earnings 110,40: 110,40: 220,80: 77,00: 77,00: 154,00¢ 67,54¢ 67,54¢ 135,09(
Net dividends (109,489 (105,620 (215,109 (77,407 (76,55% (153,967 (40,940 (40,94) (81,88)
Balance as of the end of tl
year 73,25¢ 77,97¢ 151,23: 72,34 73,19¢ 145,53¢ 72,74¢ 72,747 145,49!
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
(Loss), Net
Balance as of the beginnir
of the period (875) (875) (1,750 (612) (617) (2,227 (2,024 (2,029 (2,04¢)
Pension and postretirement
benefits (2,82)) (2,82)) (5,642 (263) (264) (527) 412 413 82t
Balance as of the end of tl
period (3,69¢) (3,69¢) (7,397) (875) (875) (1,750 (612) (612) (1,227

Total Partners' Capital ~ $ 69,56(

$ 74,28( $143,84( $ 71,46¢ $ 72,32( $143,78¢ $ 72,13¢ $ 72,13¢ $144,27.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Operating activities
Net earnings $ 220,80 $ 154,006 $ 135,09(
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net castiigged by operating activities:
Equity in net earnings of Ibn Sina (232,25() (161,709 (134,46¢)
Dividends received 226,57( 176,15¢ 86,00
Income taxes payable — (14,499 (4,750
Accrued liabilities 55 — —
Net cash provided by operating activities 21517 153,96: 81,88
Financing activities
Dividends paid (215,109 (153,967 (81,88))
Net cash used in financing activities (215,109 (153,962) (81,88))
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 68 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period = = =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 68 $ — $ —

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Description of the Company and Basis of Presentatit

CTE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE” or the “Companig”’a common general partnership (the “Partner$higiich was formedn Januar
27, 1981 pursuant to the laws of the Cayman IslaBdssh West Indies. The original partners, Celsa Arabian Inc. ("Celanese Arabiaati
Texas Eastern Arabian Ltd. (“Texas Eastern”), a llyhowned subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation (K2"), each acquired an eq
ownership interest in CTE. Through a series ofdaations, Elwood Insurance Limited (“Elwoodg,wholly owned subsidiary of Celan
Corporation (“Celanese”acquired Celanese Arabian's original interest ireCand Celanese and Duke continue to have an egusrshi
interest, including profit and loss distributiohraugh their respective subsidiaries, Elwood anxaEd=astern.

CTE's primary asset is its 50% investment in Natidviethanol Company (“Ibn Sina”)bn Sina, a Saudi limited liability company registe
under the laws of Saudi Arabia, is owned equallydi}E and Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (“SABJ@ privatelyheld Saudi Arabie
joint stock company. Ibn Sina was formed in 1988 &nin the business of operating a petrochemicaipiex which produces methanol
methyl tertiary butyl ether (“MTBE").

On April 1, 2010, Elwood, Texas Eastern, and SARXpanded the scope of Ibn Sina to include the iomaif a polyacetal (“POM’
production facility, and extended the term of tbim{ venture to 2032. The capital required to btild POM plant is funded equally by SAE
and CTE. Elwood and Texas Eastern provide 65% &9d, 3espectively, of the POM funding requirementsCdE. Once the POM pla
becomes commercially operational, whicheiimated to take approximately three years to ¢et@pCTE's respective earnings will be
65% and 35% to Elwood and Texas Eastern, respéctidewever, the partners' equal ownership perggnia CTE will remain unchange
Elwood and Texas Eastern will continue to sharepbeer to direct the activities that most signifidg impact the Company's econol
performance. SABIC will continue to have 50% owhgrsn Ibn Sina, including its respective shareguffits and losses.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accomlavith accounting principles generally acceptedhi@ United States of AmericalS
GAAP?) for all periods presented.

2. Summary of Accounting Policie:
» Estimates and assumptior

The preparation of financial statements in confoymaiith US GAAP requires management to make esésiand assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andmeee and expenses. These estimates, based onvaiabla information at the time, coi
differ from actual results.

* |nvestment in Ibn Sina

The Company accounts for its investment in Ibn Sisiag the equity method of accounting as it hasathility to exercise significant influer
over operating and financial policies of Ibn Sibat does not exercise control. Under the equityhiodtthe investment, originally recorde:
cost, is adjusted to recognize the Company's sharet earnings or losses of Ibn Sina and redugediidends received.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrwalue of its investment whenever events omngles in circumstances indicate a los
value that is other than a temporary decline. A limsvalue of an equityaethod investment which is other than a temporaglide will be
recognized as the difference between the carryimguat of the investment and its fair value and dosh, if any, would be charged to earni
No such losses have been recogni

» Dividends
The Company records dividends when received asctieduof its investment. Historically, Ibn Sina hdistributed a substantial portion of

after tax earnings to its partners. CTE remitsdividends to its partners, Elwood and Texas Eas&multaneously when received from
Sina.




» Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incom

Accumulated other comprehensive income is the Cowipashare of Ibn Sina's gains or losses for paensiw postretirement benefits that
not recognized immediately as a component of nebgie pension cost. Total comprehensive incomewanted to $215,160 for the year en
December 31, 2011.

3. Investment in lIbn Sina

The following are summarized US GAAP financial staent results of Ibn Sina (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Total Assets $ 529,10( $ 480,26 $ 468,44
Debt — — —
Total Liabilities 222,12 183,97 140,22¢
Net Sales 1,242,611 930,61 752,57
Operating Profit 576,47t 387,72. 324,99:
Net Income 515,65( 343,63¢ 289,10(

The laws of Saudi Arabia require different allooas of income taxes to capital balances based tp®mespective partner's country
domicile. Accordingly, CTE's percentage of Ibn Snget income in equity is not proportioned tooitenership percentages.

4. Taxes

The financial statements reflect no provision ability for income taxes because the Company'sifired results are included in the income
returns of the Partners for the years ended DeceBihe2011 , 2010 and 2009rhe Company incurs withholding tax from the Safidhbiar
government at a rate of 5% on dividends receivenhfits investment in Ibn Sina. Withholding taxes eeported as withholding tax expens:
the Company's statements of operations when didgleme received. Amounts shown as withholding tegperse were paid to the Ss
Arabian government in the respective periods pteskerfror the year ended December 31, 2011 taxdsymae $11.3 million.

The Company adopted the provisions of Financialodating Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Stamt$aCodification (“ASC”)740
Income Taxey(originally issued as FASB Interpretation No. #&counting for Uncertainty in Income TaxXgswhich clarifies the accounti
and disclosure for uncertainty in income tax possi as defined, on January 1, 2007. Based on d¢mep@ny's review, a reserve of $1
million related to Saudi Arabia corporate income ¢a the Company's share of Ibn Sina earningsaforyears 1997 to 2003 was required.
tax reserve was recorded through income tax expemsbe Company's financial statements prior toatieption of FASB ASC 740 and
cumulative effect adjustment was required at adoptipon receiving a final tax assessment fromSaedi Arabian tax authority in 2009,
Company reversed $4.7 million of the tax resentee fiemaining $14.5 million was paid in the firster of 2010.

5. Subsequent Event

Subsequent events were updated through FebruaB01@,, the date at which the financial statemeete available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the management
National Methanol Company (lbn Sir
Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeatidridil Methanol Company (Ibn Sina), a Saudi lidhii@bility company (the "Company
as of December 31, 2011and the related statement of income, cash flomes @artners' equity for the year then ended. THigsecia
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgeagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements bi
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audistagdards generally accepted in the United Stdt@snerica. Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonaséeirance about whether the financial statemeater of material misstatement. An a
includes consideration of internal control overafigial reporting as a basis for designing auditc@dares that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compainyésnal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptimgiples used and significant estimates made bypagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedtg tinancial position of National Methal
Company (lbn Sina) as of December 31, 20ahd the results of its operations and its casiwdlfor the year then ended in conformity \
accounting principles generally accepted in Saudbia.

Accounting principles generally accepted in Sauthbda vary in certain significant respects fromaating principles generally acceptet
the United States of America. Information relatinghe nature and effect of such differences isgmeed in Note 23 to the financial stateme

/s/ BDO Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri & Co.

Gihad M. Al-Amri
License No. 366 -Dammam -Saudi Arabia

February 8, 2012




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the management
National Methanol Company (lbn Sir
Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeatidridil Methanol Company (Ibn Sina), a Saudi lidhii@bility company (the "Company
as of December 31, 201(and the related statements of income, cash feovaspartners' equity for each of the two yearheferiod ende
December 31, 2010These financial statements are the responsilafithe Company's management. Our responsibility express an opini
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiitagdards generally accepted in the United Stdtésnerica. Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonaséeirance about whether the financial statemeater of material misstatement. An a
includes consideration of internal control overafigial reporting as a basis for designing auditc@dares that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compainyésnal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptimgiples used and significant estimates made bypagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presaintyf, in all material respects, the financial imsi of the Company as of December 31, 2010
and the results of its operations and its cashdléar each of the two years in the period endedebder 31, 2010n conformity witt
accounting principles generally accepted in Saudbia.

Accounting principles generally accepted in Sauthbda vary in certain significant respects fromaating principles generally acceptet
the United States of America. Information relatinghe nature and effect of such differences isgmeed in Note 23 to the financial stateme

/s/ Deloitte & Touche
Bakr Abulkhair & Co.

Nasser M. A-Sagga
License No. 322
February 10, 2011




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 201(

Note SR 00( SR 00(
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 395,34( 335,23
Trade receivables from related parties 17 502,59° 462,13(
Inventories 4 201,72¢ 219,20:
Other receivables and prepayments 5 56,84 37,69t
Total current assets 1,156,50! 1,054,26.
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 615,76¢ 621,60
Project under construction 7 114,92: 28,66
Intangible assets 8 63,10¢ 38,73¢
Other non-current assets 9 20,92! 54,02(
Total non-current assets 814,71¢ 743,02¢
TOTAL ASSETS 1,971,22! 1,797,28
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 11 39,96¢ 46,53¢
Accrued and other current liabilities 12 578,06« 490,98
Total current liabilities 618,02¢ 537,52!
Non-current liabilities
End-of-service indemnities 13 107,76( 96,24
Other liabilities 14 18,81« 15,13¢
Total non-current liabilities 126,57- 111,38:
Partners' equity
Share capital 1 558,00( 558,00(
Statutory reserve 20 279,00( 279,00(
Retained earnings 389,62: 311,37¢
Total partners' equity 1,226,62. 1,148,37
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY 1,971,22! 1,797,28

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeHenancial statements
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
Operating income

Financial income

Other income, net

NET INCOME

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeHenancial statements
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2011 201( 200¢
Note SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
17 4,659,81 3,489,81; 2,822,14.
17 (2,474,36)  (2,021,01)  (1,585,05)
2,185,441 1,468,79 1,237,08!

(1,01) (372) (525)

16,17 (20,227 (16,335 (14,81)
2,164,21. 1,452,001 1,221,74

1,841 2,071 812

13,17« 5,90¢ 4,15¢

2,179,22! 1,460,07! 1,226,71.




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

2011 201¢ 200¢

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 2,179,22! 1,460,07 1,226,71
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 159,24¢ 97,30¢ 94,85(
Amortization of intangible assets 29,59: 51,99: 57,28(
End-of-service indemnities 14,66¢ 14,75( 7,04(
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — — 46(
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables from related parties (40,46 9,64( (145,619
Inventories 17,47 (38,489 (57,76))
Other receivables and prepayments (19,149 14,45 (18,10¢)
Accounts payable (6,574 16,71: (2,147
Accrued and other current liabilities 11,42« 51,55! 171,63t
Other liabilities 3,67¢ (283) (3,490
End-of-service indemnities paid (3,159 (1,877 (24,129
Zakat and income tax paid (186,229 (137,74%) (190,92)
Net cash from operating activities 2,159,741 1,538,08! 1,116,80
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (153,409 (48,939 (50,979
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eqaint — — 48¢
Additions to project under construction (79,36%) (19,642 —
Additions to intangible assets (53,969 (51,469 (73,109
Other non-current assets 33,091 997 (927)
Net cash used in investing activities (253,639 (119,047 (124,51)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid net of zakat and income tax (1,845,99)  (1,368,13) (763,18¢)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,845,99) (1,368,130 (763,18¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 60,10¢ 50,91¢ 229,11(
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 335,23 284,31t 55,20¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 395,34( 335,23« 284,31t
Non-cash transactions:
Accruals for additions to project under constructio 6,892 9,021 —
Construction in progress transferred to employemeéhownership receivables — 27,68¢ —

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeHfenancial statements
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Share capital

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Statutory reserve

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Retained earnings

January 1, 2009

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for year
Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat armdme tax
Dividend related to year 2008, net
Dividend related to current year
December 31, 2009

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for year

Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat armdine tax
Dividend related to year 2009, net

Dividend related to current year

December 31, 2010

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for year

Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat armdme tax
Dividend related to year 2010, net

Dividend related to current year

December 31, 2011

Total partners' equity
December 31, 2011
December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Saud

Basic CTE

Industrie: Petrochemica
Corporatiol Compan Total
Note SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
1 279,00( 279,00( 558,00(
20 139,50( 139,50( 279,00(
58,47 14,40¢ 72,88(
613,35 613,35 1,226,71.
15 (16,49%H (121,04) (137,547
— 106,10! 106,10!
(58,61¢) (15,64() (74,25¢)
(397,519 (397,51) (795,03
199,20( 199,66t 398,86t
730,03t 730,03 1,460,07!
15 (19,84¢) (159,58() (179,43)
— 97,42: 97,42:
(199,30) (192,049 (391,35)
(537,099 (537,099 (1,074,19)
172,98 138,39( 311,37¢
1,089,61! 1,089,61. 2,179,22!
15 (28,549 (226,44)) (254,99()
— 113,09¢ 113,09¢
(173,189 (139,56 (312,749
(823,179 (823,17)) (1,646,34)
237,69 151,92¢ 389,62:
656,19° 570,42t 1,226,62:
591,48¢ 556,89( 1,148,37
617,70( 618,16t 1,235,86!

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéHenancial statements
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

1. ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES

National Methanol Company‘lbn Sina”) (“the Company”)s a Saudi limited liability company registered end€Commercial Registration N
2055000779 dated 19 Rajab 1401H (May 23, 1981).

The Company is owned equally by Saudi Basic InéestiCorporation (“SABIC”),a Saudi Arabian joint stock company and (
Petrochemicals Company (“CTE'g,partnership registered in Cayman Islands, Brifigst Indies. CTE is equally owned by Elwood Insge
Ltd., a Bermuda Corporation and Texas Eastern Arabtd., a Bermuda Corporation (collectively "trertRers™).

The authorized share capital of the Company is &Rnfillion divided into 7,420 units of SR 100,008ch. The paid up capital Becember 3:
2011 and 2010 was SR 558 million comprised of 5586 of SR 100,000 each.

The Company's principal business activity is torape a petrochemical complex at Mkbail Industrial City which produces Methanol
Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether (“MTBE”).The Company's Methanol and MTBE plants commencadhuercial operations on November 1, 1
and July 1, 1994, respectively. SABIC distributad anarkets the Company's products.

During 2010, the partners agreed to expand the @agp activities by establishing a plant for thenofacturing of polyoxymethylel
(“POM").

The Company's registered office is in Al-Jubailusettial City in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have begmaped in compliance with the accounting standasdadd by the Saudi Organization
Certified Public Accountants ("SOCPA"). The follawgi is a summary of significant accounting poli@gglied by the Company:

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under theriual cost convention.

Revenue recognition

Product sales are made to SABIC (“the Marketddfon delivery of products to the Marketer, sales r@corded at provisional selling pri
net of marketing expenses paid directly by the Mtgk These selling prices are later adjusted baped actual selling prices received by
Marketer from third parties. Adjustments are reeards they become known to the Company.

Distribution and general and administrative expensg
Distribution expenses principally comprise of cdaturred in the distribution and sale of the Comps products / services. All other expel
are classified as general and administrative exgens

General and administrative expenses include indoests not specifically part of production costsrequired under the accounting stanc
issued by SOCPA. Allocations between general anuirgidtrative expenses and cost of sales, when redjuire made on a consistent basis.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the originalitevamount less an allowance for any uncollect@m®unts. Adjustments are recorded as
become known to the Company. An estimate for dolilokébts is made when the collection of the accouateivable amount is conside
doubtful. Bad debts are written off as incurred.




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Inventories
Finished goods and chemicals are stated at ther lofamst or net realizable value. Cost of finislyesds, chemicals, spare parts and suppl
determined on a weighted average cost basis. lasientof finished goods include cost of materildbor and an appropriate portion of di
overheads.

Inventory items that are considered as essent@hsore continuous plant operations are treatedital spare parts and are classified as
and equipment and are depreciated using the daticectrate relevant to the corresponding planteqdpment.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cdsbfnaccumulated depreciation except for constoucin progress which is stated at ¢
Expenditure on maintenance and repairs is expengkile expenditure for betterments are capitalizBdpreciation is provided over 1
estimated useful lives of the applicable assetsgufie straightine method. Leasehold improvements are amortiaest the shorter of tt
estimated useful life or the remaining term of fkeese. The estimated years of depreciation of timeipal classes of assets are as follows:

Years
Buildings 33
Plant and equipment 5-2C
Furniture, fixtures and vehicles 4-10
Catalyst 1-6

Intangible assets
Intangible assets anticipated to provide identi&diiture benefits are classified as non-curresétss and are amortized using the straligiet-
method over their estimated useful lives. Suchnigitales assets and their expected amortizatiomgei@re as follows:

Employee home ownershi‘HOP") costs
Costs incurred in connection with the constructidremployee housing are capitalized with the reladssets and are amortized using
straight-line method over a period of five years.

Planned turnaround cos

Planned turnaround costs are deferred and amortized the period until the date of the next plantgtharound. Should an unexpec
turnaround occur prior to the previously envisadatk of planned turnaround, then the previouslynoréized deferred costs are immedia
expensed and the new turnaround costs are amoaizzdhe period likely to benefit from such costs.

Costs of implementation of SAP Enterprise ResoRlaening System (“SAP ERP”)
As per the requirements of SABIC's unified accaupfpolicies, all costs relating to FarB&P ERP implementation are deferred and amoil
using the straight-line method over a period oé fjears.

Project under construction
Project under construction represents the costsried for the construction of the POM project asidécounted for at cost.




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviewsattnging amounts of its property, plant and equéptnintangible assets and project u
construction to determine whether there is anyciatitn that those assets have suffered an impairtoss. If any such indication exists,
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated ierdoddetermine the extent of the impairment lalsan(y). Where it is not possible to estirr
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,Gbenpany estimates the recoverable amount of thie-gmserating unit to which the as
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or @gesterating unit) is estimated to be less thanatsying amount, the carrying amount of the ¢
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverabhount. Impairment losses are recognized asfaneg immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reversegairging amount of the asset (cagmerating unit) is increased to the revised eséroi
its recoverable amount, but so that the increaaeying amount does not exceed the carrying amihatitwould have been determined ha
impairment loss been recognized for the asset {gaskrating unit) in prior years. A reversal of arpairment loss is recognized as inci
immediately.

Production advances
Amounts received from affiliates in respect of ¢apadvances to finance tangible assets of the @agnre included under namnren
liabilities and are amortized over the estimatesfuidives of the related assets using the strdigktmethod.

End-of-service indemnities
End-ofservice indemnities, required by the Saudi Araltédoor law, are provided in the financial statemérdised on the employees' lengt
service.

Employees' home ownership program
The Company has a home ownership program thatsoflegible Saudi employees home ownership oppdiasmi

Unsold housing units constructed for eventual saleligible employees are included under propgrtgnt and equipment and depreciated
33 years.

When the houses are allocated to the employeespsteof houses constructed and sold to the emetoyader the program is transferred f
property, plant and equipment to other reumrent assets. Down payments and installmentsiafhase price received from employees ar
off against the other non-current assets.

The cost of the houses and the related purchase isrremoved from other nankrent assets when the title to the houses isfeared to th
employees, at which time, no significant gain @slés expected to result to the Company.

Employees’ savings plan
The Company maintains an employee saving plan. ddrributions from the participants are depositedai separate bank account
provision is established for the Company's contidu

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability at the tiofigheir approval by the Board of Directors. lmerdividends are recorded as and w
approved by the Board of Directors.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated iaiedSRiyals at the rates of exchange prevailintdhattime of the transactions. Monetary as
and liabilities denominated in foreign currenciéshe balance sheet date are translated to SaydisRit the exchange rates prevailing at
date. Gains and losses from settlement and trémslat foreign currency transactions are includethie statement of income.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Zakat and income tax

The Company is subject to the Regulations of thpabtenent of Zakat and Income Tax ("DZIT") in thengdom of Saudi Arabia. Zakat ¢
income tax are provided on an accruals basis aadjel to retained earnings. The zakat charge igpoted at 2.5% on the zakat bas
adjusted net income, whichever is higher. Inconxeisacomputed at 20% of adjusted net income. Arffedince in the estimate is recor

when the final assessment is approved, at whicé tiva provision is cleared.

As per the requirements of the standard issuedhé@ysaudi Organization for Certified Public Accountga zakat and income tax provisions
mixed companies are presented as a sepdestein the statement of changes in partners' ggéity amount withheld or recovered fr

partners towards zakat and income tax is added toaitle partners' equity.

By-product sales
Sales of by- products are credited to cost of sales.

Technology and innovation
Technology and innovation costs are expensed wiwnried.

Leasing

Leases are classified as capital leases whenegeetms of the lease transfer substantially althef risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operégimses. Rentals payable under operating leasesharged to income on a straidihe basi:

over the term of the operating lease.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, demandsitiepand fixed term deposits with maturities afeth months or less from the date

acquisitions. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, caghcash equivalents are as follows:

2011 201(

SR 00C SR 00(

Cash and bank balances 114,09( 140,23:
Time deposits 281,25( 195,00(
395,34( 335,23«

Cash and bank balances at December 31, 2011 inelagéoyees saving plan deposits held in a sepagatk account of SR 5 million (20:

SR 4 million), which are not available to the Compa
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

4. INVENTORIES

2011 201(¢

SR 00( SR 001

Finished goods 130,88t 113,56:
Chemicals 21,21 10,27¢
Spare parts and supplies 36,157 80,95:
Goods in transit 13,47: 14,41
201,72¢ 219,20:

Inventories at December 31, 2011 are shown netl@fvance for obsolescence of SR 12.3 million (20%& 12.3 million). The spare pe
inventory primarily relates to plant and machinangd, accordingly, this inventory is expected taibkzed over a period exceeding one year.

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00(
Advances to related parties (note 17) 33,92¢ 25,93(
Prepayments 11,32 7,31¢€
Others 11,59° 4,44¢
56,84« 37,69:
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2011
Furniture
Plant an fixtures an Constructiol
Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicle: in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2011 311,56¢ 2,187,05 141,15¢ 80,38 6,957 2,727,10:i
Additions — 65,18: 27,09: 1,49¢ 58,84¢ 152,61
Transfers 11z 12,07: 2,87¢ 4,221 (19,149 13¢
December 31, 2011 311,68: 2,264,30 171,12: 86,10( 46,65¢ 2,879,86!
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2011 215,39¢ 1,747,79i 68,85¢ 73,44¢ — 2,105,50.
Charge for year 9,52¢ 94,66¢ 52,581 2,46’ — 159,24¢
Transfers (64¢) — — — — (64¢)
December 31, 2011 224,27¢ 1,842,46. 121,44! 75,91 — 2,264,10.
Net book value
December 31, 2011 87,40 421,84 49,67¢ 10,18" 46,65¢ 615,76¢

NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

2010
Furniture
Plant an fixtures an Constructiol
Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicle: in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Cost
January 1, 2010 311,56¢ 2,133,93. 121,29« 79,83( 59,23: 2,705,865
Additions — 23,50¢ 76€ E5E 24,10" 48,93
Transfers — 29,61( 19,09 — (76,38)) (27,68
December 31, 2010 311,56¢ 2,187,05: 141,15¢ 80,38: 6,957 2,727,10:i
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2010 205,84( 1,673,27! 57,87 71,21 — 2,008,19!
Charge for year 9,55¢ 74,52¢ 10,98¢ 2,23 — 97,30¢
December 31, 2010 215,39¢ 1,747,79 68,85¢ 73,44¢ — 2,105,50.
Net book value
December 31, 2010 96,16¢ 439,25: 72,29¢ 6,93 6,951 621,60°

The Company has leased land for plant and equiparehbuildings from the Royal Commission for Julasiél Yanbu. The lease is for a pe
of 30 years commencing from 1 Jumada 1402H (FebrR4r 1982) and is renewable for a similar periodler mutually agreed terms ¢
conditions.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, construction in @sgymainly represents costs incurred and advaraidsn respect of catalyst and hous
units under construction.

7. PROJECT UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Project under construction at December 31, 201128@ comprises of costs incurred by the Companyhie construction of the POM pl:
and related facilities at Jubail Industrial Cityingdom of Saudi Arabia. Construction related cast®ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, comprit

construction costs under various agreements aedthjirattributable costs to bring the asset toltlsation and condition necessary for it tc
capable of operating in a manner intended by theagement. Directly attributable costs, mainly inewemployee benefits and licensing fees.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2011
Employet
home Software
ownershi Turnaroun developmer
cost: cost: cost: Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2011 4,35¢ 218,65:. 17,58¢ 240,59¢
Additions 1,51¢ 51,061 1,37¢ 53,96
December 31, 2011 5,871 269,71 18,96: 294,55¢
Amortization
January 1, 2011 2,12¢ 182,14¢ 17,58t 201,86(
Charge for the year 1,62: 27,97( — 29,59:
December 31, 2011 3,752 210,11¢ 17,58t 231,45:
Net book value
December 31, 2011 2,12t 59,60: 1,37¢ 63,10¢
2010
Employet
home Software
ownershij Turnaroun developmer
cost: cost: cost: Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2010 4,35¢ 167,18t 17,58¢ 189,13:
Additions — 51,46¢ — 51,46
December 31, 2010 4,35¢ 218,65: 17,58¢ 240,59¢
Amortization
January 1, 2010 1,25 131,02¢ 17,58¢ 149,86¢
Charge for the year 872 51,12( — 51,99:
December 31, 2010 2,12¢ 182,14¢ 17,58¢ 201,86(
Net book value
December 31, 2010 2,23( 36,50¢ — 38,73¢
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2011 201(

SR 00( SR 00(

Employee home ownership receivables 19,48t 52,42
Others 1,43¢ 1,597
20,92 54,02(

10. BANK FACILITIES

The Company has bank facilities amounting to SRA.&Tillion from a local commercial bank for overfirahort term loans, letters of cre
guarantees etc. and bearing interest at commeatéd. These facilities were not utilized at Decengii, 2011 and 2010.

11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

2011 201¢
SR 00( SR 00(
Trade accounts payable 11,12¢ 7,92
Due to related parties (note 17) 28,83¢ 38,61:
39,96 46,53¢

12. ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
2011 201(¢
SR 00( SR 00(
Suppliers' accruals 408,19¢ 394,41
Technology and innovation costs (note 16,17) 1,331 1,63
Zakat and income tax (note 15) 141,88 73,12¢
Withholding tax 14,32¢ 6,29¢
POM project accruals 6,89 9,021
Others 5,431 6,49:
578,06¢ 490,98

15




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

13. END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

2011 201C

SR 00( SR 00(

January 1 96,24+ 83,37:

Additional provision for the year 14,66¢ 14,75(

Utilization of provision (3,15%) (2,877%)

December 31 107,76( 96,24«
14. OTHER LIABILITIES

2011 201cC

SR 00( SR 00(

Employees' savings plan (note 19) 9,55¢ 8,02¢

Employees' early retirement 2,94¢ 178

Other deferred credits 6,30¢ 6,931

18,81 15,13¢

Other deferred credits represent capital advaressived from two affiliated companies for their haf the capital cost of a commonly u
Truck Loading Facility which is owned and managgdie Company. These advances are being amortizettdme over a period of twel
years, which approximates the period over whichréfeted assets are depreciated by the Com,

15. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

The principal elements of the zakat base are &sifel

2011 201( 200¢

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Non-current assets 814,71¢ 743,02¢ 764,26
Spare parts and supplies 36,157 80,95: 72,21t
Non-current liabilities 126,57: 111,38 98,79:
Opening partners' equity 1,148,37 1,235,861 909,88
Dividends paid 1,845,99! 1,368,13I 763,18t
Net income 2,179,22! 1,460,07! 1,226,71.

Some of these amounts have been adjusted in ayrtithe zakat charge for the year.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

The movement in zakat and income tax provisiorsifoows:

2011 201¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Zakat
January 1 19,80¢ 16,49¢ 23,28
Provision for year 28,60: 19,80¢ 16,49¢
(Over)/under provision for the prior year (52 40 —
Payments during year (29,759 (16,53%) (23,289
December 31 28,60: 19,80¢ 16,49:
2011 201(¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Income tax
January 1 53,31¢ 14,94« 61,53¢
Provision for year 226,38! 150,74( 121,04
Under provision for the prior year 56 8,84¢ —
Payments during the year (166,47, (121,21)) (167,639
December 31 113,28t 53,31¢ 14,94
The charge for the year for zakat and income tas ifollows:
2011 201(¢ 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Zakat for current year 28,60: 19,80¢ 16,49¢
(Over)/under provision of zakat for prior year (52 40 —
Income tax for current year 226,38! 150, 74( 121,04°
Under provision for income tax for prior year 56 8,84¢ —
Charged to retained earnings 254,99( 179,43 137,54

Outstanding assessments

Zakat and income tax assessments have been fihalitle the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZlup to 2003.

During 2009, the Company accepted the revised sismgs by the DZIT for the years 1997 to 2003 basethe decision of the Higher App
Committee demanding an additional income tax, zaketay fine and deemed profit tax liability of $&.3 million. The additional asses
liability of SR 56.3 million was paid during Jany&010 and was reimbursed by partners.

DZIT issued a revised assessment for the year #8@ganding additional income tax, zakat and delag mounting to SR 2.2 million. T

Company has filed an appeal against this assessmdritas also submitted a bank guarantee amount®g 2.2 million to the DZIT.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Additionally, during 2011, the DZIT issued assesstador the years 2005 and 2006 demanding additioname tax and zakat amounting
SR 6.4 million, delay fine and withholding tax. TBempany is under process to file an appeal agtiaste assessments.

Additional liabilities that may become payable onoection with zakat, income taxes, delay fines eosts related to the appeals will be b
by the partners of the Company.

The DZIT did not issue assessments for the year 20f@vards as these years are in process by the.DZIT

16. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2011 201¢ 200¢

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Employee benefits 7,68¢ 5,60z 6,49¢
Technology and innovation (note 17) 10,24¢ 8,28: 6,941
Depreciation 10 10 10
Other 2,28: 2,441 1,37(
20,22: 16,33¢ 14,81"

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Product sales are made to the Marketer. Tradevaaless from related parties at December 31, 20812840 mainly represent receivables f
the Marketer.

All procurement services, including warehousingnsporting and arranging for delivery of materiadkated to the Company's spare p
supplies and materials are provided by SABIC urttierterms of the procurement services agreemeetrezhtbetween the Company
SABIC. Procurement services are provided by SABI@ugh the Shared Services Organization (SSO). Ack&ato SABIC for such servic
which are included under other receivables and gyents, amounted to SR 33.9 million at December2811 (2010: SR 25.9 milliot
SABIC charged the Company SR 5.8 million in 20101@ SR 4.7 million) (2009: SR 4.2 million) as puoement services fees.

In addition to procurement services, SSO providesanting, human resources, information technoleggineering, and other general serv
to the Company. The total amount charged in reggieitiese services was SR 9.9 million in 2011 (2@ 8.8 million) (2009: SR 7.7 millior

SABIC Terminal Services Limited (Sabtank) providéspping and material handling services to the Camyp The total service fee chargec
the related party in this respect amounted to $Rrifllion in 2011 (2010: SR 6.0 million) (2009: SFB million).
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

The partners also provide the Company with certauired technical, research and development, adirdtive and other services
accordance with executed agreements. The Compang A@chnology and Innovation Service agreemert @ABIC, under which SABI
provides research and development services to gdmp@ny. The Company is required to pay an annuwalfeler the agreement, whicl
calculated at one percent of Methanol sales pledetsser of US $ 1 million or one percent of MTBHes. A summary of the amounts cha
by the partners is as follows:

2011 201C 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
SABIC - for technology and innovation services 10,24¢ 8,28 6,941

During 2011, related parties incurred SR 29.4 omill{(2010: SR 12.2 million) (2009:Nil) in relatioa the POM project which is reimbursa
on an actual basis.

18. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

2011 201C 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Charges under operating leases recognized as ansxpluring the year 7,63¢ 6,20¢ 7,02¢

Operating lease charges represent rentals payableliicles, properties and land. Rentals are fatetie start of each lease term for a peric
4 years for vehicles and 1 to 2 years for propgrtie

19. EMPLOYEES' SAVING PLAN

The Company administers a saving plan coveringtanbally all of the Company's employees. Partiiimpemployees may elect to contrik
1 to 15 percent of their basic salary. The Compaajches cumulative employee contributions at awdieh increases by 10 percent each
until completion of ten years of participationvatich time Company's cumulative contributions eghal employee's cumulative contributic
The Company's contributions to the saving plareaseued monthly and are not funded.

Employees are always fully vested in their contiittu The employees are fully vested in the Comf{sagcruals generally after one yee
participation in the plan. Employees may withdrdgit contribution at any time under certain comait, and have the option to repay ¢
withdrawals. All fully vested amounts are payaliette employees upon retirement or terminationasfigipation in the plan. Upon complet
of ten years participation in the plan, Saudi emgés may elect to continue their participationoocdllect all fully vested amounts and to re
the plan as if for the first time.

20. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Regulations for Companies indBAumabia, the Company has established a statutmgrve by appropriation of 10% of
income until the reserve equaled 50% of the shapéal. This reserve is not available for dividetiskribution.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

21. RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments carried on the balance spertipally include cash and cash equivalents, aotoreceivable from related parties
other receivables, accounts payable and accruedthed current liabilities.

Credit Risk is the risk that one party will fail to dischards obligation and will cause the other party touina financial loss. Receivables
generally from related parties. Cash is substantjlhced with banks with sound credit ratings. d@aaccounts receivable are carried n
provision for doubtful debts, if any.

Interest Rate Riskis the risk that the value of financial instrumewil fluctuate due to changes in the market indérates. The Company |
no significant interest bearing long term asset&obilities.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter diffiguin raising funds to meet commitments associatéth financia
instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an il#} to sell a financial asset quickly at an ambueitose to its fair value. Liquidity risk
managed by monitoring on a regular basis that@efft funds are available to meet any future comeitts.

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of financial instrumewil fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchargtes. Management monit
the fluctuations in currency exchange rates andages their effect on the financial statements atiagly.

Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchgruyed liability settled between knowledgeable wdl parties in an arm's leng
transaction. As the Company's financial instrumeméscompiled under the historical cost conventiiffierences can arise between their t
values and fair value estimates. Management bali¢hvat the fair value of the Company's financiadets and liabilities are not materi
different from their carrying values.

22. CONTINGENCIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company was contingently liable for a bank gotee issued on behalf of the Company in the nocmalse of business amounting to
2.0 million (2010: Nil) (2009: Nil).

At December 31, the Company had the following @mgibmmitments:

2011 201C 200¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Commitments for POM project and acquisition of mdp, plant and equipment 136,81 172,38( 84,00(
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

23. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE SAUDI
ORGANIZATION FOR CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (SAUD | GAAP) AND GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THE UNITED STATES (US GAAP )

The Company is a Saudi limited liability companygistered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and prepat®financial statements in accorde
with Saudi GAAP. Saudi GAAP varies in certain redg from US GAAP. The material differences betwaecounting principles, practic
and methods under Saudi GAAP and US GAAP and #ifsct on net income and partners' equity for tharg ended December 31, 2011, :
and 2009 are presented below, with an explanatidheoadjustments. There are no material effentthe balance sheets or the statemer
cash flows under Saudi GAAP for the purposes obmeiiation to US GAAP. In addition, comprehensimeome under Saudi GAAP is 1
same as net income.

(&) Reconciliation of net incom

(in SR '000) Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net income under Saudi GAAP 2,179,22! 1,460,07! 1,226,71.
Adjustments:
Zakat and income tax (i) (254,99() (179,43) (137,547
Deferred tax (ii) 6,07( 6,14( (2,019
Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of seniitemnities (iii) 337 2,881 (6,4972)
Other (iv) 3,044 (1,01¢) 3,46:
Net income under US GAAP 1,933,691 1,288,64! 1,084,12.

(b) Reconciliation of partners' equity

(in SR '000) Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Partners' equity under Saudi GAAP 1,226,62: 1,148,37 1,235,86!
Deferred tax (ii) 12,06: 5,99: (147)
Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of seniimemnities (iii) (78,75)) (31,48)) (21,21Y
Other (iv) (8,779 (11,817 (10,807
Partners' equity under US GAAP 1,151,16 1,111,07. 1,203,70:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

(c) Summary of reconciling items to US GAAI

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Zakat and income ta

Under Saudi GAAP, companies with both Saudi andifpr partners (commonly referred to as mixed corgsrare required
present income tax and zakat as a separate limeiitehe statement of changes in partners' egHibyvever, under US GAA
income tax and zakat are viewed as expenses adtbleuto the Company's operations. Accordinglgpime tax and zakat ¢
recognized in the statements of income.

Deferred tax

The Company has not recognized deferred incomarnder Saudi GAAP. Under US GAAP, deferred tax tasard deferred ti
liabilities are recognized for future tax conseqemnof events, which have been recognized in dty'erfinancial statements
tax returns. The Company recognized deferred sarta and liabilities for the portion of tempordifferences subject to incot
tax, that is, the portion of the taxable incomeaftable to foreign partner. Deferred tax assets liabilities attributable to zak
which is also considered as a tax based on incareejot material and, as such, have not been redord

Actuarial valuation adjustment for end of service hdemnities (“EOSI")

Under Saudi GAAP, the Company's EOSI obligatiorsalsulated as the current amount of the aggregeted benefits to whi
each employee is entitled, assuming each emplogdddft the Company at the balance sheet date. tewander US GAAF
EOSI is deemed to be a defined benefit plan, agdires recognition of a liability, known as projedtbenefit obligation, for tl
actuarial present value as of the balance sheetdaall benefits attributed by the benefit formtdaemployee services prior
that date. Since EOSI is unfunded, under US GA&HMability is recognized equal to the projectechdd# obligation. Ne
periodic pension costs comprise of service costerest costs, and gains and losses. In addigaims or losses that are
recognized immediately as a component of net perigeénsion cost are recognized as increases orea@ses in oth
comprehensive income/loss as they arise, and suéstyg amortized to income using the corridor appfto

Other
Other adjustments include the impact on net incame partners' equity primarily for intangible asseapitalized under Sai
GAAP which should be expensed under US GAAP, istdree loans to employees recorded at historical goder Saudi GAA

that are recorded at amortized cost under US GA&Rain items of property, plant and equipment pirgect under constructis
which are capitalized under Saudi GAAP which shdaddexpensed as incurred under US GAAP.
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